
Simon Young, Solicitor
Head of Legal and Democratic Services

LICENSING AND PLANNING POLICY COMMITTEE
Wednesday 12 July 2017 at 7.30 pm

Council Chamber - Epsom Town Hall

The members listed below are summoned to attend the Licensing and Planning Policy 
Committee meeting, on the day and at the time and place stated, to consider the business 
set out in this agenda.

Councillor Graham Dudley (Chairman)
Councillor David Wood (Vice-Chairman)
Councillor Michael Arthur
Councillor Steve Bridger
Councillor Chris Frost

Councillor Rob Geleit
Councillor Tina Mountain
Councillor Martin Olney
Councillor David Reeve
Councillor Alan Sursham

Yours sincerely

Head of Legal and Democratic Services

For further information, please contact Sandra Dessent, tel:  01372 732121 or email: 
sdessent@epsom-ewell.gov.uk

AGENDA

1. QUESTION TIME  

To take any questions from members of the Public

Please note:  Members of the Public are requested to inform the 
Democratic Servicers Officer before the meeting begins if they wish to ask 
a verbal question to the Committee.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

Members are asked to declare the existence and nature of any Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interests in respect of any item of business to be considered at the 
meeting.

Public Document Pack



3. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  (Pages 5 - 8)

The Committee is asked to confirm as a true record the Minutes of the Meeting 
of the Committee held on 20 April 2017 (attached) and to authorise the 
Chairman to sign them.

4. APPOINTMENT OF LICENSING PANEL CHAIRMEN  (Pages 9 - 10)

This report asks the Committee to select four members from the pool of 
Licensing panel members to be available to Chair as required any panels held 
during the 2018/18 Municipal Year.

5. CORPORATE PLAN: YEAR-END PERFORMANCE REPORT 2016 TO 2014 
AND PROVISIONAL TARGETS FOR 2017 TO 2018  (Pages 11 - 32)

This report provides a year-end update against our Key Priority Performance 
Targets for 2016 to 2017, under our new Corporate Plan and provisional targets 
for 2017 to 2018.  

6. EPSOM & EWELL LOCAL PLAN PROGRAMME 2017  (Pages 33 - 54)

A new Local Plan Programme has been prepared to set the process and 
timetable for a partial review of the Epsom and Ewell Core Strategy.

The Committee is asked to consider and agree the Local Plan Programme to 
take effect from 12 July 2017.

7. STRATEGIC HOUSING LAND AVAILABILITY ASSESSMENT  (Pages 55 - 
172)

The Strategic Housing Lane Availability Assessment (SHLAA0 is a key 
evidence base document that seeks to identify and account for future potential 
sources of housing land supply.  The SHLAA should identify a five year supply 
of specific deliverable sites.  The Committee is asked to note the findings of the 
SHLAA and agree to its publication.

8. TRAVELLER ACCOMMODATION ASSESSMENT 2017  (Pages 173 - 248)

The Council are required to produce the Traveller Site Availability Assessment 
(TSAA) in order to inform the Local Plan process.  It identifies the future 
accommodation needs for the period between 2017 until 2032 in accordance 
with the latest national planning policy guidance.  

The Committee are asked to consider the findings of the TSAA and agree to its 
publication.



9. CONSTRAINTS STUDY  (Pages 249 - 282)

National Planning Policy stats that Local Plans should meet objectively 
assessed needs with sufficient flexibility to adapt to rapid change unless there is 
any adverse impact in doing so.  The National Planning Policy Guidance makes 
it clear that whilst the establishment of development needs should be unbiased 
relevant constraints including environmental constraints needs to be addressed 
when bringing evidence bases together and formulating policies.  A Constraints 
Study has been produced to demonstrate that the Council have appraised and 
taken into account constraints relevant to the borough.

The Committee is asked to consider the Constraints Study and agree to its 
publication. 



This page is intentionally left blank



17

Epsom and Ewell Borough Council

Minutes of the Meeting of the LICENSING AND PLANNING POLICY COMMITTEE 
held on 20 April 2017

PRESENT -

Councillor Graham Dudley (Chairman); Councillor David Wood (Vice-Chairman); 
Councillors Michael Arthur, Chris Frost, Rob Geleit, Tina Mountain, Martin Olney, 
David Reeve, Clive Smitheram and Jean Steer

Officers present: Mark Berry (Head of Place Development), Rachel Jackson (Licensing, 
Grants and HIA Manager), Karol Jakubczyk (Planning Policy Manager), Rachael 
Thorold (Senior Planning Policy Officer) and Sandra Dessent (Democratic Services 
Officer)

27 QUESTION TIME 

The Chairman of the Epsom and Ewell Resident’s Association addressed the 
Committee regarding the Council’s policy on managing the use of Estate Agent’s 
boards and suggested a way forward to regulate the current practices.

The Chairman of the Committee thanked the speaker for his comments which 
were duly noted and undertook to investigate further following the meeting and 
provide a written response in due course.

28 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

The following declarations of interest were made at the meeting:

Epsom & Ewell Green Belt Study 2017
Councillor Graham Dudley, Other Interest: Member of the Nonsuch Park Joint 
Management Committee, which is an area designated in the Green Belt study to be 
considered for inclusion in the green belt.

Epsom & Ewell Green Belt Study 2017
Councillor Tina Mountain, Other Interest: resides in an area designated in the Green 
Belt Study to be considered for inclusion in the green belt.

29 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 

The Minutes of the meeting held on 23 February 2017 were agreed as a true 
record and signed by the Chairman.

Page 5

AGENDA ITEM 3



Meeting of the Licensing and Planning Policy Committee, 20 April 2017 18

Epsom and Ewell Borough Council

30 HACKNEY CARRIAGES - ACCEPTANCE OF CARD PAYMENTS 

The Committee were informed that all Hackney Carriages licensed by the 
Transport for London (tfl) were required to have a mechanism to accept card 
payments for fares.  The Authority had a long standing agreement with the tfl that 
enabled certain drivers the right to be dual licenced and apply the tariffs set by 
the tfl.  In April 2016, the Committee were asked to consider if it should be 
mandatory for drivers licenced by this Authority to accept card payments and it 
was agreed that a period of monitoring be undertaken to assess the demand.  

Subsequently, the Committee received a report detailing the findings and noted 
that extensive consultations had led to the conclusion that the majority of drivers 
could not see any reason to impose a mandatory requirement.  It was noted that 
the main ranks are all situated in close proximity to ATM cash dispensers.  In 
addition, the Council had not received any complaints from taxi users about the 
lack of the facility.

The Committee noted that the ten drivers operating in the borough who held a 
dual licence would not be disadvantaged in any way by this Authority not 
introducing mandatory card acceptance facilities.

Accordingly, the Committee agreed that it was not necessary to introduce a 
mandatory requirement for Hackney Carriages licensed by Epsom and Ewell 
Borough Council to have the facility to accept payment by card or other cashless 
methods.

31 EPSOM & EWELL GREEN BELT STUDY 2017 

The Committee were informed of the importance that the Government attaches 
to the Green Belt and the opportunities provided by a review of a local plan to 
consider Green Belt boundaries and their relevance beyond the plan period.  
Subsequently, external consultants were appointed to prepare a study that 
assessed the performance of the Borough’s Green Belt against the relevant 
purposes set out in national planning policy.  The Committee noted that the study 
was a technical evidence base document the outputs of which would be used to 
inform the partial review of the Core Strategy.  Any recommendations arising 
from the review would be detailed in the Issues and Options Consultation paper 
scheduled to come before the Licensing and Planning Policy Committee in 
September 2017.

Officers were pleased to conclude that the Study revealed that on the whole the 
Borough’s designated Green Belt areas performs well against the criteria.  In 
addition four discrete parcels of land not within the Green Belt designation had 
been assessed against the purposes of the Green Belt and all four had 
performed highly against at least one of the purposes.

The Committee were informed that further suggestions for sites to be assessed 
against the purposes of Green Belt should be forwarded to the Planning Policy 
team. 

Page 6

AGENDA ITEM 3



Meeting of the Licensing and Planning Policy Committee, 20 April 2017 19

Epsom and Ewell Borough Council

Members expressed their thanks to officers for their hard work and diligence in 
preparing an excellent report on a subject of great importance to the Borough’s 
residents.

Accordingly the Committee considered the Green Belt Study and agreed:

(1) To its publication, subject to the correction of a minor typographical error.

(2) Noted that the green belt identified four sites which are not part of the 
designated green belt but have been assessed as performing strongly 
against at least one of the purposes of the green belt.

(3) Agreed that the Green Belt Study outputs, including those relating to sites 
not currently designated as being within the green belt, be used to inform 
the partial review of the Core Strategy.

32 HOUSING ANNUAL MONITORING REPORT 2015/16 

The Committee received the Housing Annual Monitoring Report 2015/2016 the 
main objective of which was to identify and maintain a rolling supply of specific 
deliverable sites sufficient to provide five years’ worth of housing against housing 
requirements.  Members were informed that the report covered an historic 
reporting period and included sites that were anticipated to be developed at the 
time of the reporting period.  It was also noted that the CIL implications would be 
detailed in a separate report and a regulation 62 statement would come before 
the appropriate Committee when available.  It was agreed that Members would 
be informed when the information was published on the Epsom & Ewell website.

The Committee noted the contents of the Housing Annual Monitoring Report 
2015/16 and agreed to its publication on the Council’s website, subject to the 
investigation of a discrepancy in paragraph 4.5 –the number of units for 2015/16 
Lintons Centre.

33 THE HOUSING WHITE PAPER 2017 - DRAFT RESPONSE 

The Committee were informed that following the publication of the recent 
Housing White Paper, the Government had issued a consultation consisting of 
38 questions to assess the viability of their proposals. 

Members appraised the draft responses and agreed to the following 
amendments/additions:

 Question 8:  Delete the final sentence of the answer, ‘This amendment is 
not considered necessary.’

 Question13:  Add a reference to high density developments, as follows: ‘;It 
should be noted that high density developments in their totality do not 
automatically lead to a more efficient use of land.  The infrastructure 
requirements to support a resulting concentration of new residents often 
lead to further land requirements, for example, to deliver school 
expansions and car parking.’

Page 7

AGENDA ITEM 3



Meeting of the Licensing and Planning Policy Committee, 20 April 2017 20

Epsom and Ewell Borough Council

 Question 23: Add sentence to clarify the term ‘applicant’, as follows:  ‘It 
cannot be assumed that the applicant of the planning application will be 
the developer or indeed has any intention of developing the site 
themselves.  It is not uncommon for planning permission to be obtained 
prior to a site being sold as way of increasing profit.’

 Question 31:  Insert reference to concerns in changes to affordable 
housing between paragraphs one and two as follows: ‘Furthermore, the 
Borough Council is concerned that the proposed changes to the 
definitions of affordable housing will result in products not remaining 
affordable in perpetuity’.

 Question 32:  Add a sentence that emphasizes the conflict with the 
ministerial statement, as follows:  ‘The Borough Council would like to 
highlight the potential conflict with the current written Ministerial Statement 
in relation to affordable housing contributions and sites of 10 or fewer new 
homes.’

Accordingly, subject to the amendments agreed above, The Committee 
approved the draft responses to the consultation questions, and agreed that the 
responses would constitute the Council’s reply to the proposals. 

34 VOTE OF THANKS 

Councillor Clive Smitheram on behalf of the Committee expressed thanks to the 
Chairman, Councillor Graham Dudley for his hard work and support as Chairman 
to the Licensing and Planning Policy Committee.

35 GENERAL ELECTION 

The Chairman informed the Committee that following the announcement that a 
snap election was to be held on 8 June, the Licensing and Planning Policy 
Committee meeting due to be held on the same day had been cancelled.  The 
next meeting would be held on 12 July.

The meeting began at 7.32 pm and ended at 9.15 pm

COUNCILLOR GRAHAM DUDLEY (CHAIRMAN)

Page 8

AGENDA ITEM 3



LICENSING AND PLANNING POLICY COMMITTEE
12 JULY 2017

APPOINTMENT OF LICENSING PANEL CHAIRMEN

Report of the: Head of Housing & Community
Contact:  Rachel Jackson
Urgent Decision?(yes/no) No
If yes, reason urgent decision 
required:

N/A

Annexes/Appendices (attached): None 
Other available papers (not 
attached):

Report and minutes from the meeting of 
Council held on 29th April 2014

REPORT SUMMARY
This report asks the Committee to select four Members from the pool of 
Licensing panel members to be available to Chair as required any Panels held 
during the 2017/18 Municipal Year.

RECOMMENDATION (S)

(1) The Committee is asked to select four Members 
from the pool of Licensing panel members to be 
available to Chair as required any Panels held 
during the 2017/18 municipal year.

Notes

1 Implications for the Council’s Key Priorities, Service Plans and 
Sustainable Community Strategy

1.1 None for the purposes of this report.

2 Background

2.1 Licensing hearings are required to determine contested licensing 
applications, including applications made under the Licensing Act 2003, 
Gambling Act 2005 and Taxi and Private Hire applications.

2.2 In April 2014, Council agreed that licensing and planning policy matters 
could be dealt with by a single, fifth policy committee.  The Committee 
was to continue to appoint four Chairmen from those trained in licensing 
matters for the purposes of chairing hearings as required.  A pool of 
Chairmen was agreed for 2016/17, and it is now necessary to agree new 
membership for 2017/18.

Page 9

AGENDA ITEM 4



LICENSING AND PLANNING POLICY COMMITTEE
12 JULY 2017

2.3 It is stressed that the requirement for training in licensing matters would 
still remain.

3 Proposals

3.1 It is proposed that the Committee select four Members as Licensing 
Hearing Panel Chairmen for the 2017/18 municipal year. 

4 Financial and Manpower Implications

4.1 Chief Finance Officer’s comments: None for the purposes of this report.

5 Legal Implications (including implications for matters relating to equality)

5.1 Codes of Conduct and Practice have been drawn up to assist Members in 
the discharge of their functions in this regard.

5.2 Monitoring Officer’s comments: The committee’s terms of reference 
include the appointment of four Members from those trained in licensing 
matters to undertake the role of Chairman of the Licensing Hearings 
Panel. 

6 Sustainability Policy and Community Safety Implications

6.1 None for the purposes of this report.

7 Partnerships

7.1 None for the purposes of this report.

8 Risk Assessment

8.1 By their nature, Licensing Panel hearings cannot be scheduled and are 
called as and when required.  A pool of members and Chairmen who can 
be called upon as and when required to form a Panel mitigates the risk of 
a hearing not being held within the specified timescale.

9 Conclusion and Recommendations

9.1 The Committee is asked to select four Members to act as Chairmen of the 
Licensing Panel for the 2017/18 municipal year.

WARD(S) AFFECTED: (All Wards);

Page 10

AGENDA ITEM 4



LICENSING AND PLANNING POLICY COMMITTEE
12 JULY 2017

CORPORATE PLAN: YEAR-END PERFORMANCE REPORT 2016 TO 2017 AND 
PROVISIONAL TARGETS FOR 2017 TO 2018                    

REPORT SUMMARY
This report provides a year-end update against our Key Priority Performance 
Targets for 2016 to 2017, under our new Corporate Plan and provisional 
targets for 2017 to 2018.

RECOMMENDATION (S)

(1) That the Committee considers the performance reported in Annexe 1 and 
identifies any areas of concern. 

(2) Reviews and agrees targets for 2017 to 2018 as detailed in Annexe 2 of 
this report and outlined in paragraph 4.1.

1 Background

1.1 The Council has a four-year Corporate Plan for the period 2016 to 2020.  

1.2 The Corporate Plan sets out the Council’s vision together with its four Key 
Priorities.  The four Key Priorities are underpinned by 19 Key Priority 
Objectives and measured against 57 Key Priority Performance Targets.  

1.3 The delivery of the Corporate Plan will be captured in the performance 
reports, which are based around Committee cycles and detail what will be 
done, what the Key Priority Performance Targets are and how these will 
be measured. The desired key outcomes have also been outlined in the 
Corporate Plan. An annual year-end report will be produced to highlight 
delivery against the Corporate Plan.

Report of the: Head of Corporate Governance
Contact:  Adama Roberts
Urgent Decision?(yes/no) No
If yes, reason urgent decision 
required:

N/A

Annexes/Appendices (attached): Annexe 1 – Year-end Performance Report 
2016 to 2017
Annexe 2 – Provisional Targets for 
2017 to 2018

Other available papers (not 
attached):

Corporate Plan 2016 to 2020 

Page 11

AGENDA ITEM 5



LICENSING AND PLANNING POLICY COMMITTEE
12 JULY 2017

2 Corporate Plan: Delivery against Key Priority Performance Targets set 

2.1 This report tracks the progress against the Key Priority Performance 
Targets previously agreed by the Committee. Consideration should be 
given to the Key Priority Performance Target that have not been achieved 
for 2016/17 as shown in 3.1.

Performance status
Key to reporting status Number

Achieved 7

Not achieved 2

Information Indictors                                                   
(for information purposes only) 3

Total 12

3 Actions identified for the Key Priority Performance Target that have not 
been achieved for 2016 to 2017

3.1 Key Priority Performance Targets that have not been achieved and 
remedial actions identified were applicable

Not achieved Actions identified 
Keeping the Borough clean and green
Complete the pre-submission consultation 
on a partial review of the Core Strategy.

A revised Local Plan Programme was approved 
on 13 July 2016. The recruitment process was 
successful.  The pre-submission consultation on a 
partial review of the Core Strategy is a target for 
2017/18 with a date set for 31st March 2018 as 
shown in Annexe 2. 

Supporting businesses and our local 
economy
At least 90% of other planning applications 
determined within 8 weeks

At year–end we achieved 87% slightly missing 
this target by 3%.  However, we have exceeded 
the 80% national target.

Page 12

AGENDA ITEM 5



LICENSING AND PLANNING POLICY COMMITTEE
12 JULY 2017

4 Provisional Targets for 2017/18

4.1 Our provisional targets have been reviewed, taking into account lessons 
learnt as part of year one of our Corporate Plan. The targets for 2017 to 
2018 have been developed in consultation with the Leadership Team and 
Committee Chairmen.  The provisional targets are focused around our key 
priorities for 2017 to 2018 and are not reliant upon third parties to deliver.  
Our performance management arrangements has been implemented and 
year one of our Corporate Plan has been successfully completed. 
Feedback received as part of year one has been fed into the target setting 
process for year two. We will continue to review our performance 
management processes to ensure performance information submitted 
facilitates decision making and is fit for purpose. The Licensing and 
Planning Policy Committee is asked to review and agree its targets for 
2017 to 2018 as outlined in Annexe 2.

5 Financial and Manpower Implications

5.1 Chief Finance Officer’s comments: None for the purposes of this report.

6 Legal Implications (including implications for matters relating to equality)

6.1 Monitoring Officer’s comments: There are no legal issues arising from 
this report

7 Sustainability Policy and Community Safety Implications

7.1 There are no particular community safety implications for the purpose of 
this report. 

8 Risk Assessment

8.1 Actions have been identified for those Key Priority Performance Targets 
that have not been achieved for 2016 to 2017.

9 Conclusion and Recommendations

9.1 The Committee is requested to consider the year-end performance 
reported for 2016 to 2017 and identify any areas of concern for those Key 
Priority Performance Targets that have not been achieved.

9.2 The Committee is requested to review and agree the provisional targets for 
2017 to 2018.

WARD(S) AFFECTED: N/A

Page 13

AGENDA ITEM 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



 
 
 

  

Corporate Plan: Key Priority Performance Targets 
Licensing and Planning Policy Committee – Year-end Performance Report 2016/2017 

P
age 15

A
G

E
N

D
A

 IT
E

M
 5

A
N

N
E

X
E

 1



 
 

 

 

Performance status 
Key to reporting target status Number 

Achieved 7 

Not achieved 2 

Information Indicators 
(for information purposes only) 

3 

Total 12 

 

  

P
age 16

A
G

E
N

D
A

 IT
E

M
 5

A
N

N
E

X
E

 1



Achieved/on track…  Not achieved/off track… 
Keeping our borough clean and green:  Keeping our borough clean and green: 
 Members to consider a Strategic Housing Market Assessment 

(SHMA) 
  Complete the pre-submission consultation on a partial review of 

the Core Strategy 
 Members to consider a Green Belt Study 
 

  

Supporting businesses and our local economy:  Supporting businesses and our local economy: 
 Produce proposals to implement Planning Performance 

Agreements for Major Planning Applications by 31 July 2016 and 
implement these once agreed by the Licensing Planning & Policy 
Committee 

 Develop a project plan for major applications 
 At least 75% of major planning applications determined within 13 

weeks or in accordance with a Planning Performance Agreement 
or agreed extension of time. 

 At least 80% of business applications determined within 8 weeks 
(defined as: commercial, industrial, retail, business change of use, 
and advertisement applications) 

 At least 90% of premises licence application determined within 21 
days from the end of the statutory consultation period. 

  At least 90% of other planning applications determined within 8 
weeks 

   

Information only Indicator:   

 Number of major planning applications received 

 Number of business applications received  
(Defined as: commercial, industrial, retail, business change of use, 
and advertisement applications) 

 Number of other planning applications received 
 

  

  

P
age 17

A
G

E
N

D
A

 IT
E

M
 5

A
N

N
E

X
E

 1



Keeping the borough clean and green – Key priority 

Key priority 
objective.                    
We will do this by… 

Key priority performance 
target for 2016/17 

Responsible 
officer 

Achieved 
by: 

Latest progress: Status: 

Accommodating 
sustainable 
development 
whilst protecting 
the green belt in 
accordance with 
Policy 

Members to consider a 
Strategic Housing Market 
Assessment (SHMA) 

Mark Berry 
Head of Place 
Development 

31 March 
2017 

April to Sept: Work on the SHMA has been completed. 
Scheduled for consideration at the forthcoming L&PPC 
meeting on 6 September 2016. 

A
ch

ie
ve

d
 

Oct to Dec: The SHMA was reported to the September 
2016 L&PPC and it was accordingly approved for 
publication. Target achieved. 

Jan to March:  The SHMA was reported to the September 
L&PPC and it was approved for publication.  Target 
Achieved.  

 Members to consider a 
Green Belt Study 

Mark Berry 
Head of Place 
Development 

31 March 
2017 

April to Sept: The Green Belt Study has been 
commissioned and the contract has been awarded to 
Atkins, our consultants have started work on the study. 
There will be consultation and engagement in November 
and December 2016 and it is anticipated that there will be 
a Members' Briefing evening on 21 February 2017 with the 
Study reported to the 23 February 2017 L&PPC meeting. 

A
ch

ie
ve

d
 

Oct to Dec: Work on the Green Belt Study is well advanced.  
The latest stage was a stakeholder engagement workshop 
and it was held on 19 December 2016.  It is still anticipated 
that there will be a Members' Briefing evening on 21 
February 2017 with the Study reported to the 23 February 
2017 L&PPC meeting. 

Jan to March:  The Epsom and Ewell Green Belt Study 2017 
is set to be considered by the Licensing and Planning Policy 
Committee on 20 April 2017. Marked as achieved although 
consideration was slipped to the April meeting by 
agreement with Members. 

  

P
age 18

A
G

E
N

D
A

 IT
E

M
 5

A
N

N
E

X
E

 1



Keeping the borough clean and green – Key priority 

Key priority 
objective.                    
We will do this by… 

Key priority performance 
target for 2016/17 

Responsible 
officer 

Achieved 
by: 

Latest progress: Status: 

Accommodating 
sustainable 
development 
whilst protecting 
the green belt in 
accordance with 
Policy 

Complete the pre-submission 
consultation on a partial 
review of the Core Strategy 

Mark Berry 
Head of Place 
Development 

31 March 
2017 

April to Sept: A revised Local Plan Programme was 
approved on 13 July 2016. This envisages that the 
issues and options consultation stage will be 
completed by 31 March 2017 but the pre-submission 
consultation will not be completed until October 
2017. The reasons for this slippage were explained in 
July and were, in part, due to the unanticipated loss of 
staff within the Planning Policy team. A recruitment 
process is well advanced for additional resources to 
support work on the Local Plan. Even the revised 
programme is challenging and very much dependent 
on a positive result from the recruitment process. We 
will not be able to meet the agreed Corporate Plan 
performance target and this will remain at “Red”. 

N
o

t 
A

ch
ie

ve
d

 

Oct to Dec: The recruitment process referred-to 
above has been successful and two new members of 
staff will start by end of January 2017.  This means 
that the revised Local Plan programme (approved on 
13 July 2016) is potentially achievable and the pre-
submission consultation will hopefully be completed 
in October 2017.  The indicator remains at red 
because the Corporate Plan target is unfortunately 
still unachievable. 

Jan to March:  The Local Plan Programme has been 
revised to reflect the slippage that has occurred due 
to the staffing shortages.  The target has not been met 
and the partial review of the Core Strategy will feature 
in the 2017/18 targets - with a revised date of 
31 March 2018. 

P
age 19

A
G

E
N

D
A

 IT
E

M
 5

A
N

N
E

X
E

 1



 

P
age 20

A
G

E
N

D
A

 IT
E

M
 5

A
N

N
E

X
E

 1



Supporting businesses and our local economy – Key priority  
Key priority 
objective.             
We will do this by… 

Key priority performance 
target for 2016/17 

Responsible 
officer 

Achieved 
by: 

Latest progress: Status: 

Supporting 
developers to bring 
forward the 
development of 
town centre sites 

Produce proposals to 
implement Planning 
Performance Agreements for 
Major Planning Applications 
by 31 July 2016 and 
implement these once agreed 
by the Licensing Planning & 
Policy Committee 

Mark Berry 
Head of Place 
Development 

31 March 
2017 

April to Sept: Proposed scheme drafted and 
scheduled on the agenda for the Planning Committee 
meeting on 8 September 2016.   

A
ch

ie
ve

d
 

Oct to Dec: A Planning Performance Agreement 
regime was approved by the Planning Committee on 8 
September 2016 and has been implemented for use in 
appropriate cases.  This target is now achieved. 

Develop a project plan for 
major applications 

Mark Berry 
Head of Place 
Development 

31 March 
2017 

April to Sept: This will be a light-touch process which 
will be designed in line with the approved Planning 
Performance Agreement procedure.  It is achievable 
but is marked as amber as no substantive progress will 
be made until the end of September 2016. 

 A
ch

ie
ve

d
 

Oct to Dec: The Planning Performance Agreement 
regime is in use, a timetable and milestone will be set 
out for relevant cases.  Other applications will be 
managed to ensure that statutory timescales are 
adhered-to.  This target is partially achieved. 

Jan to March: First PPA in process of being 
negotiated. 

  

P
age 21

A
G

E
N

D
A

 IT
E

M
 5

A
N

N
E

X
E

 1



Supporting businesses and our local economy – Key priority  
Key priority 
objective.                  
We will do this by… 

Key priority performance 
target for 2016/17 

Responsible 
officer 

Achieved 
by: 

Latest progress: Status: 

Supporting 
developers to bring 
forward the 
development of 
town centre sites 

Number of major planning 
applications received  

Mark Berry 
Head of Place 
Development 

31 March 
2017 

April to August: During this period we have received 
four planning applications. 

N
/A

 
(i

n
fo

rm
at

io
n

 o
n

ly
 in

d
ic

at
o

r)
 

Oct to Dec: Year to date we have received nine major 
planning applications.  

Jan to March: Year-end total we have received 12 
major planning applications. 

 
  

0

1 1

0

2

1 1 1

2

1 1 1

A
p

ri
l

M
ay

Ju
n

e

Ju
ly

A
u

gu
st

Se
p

te
m

b
er

O
ct

o
b

er

N
o

ve
m

b
er

D
ec

e
m

b
er

Ja
n

u
ar

y

Fe
b

ru
ar

y

M
ar

ch

Major applications received

P
age 22

A
G

E
N

D
A

 IT
E

M
 5

A
N

N
E

X
E

 1



 

Supporting businesses and our local economy – Key priority 

Key priority 
objective.                      
We will do this by… 

Key priority performance 
target for 2016/17 

Responsible 
officer 

Achieved 
by: 

Latest progress: Status: 

Supporting 
developers to bring 
forward the 
development of 
town centre sites 

Number of business 
applications received  
(defined as: commercial, 
industrial, retail, business 
change of use, and 
advertisement applications) 

Mark Berry 
Head of Place 
Development 

31 March 
2017 

April to August: We have defined business 
applications as: change of use, listed buildings, 
consent, advertisement applications relating to a 
business development or use. We have received 61 
applications during this period. 

N
/A

 
(i

n
fo

rm
at

io
n

 o
n

ly
 in

d
ic

at
o

r)
 

Oct to Dec: Year to date we have received 112 
business applications. 

Jan to March:  Year-end total we have received 156 
business applications. 

 
  

7

10

15

9

20

10

18

13

10 9

15

20

A
p

ri
l

M
ay

Ju
n

e

Ju
ly

A
u

gu
st

Se
p

te
m

b
er

O
ct

o
b

er

N
o

ve
m

b
er

D
ec

e
m

b
er

Ja
n

u
ar

y

Fe
b

ru
ar

y

M
ar

ch

Business applications received

P
age 23

A
G

E
N

D
A

 IT
E

M
 5

A
N

N
E

X
E

 1



Supporting businesses and our local economy – Key priority 

Key priority 
objective.                     
We will do this by… 

Key priority performance 
target for 2016/17 

Responsible 
officer 

Achieved 
by: 

Latest progress: Status: 

Supporting 
developers to bring 
forward the 
development of 
town centre sites 

Number of other planning 
applications received 

Mark Berry 
Head of Place 
Development 

31 March 
2017 

April to August: We have received 320 other planning 
applications. These include, change of use, 
householder development, advertisement and listed 
building applications. 

N
/A

 
(i

n
fo

rm
at

io
n

 o
n

ly
 in

d
ic

at
o

r)
 

Oct to Dec:  Year to date we have received 577 other 
planning applications.  

Jan to March:  Year-end total we have received 783 
other planning applications.  

 
  

69 70
75

51 55

81

59 55
62

77

59

70

A
p

ri
l

M
ay

Ju
n

e

Ju
ly

A
u

gu
st

Se
p

te
m

b
er

O
ct

o
b

er

N
o

ve
m

b
er

D
ec

e
m

b
er

Ja
n

u
ar

y

Fe
b

ru
ar

y

M
ar

ch

Other applications received

P
age 24

A
G

E
N

D
A

 IT
E

M
 5

A
N

N
E

X
E

 1



Supporting businesses and our local economy – Key priority  
Key priority 
objective.                      
We will do this by… 

Key priority performance 
target for 2016/17 

Responsible 
officer 

Achieved 
by: 

Latest progress: Status: 

Supporting 
developers to bring 
forward the 
development of 
town centre sites 

At least 75% of major planning 
applications determined 
within 13 weeks or in 
accordance with a Planning 
Performance Agreement or 
agreed extension of time. 

Mark Berry 
Head of Place 
Development 

31 March 
2017 

April to August: There were no major planning 
applications determined in July and August.  

A
ch

ie
ve

d
 

Oct to Dec: Year to date, 100% of major planning 
applications have been determined within 13 weeks 
or in accordance with a Planning Performance 
Agreement or agreed extension of time.  There were 
no applications determined in December. 

Jan to March:  Year-end total, 100% of major planning 
applications have been determined within 13 weeks 
or in accordance with a Planning Performance 
Agreement or agreed extension of time.  There were 
no applications determined in January and February. 

 
 

 
  

7
5

% 1
0

0
%

1
0

0
%

1
0

0
%

1
0

0
%

1
0

0
%

1
0

0
%

1
0

0
%

100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

60% 60%

75% 75%

O
u

tT
u

rn
 f

ro
m

 L
as

t
Ye

ar

A
p

ri
l

M
ay

Ju
n

e

Ju
ly

A
u

gu
st

Se
p

te
m

b
er

O
ct

o
b

er

N
o

ve
m

b
er

D
ec

e
m

b
er

Ja
n

u
ar

y

Fe
b

ru
ar

y

M
ar

ch

% Major planning applications determined within 13 weeks

% Met YTD Cumulative Average % Met National Target Local Target

P
age 25

A
G

E
N

D
A

 IT
E

M
 5

A
N

N
E

X
E

 1



Supporting businesses and our local economy – Key priority 

Key priority 
objective.                      
We will do this by… 

Key priority performance 
target for 2016/17 

Responsible 
officer 

Achieved 
by: 

Latest progress: Status: 

Supporting 
developers to bring 
forward the 
development of 
town centre sites 

At least 80% of business 
applications determined 
within 8 weeks (defined as: 
commercial, industrial, retail, 
business change of use, and 
advertisement applications) 

Mark Berry 
Head of Place 
Development 

31 March 
2017 

April to August:  Good progress made in relation to 
business application determination rates. Officers 
successfully agreeing with applicants extension of 
times.  

A
ch

ie
ve

d
 

Oct to Dec:  Year to date, 88% of business applications 
have been determined within 8 weeks or agreed 
extension of time. 

Jan to March:  Year-end total, 85% of business 
applications have been determined within 8 weeks or 
agreed extension of time. 

 

 
  

8
2

%

8
2

% 1
0

0
%

1
0

0
%

1
0

0
%

8
7

%

8
1

%

8
2

%

8
8

%

9
0

%

5
6

%

1
0

0
%

82% 82% 86% 90% 91%
90% 88% 88% 88% 88% 85% 85%

80% 80%

A
p

ri
l

M
ay

Ju
n

e

Ju
ly

A
u

gu
st

Se
p

te
m

b
er

O
ct

o
b

er

N
o

ve
m

b
er

D
ec

e
m

b
er

Ja
n

u
ar

y

Fe
b

ru
ar

y

M
ar

ch

% Business applications determined within 8 weeks

% Met YTD Cumulative Average % Met Local Target

P
age 26

A
G

E
N

D
A

 IT
E

M
 5

A
N

N
E

X
E

 1



Supporting businesses and our local economy – Key priority 

Key priority 
objective.                     
We will do this by… 

Key priority performance 
target for 2016/17 

Responsible 
officer 

Achieved 
by: 

Latest progress: Status: 

Supporting 
developers to bring 
forward the 
development of 
town centre sites 

At least 90% of other planning 
applications determined 
within 8 weeks 

Mark Berry 
Head of Place 
Development 

31 March 
2017 

April to August: Target met. 

N
o

t 
A

ch
ie

ve
d

 Oct to Dec:  Slightly under target for November and 
December.  Development management now fully 
resourced and so we anticipate an outturn on target 
by year-end.  We are however exceeding the 80% 
national target for these types of applications. 

Jan to March:  Year–end total 87% is slightly under 
target –however, we have exceeded the 80% national 
target for these types of applications.  

 

 
  

9
0

%

9
3

%

9
3

%

9
1

%

8
4

%

9
3

%

8
1

% 9
4

%

7
6

% 8
8

%

8
1

%

8
9

%

7
8

%

93% 93% 93% 91% 91% 89% 90% 88% 88% 87% 87% 87%

80% 80%

90% 90%

O
u

tT
u

rn
 f

ro
m

 L
as

t 
Ye

ar

A
p

ri
l

M
ay

Ju
n

e

Ju
ly

A
u

gu
st

Se
p

te
m

b
er

O
ct

o
b

er

N
o

ve
m

b
er

D
ec

e
m

b
er

Ja
n

u
ar

y

Fe
b

ru
ar

y

M
ar

ch

% Other applications determined within 8 weeks

% Met YTD Cumulative Average % Met National Target Local Target

P
age 27

A
G

E
N

D
A

 IT
E

M
 5

A
N

N
E

X
E

 1



Supporting businesses and our local economy – Key priority 

Key priority 
objective.                      
We will do this by… 

Key priority performance 
target for 2016/17 

Responsible 
officer 

Achieved 
by: 

Latest progress: Status: 

Supporting a 
comprehensive 
retail, commercial 
and social offer 

At least 90% of premises 
licence application 
determined within 21 days 
from the end of the statutory 
consultation period 

Rod Brown 
Head of 
Housing & 
Environmental 
Services 

31 March 
2017 

April to August: We have received 46 licensing 
applications during this period. All were determined 
within 21 days. 

A
ch

ie
ve

d
 

Oct to Dec: YTD we have received 105 licensing 
applications.  All were determined within 21 days. 

Jan to March:  Year-end total we have received 138 
licensing applications.  All were determined within 21 
days. 

 
 

1
0

0
%

1
0

0
%

1
0

0
%

1
0

0
%

1
0

0
%

1
0

0
%

1
0

0
%

1
0

0
%

1
0

0
%

1
0

0
%

1
0

0
%

1
0

0
%

1
0

0
%

90% 90%

O
u

tT
u

rn
 f

ro
m

 L
as

t 
Ye

ar

A
p

ri
l

M
ay

Ju
n

e

Ju
ly

A
u

gu
st

Se
p

te
m

b
er

O
ct

o
b

er

N
o

ve
m

b
er

D
ec

e
m

b
er

Ja
n

u
ar

y

Fe
b

ru
ar

y

M
ar

ch

% Met premises licence applications determined within 21 days from the end of the                               
statutory consultation period

% Met Local Target

P
age 28

A
G

E
N

D
A

 IT
E

M
 5

A
N

N
E

X
E

 1



  

 

 

 

 
  

Corporate Plan 2016 to 2020 
Licensing & Planning Policy Committee’s Provisional Key 

Priority Performance Targets for 2017 to 2018 

P
age 29

A
G

E
N

D
A

 IT
E

M
 5

A
N

N
E

X
E

 2



 

Key Priority We will do this by… Targets for 2017/18 Targets to be 
achieved by 

Keeping our 
Borough Clean 
and Green 

Accommodating sustainable 
development whilst 
protecting the green belt in 
accordance with Policy 

 Complete issues and options consultation on the partial review of 
the Core Strategy 

  

 Issue the pre-submission consultation for the Partial Review of the 
Core Strategy  

 
 

30 September 2017 
 
 
31 March 2018 

Supporting 
businesses 
and our local 
economy 

Supporting developers to 
bring forward the 
development of town 
centre sites 

 Number of major planning applications received* 

 Number of minor planning applications received* 

 Number of other planning applications received* 
 

 At least 75% of major planning applications determined within 
13 weeks 

 At least 80% of minor planning applications determined within 
8 weeks 

 At least 90% of other  planning applications determined within 
8 weeks 

 No more than ten per cent of planning applications allowed at 
appeal (using the two-year rolling assessment period defined by 
government) 

(* Note:  Information only indicator) 
  

31 March 2018 
31 March 2018 
31 March 2018 
 
31 March 2018 
 
 
31 March 2018 
 
 
31 March 2018 
 
 
31 March 2018 

 
  

P
age 30

A
G

E
N

D
A

 IT
E

M
 5

A
N

N
E

X
E

 2



 

Key Priority We will do this by… Targets for 2017/18 Targets to be 
achieved by 

Supporting 
businesses 
and our local 
economy 
 
 

Supporting a 
comprehensive retail, 
commercial and social offer 

 At least 90% of premises licence application determined within 21 
days from the end of the statutory consultation period 

31 March 2018 

 

P
age 31

A
G

E
N

D
A

 IT
E

M
 5

A
N

N
E

X
E

 2



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 32



LICENSING AND PLANNING POLICY COMMITTEE
12 JULY 2017

EPSOM & EWELL LOCAL PLAN PROGRAMME 2017

Report of the: Head of Place Development
Contact:  Karol Jakubczyk
Urgent Decision?(yes/no) No
If yes, reason urgent decision 
required:
Annexes/Appendices (attached): Epsom & Ewell Local Plan Programme 2017
Other available papers (not 
attached):

National Planning Policy Framework 
Town & Country Planning (Local Planning) 
(England) Regulations 2012

REPORT SUMMARY
A new Local Plan Programme has been prepared to set the process and 
timetable for a partial review of the Epsom & Ewell Core Strategy.

RECOMMENDATION 

That the Committee

(1) considers the draft Local Plan Programme and 
makes any changes they deem fit

(2) Resolves that the Local Plan Programme (as 
revised) has effect on 12 July 2017.

Notes

1 Implications for the Council’s Key Priorities, Service Plans and 
Sustainable Community Strategy

1.1 The delivery and implementation of the Epsom & Ewell Local Plan 
contributes towards all of the Council’s Key Priorities.  The partial review 
of the Core Strategy is a critical part of the Local Plan review process as it 
will set out how sustainable growth will be delivered during the plan 
period.

Page 33

AGENDA ITEM 6



LICENSING AND PLANNING POLICY COMMITTEE
12 JULY 2017

2 Background

2.1 The primary purpose of the Local Plan Programme, or Local Development 
Scheme as it was previously known, is to set out the processes and 
timetable for the preparation and production of the Borough Council’s 
Local Plan.    We have always envisaged our Programmes providing a 
rolling three-year project plan - that seeks to inform both the process and 
all of the interested parties and partners about how and when the Local 
Plan will be brought forward.

2.2 Progress against the Local Plan milestones identified in the Programme is 
monitored through our Local Plan Annual Monitoring Report.  In the past 
we have amended and revised our Local Plan programme to take account 
of circumstances that have necessitated a change in our plans.  Previous 
Local Plan Programmes and Development Schemes have typically been 
reviewed after being in place for two years or so.  Revisions have 
normally been triggered by changes in national planning policies, such as 
the revocation of regional plans and the publication of the NPPF; and 
consequential changes in our approach to plan-making.

2.3 Our last Local Plan Programme was published during the Summer of 
2016.  It was the seventh Programme since the publication of our first in 
March 2005.  Our last Programme was published during a period that we 
can now identify as having relatively high risk and uncertainty.  At that 
time the Planning Policy Team had been reduced to one person – the 
Planning Policy Manager – with the remaining complement unavailable 
either being on maternity leave, or unfilled posts.  Although this situation 
had been anticipated, the full extent of the difficulties that arose during this 
period had not been fully understood.  Consequently, whilst the Planning 
Policy Team were able to make good progress on other high priority 
projects, specifically the implementation of the Community Infrastructure 
Levy, progress on the Local Plan fell behind during the second half of 
2016.

2.4 Following the successful recruitment of a new Senior Planning Policy 
Officer and Planning Policy Administrator, and the return of our Planning 
Officers from maternity leave, the Planning Policy Team is now once 
again at full complement.  On that basis, we believe that we can revisit our 
Local Plan Programme with increased confidence that our ambitions will 
be met.   A draft version of a new Programme is included under Annex 1.

3 Local Plan Programme 

3.1 The latest Local Plan Programme provides an update of the 2016 
document.  The Programme focuses on the partial review of the Core 
Strategy.  It sets out a timetable outlining the processes involved in the 
preparation, production and consultation of the revised policies and their 
supporting evidence.  The timetable identifies key milestones during 
document production.  We will use these milestones to monitor the 
progress of the Programme.

Page 34

AGENDA ITEM 6



LICENSING AND PLANNING POLICY COMMITTEE
12 JULY 2017

3.2 The timetable remains ambitious, seeking progress throughout the 
remainder of 2017; with an anticipated Issues & Options Consultation 
during the Autumn 2017; and Pre-Submission Consultation during the first 
half of 2018.  Such a timetable continues to be reliant upon a 
proportionate deployment of resource; in terms of internal staff, external 
expertise where necessary and financial support.  If successful, it will 
reduce the level of risk of government intervention and unsustainable 
speculative approaches for higher levels of housing growth from the 
development industry.  Critically it will ensure that Borough Council 
remains in control of the Local Plan’s growth strategy.

3.3 A key milestone will be the Issues and Options Consultation, which will 
consider the scale of growth and the specific site allocations needed to 
deliver that growth; specifically new housing.  The Programme identifies 
that the draft Issues & Options Consultation will considered by the 
Licensing & Planning Policy Committee during September 2017, with a 
recommendation that it go out for public consultation thereafter.  We 
anticipate that there are potential risks associated with this stage of the 
process.  In particular there is the possibility that the consultation will 
generate a significant level of comments, which will require a quick and 
decisive response from the Borough Council.  These areas of risk can be 
managed, to a degree, through the deployment of resources and 
leadership.  However, there remains the possibility that the timetable may 
need to be revisited.  

3.4 Once the process passes into the Pre-Submission stage, our ability to 
manage risk is reduced as control is taken by the Planning Inspectorate.  
The key objective for the Borough Council must be to ensure that the draft 
document submitted for examination meets the four tests of soundness 
set out under National Planning Policy Framework Paragraph 1821.  As 
long as these tests are comfortably met the risk of the Submission 
document failing will be extended.

4 Financial and Manpower Implications

4.1 The preparation and implementation of the Council’s local plan imposes 
significant demands on staff in the Planning Policy Team and the wider 
Place Development Service.  Since the preparation of the last Local Plan 
Programme additional staff resources have been secured and deployed.  
It is anticipated that these new resources will make a valuable contribution 
towards managing the process and meeting the milestones set out in the 
new Programme.

4.2 However, it may prove necessary to deploy other corporate resources, 
such as the Communications Team and/ or Senior Officers of the Borough 
Council, in order to maintain progress.  Contributions from these sources 
may be particularly sought during the public consultation and Duty to Co-
operate stages of the process, when their input can be best deployed.

1 The NPPF requires that submitted local plans be sound , namely that they are i) positively prepared; ii) 
justified; iii) effective; and iv) consistent with national policy.

Page 35

AGENDA ITEM 6



LICENSING AND PLANNING POLICY COMMITTEE
12 JULY 2017

4.3 Chief Finance Officer’s comments: : In 2016/17 approval was granted 
for an additional funding of £54,000 per annum for 2 years to provide 
additional staffing resources within the Planning & Policy team to assist in 
the delivery of the Council’s Local Plan. The additional staffing cost over 
the 2 year period totalled £108,000 with £80,000 being funded from CIL 
admin fee and £28,000 coming from S106 monitoring fund.

4.4 Any request for further funding to increase the level of resources required 
to deliver the Local Plan will need to be referred to Strategy & Resources 
Committee for approval with an explanation on how it can be financed.

5 Legal Implications (including implications for matters relating to equality)

5.1 All statutory Local Plan documents are subject to public examination.  The 
recently adopted “Your Involvement in Planning” document addresses 
those equality issues related to consultation and engagement.

5.2 Monitoring Officer’s comments: Under section 15 of the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, a local planning authority must prepare 
and maintain a local development scheme (what we now seemingly now 
refer to as our Local Plan Programme).  The scheme must specify a range 
of things.  Most pertinently it must specify “the timetable for the 
preparation and revision of the development plan documents”

5.3 To bring a local development scheme (or a revision to a scheme) into 
effect, the local planning authority must resolve that it have effect and, in 
the resolution, specify the date from which it is to have effect.

5.4 The Scheme is of critical importance, as section 19(1) of the 2004 Act 
provides that development plan documents “must be prepared in 
accordance with the local development scheme”

5.5 The Council must make available to the public:

a). The up-to-date text of the scheme

b). a copy of any amendments made to the scheme, and

c). up-to-date information showing the state of the Council’s 
compliance (or non-compliance with the timetable contained in the 
scheme

6 Sustainability Policy and Community Safety Implications

6.1 The partial review of the Core Strategy will contribute towards delivering 
the Council’s objectives for maintaining and enhancing the Borough as a 
sustainable place to live, work and visit by providing guidance to new 
development proposals.

Page 36

AGENDA ITEM 6



LICENSING AND PLANNING POLICY COMMITTEE
12 JULY 2017

6.2 A Sustainability Appraisal of the policy options will forms an integral part 
of the plan-making process.  The Sustainability Appraisal Report will be 
subject to public consultation at an appropriate point in the process.

7 Partnerships

7.1 The Localism Act and national planning policy state that public bodies 
have a duty to cooperate on planning issues that cross administrative 
boundaries.  We will seek to meet this duty by working collaboratively with 
our partners in neighbouring boroughs and districts on issues of common 
interest.  This is a continuous and evolving process that will help guide 
future policy development.  Where it is necessary and appropriate we will 
seek the active involvement of the Committee in order to secure 
agreement on strategic cross-boundary issues.

8 Risk Assessment

8.1 In 2015 the government issued a requirement that all local planning 
authorities must produce new local plans for new homes by 2017.  This 
deadline has been pushed back to 2018.  We are now making good 
progress to meet this requirement – we have identified an objectively 
assessed housing need (through our Strategic Housing Market 
Assessment) and we are in the process of identifying and quantifying 
potential future sources of housing land supply (through our Strategic 
Housing Land Availability Assessment).   Nevertheless risks remain, most 
notably those associated with public consultation and the Duty to Co-
operate.  We will attempt to manage these risks through regular 
engagement with members of this Committee and senior Officers.    

9 Conclusion and Recommendations

9.1 The Committee are asked to consider the draft Local Plan Programme 
and subject to any additions or amendments agree to its publication and 
implementation.

WARD(S) AFFECTED: (All Wards);

Page 37

AGENDA ITEM 6



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 38



1 
 

 

  

 

Epsom & Ewell Borough Council 

June 2017 

Epsom & Ewell Local Plan Programme 

Page 39

AGENDA ITEM 6
ANNEXE 1



2 
 

 

Contents 

1. Introduction................................................................................................ 3 

2. The Partial Review of the Core Strategy ................................................... 5 

3. The Evidence Base ................................................................................... 9 

4. Supporting Statement .............................................................................. 10 

 

  

Page 40

AGENDA ITEM 6
ANNEXE 1



3 
 

1. Introduction  
 
The form and content of the Local Plan Programme 
 
1.1 The Local Plan Programme sets out a rolling project plan for the production of 

the documents that together comprise the Epsom & Ewell Local Plan. It seeks 
to identify a timetable for their production so that we can monitor and manage 
progress; the resources that we need to deploy to achieve our targets; and 
the possible risks and constraints. 

 
1.2 We have always envisaged our Programmes providing a rolling three-year 

project plan - that seeks to inform both the process and all of the interested 
parties and partners about how and when the Local Plan will be brought 
forward.  In the past we have amended and revised our Local Plan 
programme to take account of circumstances that have necessitated a 
change in our plans.  Previous Local Plan Programmes and Development 
Schemes have typically been reviewed after being in place for two years or 
so.  Revisions have normally been triggered by changes in national planning 
policies, such as the revocation of regional plans and the publication of the 
NPPF; and consequential changes in our approach to plan-making.Our 
progress against the milestones in the Programme is monitored each year in 
the Annual Monitoring Report (AMR).   

 
1.3 In accordance with good project management practise we will monitor and 

review the Local Plan Programme annually and update it accordingly.   
 
 
The current statutory Development Plan for the Borough 
 
1.4 The Development Plan for the Borough is comprised of the following 

documents:  
 

The Local Plan  

 Epsom & Ewell Core Strategy 2007 

 Plan E Epsom Town Centre Area Action Plan 2011 

 Epsom & Ewell Development Management Policies Document 2015 

 Revised Developer Contributions Supplementary Planning Document 
2014 

 Revised Sustainable Design Supplementary Planning Document 2016 

 Parking Standards for Residential Development 2015 

 Upper High Street, Depot Road and Church Street Development Brief 
2012 

 
Surrey-wide Documents 

 Surrey Minerals Plan Core Strategy 2011 

 Surrey Waste Plan 2008 
 

  

Page 41

AGENDA ITEM 6
ANNEXE 1

http://www.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/residents/planning/planning-policy/other-planning-documents


4 
 

1.5 In addition to the above documents we have also prepared and produced a 
number of useful and highly valued supplementary planning guidance 
documents.  These amplify the policies and proposals of the Local Plan. 
Such additional local guidance is considered necessary and for that reason 
is believed to be consistent with national planning policy. The main role of 
these documents is to clarify and support local policy and it may be taken 
into account as a material consideration in relation to the determination of 
planning applications.  These include the following documents:   

 

 Biodiversity and Planning in Epsom & Ewell 2012 

 Solar Panel Guidance for Domestic Installation 2011 

 Shopfront Design Guide 2012 

 Householder Applications 2004 

 Single plot and other types of residential infill development 2003 
 
1.6 During the period covered by this Programme we anticipate that much of the 

design-related guidance contained within the above documents will be 
reviewed as part of the preparation and production of the Design Quality 
Guide (a new supplementary planning document).  This new publication will 
provide detailed supplementary guidance to the design policies contained 
within the Development Management Policies Document 2015.   

 
1.7 Following the adoption of the Design Quality Guide we do not anticipate the 

need to produce any additional supplementary planning documents during 
the period covered by this Programme.   

 
 
 
 
  

Page 42

AGENDA ITEM 6
ANNEXE 1



5 
 

2.  The Partial Review of the Core Strategy  
 
Proposed Content 
 
2.1 We anticipate that the partial review of the Core Strategy will encompass the 

following policy components:  
 

 Revision of the Borough wide housing target to take into account of an 
objectively assessed demand1 having regard to relevant constraints 
affecting the delivery of growth, particularly in relation to infrastructure 
capacity 

 An overview of how the Borough Council will work with its housing 
market area partners to address unmet need2  

 A Strategic review of our Green Belt3  

 The identification of a deliverable housing supply strategy4  

 A review of our affordable housing delivery policy5 

 A new policy approach setting out how we will meet the 
accommodation needs of the Traveller Community6 

 New policies setting our approach towards heritage assets – 
specifically in relation to the identification and designation of locally 
listed buildings and structures 

 
2.2 We also anticipate that the revised Core Strategy will include new site 

allocation policies relating to:  
 

 Green Infrastructure 

 Major developed sites in the Green Belt 

 Housing delivery 

 Employment sites 

 Retail centres 

 Epsom General Hospital 

 The University for the Creative Arts  
 
 
2.3 Some of these policies and site allocations were originally intended for 

inclusion within the Site Allocations Document7.  That Document had 
advanced to the Submission Stage.  Prior to submission we decided to alter 
our approach towards the progress of this document – taking the decision to 
combine the emerging site allocations with the partial review of the Core 
Strategy.     

 

                                            
1
 As currently set out in Core Strategy Policy CS7. 

2
 It is anticipated that this will take the form of a separate strategy or agreement siting outside 

of the Local Plan 
3
 As currently set out in Core Strategy Policy CS2. 

 
4
 As set out in Core Strategy Policy CS8, which currently states that new housing will be 

located within the defined built up area and within the then remaining Hospital Cluster 
development sites, which have subsequently been largely built-out. 
5
 As currently contained within Core Strategy Policy CS9 

6
 The new policy will replace the approach set out under Core Strategy Policy CS10. 

7
 This document comprised non-housing site allocations. 

Page 43

AGENDA ITEM 6
ANNEXE 1



6 
 

2.4 The review of the Local Plan Programme has provided an opportunity to 
consider the deliverability of long standing site allocation proposals.  This 
includes the proposed Kiln Lane Link Major Transport Scheme.  Whilst the 
objectives of this long standing proposal continue to be desirable, the 
deliverability of this scheme particularly in terms of how it will be funded is 
open to question.  On that basis the Local Plan Programme does not 
envisage its inclusion within the current review process.  However, there is 
sufficient flexibility within the process to accommodate it should the situation 
change prior to submission8.   

 
Coverage 
 
2.5 The document covers the whole of the Borough. 
 
 
Conformity 
 
2.6 The document will be in conformity with the NPPF.  The document will set 

out the scale of local housing need and the broad areas of the Borough that 
will be brought forward to deliver future housing.  The document will also set 
out the Council’s approach to meeting local affordable housing need through 
the development process.   

 
 
Timetable 
 

Key Stages  Dates 

Issues & Options Consultation September – November 2017 

Consideration of Consultation 
Responses 

December 2017  

Pre-Submission Consultation March 2018 

Date of Submission to Secretary of State May 2018 

Pre-Examination Meeting September 2018 

Public Hearing  Late 2018 

Estimated Date for Adoption December 2019 

 
 
Arrangement for Production 
 
Organisational Lead 
Head of Place Development 
 
 
Political Management 
 
2.7 The review process will be considered by the Council’s Licensing & Planning 

Policy Committee, who are responsible for approving draft policy options for 
public consultation and the subsequent Pre-submission stages.   

 
2.8 Full Council approval will be required for the final adoption stage. 
 

                                            
8
 Much of the background work on the Kiln Lane Link scheme has already been undertaken.  

As a consequence there is some potential for its inclusion should funding streams for its 
implementation be confirmed. 

Page 44

AGENDA ITEM 6
ANNEXE 1



7 
 

 
Internal Resources 
 
Planning Policy Manager 
Senior Planning Policy Officer 
Planning Policy Officers 
Planning Policy Administrator  
Economic Development Officer 
 
Other Officers as required – likely to be deployed from within the Place Development 
Team.  
External Resources 
 
2.9 Consultants will be engaged to aid the production of the necessary evidence 

base documents.  External expertise has already been deployed in relation 
to the identification of an ‘objectively assessed housing need’ and in 
preparing an assessment of the Borough’s Green Belt; both assessments 
being required under national planning policy.  Internal knowledge and other 
resources will be deployed in order to optimise the value of external 
resources.   Further studies will be produced, either in-house or by external 
consultants, as necessary.     

 
2.10 It is anticipated that the associated Sustainability Appraisal (SA) report 

supporting the policy review will be carried out in-house.  It is possible that 
some external support, from colleagues in neighbouring Surrey authorities, 
could be provided in the form of peer review of the SA.  In the past this has 
been provided by Planning Policy colleagues from neighbouring local 
planning authorities.  Should it prove necessary, we will seek to replicate this 
approach.  

 
 
Stakeholder Resources 
 
2.11 We will work closely with neighbouring planning authorities and other 

strategic partners to discharge our duty to co-operate.   Where it is clearly 
demonstrated that we do not have sufficient land supply or infrastructure 
capacity to accommodate all of our identified growth needs we will work with 
our neighbours and other strategic partners on how those needs could be 
addressed across a wider area.  It is anticipated that this will form a critical 
part of this particular review process and will require the deployment of 
resources from across the Borough Council, specifically requiring input from 
Committee Chairmen, Vice Chairmen and Senior Officers.    

 
2.12 We will work closely with local partners to ensure that the emerging policies 

contribute positively to meeting our strategic objectives.  Specifically we will 
seek to ensure that future community infrastructure needs are taken into 
account during the preparation of new policies.   

 
2.13 We will engage directly with key local community groups including all local 

residents’ associations, local political party groupings and other local interest 
groups, such as the Epsom Civic Society and the Campaign to Protect Rural 
England.  Representatives of stakeholder groups will be invited to attend 
regular meetings or surgery sessions, throughout the process, where they 
can informally discuss issues and options raised in the consultation. 

 

Page 45

AGENDA ITEM 6
ANNEXE 1



8 
 

 
Community and Stakeholder Involvement  
 
2.14 The local community, specific consultation bodies and key stakeholders, 

including developers, will be invited to take part in the consultation process, 
with a view to identifying issues and working up suitable deliverable and 
developable options that accord with the NPPF. 

  

Page 46

AGENDA ITEM 6
ANNEXE 1



9 
 

3. The Evidence Base 
 
3.1 The partial review of the Core Strategy is supported and informed by new 

evidence and a refresh of existing technical studies.  This work conforms to 
national planning policy and guidance.  It also takes account of relevant 
existing technical evidence that is available across north east Surrey and 
south west London.    

 
 
Timetable 
 

Documents Publication Dates 

Strategic Housing Market Assessment9  October 2016 

Green Belt Study Stage 1 February 2017  

Strategic Housing Land Availability 
Assessment10 

July 2017 

Traveller Accommodation Assessment  July 2017 

Constraints Study  July 2017 

Green Belt Study Stage 2 November 2017 

 
 
3.2 The preparation and production of the above technical studies will include 

proportionate and necessary stakeholder engagement.  This is most likely to 
relate to the methodology used by the technical study in question, rather than 
the outputs or conclusions.   Any party who wishes to challenge the outputs 
from these technical studies may do so through the Local Plan process, 
where they have an opportunity to present alternative evidence.   

 
 

  

                                            
9
 Prepared in partnership with Royal Borough of Kingston, Elmbridge and Mole Valley 

Borough Councils.  
10

 Previous Local Plan Programmes have referred to Strategic Housing and Employment 
Land assessments.  We already undertaken significant work on establishing our future 
employment needs into the future, so a joint study is no longer considered necessary. 

Page 47

AGENDA ITEM 6
ANNEXE 1



10 
 

4. Supporting Statement  
 
Monitoring  
 
4.1 Monitoring continues to be an important part of the planning-making process 

and will help gauge the effectiveness of policies and proposals. We will 
monitor a range of indicators to assess whether the policies and proposals 
are meeting the objectives set out in the Core Strategy.  The key findings will 
be published in the Annual Monitoring Report (AMR).  The most recent, and 
previous AMRs are available to view on the Borough Council’s website. The 
Local Plan AMR is normally the subject of a report to the Council’s Licensing 
& Planning Policy Committee, following which it is published on the Council’s 
website.   

 
 
Reviewing the Programme 
 
4.2 We will continuously monitor progress on the implementation of the Local 

Plan Programme.  Progress will be monitored against the proposed timetable 
for the partial review of the Core Strategy.  Where milestones have not been 
reached, we will consider appropriate actions to ensure that positive 
momentum is maintained. When appropriate we will amend the Programme.   

 
 
Strategic Environmental Assessments & Sustainability Appraisals 
 
4.3 Strategic Environmental Assessments of policies, proposals and plans are 

required under the European Strategic Environmental Assessment Directive 
2001/42/EC. These are required for plans and proposals that are likely to 
have significant effect on the environment.  The on-going Brexit negotiations 
will not have an impact on the requirement to meet the Directive during the 
life of this Programme.  It is anticipated that the requirements of the Directive 
will be maintained and incorporated into British law following the proposed 
divorce from the European Union.  

 
4.4 Sustainability Appraisals differ in that they are a social, economic and 

environmental assessment. We believe it is important to take an integrated 
approach towards both the Strategic Environmental Assessment and 
Sustainability Appraisal and to consider the implications and alternatives at 
an early stage. This will ensure that our Local Plan documents reflect 
sustainable development objectives. The requirements of a Strategic 
Environmental Assessment will be incorporated into the Sustainability 
Appraisal, which will be undertaken on the emerging policies when bringing 
forward new Local Plan documents. 

 
 
Resources 

 
4.5 In the past funding from the Housing Planning Delivery Grant was allocated 

to assist in the plan making process. This has helped fund external expertise 
to undertake specialist work on technical papers. It has been proposed that 
remaining Housing Planning Delivery Grant monies and other sources of 
funding will be used to finance future work. 

 

Page 48

AGENDA ITEM 6
ANNEXE 1



11 
 

4.6 Staffing resources for the timely production of the Local Plan remain a critical 
issue (see Risk Management section below).  At present, the following in-
house resources can be drawn upon during the period covered by the 
Programme: 

 

 Planning Policy Manager 

 Senior Planning Policy Officer 

 Planning Policy Officers11 

 Planning Policy Administrator 

 Other occasional staff resources including the Head of Place 
Development, Economic Development Officer, GIS officer, and the 
Strategic Housing Manager and other Service officers 

 
4.7 We will continue to use external sources of expertise where appropriate, 

such as on specialist topics or where there is no existing capacity. It is 
anticipated that Surrey County Council will continue to provide assistance 
with transport, education and other infrastructure capacity matters.  
Additionally the Planning Policy Team continues to promote joint working 
initiatives, whenever these are practicable and relevant, with the other Local 
Authorities in East Surrey to help bridge the potential staff resource gap.  
This has worked most effectively in the preparation of technical evidence. 

 
4.8 Members are kept informed of progress on the Local Plan primarily through 

Licensing & Planning Policy Committee meetings.  Throughout the Local 
Plan process we will be running a series of special evening sessions/ 
workshops for all Members.  These will provide them with additional 
information and opportunities to feed-in their comments into the plan making 
process.  The outputs of the sessions/ workshops will be reported to the 
Licensing & Planning Policy Committee. 

 
 

Joint Working – The Duty to Co-operate 
 
4.9 There are no proposals to set up a joint planning board with neighbouring 

authorities.  Whilst such initiatives may provide value to the process 
elsewhere, there is no evidence to suggest that a joint planning board is 
required in northeast Surrey.   

 
4.10 Nevertheless, we continue to work with other Surrey Districts and with Surrey 

County Council on sharing best practice, undertaking Sustainability 
Appraisals and where appropriate undertaking other initiatives. We have also 
been actively involved in joint projects with neighbouring authorities on 
subjects such as establishing a methodology for preparing  Traveller 
Accommodation Assessments, preparing Strategic Housing Market 
Assessments, and managing flood risk (specifically in relation to the Hogsmill 
River).   We continue to work effectively with colleagues across Surrey on 
strategic infrastructure planning. 

 
4.11 We continue to explore meaningful mechanisms by which we can discharge 

our Duty to Co-operate with neighbouring local planning authorities and other 
key partners.  We are already working closely with our immediate neighbours 

                                            
11

 There are current two post holders in part time roles that collectively comprise a  single 4/5 
full time post. 

Page 49

AGENDA ITEM 6
ANNEXE 1



12 
 

in the East Surrey local authorities, and have a positive relationship with 
Surrey County Council and the wider Surrey local authorities.  We believe 
that we can build upon these existing relationships to achieve a broad 
consensus on future plan making.  We will explore the opportunities that may 
be available to meet the objectives of the Duty to Co-operate through our 
membership of the Coast to Capital Local Enterprise Partnership and 
Gatwick Diamond groups. 

 
4.12 Most of the Surrey local planning authorities have now agreed to the County-

wide Local Strategic Statement.  This document provides a framework for 
discussing, considering and potentially reaching and agreed position on 
strategic planning matters.  It is anticipated that this will soon be expanded to 
include planning for infrastructure, housing growth and consideration of 
Green Belt related issues.  

 
4.13 Our relationship with the Greater London Authority and the London boroughs 

that neighbour us to the north and northwest, have historically been less 
developed.  We are in the process of reinvigorating this relationship through 
continued active involvement in the London Plan process.  We are in the 
process of expanding our strategic planning relationship with our immediate 
neighbours in Greater London – this has been positively demonstrated by the 
successful joint working on the Strategic Housing Market Assessment.   

 
4.14 However, we highlight that the differences in national planning policy relating 

to London actively serve to distance us from our colleagues in London.  
Indeed, the strategic status of the London Plan provides a dis-incentive to 
positive co-operation.  As a consequence, whilst we may strive for a positive 
relationship with our neighbours to the north, the desire for fruitful co-
operation may not be fully reciprocated.  This remains an area of significant 
risk that lies beyond our ability to influence. 

 
4.15 Finally, recent local examination reports12 are forcing us to reconsider how 

we respond to specific strategic issues through the Duty.  It is becoming 
clear that the Duty, and how it is discharged, is evolving.  Previous 
approaches to discharging the Duty no longer appear to have currency with 
Local Plan Inspectors – who now appear to require that neighbouring 
authorities prepare and adopt agreed strategies to address key issues.  In 
particular we anticipate that we will be required to demonstrate how we will 
work collectively with our neighbours (specifically within our housing market 
area) to address unmet housing need.  We will seek to meet this possibility.    

 
 

Project Management 
 

4.16 The review of the Local Plan is a corporate priority for the Borough Council 
Consequently the Local Plan Programme is an important project 
management document. Progress on the Local Plan will be reported 
regularly to the Chief Executive, Committee Chairmen and the Borough 
Council’s Leadership Team. 

 
Council Procedures 
 

                                            
12

 Most notably the Castle Point Interim Inspector’s Report  

Page 50

AGENDA ITEM 6
ANNEXE 1



13 
 

4.17 For matters relating to the Local Plan, the following reporting protocols will 
apply: 

 

 Licensing and Planning Policy Committee will be responsible for the 
preparation, production and completion of all local plan documents; and 

 Full Council will be responsible for the formal adoption of all local plan 
documents following consultation and examination. 

 
 
Risk Management 
 
4.18 The main areas of risk are considered to be: 
 

 Staff Retention and Turnover:  During 2016 the staffing of the Planning 
Policy Team became an area of significant risk to the local plan process.  
Staff turnover become an issue - with the recruitment of replacement staff 
having a profound impact on the process. Whilst this issue was positively 
resolved, recruiting and retaining experienced staff remains an area of 
risk.  Nationally, there is a shortage of experienced planning policy 
officers, which has compounded the situation.  The resolution of this 
problem remains a high priority and we will seek to ensure that 
appropriate and proportionate action is taken to ensure that the Planning 
Policy Team continues to be fully staffed during this process. 

 

 Availability of Planning Inspectors: Early notification of our timetable 
will forewarn the Planning Inspectorate of our anticipated timetable.  The 
Programme will be passed to the Planning Inspectorate to aid their 
project management of future examinations. The Inspectorate will then 
enter into Service Level Agreements with us to ensure adequate 
resources are made available for the various examinations. This will help 
minimise the risk of delays to adoption dates.  

 

 High Levels of Response to Public Consultation Stages:  Given that 
forthcoming public consultation may seek views on highly contentious 
issues (such as the location of new housing site allocations) it is entirely 
possible that this will result in high numbers of responses.  Experience 
from elsewhere in Surrey has shown that this can have an impact on the 
Programme timetable – due to the number of responses involved.  We 
will seek to manage this risk by ensuring that an appropriate level of 
resource can be deployed to manage significant number of responses.  
Other areas of risk associated with this issue are difficult to predict and 
manage.  We will seek to address some of these areas by adopting a 
clear communication strategy, which will seek to set out the challenges 
that the Borough Council faces.   

 

 A wildly evolving Duty to co-operate:  The absence of firm guidance 
and regulation relating to the Duty has always made it an aspect of the 
process where risk could potentially thrive.  In the past an exchange of 
anodyne communication between authorities has proved sufficient to 
placate Inspectors.  This is no longer the case – recent decisions suggest 
that Inspectors are seeking greater certainty that local planning 
authorities are genuinely working together to address strategic issues.  
We believe that this is sound planning and consequently we will rise to 
this challenge.  However, in the continued absence of guidance and 

Page 51

AGENDA ITEM 6
ANNEXE 1



14 
 

regulation risk remains as the Duty may evolve in new and unexpected 
directions.  Our proximity to greater London and the entirely different 
strategic regime that functions there suggests that such risk is high.  We 
will continue to monitor and engage in the development of local plans in 
both the London Borough of Sutton and the Royal Borough of Kingston.  
We will try to understand and accommodate the developments in the 
Duty that spring from those processes.  We will continue to seek to work 
with our partners in London – trying to establish and maintain the best 
relationship possible under these circumstances.   

 

 Changes in Government Legislation: To ensure that the Council are 
not at risk from challenges resulting from not having an up-to-date Local 
plan, it is important to push forward and prepare the plan in accordance 
with current national policy. However, amendments to national planning 
policy or revised EU directives may necessitate a change of direction. 
Consultation with Members will take place in the event of the government 
issuing new directives that have the potential to affect the Council’s 
capacity to produce the Local Plan. 

 

 Unsettled economic climate post-EU Referendum:  There is a risk that 
the period of uncertainty following commencement of the Brexit 
negotiations could result in unpredictable changes in national planning 
policy, particularly if the new government chooses to pursue an entirely 
new agenda.  Consequently, we may need to prepare new evidence and 
re-draft policy alongside any associated consultation.  This will have an 
impact upon the proposed timetable.  Given the unknown nature of this 
risk there is little that the Council can put in place to ensure its mitigation. 

 

 Legal Challenge:  We will ensure that Local Plan documents are sound, 
positively prepared, justified, effective and consistent with national 
planning policy.  

   
  

Page 52

AGENDA ITEM 6
ANNEXE 1



15 
 

 Wider Corporate Demands:  Work on the Local Plan will be monitored 
to ensure that sufficient time and resources are being allocated. The 
Local Plan has many challenges of its own – adapting the process to 
emerging guidance and advice, undertaking extensive monitoring, 
managing consultants to produce parts of the evidence base, embarking 
on significant amounts of consultation both internally and externally, 
writing numerous policy documents – but there are also a number of 
other pressures on the staff resources available. These include 
involvement in other corporate projects; delivering planning policy 
objectives on the ground; publications of new planning documents and 
advice and reporting their implications; providing policy advice to the 
public and stakeholders (especially pre-application discussions); 
implementing the Duty to Co-operate; and providing support to other 
Services within the Council. 

 
 

Page 53

AGENDA ITEM 6
ANNEXE 1



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 54



LICENSING AND PLANNING POLICY COMMITTEE
12 July 2017

STRATEGIC HOUSING LAND AVAILABILITY ASSESSMENT

Report of the: Head of Place Development
Contact:  Rachael Thorold
Urgent Decision?(yes/no) No
If yes, reason urgent decision 
required:
Annexes/Appendices (attached): Strategic Housing Land Availability 

Assessment Methodology June 2017
Strategic Housing Land Availability 
Assessment Findings Report June 2017
Strategic Housing Land Availability 
Assessment- Addendum 1 Map of Land 
Supply

Other available papers (not 
attached):

REPORT SUMMARY
The Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment (SHLAA) is key evidence 
base document that seeks to identify and account for future potential sources of 
housing land supply.  The SHLAA should identify a five year supply of specific 
deliverable sites.  It should also identify a supply of developable sites for the 
next 6-10 years and where possible for 11-15 years.

Whilst the sites identified by SHLAAs are technically considered to be 
deliverable or developable, this is based upon a subjective judgement. The 
identification of potential sites, buildings or areas in the SHLAA does not state 
or imply that the Council would necessarily grant planning permission for 
development.  All planning applications will continue to be determined against 
the appropriate development plan and other relevant material considerations.

RECOMMENDATION (S)

(1) The Committee considers the SHLAA and agrees to 
its publication;

(2) Notes the findings of the SHLAA 2017 and the five 
year housing land supply position and housing 
trajectory against the Objectively Assessed 
Housing Needs (OAHN) figure.

(3) Acknowledge that the outputs from the SHLAA will 
be used to inform the partial review of the Core 

Notes

Page 55

AGENDA ITEM 7



LICENSING AND PLANNING POLICY COMMITTEE
12 July 2017

Strategy

1 Implications for the Council’s Key Priorities, Service Plans and 
Sustainable Community Strategy

1.1 The delivery and implementation of the Epsom & Ewell Local Plan 
contributes towards all of the Council’s Key Priorities.  The partial update 
of the Core Strategy is critical part of the Local Plan preparation as it will 
set out how sustainable growth will be delivered during the next plan 
period. The SHLAA is an important piece of evidence, which is required 
by government to support the preparation of local plans.

2 Background

2.1 The SHLAAs is a key component of the evidence base to support the 
delivery of sufficient land for housing to meet the community’s need for 
more homes. The NPPF, (para.159) requires local authorities to “prepare 
a Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment to establish realistic 
assumptions about the availability, suitability and the likely economic 
viability of land to meet the identified need for housing over the plan 
period”.

2.2 To that end, the SHLAA is one of the key evidence base studies to inform 
the partial review of the Core Strategy.  It is an assessment of how much 
land is potentially available for housing across Epsom & Ewell.  It forms 
the basis for understanding the potential future supply of land likely to be 
available for development over the current plan period of 2007-2026 and 
the new plan period of 2015-2017 which should respond to the Objectively 
Assessed Housing Need (OAHN) figure.

2.3 To produce the SHLAA, the Council has followed and developed the 
methodology set out in government guidance; varying it where appropriate 
to suit local circumstances.  It builds on and updates the Council’s 
previous SHLAA which was published in 2009.

2.4 The SHLAA should identify a five year supply of specific deliverable sites.  
It should also identify a supply of specific developable sites for the next 6-
10 years and where possible for 11-15 years.

2.5 The SHLAA is also used to guide decisions on individual housing 
proposals and planning applications, most notably on the matter of 
demonstrating a five year supply of housing.  However, the SHLAA does 
not allocate sites for housing; that is done through more detailed planning 
assessment and consultation.

2.6 The identification of potential sites, buildings or areas in the SHLAA does 
not state or imply that the Council would necessarily grant planning 
permission for development.  All planning applications will continue to be 
determined against the appropriate development plan and other relevant 
material considerations.

Page 56

AGENDA ITEM 7



LICENSING AND PLANNING POLICY COMMITTEE
12 July 2017

3 Epsom & Ewell Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment

3.1 A large proportion of development in Epsom & Ewell is delivered on small 
sites of less than 10 units and the Council has sought to ensure that only 
those sites that will deliver a higher proportion of development (5 units or 
more) are considered within the SHLAA.  

3.2 Therefore, only those sites able to support 5 or more net dwellings have 
been considered as a candidate sites and had their development potential 
assessed.  This approach is in accordance with the National Planning 
Practice Guidance and reflects local circumstances.

3.3 For sites with an estimated yield of 4 or less, a windfall allowance of 27 
units per annum for years 6-10 and 20 units per annum for years 11-15 
has been included within the housing land supply.  This figure is based on 
historic completion information and reflects the source of supply relating to 
small sites within the Borough.  It should be noted that a windfall 
allowance has not been included within the five year housing land figures 
as these are considered to be included within the current permissions.

3.4 The purpose of the SHLAA is to provide a realistic assessment of how 
much land is available for housing. Potential housing sites were identified 
from a number of sources, including:

 Previously identified sites within the SHLAA 2009;

 Previously allocated sites and identified preferred housing sites;

 Planning enquiries, refusals and withdrawals;

 Call for Sites submissions;

 Sites that have previously benefited from a planning permission but which 
has since expired;

 Review of Council Assets;

 Review of Empty Property Register; and

 Sites identified from visual surveys / site visits and local knowledge.

3.5 The SHLAA has also assessed sites with planning permission. These 
sites have been checked to establish whether they have a realistic chance 
of delivering units within the next five years and beyond.

3.6 In total 264 sites were assessed against a series of criteria. These criteria 
looked to assess site ‘suitability’, ‘availability’, and ‘achievability’.

Page 57

AGENDA ITEM 7



LICENSING AND PLANNING POLICY COMMITTEE
12 July 2017

3.7 If development of the site would be contrary to national and current local 
policy (as set out in the Core Strategy and Development Management 
Policies Document) the site was deemed unsuitable and discounted from 
the housing land supply.  This also applied to land affected by land 
designations identified within the Epsom & Ewell Constraints Study.

3.8 The availability of sites for development was closely scrutinised and a 
cautious approach to assessing availability of sites was taken.  This has 
included proactively contacting landowners of ‘long standing’ sites where 
there has been no or limited recent interest.

3.9 With regards to the achievability of development sites, local evidence 
prepared to support the introduction of CIL suggests that the majority of 
residential development across the whole of Epsom & Ewell is viable, 
including the policy required within the Core Strategy.  Taking into account 
the land values, the flexibility of Policy CS9 and the findings of the viability 
assessments that the supported the introduction of CIL, it has been 
considered reasonable to assume that all sites are viable, unless there 
has been evidence / information to suggest otherwise

4 SHLAA Outcomes

4.1 Following Officer’s assessment of the sites, 203 were discounted from the 
housing land supply.  It was considered that 113 of these sites were 
unsuitable for residential development when assessed against the current 
policies. Just 20 sites were discounted solely for the reason that they were 
not considered to be available and no sites discounted solely on the 
grounds of achievability (viability).

4.2 In total the SHLAA identified 61opportunity sites that have the potential to 
accommodate 1,819 new homes within the Borough.  The development of 
these sites would in principle, comply with the existing Local Plan. Of the 
61 sites 15 are deemed to be deliverable within the next five years.  The 
table below provides a summary of the SHLAA Opportunity Sites.

4.3 Table 1: Summary of SHLAA Opportunity Sites

*This figure has not been rationalised to take account of non-implementation.

Yrs No. of sites No. of units 
*(net)

Deliverable Sites 1-5 15 221
6-10 36 1,316Developable Sites

11-15 10 282

Total 61 1,819

4.4 Tables 2, 3 & Appendix 4 of the SHLAA Findings Report provide a further 
breakdown of the SHLAA Opportunity sites as well as estimated yields 
and timeframes for delivery.  This has also been disaggregated on a ward 
level.  For land classifications refer to Table 4 of the SHLAA Findings 
Report.

Page 58

AGENDA ITEM 7



LICENSING AND PLANNING POLICY COMMITTEE
12 July 2017

Housing Land Supply Position 

4.5 National planning policy requires local authorities to demonstrate a five 
year supply of housing land and an additional buffer to allow flexibility in 
delivery.  A 5% buffer is the minimum and is considered appropriate to 
Epsom & Ewell given the Borough’s strong record of housing delivery to 
date.  The SHLAA has produced housing land supply calculations and 
trajectories these are available to view in sections 4.4 and 4.5 of the 
appended SHLAA Findings Report.

4.6 The SHLAA indicates that Epsom & Ewell has 5.7 years housing land 
supply when assessed against the Core Strategy housing target of 181 
units per annum. Furthermore, the Borough has the potential housing 
sites to exceed the housing requirement as set by the Core Strategy.

4.7 However, Government guidance is clear that where evidence in Local 
Plans has become outdated (pre-NPPF) information provided in the latest 
full assessment of housing needs should be considered.  The joint 
Strategic Housing Market Assessment 2016 (SHMA) sets an Objectively 
Assessed Housing Need (OAHN) figure of 418 units per annum over a 15 
year time horizon (2015-2035).

4.8 In total, the SHLAA has identified a forward supply of 2,275 units for the 
next 15 years (2017-2032). Against the OAHN figure of 7,106 units 
between 2015 and 2032, the Council has 1.3 years housing land supply. 
Consequently, Epsom & Ewell can achieve less than 40% of the projected 
housing need resulting in a residual requirement of 4,381 units, across the 
forthcoming 17 year plan period.

5 SHLAA Recommendations

5.1 Members are advised that the SHLAA is a starting point for the Council in 
its responsibility to prepare an up to date local plan to ensure that there is 
an adequate land supply to meet the needs of the Borough. 

5.2 The SHLAA sets out a series of recommendations seeking to respond to 
the housing land supply position when considered against the OAHN 
figure, including the need for further work to be undertaken to enable the 
Council to assess the options for and implications of meeting the OAHN 
for the Borough.

5.3 To increase the 5 year housing land supply figure, in the short term, 
Officers should undertake a review of the sites within 6-10 years 
timeframe to consider if there are any opportunities which could enable 
sites to come forward earlier. This could include positive intervention such 
as preparing Development Briefs to provide greater certainty for the 
market or promoting the use of Planning Performance Agreements 
committing to clear time scales for decisions on planning applications. 

Page 59

AGENDA ITEM 7



LICENSING AND PLANNING POLICY COMMITTEE
12 July 2017

5.4 Another key recommendation is for Officers to revisit some of the policy 
assumptions relating to site suitability and capacity.  For example, 
constraints relating to building heights and densities In addition, work will 
need to be undertaken to consider, in full, the approaches that could be 
applied to achieving the residual housing need figure in the existing built 
up area.  This will likely take the form of an Alternative Sources of 
Housing Land Supply Paper. 

6 Financial and Manpower Implications

6.1 The preparation and implementation of the Council’s local plan imposes 
significant demands on staff in the Planning Policy Team and the wider 
Place Development Service.  Since the preparation of the last Local Plan 
Programme additional staff resources have been secured and deployed.  
It is anticipated that these new resources will make a valuable contribution 
towards managing the process and meeting the milestones set out in the 
new Programme.

6.2 However, it may prove necessary to deploy other corporate resources, 
such as the Communications Team and/ or Senior Officers of the Borough 
Council, in order to maintain progress.  Contributions from these sources 
may be particularly sought during Consultation and Duty to Co-operate 
stages of the process, when their input can be best deployed.

6.3 Chief Finance Officer’s comments: In 2016/17 approval was granted for 
an additional funding of £54,000 per annum for 2 years to provide 
additional staffing resources within the Planning & Policy team to assist in 
the delivery of the Council’s Local Plan. The additional staffing cost over 
the 2 year period totalled £108,000 with £80,000 being funded from CIL 
admin fee and £28,000 coming from S106 monitoring fund.

6.4 Any request for further funding to increase the level of resources required 
to deliver the Local Plan will need to be referred to Strategy & Resources 
Committee for approval with an explanation on how it can be financed.

7 Legal Implications (including implications for matters relating to equality)

7.1 All statutory Local Plan documents are subject to public examination.  The 
recently adopted “Your Involvement in Planning” document addresses 
those equality issues related to consultation and engagement.

7.2 Monitoring Officer’s comments: The local plan must be prepared in 
accordance with procedures laid down by statute and with due regard to 
national planning policy.  As stated, the SHLA is a key part of the 
evidence base, without which we cannot proceed to the next stage of plan 
preparation.

Page 60

AGENDA ITEM 7



LICENSING AND PLANNING POLICY COMMITTEE
12 July 2017

8 Sustainability Policy and Community Safety Implications

8.1 The partial review of the Core Strategy will contribute towards delivering 
the Council objectives for maintaining and enhancing the Borough as a 
sustainable place to live, work and visit by providing guidance to new 
development proposals.

8.2 Any future policy options relating to the allocation of land for housing, as 
part of the Core Strategy review process, will be subject to a full 
Sustainability Appraisal report.  This will be subject to public consultation 
at an appropriate time in the process.

9 Partnerships

9.1 The Duty to Co-operate requires that Local Planning Authorities engage 
with partners and neighbouring authorities on strategic issues, including 
provision of housing land and meeting housing need.  We have provided 
an opportunity for our neighbours to engage through a specific Duty to 
Co-operate Consultation relating to the SHLAA methodology and helpful 
responses were received. Further engagement with our Housing Market 
Area partners and neighbouring local authorities may be necessary as we 
seek an appropriate strategy to respond to housing need.

10 Risk Assessment

10.1 The Council is currently unable to demonstrate a five year supply of 
housing land against the OAHN figure and, as such, the Core Strategy 
policy setting a housing target is considered out of date.  Work is 
progressing to update the Core Strategy and produce a new housing 
target to deliver sustainable growth.

10.2 Failure to produce a new housing target and the necessary 5 year 
housing supply could lead planning applications for residential 
development need to be determined in accordance with Paragraph 49 of 
the National Planning Policy Framework. This states that without a five 
year supply adopted Council policies on the supply of housing cannot be 
considered up-to-date. Without a five year supply there is a presumption 
in favour of granting planning permission to applications for new housing 
unless the development can be shown to cause demonstrable harm to 
other factors that outweigh the need to provide new housing.

10.3 By proactively planning for future growth identifying where it should and 
should not go, we will place ourselves in a stronger position to resist 
unsustainable levels of growth in the wrong locations

11 Conclusion and Recommendations

11.1 The Members of the Committee are asked to note the findings of the 
SHLAA 2017, the five year housing land supply position and housing 
trajectory against the OAHN figure.

Page 61

AGENDA ITEM 7



LICENSING AND PLANNING POLICY COMMITTEE
12 July 2017

11.2 The Committee are also asked to acknowledge that the outputs from the 
SHLAA will be used to inform the partial update of the Core Strategy.

WARDS AFFECTED: (All Wards);

Page 62

AGENDA ITEM 7



 

  

 

Epsom & Ewell Borough Council 

June 2017 

Epsom & Ewell Local Plan – Strategic Housing 
Land Availability Assessment: Methodology 

Page 63

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 1



Contents 

 

Contents .................................................................................................................. 1 

Disclaimer ................................................................................................................ 2 

1 Introduction ..................................................................................................... 3 

1.1 Purpose ....................................................................................................... 3 

1.2 What is a Strategy Housing Land Availability Assessment? ......................... 3 

1.3 Duty to Co-operate ...................................................................................... 4 

1.4 Questions .................................................................................................... 4 

2 The Policy Context .......................................................................................... 6 

2.1 National Planning Policy Framework ........................................................... 6 

2.2 Planning Practice Guidance ........................................................................ 6 

2.3 Epsom & Ewell Core Strategy 2007 ............................................................. 7 

2.4 Epsom & Ewell Development Management Policies Document 2015 .......... 8 

2.5 The Five Year Land Supply ......................................................................... 8 

2.6 Objective Assessment of Development Need .............................................. 9 

2.7 Green Belt Study 2017 ................................................................................ 9 

3 Understanding Epsom and Ewell’s Housing Need...................................... 11 

3.1 Adopted Housing Policy Approach............................................................. 11 

3.2 Identifying Future Housing Need ............................................................... 11 

3.3 Affordable Housing .................................................................................... 12 

3.4 Imbalance in Housing Mix- Delivering a Wide Choice of Homes ................ 13 

4 Methodology and Reporting ......................................................................... 15 

4.1 Introduction ................................................................................................ 15 

4.2 Stage 1a- Site/ Broad Location Identification ............................................. 16 

4.3 Stage 1b - Site Review and Site Survey .................................................... 21 

4.4 Stage 2a – Site/ Broad Location Assessment ............................................ 23 

4.5 Sites identified in a location of potential land contamination....................... 26 

4.6 Stage 2b – Review of the assessment and classification of delivery .......... 32 

4.7 Stage 3 – Windfall Sites ............................................................................. 34 

4.8 Stage 4: Assessment Review .................................................................... 34 

4.9 Stage 5: Final Evidence Base .................................................................... 35 

5 Next Steps ...................................................................................................... 37 

5.1 Following the completion of the SHLAA ..................................................... 37 

6 Appendix 1: Call for Sites Letter and E-Form .............................................. 38 

7 Appendix 2: SHLAA 2017 Site Survey Form ................................................ 44 

8 Appendix 3: Site Availability Confirmation Letter ....................................... 47 

9 Appendix 4: Site Availability Confirmation Form ........................................ 49 

 

Page 64

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 1



Disclaimer 

The policy context for the Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment 
(SHLAA) is set out in the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and 
Planning Practice Guidance (PPG). In accordance with paragraph 158 of the 
NPPF Local Planning Authorities (LPAs) should ensure that the Local Plan is 
based on adequate, up-to-date and relevant evidence about the economic, 
social and environmental characteristics and prospects of the area. LPAs 
should ensure that their assessment of and strategies for housing, 
employment and other uses are integrated, and that they take full account of 
relevant market and economic signals. 

The Government views SHLAAs as “a key component of the evidence base to 
support the delivery of sufficient land for housing to meet the community’s 
need for more homes”. The NPPF, (para.159) requires local authorities to 
“prepare a Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment to establish 
realistic assumptions about the availability, suitability and the likely economic 
viability of land to meet the identified need for housing over the plan period”. 

The SHLAA does not allocate sites for housing; that is done through more 
detailed planning assessment and consultation, and is a separate process 
carried out as part of any forthcoming Local Plan document to determine 
which sites should be identified for development and according to which 
timescale. 

In relation to the information contained within this report, its appendices and 
any other forthcoming report relating to the findings of the SHLAA, the 
identification of potential sites, buildings or areas in the SHLAA does not state 
or imply that the Council would necessarily grant planning permission for 
development. All planning applications will continue to be determined against 
the appropriate development plan and other relevant material considerations. 

The conclusions in the SHLAA will be based on information that was available 
at the time of the study and the Council does not accept liability for any factual 
inaccuracies or omissions. The information will be a snapshot of the data 
captured for SHLAA sites submitted at a point in time. Information will be 
compiled with all due care and attention, however inevitably discrepancies 
may occur. The SHLAA document should therefore be considered as a ‘live’ 
one that will be updated. 

The boundaries to sites, buildings and areas will be based on the information 
made available at the time by agents and landowners.  The SHLAA does not 
limit any amendment of these boundaries for the purpose of a planning 
application. 

Page 65

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 1



1 Introduction  

1.1 Purpose 

 The purpose of this document is to set out the Council’s approach to 1.1.1
how it will deal with assessing land availability throughout the Local 
Plan process in the context of the NPPF and Planning Practice 
Guidance (PPG).  This document is a guide to the processes that the 
Council will undertake and the methodology which will be followed. 

1.2 What is a Strategy Housing Land Availability Assessment? 

 Epsom and Ewell Borough Council is preparing a review and update to 1.2.1
its Strategy Housing Land Availability Assessment (SHLAA) for the 
Borough as part of the review of the Local Plan evidence base.  The 
purpose of the SHLAA is to: 

 Identify sites with the potential for future residential development; 

 Assess their development potential; and 

 Assess their suitability for development and the likelihood of 
development coming forward (their availability and achievability). 

 The SHLAA considers the potential future supply of land likely to be 1.2.2
available for residential (bricks and mortar) development over the next 
plan period 2015-2032. Although this assessment makes a judgement 
about the developability of particular sites for development, it is based 
on a number of assumptions and does not in any way prejudge any 
planning applications that may be received on individual sites.  The 
inclusion or otherwise of a site within this assessment does not in itself 
determine whether a site should be developed.   

 The main outcomes from the SHLAA are: 1.2.3

 an assessment1 of each site, in terms of its suitability for  
development, availability and achievability (including whether the 
site is viable) to determine whether a site is realistically expected to 
be developed and when; 

 more details for those sites which are considered to be realistic 
candidates for development, where others have been discounted 
from the land supply figures for clearly evidenced and justified 
reasons; 

 a list of all sites considered, cross-referenced to their locations on 
maps; 

 the potential quantity of residential development that could be 
delivered on each site/broad location, including a reasonable 
estimate of build out rates; and 

                                            

1
 The publication of the site assessment forms will depend on the initial land supply position 

and whether the assumptions, in particular those in relation to suitability need to be reviewed. 

Page 66

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 1



 a housing trajectory of anticipated development and consideration 
of associated risks against delivery of the Core Strategy target and 
the OAHN2 figure. 

 The assessment is an important evidence source to inform plan 1.2.4
making, but does not in itself determine whether a site should be 
allocated for development. This is because not all sites considered in 
the assessment will be suitable for development (e.g. because of policy 
constraints or if they are unviable). It is the role of the assessment to 
provide information on the range of sites which are available to meet 
need, but it is for the development plan itself to determine which of 
those sites are the most suitable to meet those needs. 

 The assessment will be carried out between January and June 2017 1.2.5
and updates information contained within the previous Epsom and 
Ewell Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment (SHLAA) 2009.  

 It should be noted that the SHLAA relates solely to bricks and mortar 1.2.6
accommodation.  The Council will undertake a separate assessment in 
relation to the needs and land availability for our Gypsy and Traveller 
communities.   

1.3 Duty to Co-operate 

 Section 33A of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, as 1.3.1
inserted by section 110 of the Localism Act 2011, introduced a duty to 
cooperate in relation to the planning of sustainable development.  The 
duty requires the Borough Council to cooperate with other local 
planning authorities and other public bodies in preparing and 
developing their Local Plan so far as it relates to a strategic matter.  
This could include the development of large sites close to authority 
borders or the cumulative impact of development on infrastructure. 

 The duty is an important element in the strategic planning functions 1.3.2
and one that builds on the Council’s existing approach of engagement 
and partnership working. Work undertaken as part of the Council’s duty 
to co-operate on strategic issues as part of the review of the Local Plan 
evidence base will be recorded. 

 All neighbouring authorities were contacted under the Duty to 1.3.3
Cooperate to seek their views on the in February 2017.  All comments 
received have been recorded and representations have been taken 
into consideration.  Following consultation there were no significant 
changes proposed to the methodology.   

1.4 Questions   

 If you have any questions relating to the Strategic Housing Land 1.4.1
Availability Assessment and how sites will be assessed please contact 

                                            
2
 Objectively Assessed Housing Needs as published within the Strategic Housing Market 

Assessment (SHMA). 

Page 67

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 1



the Planning Policy Team on:  
LDF@epsom-ewell.gov.uk   

Page 68

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 1

mailto:LDF@epsom-ewell.gov.uk


2 The Policy Context 

2.1 National Planning Policy Framework 

 The NPPF requires LPAs (Local Planning Authorities) to establish 2.1.1
realistic assumption about the suitability, availability and likely 
economic viability of land to meet the identified need for housing over 
the plan period.  The SHLAA is therefore a fundamental component of 
the Local Plan evidence base to support development land delivery 
within the Borough. 

 In accordance with paragraph 158 of the NPPF, LPAs should ensure 2.1.2
that the Local Plan is based on adequate, up-to-date and relevant 
evidence about the economic, social and environmental characteristics 
and prospects of the area. LPAs should ensure that their assessment 
of and strategies for housing, employment and other uses are 
integrated, where appropriate, and that they take full account of 
relevant market and economic signals. 

 The Government views SHLAAs as “a key component of the evidence 2.1.3
base to support the delivery of sufficient land for housing to meet the 
community’s need for more homes”. The NPPF (para.159) requires 
local authorities to “prepare a Strategic Housing Land Availability 
Assessment to establish realistic assumptions about the availability, 
suitability and the likely economic viability of land to meet the identified 
need for housing over the plan period”. 

 As with previous guidance, the NPPF advocates the efficient and 2.1.4
effective use of land, in locations that offer good access to a range of 
community facilities, key services, employment opportunities and 
infrastructure. The importance of re-using previously development land 
is retained. Whilst the government has removed the regional tier of 
planning guidance and devolved the responsibility for setting housing 
targets down to local authorities, the NPPF still sets out strong 
guidance on the considerations for setting housing figures. 

 LPAs need to ensure that their Local Plans meet the ‘full, objectively 2.1.5
assessed needs for market and affordable housing in the housing 
market area’, identifying and updating annually a supply of deliverable 
sites sufficient to provide 5 years’ worth of housing with an additional 
buffer of 5% to ensure choice and competition. Where there is a 
persistent record of under delivery (which is not defined in more detail) 
an additional 20% buffer is required. Beyond the first 5 years the NPPF 
requires local authorities to ‘identify specific, developable sites or broad 
locations for growth, for 6-10 years and, where possible, for years 11-
15’. 

2.2 Planning Practice Guidance 

 The Government's PPG, launched in March 2014, offers practical 2.2.1
guidance to support the NPPF.  The section on Housing and Economic 
Land Availability Assessments sets out that the purpose of such an 

Page 69

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 1



assessment is to identify a future supply of land which is suitable, 
available and achievable for housing and economic development uses 
over the plan period. The assessment of land availability includes the 
SHLAA requirements as set out in the NPPF.  The PPG states that an 
assessment should: 

 identify sites and broad locations with potential for development; 

 assess their development potential; and 

 assess their suitability for development and the likelihood of 
development coming forward (the availability and achievability). 

 The PPG indicates what inputs and processes should lead to a robust 2.2.2
assessment of land availability and that plan makers should have 
regard to the guidance in preparing their assessments. Where they 
depart from the guidance, plan makers will have to set out reasons for 
doing so. The assessment should be thorough but proportionate, 
building where possible on existing information sources outlined within 
the guidance. 

2.3 Epsom & Ewell Core Strategy 2007 

 Epsom and Ewell Council has an adopted Core Strategy (2007) which 2.3.1
includes a commitment to deliver at least 181 housing units in each 
year of the plan period to 2026.  Policy CS7 (Housing Provision) sets 
out the Borough’s housing requirement to be 2,715 net homes for the 
period 2007-2022.  The Core Strategy also seeks to locate new 
development within the defined built up area and within the three 
strategic hospital cluster sites in the Green Belt.  Emphasis is placed 
on the re-use of suitable previously developed land and higher density 
development is directed towards central, sustainable locations. 

 Whilst there is a strong record of housing delivery against the adopted 2.3.2
target, the evidence supporting the Core Strategy housing figures had 
been developed using a different methodology to that now being 
advocated by Government. The key difference being the previous 
requirement to plan for housing ‘need’ rather than the current focus on 
‘demand’.  Furthermore, the uplifted Core Strategy housing target was 
derived from housing figures within the partially revoked Regional 
Spatial Strategy which sought to deliver growth namely through 
redistribution across the South East.  

 The NPPF sets a clear requirement for LPAs to significantly boost the 2.3.3
delivery of housing and to plan to meet the identified need for new 
homes based on demand.  This total is known as the objectively 
assessed need and should be informed by the latest evidence of 
population and household projections. 

 The Practice Guidance at paragraph 30 reference ID: 3-030-20140306 2.3.4
recognises that ‘evidence which dates back several years, such as that 
drawn from revoked regional strategies may not adequately reflect 
current needs’.  A series of decisions made by the Courts and Planning 
Inspectors in relation to local plans in other areas indicated that plans 
adopted prior to the publication of the NPPF and any evidence base 

Page 70

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 1



prepared prior to this date, where housing delivery was based on 
Regional Spatial Strategies could not be considered up to date. 

 In response and to ensure that the Council continued to plan positively 2.3.5
for growth across the Borough, a decision was made in 2015 to 
reprioritise and review the Local Plan evidence base documents.  

2.4 Epsom & Ewell Development Management Policies 
Document 2015 

 Epsom and Ewell Council adopted its Development Management 2.4.1
Policies Document in September 2015. The purpose of the document 
is to support the strategic objectives and deliver the vision of the Core 
Strategy by promoting and enabling development that delivers the 
Spatial Strategy. 

 In relation to housing provision, Policies DM21 and DM22 provide the 2.4.2
policy mechanism to ensure that local housing needs are met and that 
a suitable mix of housing is provided to deliver balanced and 
sustainable communities. 

 The Council, in principle, supports proposals for new housing that 2.4.3
make the most efficient use of development sites within the urban area.  
Policy DM11 states that new housing developments in most cases will 
not exceed 40 dwellings per hectare (dph).  DM11 also outlines a 
number of exceptions where a higher dph could be considered 
acceptable.   

 Garden land does not fall within the NPPF definition of previously 2.4.4
developed land.  Furthermore, Policy DM16 states a presumption 
against the loss of rear domestic gardens due to the need to maintain 
local character, amenity space, green infrastructure and biodiversity.  
In exceptional circumstances, modest redevelopment could be 
considered acceptable, subject to the proposal demonstrating that the 
will no significant adverse impact upon the criteria set within DM16. 

2.5 The Five Year Land Supply  

 As outlined above, the NPPF requires the LPA to achieve a five year – 2.5.1
housing land supply as measured against a local plan that is compliant 
with the NPPF.  Given the concerns relating to conformity with the 
NPPF the Council has taken steps to understand the Objectively 
Assessed Housing Need of the Borough and the wider Housing Market 
Area.  This takes the form of the joint Strategic Housing Market 
Assessment (SHMA). 

 The Council’s Annual Monitoring Reports (AMR) has demonstrated a 2.5.2
strong and consistent delivery against the Core Strategy housing 
targets.  The emerging Housing AMR 15/16 indicates that against the 
current housing target, there is 10 years of housing land supply (based 
on the findings of the SHLAA 2009 and sites within the planning 
process). 

Page 71

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 1



 The PPG (paragraph 30 reference ID: 3-030-20140306) advises that 2.5.3
‘considerable weight should be given to the housing requirement 
figures of adopted Local Plan, which have successfully passed through 
the examination process, unless significant new evidence comes to 
light’.   

 Furthermore, the paragraph 030 advises that where evidence in Local 2.5.4
Plans has become outdated and policies in emerging plan are not yet 
capable of carrying sufficient weight, information provided in the latest 
full assessment of housing needs should be considered. 

 Therefore, as part of the SHLAA a 5 year housing land supply 2.5.5
calculation will be undertaken against the update (but untested) 
evidence on housing need from the SHMA 2016.  Notwithstanding this, 
the guidance is clear, that the weight given to the identified housing 
need figure should take account of the fact that it has not been tested 
or moderated against the relevant constraints. 

2.6 Objective Assessment of Development Need 

 As part of this review of the Local Plan evidence base, the Council 2.6.1
commissioned a joint Strategic Housing Market Assessment (SHMA) 
with The Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames, the Borough of 
Elmbridge and the District of Mole Valley. 

 Using house prices and rates of change in house prices; household 2.6.2
migration and search patterns as well as contextual data on travel to 
work area boundaries, the assessment has identified the extent of the 
Housing Market Areas and the housing need applicable to the 
commissioning authorities.   

 The assessment set out housing need over a 15 year time horizon; 2.6.3
which can be used to support planning and housing policy within each 
commissioning authority.  The outcome of the SHMA will be cross- 
referenced with the SHLAA and other evidence base documents to 
determine whether there is sufficient housing land supply within the 
Borough to the meet the identified need. 

2.7 Green Belt Study 2017 

 In signing the interim Surrey Local Strategic Statement (LSS) the 2.7.1
Council made a commitment to undertake an assessment of its Green 
Belt.  The purpose of the Green Belt Study (GBS) is to provide 
evidence of how different areas perform against the Green Belt 
purposes as set out within the National Planning Policy Framework 
relevant to Epsom and Ewell.   

 The assessment includes the identification of the Broad Areas of the 2.7.2
Green Belt within the Borough and smaller Local Areas (referred to as 
Refined Parcels) based on function and boundary features.  The 
performance of the individual parcels will be assessed against the 4 
purposes of the Green Belt that are relevant to Epsom & Ewell.  The 
outcomes of the GBS are expected in the first quarter of 2017. 

Page 72

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 1



 Should the SHLAA indicate that objectively assessed needs for 2.7.3
housing cannot be met within the built –up area, the Council will need 
to consider whether there are exceptional circumstances to consider 
sites outside of the built-up area, previous site allocations and 
preferred housing sites. 

 It should be noted that the GBS purely focuses on the performance of 2.7.4
land in relation to the purposes of Green Belt and has been undertaken 
using a ‘policy off’ approach and therefore consideration has not been 
given to any other constraints, designations, policies, strategies or the 
development potential of the Broad Areas or Refined Parcels.  Any 
future consideration of the development potential of such land would 
need to be supported by a comprehensive ‘policy on’  assessment of 
the Refined Parcels as to identify areas of land not affected by 
constraints that would prevent development taking place and where it’s 
would not be possible to mitigate impacts.  

 The outcomes the SHMA, GBS and the SHLAA, along with further 2.7.5
assessments of constraints and infrastructure capacity will ultimately 
inform the Council’s view to whether there is a case for exceptional 
circumstances to consider a revision to the Spatial Strategy. 

Page 73

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 1



3 Understanding Epsom and Ewell’s Housing Need 

3.1 Adopted Housing Policy Approach 

 Policy CS7 (Housing Provision) of the Core Strategy sets out the 3.1.1
Borough’s housing requirement to be 2,715 net homes (181 net 
dwellings annual average) for the period 2007-2022. 

 The Council has a target that overall, 35% of new dwellings should be 3.1.2
affordable, Policy CS9 (Affordable Housing) of the Core Strategy sets 
out the existing policy for how the Council intends to deliver at least 
950 new affordable units within the plan period 2007-2022. 

 With regards to housing mix, the Development Management Policies 3.1.3
Plan through Policy DM22 (Housing Mix) sets out how the Council 
intends to secure an appropriate mix of housing to meet existing and 
future household need so that the Borough continues to be comprises 
of balanced and sustainable communities that meet.  The policy states 
that all residential development proposals for four or more units be 
comprised of a minimum of 25% three bedroom, or more units. On 
sites particularly suited to larger-sized family houses, the Council 
encourages the proportion of units having 3 or more bedrooms to be 
exceeded.   

 Past delivery had indicated that over the past 40 years there has been 3.1.4
a trend of building smaller units with fewer family size properties being 
built within the Borough.  Local evidence shows that family sized 
homes are in demand and that there may be an insufficient supply to 
meet either market or affordable housing need.  The 2007/08 East 
Surrey SHMA identified that there was a shortfall in three bedroom 
accommodation and recommended that an affordable housing mix of 
65% one and two bedroom homes and 35% three and four bedroom 
homes. 

 The Council’s Authority Monitoring Report reflects upon the 3.1.5
performance of the adopted development plan policies and the delivery 
of market and affordable housing year on year. 

3.2 Identifying Future Housing Need 

 As part of the review of the Local Plan evidence base, the Council 3.2.1
commissioned a joint Strategic Housing Market Assessment (SHMA) 
with The Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames, the Borough of 
Elmbridge and the District of Mole Valley.  

 The assessment sets out housing need over a 15 year time horizon; 3.2.2
which can be used to support planning and housing policy within each 
commissioning authority.  It suggests an objectively assessed need of 
40,005 dwellings over the 2015-2035/7 period, or 2,000 dwellings per 
annum across the HMA.  Kingston has the largest need (717 per 
annum), followed by Elmbridge (474), Epsom and Ewell, (418) and 
Mole Valley (391). 

Page 74

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 1



 The SHMA has identified that by 2037 there will be an estimated 3.2.3
increase in Epsom and Ewell’s population to 93,000.  This results in in 
an Objectively Assessed Housing Need (OAHN) across the period 
2015-2035 of 8,352 new dwellings creating approximately 10,000 new 
households.  It should be noted that the household projections indicate 
a 70% increase in the number of households aged 65 years or over 
and 147% increase in those aged 85 years or over. 

 The overall OAHN can be broken down by the size of dwellings 3.2.4
required.  As demonstrated in Table 1 below the primary need is for 2 
and 3 bedroom homes.   

No. of bedrooms Percentage of OAHN No. of units 

1 18% 1,503 

2 36% 2,988 

3 36% 2,971 

4+ 11% 890 

Total 100% 8,352 

Table 1: 2015-2035 Dwelling Size Requirements within Epsom & Ewell (Source: 
Kingston & North East Surrey SHMA 2016) 

 The outcomes of the SHMA 2016 will be cross-referenced with the 3.2.5
SHLAA and forthcoming constraints and infrastructure capacity studies 
including the Green Belt Study to determine whether there is sufficient 
housing land supply within the Borough to the meet this identified 
need.  

3.3 Affordable Housing 

 The cost of housing in the UK and its impact on local people is a key 3.3.1
concern for most local authorities, ranking higher than long-held 
concerns on health and social care services.  Demand for affordable 
housing in the Borough has been acute for some time and this is 
evidenced in the SHMA. Whilst high house prices and subsequent 
affordability issues are not particularly unique when it comes to the 
South-East; with most areas now becoming ‘unaffordable’ to the first-
time buyer, they are most acutely felt in the North East Surrey sub-
region that borders Greater London. The cost of housing in the 
Borough and its impact upon residents is a key corporate concern for 
the Borough Council. 

 Although the Borough is not the most unaffordable area within the 3.3.2
HMA (that honour falls to our neighbour Elmbridge Borough Council) 
with an average price of £414,312.00 at 2014, it continues to be a very 
difficult place for people to afford to buy. 

 Coupled to this the Borough has a high affordability ratio of house 3.3.3
prices to incomes and has the second highest level of housing benefits 
claimants in employment across the whole South East.  It is particularly 
noteworthy that within the HMA the Borough has the highest number of 
families in short-term accommodation.  This is set against the 
background of rising house prices and the growing affordability gap. 

Page 75

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 1



 In accordance with the requirements of the NPPF, the SHMA 2016 3.3.4
identifies the total amount of affordable housing required to meet the 
needs of households whom cannot afford to access market housing.  It 
assesses the ability to afford housing across all newly-forming 
households, not simply the net addition to household numbers, adding 
in any current backlog, and offsets this against the supply of affordable 
housing in the current stock to produce an estimate of how much 
additional affordable housing is needed.  

 The SHMA 2016 highlighted that the existing housing stock turns over 3.3.5
at roughly half the national average. This means that those families 
that are fortunate to secure an affordable home within the Borough will 
tend to stay in that home.  There is little evidence that families 
‘staircase’ their way out of affordable housing need onto the ‘normal’ 
housing market. 

 As set out in Table 2, affordable housing requirements for Epsom and 3.3.6
Ewell are broken down into three sectors: social renting, affordable 
renting and intermediate housing, based on assumptions about 
threshold costs 

Affordable Housing Sector  Size of unit No.  of units 

Social rented sector 1 Bed 64 

2 Beds 100 

3 Beds 57 

4+ Beds 39 

Total 260 

Affordable rented sector 1 Bed 2 

2 Beds 5 

3 Beds 4 

4+ Beds 3 

Total 15 

Intermediate (shared ownership) sector 1 Bed 1 

2 Beds -9 

3 Beds 4 

4+ Beds 4 

Total 0 

All affordable sector 1 Bed 67 

2 Beds 96 

3 Beds 66 

4+ Beds 45 

Total 274 

Table 2: Net Annual Affordable Housing Requirements (Source: Kingston & North East 
Surrey SHMA 2016) 

3.4 Imbalance in Housing Mix- Delivering a Wide Choice of 
Homes 

 National planning policy (NPPF, paragraph 50) requires local 3.4.1
authorities to deliver a wide choice of high quality homes, widening the 
opportunity for home ownership and creating sustainable, inclusive and 

Page 76

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 1



mixed communities.  Local authorities are required to plan for a mix of 
housing based on current and future demographic trends, market 
trends and the needs of different groups in the community (such as, 
but not limited to, families with children, older people, people with 
disabilities, service families and people wishing to build their own 
homes).  Within their local plans, local authorities are to set out the 
size, type, tenure and range of housing that is required in particular 
locations, reflecting local demand, government initiatives such as 
Starter Homes3 and how this is to be delivered.   

 In accordance with the requirements of the NPPF, the Kingston and 3.4.2
North Surrey SHMA 2016 identifies the existing and projected dwelling 
size requirements for the Borough.  This information is presented in 
Table 3 below. 

Household type 

 One 
person 

Couple 
without 

dependent 
children 

Couple or 
lone parent 

with 
dependent 

children 

Other with 
dependent 

children 

Other 
multi-
adult 

Total % 

Bedrooms 
occupied 2015 

1 2,339 689 128 0 55 3,211 10% 

2 2,902 2,189 1,701 31 834 7,658 25% 

3 2,598 3,443 4,084 480 2,287 12,892 41% 

4+ 798 2,019 2,413 543 1,683 7,456 24% 

Total 8,637 8,340 8,326 1,054 4,859 31,216 100% 

Required 2035 1 3,512 975 182 0 45 4,713 12% 

2 4,289 3,097 2,617 26 616 10.646 27% 

3 3,824 4,871 5,187 442 1,539 15,862 40% 

4+ 1,190 2,856 2,727 479 1,094 8,346 21% 

Total 12,815 11,800 10,712 947 3,294 39,567 100% 

Difference 
(breakdown of 

OAN) 

1 1,173 286 54 0 -10 1,503 18% 

2 1,387 908 916 -5 -218 2,988 36% 

3 1,226 1,428 1,103 -38 -748 2,971 36% 

4+ 392 837 314 -64 -589 890 11% 

Total 4,178 3,460 2,386 -107 1,565 8,351 100% 

Table 3: Existing and Projected Dwelling Size Requirements for the Borough (Source: 
Kingston & North East Surrey SHMA 2016) 

                                            
3
 Introduced in the Housing and Planning Act 2016, defined as new dwellings; available for 

purchase by ‘qualifying first-time buyers’ only; they are defined as people who don’t already 
own a home and who are aged 23-40; to be sold at a discount of at least 20% of their market 
value, and always for less than the price cap (currently set to £450,000 in Greater London; 
£250,000 outside of London). 

Page 77

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 1



4 Methodology and Reporting 

4.1 Introduction 

 The SHLAA methodology has been developed using the advice within 4.1.1
the National Planning Practice Guidance on Strategic Housing and 
Economic Land Availability Assessments, the Epsom and Ewell Core 
Strategy 2007 and Development Management Policies Document 
2015.   The flow chart below, taken from the PPG4, details the inputs 
and process which should be included to produce a robust 
assessment.   

 

Figure 1: Flow Chart outlining methodology 

                                            
4
 Planning Policy Guidance, Paragraph: 006 Housing and economic land availability assessment , 

Methodology –flow chart 

Page 78

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 1



 The Council will follow this flow chart, building in the previous staged 4.1.2
approach used in the 2009 assessment undertaken by the Council.  
The methodology for the SHLAA has been developed to provide an 
accessible, transparent and audited process and ensure it has regard 
to local circumstances.  The assessment process is designed to be 
iterative and reviewed at various stages alongside the review of the 
Local Plan evidence base, any forthcoming production of Local Plan 
documents and as new sites come forward and/or circumstances 
changes. 

 The methodology has been used to review sites that have been 4.1.3
identified within previous SHLAA publications, sites put forward by 
landowners, developers through the Call for Sites exercise and any 
other sites that the Council believes there is merit in considering. 

4.2 Stage 1a- Site/ Broad Location Identification 

Determine Assessment Area 

 The geographical area to be covered by this SHLAA will be all the land 4.2.1

within the Council’s administrative boundary.  This area will be 
subdivided into the 13 political ward areas. 

 In future reiterations of the SHLAA it could be considered appropriate 4.2.2
to extend the assessment area to reflect the joint working of the 
Housing Market Assessment partnering authorities. 

Partnership Approach / Stakeholder Involvement 

 National Planning Guidance advocates a partnership approach to 4.2.3
undertaking assessment relating to land availability, involving key 
partners from the outset.  The Council recognises the importance of 
working in Partnership with other key stakeholders.   

 The methodology of the SHLAA is a hybrid of the previous 2009 4.2.4
methodology which has been amended to take into account the most 
recent changes in national and local policy as well as the PPG.    

 When undertaking the 2009 assessment, to support the delivery of a 4.2.5
comprehensive and robust SHLAA a Steering Group was established 
to act as a critical friend during the SHLAA process and provide advice 
and validation to the SHLAA methodology.  The methodology was also 
subject to wider stakeholder consultation in July –August 2008. 

 On reflection, the value of the Steering Group was primarily in the 4.2.6
formulation of a robust methodology and beyond the initial stages, 
there was no need for further steering group involvement.  As this 
previous methodology will form the basis of the 2017 assessment, the 
re-establishing of the Steering Group is not considered necessary. 

 Whilst specific engagement with local house builders and property 4.2.7
agents may lead to accusations of favouritism, the Council may wish to 
consider engaging with the Home Builders Federation to invite them to, 
as required, to provide comment on the assessment of individual sites 

Page 79

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 1



particularly in relation to whether the development of a site is viable 
and to provide a ‘sense check’ of the Council’s assumptions. 

 The assessment is to be published as part of the evidence base for the 4.2.8
Local Plan and is not subject to statutory consultation.  The Council will 
consider any comments on the report and the methodology used 
during its on-going reviews of Strategic Housing Land Availability 
Assessment. 

 Officers across the Council (and in particular within the wider planning 4.2.9
team) will be called on to assist in the review and assessment of 
potential sites.  This will include the involvement of Development 
Management Officers, Planning Enforcement Officers, the 
Environmental Health Team, the Countryside Manger, the Tree Officer, 
Leisure Services Manager and Property Services Officers. 

Site selection threshold 

 In selecting candidate sites, consideration has been given to the 4.2.10
amount of development that could be accommodated.   A large 
proportion of development in Epsom & Ewell is delivered on small sites 
and the Council is seeking to ensure that only those sites that will 
deliver a higher proportion of development (5 units or more) are 
considered within the SHLAA.  Council will need to consider these to 
show overall housing delivery against housing requirements / targets.  
However, in the future the Council will look to allocate larger more 
strategic sites in accordance within the NPPF5. 

Housing – potential to accommodate more than 5 dwellings 

Only those sites able to support 5 or more net dwellings will be considered as a 
candidate sites and have their development potential assessed.  This approach 
is in accordance with the National Planning Practice Guidance and reflects local 
circumstances. 

It should be noted that the Council will also consider ‘packages’ of smaller sites, 
which would need to come forward together to ensure viability and where in total 
the resultant yield would be 5 or more net units. 

Figure 2: Site selection thresholds for candidate sites 

Desktop Review of Existing Information 

 The Stage 1 desktop review provides a baseline position and the 4.2.11
starting point for sites to be considered as part of the SHLAA. The PPG 
recommends that the desktop review should be proactive in identifying 
as wide a range as possible of sites for development. 

 The SHLAA will consider all available types of sites and sources of 4.2.12
data, these ‘Candidate Sites’ include: 

                                            
5
 NPPF, Page 12, Paragraph 52 

Page 80

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 1



 

Allocated and Preferred Housing Sites 

 The Epsom and Ewell District Wide Local Plan 2000 allocated 6 4.2.13
housing development sites across the Borough, to date, five sites have 
been developed or in the process of coming forward. Similarly, Plan E 
Area Action Plan (2011) allocates a number of sites for residential and 
mixed used development. 

 As part of preparation towards the Site Allocation DPD, in 2011 the 4.2.14
Council produced a Housing Site Allocations Consultation Paper.  This 
is identified 20 preferred housing sites with the potential to deliver ten 
or more new homes. 

 The remaining undeveloped sites of the allocations and preferred site 4.2.15
will be included in the list of sites for consideration. 

Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment 2009 

 Sites identified within the SHLAA 2009 and not yet completed, 4.2.16
commenced or committed will be reviewed.  The previous SHLAA 
surveyed and assessed6 a total 316 sites.  The site assessment 
process placed each individual site in a category, ranging from 1 to 5, 
which reflected its overall deliverability and viability.  This classification 
process effectively determined the site’s likelihood of coming forward 
during the SHLAA period and to a slightly lesser extent the potential 
yields and densities available from each individual site.  Table 4 below, 
provides a summary of each category from the 2009 assessment.  
Using this as a basis, the principle of the 5 categories will be taken 
forward within this assessment but will updated to reflect the most 
update guidance and terminology of the PPG.  

 The 216 sites considered to fall within Categories 4-5 were effectively 4.2.17
discounted from the SHLAA and the 100 sites within Categories 1-3 
formed part of the Council’s identified housing land supply.  The 
SHLAA divided these sites into two sub- categories; Type A 
(deliverable) and Type B (developable) sites.  These sites were 
considered to have the potential yield of 1,953 up to a maximum of 
2,265 new homes.  

Category Description 

1 The most deliverable sites. These tended to be sites that were either 
already within the planning system, being under consideration or having 

planning permission, under construction, or otherwise committed to 
development. 

 

Also contains sites not currently within the planning process but known to 
be very likely to come forward during the SHLAA period. 

                                            
6
 The SHLAA 2009 is available to view on the Council’s website at: http://www.epsom-

ewell.gov.uk/residents/planning/planning-policy/planning-and-supplementary-planning-
documents/evidence-base#biodiversity  

Page 81

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 1

http://www.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/residents/planning/planning-policy/planning-and-supplementary-planning-documents/evidence-base#biodiversity
http://www.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/residents/planning/planning-policy/planning-and-supplementary-planning-documents/evidence-base#biodiversity
http://www.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/residents/planning/planning-policy/planning-and-supplementary-planning-documents/evidence-base#biodiversity


 

Located within the existing urban area and could theoretically come 
forward as sources of housing land supply regardless of their identification 

through the SHLAA process. 

 

2 Considered to have a high potential as future sources of housing land 
supply; the SHLAA 2009 being very optimistic that delivery would take 

place during the first half of the SHLAA period.  

 

These sites are not identified under Category 1 because there is some 
uncertainty over exactly when they would come forward within SHLAA 

period 

 

Most of the sites within Category 2 are considered to be deliverable. 

 

Located within the existing urban area and could theoretically come 
forward as sources of housing land supply regardless of their identification 

through the SHLAA process. 

 

3 Considered appropriate and viable potential sources of supply but where 
landowner aspirations are unclear. 

 

Sites falling within Category 3 are considered to fall between being 
deliverable and developable. 

 

Located within the existing urban area and could theoretically come 
forward as sources of housing land supply regardless of their identification 

through the SHLAA process. 

 

4 Recognised as having potential as sources of housing land supply but 
were generally considered unlikely to come forward during the SHLAA 

period.  

 

Notably, this category incorporated those sites currently in use as open 
space provision (informal open spaces and allotments) and greenfield sites 

within the Green Belt.  

 

The SHLAA considers many of these sites to be potentially deliverable 
during the SHLAA period but that their release is dependent upon a 

Borough Council decision. 

 

5 Either entirely unlikely to come forward as sources of housing land supply 
(at any time) or are sites whose deliverability and viability during the 

SHLAA period is undeterminable.  

 

Some of these Category 5 sites may come forward naturally during the 
SHLAA period; in effect constituting an identified form of windfall supply. 

Table 4: Summary of SHLAA site assessment categories  (Source: SHLAA 2009) 

Information from other Council departments  

 A number of sites will be considered for future allocation for residential 4.2.18
development having been identified as a result of on-going joint 
working with other Council departments and the County Council e.g. 
the Council’s Property Service. 

Page 82

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 1



Sites with planning permission 

 Sites with an outstanding unimplemented or recently lapsed planning 4.2.19
permission will be considered.  It is recognised that although planning 
permission had been granted for an acceptable scheme, the Council 
needs to consider whether the site is likely to be delivered in 
accordance with the PPG. 

Sites subject to pre-application enquiries 

 The Council will look at pre-application enquires for residential 4.2.20
development dating back to July 20087.  Providing that an application 
has not subsequently been submitted, the development potential of 
each site will be considered.   

Sites refused planning permission 

 Those sites which have been refused planning permission by the 4.2.21
Council or dismissed at appeal since July 2008 will be considered.  
Again this is on the proviso, that a subsequent application for the 
development of a site has not been submitted and granted planning 
permission.  A key consideration will be whether the reasons for 
refusal/dismissal could be overcome.   

Call for Sites Exercise/ Broad Locations Survey 

 Between 24 February and 24 March 2017 the Council will run a 4.2.22
specific Call for Sites Exercise. The Council will contact landowners, 
developers and planning agents known either to be local landowners or 
to have development interests in the Epsom and Ewell Area.  The call 
for sites will be promoted through the Council’s website and letters / 
email circulation. 

 Those wishing to submit a site for consideration for potential 4.2.23
development will be asked to complete a E-Form and attach a site plan 
(see Appendix 1).  The E-Form requests information regarding the 
details of the site, ownership, planning history, future uses of the site 
as well as known constraints and availability. 

 Prior to February 2017, the Council had undertaken a ‘Call for Sites’ 4.2.24
exercise as part of the previous 2009 SHLAA. Outside of this ‘formal’ 
exercise the Council has actively encouraged site owners and agents 
to engage with the planning team to discuss the potential of sites 
through its pre-application service. 

                                            
7
 The Council has taken the date of July 2008 as its baseline, as it represents the close of the 

previous SHLAA search for sites. 

Page 83

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 1



Sites not currently in the planning process 

 Potential housing land within the existing urban area could come from 4.2.25
the following sources: 

 Vacant and derelict land and buildings, 

 Surplus public sector land, 

 Land in non-residential use which may be suitable for re-
development for housing, such as surplus commercial buildings or 
car parks, including as part of mixed-use development, 

 Additional housing opportunities in established residential areas, 
such as under-used garage blocks and subdivision of larger 
properties; and 

 Large scale redevelopment and re-design of existing residential 
areas 

 Other sources of information that may help to identify sites could 4.2.26
include: 

 Empty Property Register, 

 Register of Surplus Public Sector Land, 

 Employment Land Review, 

 Ordnance Survey Maps; and 

 Aerial photograph. 

Sites not included on the Candidate Register 

 Sites not included on the register of candidate sites and not assessed 4.2.27
as to their potential for development are those: 

 Currently in the ‘planning application process8’ – for example, sites 
awaiting a decision on a planning application by the Council or an 
independent inspector.  

 Where development has commenced on a site with planning 
permission (excluding those that are phased). 

4.3 Stage 1b - Site Review and Site Survey 

Previously identified sites 

 The SHLAA 2009 identified 100 sites as being deliverable and 4.3.1
developable, these fell into Categories 1-3 (as outlined Table 4).  
Informed by policy changes and housing delivery, the Council will 
review the status of those sites that have yet to come forward and the 
associated assumptions where applicable.  This could include the re-
assessment of anticipated timeframes for delivery, viability or even the 
quantum of development.  

                                            
8
 Dependant on status of the site (i.e has it previously been identified) and planning history 

including pre-application enquiries. 

Page 84

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 1



 In addition, the Council will review sites previously identified within 4.3.2
Categories 4 and 5, specifically reviewing of the suitability of the sites 
for housing development, reflecting any relevant changes in policy and 
land designations since the 2009 assessment. 

New sites 

 All new sites identified for inclusion in the SHLAA will be mapped and 4.3.3
information about them will be recorded in the site database.  In 
accordance with the PPG, the following information will be recorded at 
this initial assessment stage: 

 Site size, boundaries, and location; 

 Current use(s) and character; 

 Character of surrounding area and the surrounding land use(s); 

 Physical and potential environments constraints e.g. access, steep 
slopes, natural features of significance and location of pylons; and 

 An assessment of planning history 

 Where relevant, development progress; 

 National guidance advises that particular types of land or areas may be 4.3.4
excluded from the assessment as long as the reasons are justified.   
The SHLAA will take an initial ‘policy off’ / unconstrained approach to 
the review of sites to establish their development potential.  However, 
sites below the identified site threshold will be excluded.  

Sites within the Green Belt 

 Following consultation and reflecting on the objectives of the SHLAA, 4.3.5
the 2009 assessment took a virtually unconstrained approach in the 
identification of sites.  It was considered that including potential 
sources of supply located within the Green Belt would provide a more 
thorough assessment of the Borough’s capacity in the long term, 
increasing the robustness of the SHLAA. 

 Green Belt and open space sites where development (excluding 4.3.6
footprint development) would be considered to be inappropriate were 
identified as falling into categories 4 or 5 on account of them having 
some potential, but this being dependent upon the Council actively 
pursuing a policy of release.  This excluded footprint development. 

 A similar approach will be adopted in this assessment.  National and 4.3.7
local Green Belt policy regards the construction of new buildings as 
inappropriate in the Green Belt.  The publication of the NPPF has 
widened the exceptions to when development would not be considered 
inappropriate.  The suitability of new and any previously identified sites 
within the Green Belt will be assessed against the parameters of the 
NPPF. 

 If development does not fall within the exceptions as outlined within the 4.3.8
NPPF, it is considered premature of the SHLAA to endorse specific 
sites in the Green Belt as suitable for residential development in 

Page 85

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 1



advance of the Council considering the outcomes of other evidence 
documents such as the Green Belt Study and infrastructure capacity 
studies.  

 Therefore, such Green Belt sites will be considered not suitable and 4.3.9
discounted for the purposes of identifying a supply of deliverable or 
developable sites for residential development. 

Land in employment use put forward for residential use 

 Within the Borough there are a number of sites designated as 4.3.10
Employment Land.  Identified on the Proposals Map, these sites are 
protected from being developed into alternative uses under Core 
Strategy Policy CS11. 

 As such, employment land designations are considered to be a policy 4.3.11
constraint in proposals for alternative uses other than employment.  
Therefore, any site put forward for non-employment use(s) and located 
within such a designation will be assessed accordingly and is unlikely 
to be put forward within the housing land supply. 

 Similarly, in considering sites outside of designated employment areas 4.3.12
policies within the local plan, such as Policy DM24 of the Development 
Management Policies Plan as well as the recent Article 4 Direction 
seek to safeguard the loss of office space.  Likewise Policy CS13 of 
the Core Strategy resists the loss such as cultural, built sports and 
community facilities and sites. 

 This policy approach is based on a strong housing land supply9 across 4.3.13
the Borough and the level of housing planned to be delivered from 
allocated sites to meet the existing housing targets as set out within the 
Core Strategy. If this position were to change, the Council would need 
to consider if this policy approach with its strong emphasis for such 
sites to continue for commercial purposes is appropriate.  This of 
course would need to be balanced against the identified demand for 
employment land and office space across the Borough. 

4.4 Stage 2a – Site/ Broad Location Assessment  

 Once all sites have been collated as part of the initial assessment, 4.4.1
Stage 2 will look at whether a site/option is/ remains developable or 
deliverable taking account of issues relating to suitability, availability 
and achievability / viability in accordance with the NPPF and planning 
guidance.  The NPPF sets out definitions of ‘deliverable’ and 
‘developable’ sites for housing development:  

Deliverable - sites should be available now, offer a suitable location for 
development now, and be achievable with a realistic prospect that 
housing will be delivered on the site within five years and in particular that 
development of the site is viable. Sites with planning permission should 

                                            
9
 Local Plan Annual Monitoring Report 2014-2015 

Page 86

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 1



be considered deliverable until permission expires, unless there is clear 
evidence that schemes will not be implemented within five years, for 
example they will not be viable, there is no longer a demand for the type 
of units or sites have long term phasing plans. 

Developable – sites should be in a suitable location for housing 
development and there should be a reasonable prospect that the site is 
available and could be viably developed at the point envisaged. 

NPPF, Para. 47 and Footnote 11 & 12 

 The NPPF practice guidance includes some further assistance on the 4.4.2
definitions of ‘deliverable’ and ‘developable’ in the context of housing 
policies and the allocation of sites:   

Deliverable -  allocated for housing in the development plan and sites 
with planning permission (outline or full that have not been implemented) 
unless there is clear evidence that schemes will not be implemented 
within five years or where planning permission has expired.   

However, planning permission or allocation in a development plan is not a 
prerequisite for a site being deliverable in terms of the five-year supply. 
Local planning authorities will need to provide robust, up to date evidence 
to support the deliverability of sites, ensuring that their judgements on 
deliverability are clearly and transparently set out. If there are no 
significant constraints (e.g. infrastructure) to overcome, sites not allocated 
within a development plan or without planning permission can be 
considered capable of being delivered within a five-year timeframe. 

The size of sites will also be an important factor in identifying whether a 
housing site is deliverable within the first 5 years.  Plan makers will need 
to consider the time it will take to commence development on site and 
build out rates to ensure a robust five-year housing supply. 

Developable - developable sites or broad locations are areas that are in 
a suitable location for housing development and have a reasonable 
prospect that the site or broad location is available and could be viably 
developed at the point envisaged. Local planning authorities will need to 
consider when in the plan period such sites or broad locations will come 
forward so that they can be identified on the development trajectory. 
These sites or broad locations may include large development 
opportunities such as urban extension or new settlements. 

National Planning Practice Guidance 

 The assessment will focus on whether a site is deliverable or 4.4.3
developable taking account of the above definitions and broken down 
and examined under the following headings in accordance with the 
NPPF and planning guidance:  

 Suitability 

 Availability 

 Achievability/Viability 

Page 87

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 1



 

Suitability 

 The following factors will be considered to assess a site’s suitability for 4.4.4
development now or in the future: 

 Physical limitations or problems such as access, infrastructure, 
ground conditions, flood risk, hazardous risks, pollution or 
contamination; 

 Policy constraints including land designations that would deem 
sites unsuitable for housing development or which may affect the 
scale and type of housing development; and 

 Potential impacts including the effect upon the environment 
including landscape features, nature biodiversity and heritage 
conservation. 

 Assessing the suitability of sites or broad locations for development will 4.4.5
be guided by: 

 The Epsom and Ewell Core Strategy, Development Management 
Policies Document, Plan E AAP and supported adopted guidance, 
emerging plan policy and national policy; and 

 Market requirements. 

 The assessment of each site will initially take a ‘policy off’ / 4.4.6
unconstrained’ approach to identifying development potential.  
Informed by the Epsom & Ewell Constraints Study, those sites within 
the following designations, referred to as ‘Primary Constraints’ which 
effectively deems the site unsuitable for development under the current 
Spatial Strategy: 

 Flood Zone 3b (1 in 20 year flood outline) 

 Green Belt (excluding previously developed land as well of the 
exceptions as set out within the NPPF) 

 Within a Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI) 

 Registered Historic Parks and Gardens 

 Sites of Nature Conservation Interest (SNCI) 

 Local Nature Reserves (LNR) 

 Ancient Woodlands  

 Land designated as Strategic Open Space 

 Site located within any of these areas will not fall within the ‘deliverable’ 4.4.7
or ‘developable’ SHLAA categories of 1-3.   Sites located in any of 
these areas will effectively be discounted from the housing land supply 
but recorded for auditing purposes and reconsidered if necessary in 
the future.  This may be the case depending upon the initial outcomes 
of the SHLAA and the GBS.  

 This reflects the PPG which indicates the assessment should be as 4.4.8
comprehensive as possible and not be narrowed by existing policies 
designed to constrain development.  It is for this process to “test again 

Page 88

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 1



the appropriateness of other previously defined constraints, rather than 
simply to accept them”. 

 Other policy designations from Epsom and Ewell’s Development Plan 4.4.9
and National guidance fall into two broad categories, ‘Environmental 
Considerations’ and ‘Heritage Considerations’.  This includes 
considerations such as flood risk, Source Protection Zones, location 
within an Air Quality Management Area (AQMA), Veteran and Aged 
trees, Tree Preservation Orders, open space, Mineral Safeguarding 
Area, historical buildings and conservation areas which may affect the 
scale and type of development. 

 Sites identified to be effected by such considerations will not 4.4.10
automatically be discounted from the housing land supply but rather 
act as an indicator that the site may well have some constraints which 
would need to be addressed if the site is to be deemed suitable or 
could restrict the scale and type of residential development.  

 Sites with planning permission will generally be considered suitable for 4.4.11
development although there may be instances where it is necessary to 
assess whether circumstances have changed which would alter their 
suitability.  

4.5 Sites identified in a location of potential land contamination 

 There are numerous examples within the Borough of where the 4.5.1
potential challenge posed by land contamination has been successfully 
overcome in order to facilitate development.  In contrast there are very 
few sites where contamination and/or ground conditions have been the 
sole factor that has prevented development. 

 In most cases the key issue is not whether a site can be adequately 4.5.2
remediated but instead whether it can be done so viably. It will 
therefore be assumed, unless information was available to suggest 
otherwise, that the presence of contamination should not constitute a 
valid reason to render a site unsuitable. 

Flood Risk 

 With the exception of previously developed land, sites located within 4.5.3
Flood Risk Zone 3b (1 in 20 year outline) will be considered 
inappropriate for new development. 

 The Strategic Flood Risk Assessment (SFRA) 2010 mapping and most 4.5.4
up to date Environment Agency’s (EA) national flood risk zone 
mapping will be used alongside the general assumption in terms of 
development potential: 

 FZ1- development not constrained 

 FZ2- development not constrained 

Page 89

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 1



 FZ3a- development10 potentially constrained 

 However, it is considered that in general, flood risk ‘influences’ the 4.5.5
development potential of a site rather than renders it unsuitable, as 
sites may be capable of overcoming both the sequential and 
exceptions test required by national planning policy and guidance.  
However, a cautious approach will be taken in respect to Flood Risk 
Zone 3a. 

 The following matters are also to be considered, some of which may 4.5.6
preclude development depending on the extent to which the utilities 
covers a site and its potential impact: 

 High pressure gas pipelines; 

 Oil pipelines, national grid transmission lines; and 

 Immovable communication links, such as high speed fibre optic 
cables utilised by businesses in the area. 

Availability  

 To be considered ‘available’ for development the PPG identifies that a 4.5.7
site should be free of legal or ownership problems.  In short this means 
there is a willing landowner or developer in control of the site. 

 The decision on whether a site was considered available was reached 4.5.8
via considering the following: 

 There was a valid planning permission; 

 A recent planning applications made within the last 3* years; 

 A recent pre-application enquiry11 relating to the site and proposed 
development had made within the last 3* years; 

 Site had been directly nominated by the landowner, agent working 
on behalf of the landowner or a developer in control (include 
optioned agreements) through a Call for Sites Exercise; 

 Whether the site was in active use; 

 Whether the site could be developed now; and 

 Whether the site was free of ownership and tenancy issues 

 *The timeframe of 3 years was considered reasonable as it correlated 4.5.9
with the time limit of a planning permission. 

 The availability of a site for development will be confirmed by the Call 4.5.10
for Sites and information from landowners and legal searches.  In 
accordance with the NPPF and practice guidance, the availability and 
achievability of sites with planning permission will be considered.  As 
stated in Government guidance the existence of a planning permission 
does not necessarily mean a site is available as a person making a 

                                            
10

 With the exception of ‘highly vulnerable uses’ as defined in vulnerability classifications set 
out in the Planning Practice Guide, which would be inappropriate in FZ3a. 

11
 Consideration was made as to the nature of the enquiry. 

Page 90

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 1



planning application on a site does not need to own or have an interest 
in the land.  

 In cases where it becomes apparent that a site may be constrained on 4.5.11
issues relating to its availability, these will be discussed with those 
promoting the site and all relevant parties to try and seek a resolution.  
However, in cases where a landowner will not release their site for a 
particular alternative development option this is likely to result in the 
site not being taken any further. 

 To establish the availability of ‘long standing’ previous SHLAA sites 4.5.12
and those sites where there has been limited to no recent planning 
history or interest, the Council will proactively contact the registered 
landowners.  A Site Availability Confirmation (SAC) letter and form 
(refer to Appendix 6 & 7) will be issued as a tool to confirm interest and 
gauge likely yield and timeframes for delivery as well as key 
constraints.  The letter itself will be adapted to reflect how the site had 
been identified (i.e. SHLAA, pure opportunity, lapsed permission or pre 
application enquiry in excess of 3 years). 

 Where it was concluded that sites could not be considered available at 4.5.13
this time, consideration was given to the likelihood of the site becoming 
available in the future, based on how and when this might be achieved.  
However, it is recognised that to be considered ‘deliverable’ the site 
must be available at the time of the assessment. 

 It should be noted that the Council will take a more cautious approach 4.5.14
to assessing the availability of sites than previous 2009 SHLAA.  This 
could result in a number of ‘long standing’ opportunity sites being 
discounted on the basis that they are no longer available for 
development.   

Achievability/Viability  

 A site is considered ‘achievable/viable’ where there is a reasonable 4.5.15

prospect that the particular type of development will be developed on 
the site at a particular point in time.  This is essentially a judgement 
about the economic viability of a site and development option and, 
where appropriate, the capacity of the developer to complete and sell 
the development over a certain period.   

 In assessing whether market demand equated to ‘achievability’, the 4.5.16
Council will utilise the viability testing which supported the introduction 
of the Community Infrastructure Levy12 and the adoption of the 
Revised Developer Contributions SPD (2014).  Within these 
assessments, the Council took a precautionary approach to ensure 
that the level of CIL that could reasonably be expected to be charged 
on development without putting it unduly at risk across the whole of the 
Borough.  The assessments had regard to other obligations and costs 
placed on development. 

                                            
12

 Epsom and Ewell Community Infrastructure Levy Viability Study (June 2012) 

Page 91

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 1



 The Council is not able to negotiate with regards to CIL.  However, the 4.5.17
Council’s affordable housing Policy CS9 and Developer Contributions 
SPD recognises that there may be exceptional circumstance where the 
Council may enter into negotiations where contributions impact 
significantly on the viability of a development. 

 Where non-viability can be robustly demonstrated, affordable housing 4.5.18
contributions and the nature and extent of site-specific items of 
infrastructure13 may be negotiable. 

 In the context of the high land values across the Borough the following 4.5.19
factors will be considered when assessing the achievability of a site: 

 Whether there is active developer interest in the site? 

 Whether there is known demand for the form of provision approved 
/ proposed? 

 Whether similar sites have been successfully developed in the 
preceding years? 

 Whether there are any known abnormal development costs? 

 The consideration of this information will enable realistic and informed 4.5.20
views to be made as to when development is likely to commence and 
how long it would take to build out. 

 Epsom and Ewell has a consistently strong housing market, with the 4.5.21
number of housing completions remains generally resilient 
notwithstanding the economic downturn and subsequent recovery 
since 2008.  Residential monitoring has shown that sites continue to 
yield completions and that developers continue to commence sites for 
which they have obtained planning approval. 

 The local evidence prepared to support the introduction of CIL 4.5.22
suggests that the majority of residential development across the whole 
of Epsom and Ewell is viable.   

 Therefore, taking into account the land values, the flexibility of Policy 4.5.23
CS9 and the findings of the viability assessments that the supported 
the introduction of CIL, it has been considered reasonable to assume 
that all sites are viable, unless there has been evidence / information to 
suggest otherwise. 

Overcoming constraints  

 Where policy constraints are identified consideration will be given to 4.5.24
whether it will be possible to overcome these.  If it is deemed possible 
to overcome identified constraints, an assessment will then be made 
as to whether the measures required would negatively impact the 
viability of the site for the proposed development. 

                                            
13

 necessary to address the impact of the development and make it acceptable in planning 
terms 

Page 92

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 1



 Identified constraints could vary from those which are easy to 4.5.25
overcome (e.g., allowing for stand –off within a development and 
reducing the overall developable area of a site) to those which could be 
more fundamental (e.g. legal restrictions which could prevent 
development).  It is likely that in some instances, the measure for 
overcoming constraints could be easy to implement and not likely to 
adversely affect viability to unacceptable levels.  Where identified 
constraints would reduce viability to an unacceptable level, this will be 
reflected within the sites category score. 

Estimating development potential 

 The PPG indicates an estimate of the development potential should be 4.5.26
guided by existing or emerging plan policy.  The guidance does 
indicate that where the development plan policy does not provide a 
sufficient basis to make a judgement then relevant existing 
development schemes can be used as the basis for assessment. 

Density 

 The NPPF does not identify an indicative minimum net density 4.5.27
threshold.  The PPG suggests that where considered appropriate to do 
so, density should reflect local characteristics. 

 Policy DM 11 (Housing Density) in principle supports proposal for new 4.5.28
housing that makes the most efficient use of development sites within 
the Borough’s existing urban area.  It advises that ‘the density of new 
housing developments will in most cases not exceed 40 dwellings per 
hectare. 

 The Council will assume maximum densities based on current local 4.5.29
policy, the local character, neighbouring developments and as well as 
Government guidance.   Where information is available from sources 
such as, planning applications, pre-application discussions, 
development briefs and masterplans, the known density information 
will be used. 

 This average density has been used based on a gross to net 4.5.30
developable area ratio as outlined above.  Development sites within 
town centres are likely to exceeding 40 dwellings per hectare, although 
the majority of these sites are mixed use with residential to upper 
floors.  For example, it may be appropriate to assume a higher density 
in retail centres and sites close to railway stations.  Consideration will 
be given to the conclusions from the Environmental Character Study 
(2008) which identified the Borough’s different character areas and 
their sensitivity to change. 

Gross to net site area 

 The developable area is the likely proportion of the site which will be 4.5.31
available for the proposed development. For example, for housing, the 
land available, after taking into account provision of infrastructure, 
open space and other land uses designed to complement housing 

Page 93

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 1



development. This would also take account of the parking provision 
requirements to ensure compliance with the Parking Standards for 
Residential Development SPD (2015). The Council will make a case by 
case judgement on a based on the character of the area; however a 
general rule of thumb would be to assume a 80% gross to net ratio on 
site less than 1ha.   

 For larger sites over 1ha, a greater percentage of the total site area is 4.5.32
deducted in order to give the developable area that can be used for 
housing, on general a 70% ratio should be assumed. This takes into 
account other uses that are likely to be incorporated in to larger 
housing schemes such as education provision or the need for critical 
infrastructure such as new roads.   

 In terms of the capacity of the site for development, this will be 4.5.33
determined having:  

 Assessed the policy constraints which may reduce the developable 
area of the site and/or the site’s capacity taking account of general 
development management policies and the appropriate housing 
density; 

 Discussed the number of units proposed with those promoting the 
site and development management officers; and  

 Reviewed previous planning application/appeal decisions relevant 
to the site and the proposed form of development.  

How should the timescale and rate of development be assessed 
and presented? 

 Once the suitability, availability and achievability of sites have been 4.5.34
assessed, and any constraints identified, the likely timescale and rate 
of development for each site will be able to be assessed. This will be 
continuously updated throughout the Local Plan process and 
residential monitoring, with advice being sought from developers on 
likely timetables, progress made, and any further constraints which 
may arise.  The Council will consider following assumptions relating to 
lead-in times and build- out rates as reasonable and reflective of 
previous delivery and the nature of sites within the Borough. 

 In terms of estimating build out rates, for larger sites an individual 4.5.35
assessment on the expected length of time from commencement to 
completion will be made.  For sites of less than 20 units in the main, it 
will be assumed that these are completed within 1-2 years from 
commencement, dependant on individual site circumstances and 
housing type.  

 Other factors such as whether the development comprised a 4.5.36
conversion of an existing building will be considered when estimating 
time frames for delivery. 

 The timeframe periods refer to Year 1 being from April 2017. 4.5.37

Page 94

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 1



 Sites with Planning Permission 

 The NPPF indicates that sites with planning permission should be 4.5.38
considered deliverable until permission expires, unless there is clear 
evidence that schemes will not be implemented within 5 years. 

 It is reasonable to assume as a starting point lead in times of up to 1 4.5.39
year for sites with Full Permission/ Reserved Matters, up to 2 years for 
sites benefiting from Outline Permission and up to 3 years for pure 
opportunity sites without planning permission. However, factors such 
as site size, location of development, known legal matters and 
community support will also be taken into consideration. 

 On larger sites, where appropriate, the Council will consult directly with 4.5.40
land owners and developers, in order to obtain up to date delivery 
information about a site. Unless the Council has good reason not to do 
so, delivery forecast information received will be accepted. When no 
information is received, delivery information from previous years will be 
used to inform a delivery forecast. 

Sites without Planning Permission 

 PPG indicates that planning permission is not a prerequisite for a site 4.5.41
to be considered deliverable within five years. However, the Council 
will make a general assumption that sites without planning consent will 
not be delivered within five years unless there is evidence, including 
market signals to suggest otherwise. 

 Where significant constraints are identified, or sites appear to 4.5.42
represent a later phase of an adjacent development, it will be assumed 
to start delivery within 6-10 years or 11-15 years.   If an application is 
expected to be submitted within 12 months and / or has limited 
constraints it may be considered part of the 5 year land supply. 

 If sites are neither deliverable nor developable it will not be included 4.5.43
within the housing land supply figures. 

4.6 Stage 2b – Review of the assessment and classification of 
delivery 

Review of the assessment 

 Following the completion of the initial site appraisal stage, this initial 4.6.1
assessment will be subject to an ‘officer level review’.  In this the 
potential yield and timeframe for development will be subject to detail 
discussion by Officers from across the planning team. This discussion 
will examine each individual site deemed appropriate at that initial 
stage. 

 Officers will review the analysis of each site, namely, its 4.6.2
appropriateness for housing development, the density to which it could 
be developed and the yields that could be delivered. Officers will also 
evaluate any known constraints including availability. Financial viability 
will also be discussed. 

Page 95

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 1



 The above factors will be carefully considered to reach a judgment on 4.6.3
each site’s overall viability, deliverability and developability.  Taking 
these factors into consideration, Officers will be able to place them 
within the five year timeframes that comprise the SHLAA delivery 
periods. 

Classification of delivery 

 Once the suitability, availability and achievability of sites have been 4.6.4
established by Officers and any constraints identified, the likely 
timescale and rate of development for each site will be able to be 
assessed.  Table 5 below, provides a summary of the site assessment 
categories. 

 Sites falling within Category 4 will be ‘discounted’ from the SHLAA 4.6.5
whilst those within Categories 1-3 will form part of the Council’s 
identified housing land supply.  Category 1 being deliverable sites and 
Category 2 developable sites reflecting the definitions within the PPG 
to enable the preparation of the housing trajectory.  

Category Description 

1 

 

1-5yrs 

Site complies with the existing Core Strategy. 

 

Deliverable sites and will tended to be sites that were either already 
within the planning system, being under consideration or having planning 

permission, or otherwise committed to development. 

 

Also contains sites not currently within the planning process but known to 
be very likely to come forward with the next 5 years. 

 

2 

 

6-10yrs 

Site complies with the existing Core Strategy. 

 

Considered to have a high potential as future sources of housing land 
supply.  

 

These sites are not identified under Category 1 because there is some 
uncertainty over exactly when they would come forward. For example, 
the site does not benefit from planning permission but there have been 
recent interest (such as a call for site submission or a pre-application 

enquiry). 

 

The sites within Category 2 are considered to developable 

 

3 

 

11-15yrs + 

Site complies with the existing Core Strategy. 

 

Considered appropriate and viable potential sources of supply but where 
landowner aspirations (availability) are unclear. 

 

Sites falling within Category 3 are considered to be developable. 

Page 96

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 1



4 

 

Discounted from 
Housing Land 

Supply 

 

Sites are not suitable due to policy constraints and would be contrary to 
the existing Core Strategy and / or the site is not considered available 

and/ or achievable. 

 

Notably, this category incorporated those sites currently in use as open 
space provision (informal open spaces and allotments) and greenfield 

sites within the Green Belt.  

 

Some of these Category 5 sites may come forward naturally during the 
SHLAA period; in effect constituting an identified form of windfall supply. 

Table 5: Summary of SHLAA 2017 site assessment categories   

4.7 Stage 3 – Windfall Sites  

 Paragraph 48 of the NPPF states that local planning authorities may 4.7.1
make an allowance for windfall sites in the five-year supply if they have 
compelling evidence that such sites have consistently become 
available in the local area and will continue to provide a reliable source 
of supply.  Any allowance should be realistic having regard to the 
historic windfall delivery rates and expected future trends, and should 
not include residential gardens. 

 The Council is committed to monitoring its approach to windfall 4.7.2
development and does so on an on-going basis.   To date the Council 
has not relied on a windfall allowance within its housing trajectory or 
land supply figures. 

 Depending upon the outcomes of the SHLAA, the Council may have to 4.7.3
consider whether a windfall allowance within the trajectory is 
appropriate. 

4.8 Stage 4: Assessment Review 

Review Assessment and prepare trajectory 

 The development potential of all sites can be collected to produce a 4.8.1
trajectory.  This should outline how much housing land can be 
provided, and at what point in the future.  This will be against the tested 
Core Strategy 2007 housing targets and against the OAHN figure 
identified within the SHMA 2016. 

 An overall risk assessment will be undertaken as to whether sites will 4.8.2
come forward as anticipated.  Going forward beyond this assessment, 
the database of sites will be used for future monitoring of land 
availability. 

 If insufficient sites within the built-up area have been identified to meet 4.8.3
the tested Core Strategy 2007 housing targets, then the Council will 
need to revisit the assumptions. This could potentially range from 
reviewing density assumptions to the consideration of alternative 
planning policy options that could have the potential to increase the 
supply of housing land.  

Page 97

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 1



 A similar exercise will need to be undertaken to identify where there 4.8.4
are sufficient sites within the within the built –up area to meet the 
OAHN figure.  Following this secondary review if there are insufficient 
sites, it may be necessary for the Council to revisit the parameters of 
the methodology to investigate how to potentially plan for this shortfall.   

 A cautious approach will need to be undertaken as the needs figure is 4.8.5
untested and this ‘raw’ figure does not take into consideration other 
constraints to delivery such as infrastructure provision.  

 The Council will need to consider whether it will be appropriate to meet 4.8.6
any forthcoming shortfall through other means, in consultation with 
surrounding authorities and other relevant stakeholders.  It is likely this 
will be through the Council determining whether exceptional 
circumstances exist to necessitate a change in the Spatial Strategy. 

4.9 Stage 5: Final Evidence Base 

Data Outputs 

 Following the Call for Sites exercise and the site assessment process, 4.9.1
the Council will publish a findings report which will include: 

 A list and map of all sites. 

 An assessment14 of each site, covering its suitability for 
development, availability and achievability. This assessment will 
determine whether a site is realistically expected to be developed 
and the timeframe for any such development, or reasons why a site 
has been discounted for future development.  This is summarised 
by the classification of the site.  The potential type and quantity of 
residential development which could be delivered on each site or 
broad location. This will include an estimate of build out rates as 
well as any barriers to delivery which may be needed to be 
overcome; and 

 A housing trajectory of the estimated delivery of the potential 
development. 

Monitoring 

 Once the site assessments have been collated into a portfolio this will 4.9.2

be used to continuously monitor sites.  As part of the Annual 
Monitoring Report (AMR) the Council will publish the Housing 
Trajectory and 5 year Housing Land Supply. 

Five Year Land Supply 

 NPPF requires local planning authorities to identify and maintain a 4.9.3
rolling five-year supply of deliverable housing land. The assessment of 

                                            
14

 The publication of the site assessment forms will depend on the initial land supply position 
and whether the assumptions, in particular those in relation to suitability need to be reviewed. 

Page 98

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 1



this supply is a material consideration in the determination of 
residential planning applications and helps to ensure that the housing 
needs of the local area are met over the life of the plan period. 

 A five year land supply calculation will be produced against the current 4.9.4
adopted (tested) Core Strategy housing target and against the OAHN 
(untested) figure identified in the SHMA 2016. 

 This information will be updated on an annual basis to reflect any new 4.9.5
sites that become available and any change in circumstance with 
existing sites. It may be updated throughout the year if necessary, but 
as required by the PPG, this annually produced report provides the 
Council’s position on the five year land supply position for the year 
from 1st April 2017. 

  

Page 99

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 1



5 Next Steps 

5.1 Following the completion of the SHLAA 

 As outlined in the methodology, the role of the SHLAA is to provide 5.1.1
initial information on the range of sites which are available, but it is for 
the development plan itself to determine which of those sites are the 
most suitable to meet those needs.  Once, the SHLAA is completed, its 
findings, including the indicative 5 year trajectory will be cross-
referenced with the outcomes of the SHMA. 

 The ability of the SHLAA to identify sufficient housing land15, will 5.1.2
determine the path of the Epsom and Ewell development plan and the 
partial review of the Core Strategy.  Notwithstanding this unknown, 
what is certain is that the use of the SHLAA and the process for any 
allocation or designation will be the same.   

 The SHLAA is the initial stage in identification and consideration of 5.1.3

sites for potential allocation or designation.  Those sites identified as 
being deliverable and developable will be subject to further 
consideration, the next steps being a consideration of site options 
which involves a detailed Sustainability Assessment. 

 

 

                                            
15

 Considered to be deliverable and developable against the housing target and the identified, 
albeit untested OAHN need figure. 

Page 100

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 1



6 Appendix 1: Call for Sites Letter and E-Form 

 

 

 

 

 

Epsom & Ewell SHLAA 2017 Call for Sites Form 

We have begun a review of our Local Plan evidence base documents to 
inform an update to the Spatial Strategy for Epsom & Ewell.  This will guide 
future development over the next plan period up to 2035.  As part of this 
process, we are undertaking a formal call for sites.  The call for sites will help 
identify land within the Borough that may have potential for development over 
this period.   

You can submit sites for any type of future use such as new homes, 
employment, retail and community facilities. We will review these sites as part 
of any forthcoming local plan site allocations. 

We will consider sites submitted for new homes as part of our Strategic 
Housing Land Availability Assessment (SHLAA). The SHLAA will be part of 
our evidence base, documenting our housing land supply to 2035. 

Submitting a Site 

Sites can be submitted using the 'Call for Sites’ 2017 E- Form available on our 
website at: insert link or alternatively through our Consultation Portal available 
at: http://consult.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/portal.  Please complete the sections 
that are relevant to the specific site you are submitting to us. 

In order for a site to be considered, the completed E- Form and a site plan 
(1:1,250 or 1:2,500 in scale) with the boundaries of the site clearly outlined 
must both be submitted together as attachments in an email to LDF@epsom-
ewell.gov.uk  by 17:00 on 24 March 2017. 

Important: Before completing the form, please read the following guidance 
notes.  

 We will consider all sites submitted as part of the SHLAA process. We 
cannot treat the information you submit as confidential  

 Only sites proposing five or more (net) new homes should be submitted  

 Please complete the call for sites E-form in as much detail as possible.  

 Please sign and date the form.  

 Attach an up to date Ordnance Survey based map at 1:1250 or 1:2500 
outlining the precise boundaries of the site and the part that you think is 

Planning Policy 

Epsom and Ewell Borough Council 

Town Hall 

The Parade 

Epsom 

Surrey 

KT18 5BY 

01372 732000 

LDF@epsom-ewell.gov.uk 

Page 101

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 1

http://consult.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/portal
mailto:LDF@epsom-ewell.gov.uk
mailto:LDF@epsom-ewell.gov.uk
mailto:LDF@epsom-ewell.gov.uk


suitable for new homes (if this is not the whole site area). Without this 
mapped information we are unable to register the site 

 Use a separate form for each site you submit 

 Please do not submit sites that already have planning permission for 
development unless a new and different proposal is likely in the future.  

Please note that even if land is identified in our SHLAA as having potential for 
housing development, this does not indicate or confirm that we will allocate 
the site for development or that we will grant planning permission in the future.  

If you should have any queries regarding our call for sites, please contact the 
Planning Policy Team at LDF@epsom-ewell.gov.uk  

Are your details correct? 

To keep up to date on progress with our Local Plan and to be notified when a 
consultation is taking place you can register and manage your details using 
our Consultation Portal available at: http://consult.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/portal . 

If you no longer wish to be contacted, you can opt to receive no 
communication by changing your settings in the Portal or alternatively please 
advise us via email to LDF@epsom-ewell.gov.uk and your details will be 
removed from our Consultation Database. 

Thank you for your continuing engagement in the Local Plan making process. 

Yours sincerely, 

 

 

 

Mark Berry 

Head of Place Development  

Page 102

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 1

mailto:LDF@epsom-ewell.gov.uk
http://consult.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/portal
mailto:LDF@epsom-ewell.gov.uk


 

Call for Sites Form 

Please return completed questionnaires to the Planning Policy Team. 
 

Contact Details: 

 

Email LDF@epsom-ewell.gov.uk  

 

Whilst we recognise that it may not be possible to supply 
all the requested information please enter as much 
information as possible. 

 

Section 1: Your Contact Details 

Name / organisation: 

 

 

Representing (if applicable): 

 

 

Address and postcode:  

 

 

 

Phone:  

 

Email:  

 

Are you the owner of the site?  

If you are not the owner, please state your personal 
interest in the site (e.g. land agent, planning consultant, 

developer, registered social landlord or other (please 
state)) 

 

 

Section 2: Site Details 

Site Address & postcode:  

Site Co-ordinates:  

Please provide a scale map (typically 1:1250 or 1:2500) showing the site / location of the 
proposal with the site edged clearly with a red line) 

Estimated area of site (ha): Entire site area:  

Area suitable for 
development: 

 

Number of on-site ownerships?  

Has this site been nominated in previous 
call for site exercises? If yes, please 

provide details. 

 

Page 103

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 1

mailto:LDF@epsom-ewell.gov.uk


Current use:  

What is the number of existing houses 
located on the site, if any? 

 

Is the site Greenfield, Brownfield 
(previously developed land) or a mix? If it 
is a mix, please provide approximate area 

that is Brownfield land (ha) 

 

 

Section 3: Proposed Use of Site 

Proposed use: 

Housing / other (please state) 

 

Proposed housing type: Proposed housing type Estimated number 
of units 

Market housing  

Affordable housing  

Starter homes  

Sheltered housing  

Residential institutions with 
care (C2) use 

 

Live/ work units  

Other, please specify  

Overall total of estimated no. 
dwellings proposed 

 

Other uses Detailed Use Type Estimate for floor 
space (m²) 

Employment: Office  

Light industry  

General industry  

Storage / distribution  

Other, please specify  

Retail, leisure or community uses: Shops  

Food/ drink establishments  

Leisure  

Community facilities  

Other, please specify  

Suitable Alternative Natural 
Greenspace (SANG): 

  

Other, please specify 

 

  

 

Section 4: Delivery details 

Is there Developer Interest in the site (if 
yes, please specify?) 

 

When will the site become available for 
development? 

 

Within 5 years (2017-2022) 

Within 6 – 10 years (2022 – 2027) 

Within 11 – 15 years (2027 – 2032) 

 

Page 104

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 1



Will the development need to be phased? 
If so, please provide details of likely 

phasing. 

 

 

Section 5: Possible Constraints 

Are there any limitations that may restrict the development of this site? (Please provide 
brief details) 

Suitability 

Access:  

Limitations, or potential problems relating to 
site access 

 

Topography/ Ground Conditions: 

Site slopes, varying site levels etc 

 

Vegetation and Tree Cover: 

Extent, age and species of vegetation and tree 
cover 

 

Contamination/ Pollution/ Hazards: 

Previous hazardous uses, unstable potentially 
contaminated structures 

 

Flood Risk: 

Site’s liability to flooding – see Environment 
Agency website at  

http://maps.environment-
agency.gov.uk/wiyby/wiybyController?topic=flo
odmap&layerGroups=default&lang=_e&ep=m

ap&scale=7&x=531500&y=181500  

 

Environmental Constraints: 

Potential impacts upon local landscape/ 
townscape character, including loss of tree 

cover, impact upon character of the area, loss 
of open space 

 

Planning Policy Constraints: 

Current adopted policy for the site, impacts 
upon adjoining designations or protected 

areas including SSSIs, Conservation Areas, 
Local Nature Reserves – see the proposals 

map at  

http://www.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/map-planning  

 

Availability 

Ownership status: 

Is the site owned by a developer or is the 
owner willing to sell? 

 

Legal or ownership Issues: 

Ownership/ multiple ownership, tenancies 
constraints on the site that might prohibit or 

delay development of the site (e.g. third party 
access rights, unresolved multiple ownerships 

or covenants)? 

 

Land acquisition or relocation of uses: 

Must land off site be acquired to develop the 
site? Are there any current uses which need to 

be relocated? 

 

 

Achievability 

Page 105

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 1

http://maps.environment-agency.gov.uk/wiyby/wiybyController?topic=floodmap&layerGroups=default&lang=_e&ep=map&scale=7&x=531500&y=181500
http://maps.environment-agency.gov.uk/wiyby/wiybyController?topic=floodmap&layerGroups=default&lang=_e&ep=map&scale=7&x=531500&y=181500
http://maps.environment-agency.gov.uk/wiyby/wiybyController?topic=floodmap&layerGroups=default&lang=_e&ep=map&scale=7&x=531500&y=181500
http://maps.environment-agency.gov.uk/wiyby/wiybyController?topic=floodmap&layerGroups=default&lang=_e&ep=map&scale=7&x=531500&y=181500
http://www.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/map-planning


Abnormal development Costs: 

Are there any known significant abnormal 
development costs (e.g. contamination, 
remediation, demolition, access etc.)? 

 

Infrastructure Requirements: 

Does the site require significant new 
infrastructure investment to be suitable for 

development? 

 

Viability Constraints: 

Are there any issues that may influence the 
economic viability or timing of the 

development? 

 

Other Considerations: 

Please specify 

 

Do you believe that the above on-site constraints could be overcome? 

(Please provide brief details) 

 

 

 

Section 6: Additional Information 

Is there any additional information relating to the site that would help us with our 
assessment? 

 

 

Page 106

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 1



7 Appendix 2: SHLAA 2017 Site Survey Form 

REF NO: xxx 

Address:  

 

 

OS Grid ref:  Site Area 
(Ha): 

 

Net Site 
Area (Ha): 

 

Ownership:  

 

 

Existing land use:  

Neighbouring land uses:  

 Brownfield 

 

Greenfield 

 

Vacant 

 

 

Location 

(Tick all that apply) 

Note: Will help to identify 
whether site is in a 
sustainable location 

 Built up area                                               

 Within 800m of town centre                        

 Green Belt      

Town centre 

                                

 Within 800m of 

local centre 

 Within 800m of 

train station 

 Open Space 

 

Other: 
……………………………………………………………………………… 

 

Call for Sites Information: 

Date: 

 

 

Summary of 
submission: 

 

 

 

Accessibility:  
 

Accessibility of site to key public services using public transport:  

…………………………….…………………………………….……………………………………… 

Proximity to local centres: 

….............................................................................................................................................. 

Page 107

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 1



How well the site is served by cycle / footpaths? 

…….................................................................................................……………………………. 
 

Environmental Considerations: 

Is site in flood zone 2/3? (using Environment Agency maps)   Yes             No 

Is the site vulnerable to other sources of flooding? (using information 
derived from the Strategic Flood Risk Assessment) 

 Yes             No 

Is the site contaminated / potentially contaminated? (advice from the 
Council’s Contaminated Land Officer)  

 Yes             No 

Does the site contain any notable biodiversity features?  Yes             No 

Is the site near an AQMA?  Yes             No 

Is the site in an area of open space deficiency? (using information 
from the Open Space Study) 

 Yes             No 

Are there any local road safety issues?  Yes             No 

Details / comments: 

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………. 

 

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

 

Distance of site from nearest SPA / SAC:   < 5km  5 to 10 km  

10km+ 

 

Heritage Considerations: 

Is the site in a conservation area / area of special character?  Yes              No 

Does the site contain any listed buildings?  Yes              No 

Is the site in an area of potential archaeological interest?  Yes              No 

Details / Comments: 

…………………………………………………………………………………………….……………… 

……………………………………………………………………………………………….…………… 

 

General: 

Details of planning 
history (including pre-
application enquiries: 

 

 

Development 
Management Officer 
comments: 

 

 

Highways comments:  

Page 108

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 1



Contaminated Land 
Officer comments: 

 

 

 

Additional issues to consider (not all may be relevant) 

 Could any existing buildings on site be re used? 

 What are the housing needs of the Borough (type of housing / affordability)?  

 Would the provision of live work units be suitable on this site? 

 What would the impact on infrastructure be? 

 Potential impacts SPA / SAC (further consideration drawing on Appropriate 
Assessment) 

 Could improvements be made to biodiversity? 

 Could improvements be made to road safety? 

 Could improvements be made to reducing crime or fear of crime? 

 

 

 

 

 

Difficulty in bringing site forward for development (1 to 5 rating)?  

(1 being fairly straightforward, 5 being the most difficult) 

Likely timeframe for development:  2017-2022       2022 - 2027        2027-2032 

Conclusions as to use of site: 

Appropriate 
density for the 
site: 

 Number of units 
site is likely to 
provide: 

 

 

 

 

Affordable 
housing 
provision  

(% or no of 
units): 

 Appropriate type 
of dwellings (e.g. 

flats / family homes / 
student accommodation / 
Starter homes/ Self 
build, sheltered 
accommodation) 

 

 

Other comments / conclusions: 

 

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

 

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

 

 

Page 109

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 1



8 Appendix 3: Site Availability Confirmation Letter 

 

 

Date  Contact Mrs Rachael Thorold 

  Direct line 01372 732 3690 

Your Ref    

Our Ref: Site Availability Confirmation Email LDF@epsom-ewell.gov.uk 

 

Dear Sir, 

As you may be aware, we have begun a review of our Local Plan evidence 
base documents to inform an update to the Spatial Strategy for Epsom & 
Ewell.  This will guide future development over the next plan period up to 
2035.  As part of this process we are reviewing the supply of housing land 
across the Borough. 

The following site, [insert site names] has previously been identified as 
having potential for housing in the [Strategic Housing Land Available 
Assessment (SHLAA) 2009].   

To assist in the preparation of a housing trajectory setting out the number of 
new homes expected to be delivered each year within the Borough we are 
updating the SHLAA.  In conjunction with a call for new sites we are 
contacting the relevant land owners and agents of previously identified sites 
that have yet to come forward to establish whether they remain available and 
deliverable within the next plan period.   

To confirm the availability of your site and likely timeframes for the delivery of 
new homes please complete and return the enclosed form.  Completed forms 
should be emailed to LDF@epsom-ewell.gov.uk by [insert date] 2017. 

If you are unable to provide this information we will conclude that your 
site is no longer deliverable within the plan period and it will be 
discounted from our land supply. 

 

 

 

 

 

Town Hall 

The Parade 

Epsom 

Surrey 

KT18 5BY 

Main Number (01372) 732000 

www.epsom-ewell.gov.uk 

DX 30713 Epsom 

Page 110

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 1

mailto:LDF@epsom-ewell.gov.uk


Please note that even if land is identified in our SHLAA as having potential for 
housing development, this does not indicate or confirm that we will allocate 
the site for development or that we will grant planning permission in the future. 

Are your details correct? 

To keep up to date on progress with our Local Plan and to be notified when a 
consultation is taking place you can register to be on our consultation 
database by emailing your details to LDF@epsom-ewell.gov.uk . 

If you wish to update your details or no longer wish to be contacted, please 
advise us via email and your details will be removed from our consultation 
database. 

Thank you for your continuing engagement in the Local Plan making process. 

 

Yours sincerely, 

 

 

  

Mark Berry 

Page 111

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 1

mailto:LDF@epsom-ewell.gov.uk


9 Appendix 4: Site Availability Confirmation Form 

 

 

Site Availability Confirmation 

 

To provide us with information relating to the status of the site and likely timeframes 
for the delivery of new homes please complete and return this form using the 
enclosed pre-paid envelope. 

 

Failure to provide this information may lead us to conclude that the site is no 
longer deliverable within the plan period and will be discounted from our land 
supply.  Please note that even if land is identified in our SHLAA as having 
potential for housing development, this does not indicate or confirm that we 
will allocate the site for development or that we will grant planning permission 
in the future. 

Contact Details 

Name / organisation  

Representing (if applicable)  

Address and postcode  

Phone  

Email  

Are you the owner of the site?  

If you are not the owner, please state 
your interest in the site  

(e.g. land agent, planning consultant, 
developer, registered social landlord 
or other (please state)) 

 

Site Details 

Page 112

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 1



Site Address  

Postcode   

Proposed Use of the Site 

Housing 
Type 

Market 
housing 

Affordable 
housing 

Starter 
homes 

Sheltered 
housing 

Residential 
institutions 
with care 
(C2) use 

Live/ 
work 
units 

Other, 
please 
specify 

Number 
of Units 

       

Availability  

Is the site owned by a developer or is the owner in a 
position to dispose of the site? 

 

Are there any ownership/ multiple ownership, tenancies 
constraints on the site that might prohibit or delay 
development of the site (e.g. third party access rights, 
unresolved multiple ownerships or covenants)? 

 

Is there need for land acquisition or relocation of uses (e.g. 
must land off site be acquired to develop the site? Are 
there any current uses which need to be relocated)? 

 

Delivery Details 

Is a developer involved?  If yes, please specify.  

When will planning permission be sought for the 
development? 

 

When will new homes be delivered? 

Within 5 years (2017-2022) 

Within 6 – 10 years (2022 – 2027) 

Within 11 – 15 years (2027 – 2032) 

After 15 years (beyond 2032) 

 

Will the development need to be phased? If so, please  

Page 113

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 1



provide details of likely phasing.  

Are there any known significant abnormal development 
costs  

(e.g. contamination, remediation, demolition, access etc.)? 

 

 

 

To your understanding will the site require investment in 
new infrastructure to be suitable for development?  Please 
specify the nature and scale of infrastructure investment 
required and how you have arrived at this conclusion. 

 

 

Are there any issues that may influence the economic 
viability or timing of the development? 

 

 

Are there any other considerations? Please specify.  

 

 

Page 114

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 1



 

  

 

Epsom & Ewell Borough Council 

June 2017 

Epsom & Ewell Local Plan – Strategic Housing 
Land Availability Assessment: Findings Report 

Page 115

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 2



Contents 

Contents .............................................................................................................................. 2 

Disclaimer ............................................................................................................................ 3 

1 Introduction ................................................................................................................. 4 

 Purpose ........................................................................................................ 4 1.1

 What is a Strategy Housing Land Availability Assessment? ......................... 4 1.2

 Duty to Co-operate ....................................................................................... 5 1.3

 Questions ..................................................................................................... 6 1.4

2 The Policy Context ...................................................................................................... 7 

 National Planning Policy Framework ............................................................ 7 2.1

 Planning Practice Guidance ......................................................................... 7 2.2

 The Five Year Land Supply .......................................................................... 8 2.3

 The Housing Trajectory ................................................................................ 8 2.4

 Alternative Sources of Housing Supply ......................................................... 9 2.5

 Constraints Study 2017 ................................................................................ 9 2.6

 Green Belt Study 2017 ................................................................................. 9 2.7

3 Epsom & Ewell’s Housing Land Supply .................................................................. 11 

 Committed Residual Developments............................................................ 11 3.1

 Sources of SHLAA Sites ............................................................................. 11 3.2

 Site Availability Confirmation (SAC) Responses ......................................... 13 3.3

 Review of Previous SHLAA Sites ............................................................... 15 3.4

 Summary of Discounted Sites .................................................................... 17 3.5

4 Meeting Epsom & Ewell’s Housing Target and Assessed Housing Need ............. 19 

 Five Year Land Supply and Housing Trajectory .......................................... 19 4.1

 Land Supply Buffers and Non-implementation Discount Rates ................... 19 4.2

 Windfall Allowance Calculation ................................................................... 20 4.3

 Meeting Epsom & Ewell’s Existing Housing Target ..................................... 21 4.4

 Meeting Epsom & Ewell’s Objectively Assessed Housing Need Figure ...... 22 4.5

5 Conclusions and Next Steps .................................................................................... 25 

 Conclusions ................................................................................................ 25 5.1

 Next Steps .................................................................................................. 25 5.2

Appendix 1: Detailed Housing Trajectory against Objectively Assessed Housing Need 
Figure ................................................................................................................................. 27 

Appendix 2: Housing Sites Under Construction as of 1 April 2017 ............................... 30 

Appendix 3: Housing Sites Not Yet Implemented as of 1 April 2017 ............................. 33 

Appendix 4: SHLAA Opportunity Sites by Ward ............................................................. 37 

Appendix 5: Definition of Key Terms ............................................................................... 41 

 

  

Page 116

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 2



Disclaimer 

The policy context for the Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment (SHLAA) 
is set out in the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and Planning Practice 
Guidance (PPG). In accordance with paragraph 158 of the NPPF Local Planning 
Authorities (LPAs) should ensure that the Local Plan is based on adequate, up-to-
date and relevant evidence about the economic, social and environmental 
characteristics and prospects of the area. LPAs should ensure that their assessment 
of and strategies for housing, employment and other uses are integrated, and that 
they take full account of relevant market and economic signals. 

The Government views SHLAAs as “a key component of the evidence base to 
support the delivery of sufficient land for housing to meet the community’s need for 
more homes”. The NPPF, (para.159) requires local authorities to “prepare a 
Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment to establish realistic assumptions 
about the availability, suitability and the likely economic viability of land to meet the 
identified need for housing over the plan period”. 

The SHLAA does not allocate sites for housing; that is done through more detailed 
planning assessment and consultation, and is a separate process carried out as part 
of any forthcoming Local Plan document to determine which sites should be 
identified for development and according to which timescale. 

In relation to the information contained within this report, its appendices and any 
other forthcoming report relating to the findings of the SHLAA, the identification of 
potential sites, buildings or areas in the SHLAA does not state or imply that the 
Council would necessarily grant planning permission for development. All planning 
applications will continue to be determined against the appropriate development plan 
and other relevant material considerations. 

The conclusions in the SHLAA will be based on information that was available at the 
time of the study and the Council does not accept liability for any factual inaccuracies 
or omissions. The information will be a snapshot of the data captured for SHLAA 
sites submitted at a point in time. Information will be compiled with all due care and 
attention, however inevitably discrepancies may occur. The SHLAA document 
should therefore be considered as a ‘live’ one that will be updated. 

The boundaries to sites, buildings and areas will be based on the information made 
available at the time by agents and landowners.  The SHLAA does not limit any 
amendment of these boundaries for the purpose of a planning application. 

Page 117

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 2



1 Introduction  

 Purpose 1.1

 The Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment (LAA) is an evidence 1.1.1
base document with the key role of identifying sites that have the potential to 
come forward for housing development in the future.  The document 
considers the capacity of sites and when they could potentially be developed. 

 The purpose of this document is to report on the findings of the Council’s 1.1.2
Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment 2017.  Furthermore, it 
provides the wider context as to why the assessment was undertaken and its 
role within the Local Plan making process.  The report supports the Council’s 
Annual’s Monitoring Report (AMR) process including the preparation of its 
Housing Trajectory and Five Year Land Supply.  

 The SHLAA in conjunction with other key evidence studies (such as the 1.1.3
Strategic Housing Market Assessment) will inform the direction of the partial 
review of the Core Strategy and the preparation of options to respond to the 
objectively assessed needs for the period 2015-2032.   

 This report considers the potential future supply of land likely to be available 1.1.4
for development over the current plan period of 2007-2026 and the 
forthcoming plan period 2015-2032.  

 This assessment has been carried out between January and June 2017 and 1.1.5
updates information contained within the previous Epsom and Ewell Strategic 
Housing Land Availability Assessment (2009). 

 The finding of this report and its appendices should be read in conjunction 1.1.6
with the following addendums  

 Addendum 1: SHLAA Sites Ward Maps (Nos.1-12)  

 What is a Strategy Housing Land Availability Assessment? 1.2

 Epsom and Ewell Borough Council has prepared an update to its Strategy 1.2.1
Housing Land Availability Assessment (SHLAA) for the Borough as part of the 
review of the Local Plan evidence base.  The purpose of the SHLAA is to: 

 Identify sites with the potential for future residential development; 

 Assess their development potential; and 

 Assess their suitability for development and the likelihood of development 
coming forward (their availability and achievability). 

 The SHLAA considered the potential future supply of land likely to be 1.2.2
available for residential (bricks and mortar) development over the next plan 
period up to 2032. Although this assessment makes a judgement about the 
developability of particular sites for development, it is based on a number of 
assumptions and does not in any way prejudge any planning applications that 
may be received on individual sites.  The inclusion or otherwise of a site 
within this assessment does not in itself determine whether a site should be 
developed.   

 The main outcomes from the SHLAA are: 1.2.3

Page 118

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 2



 an assessment1 of each site, in terms of its suitability for  development, 
availability and achievability (including whether the site is viable) to 
determine whether a site is realistically expected to be developed and 
when; 

 more details for those sites which are considered to be realistic 
candidates for development, where others have been discounted from the 
land supply figures for clearly evidenced and justified reasons; 

 a list of all sites considered, cross-referenced to their locations on maps; 

 the potential quantity of residential development that could be delivered 
on each site/broad location, including a reasonable estimate of build out 
rates; and 

 a housing trajectory of anticipated development and consideration of 
associated risks against delivery of the Core Strategy target and the 
OAHN2 figure. 

 The assessment is an important evidence source to inform plan making, but 1.2.4
does not in itself determine whether a site should be allocated for 
development. It is the role of the assessment to provide information on the 
range of sites which are available to meet need, but it is for the development 
plan itself to determine which of those sites are the most suitable to meet 
those needs. 

 Whilst the overall approach to the SHLAA methodology has been largely 1.2.5
predetermined by Planning Practice Guidance (PPG), the Council has 
considered the finer details of each of the PPG stages of the assessment to 
ensure that local circumstances are reflected.  

 Full details of the methodology including details of the Call For Sites and Site 1.2.6
Availability Confirmation exercises have been set out within the Epsom & 
Ewell Strategy Housing Land Availability Assessment- Methodology (June 
2017), available to view on the Council’s website.  The methodology also 
includes details of as the Council’s assumptions in relation to site 
assessments, development capacities and forecasting delivery. 

 It should be noted that the SHLAA relates solely to bricks and mortar 1.2.7
accommodation.  The Council has undertaken a separate assessment in 
relation to the needs and land availability for our Gypsy and Traveller 
communities. 

 Duty to Co-operate 1.3

 Section 33A of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, as inserted 1.3.1
by section 110 of the Localism Act 2011, introduced a duty to cooperate in 
relation to the planning of sustainable development.  The duty requires the 
Borough Council to co-operate with other local planning authorities and other 
public bodies in preparing and developing their Local Plan so far as it relates 

                                            

1
 Site assessment forms are not to be published due to confidentiality and the land supply position 

requiring a review of the assumptions, in particular in relation to suitability. 

2
 Objectively Assessed Housing Need figure as produced by the Strategic Housing Market 

Assessment (2016). 

Page 119

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 2



to a strategic matter.  This could include the development of large sites close 
to authority borders or the cumulative impact of development on 
infrastructure. 

 The duty is an important element in the strategic planning functions and one 1.3.2
that builds on the Council’s existing approach of engagement and partnership 
working. Work undertaken as part of the Council’s duty to co-operate on 
strategic issues as part of the review of the Local Plan evidence base will be 
recorded. 

 The draft methodology for the SHLAA has been subject to a Duty to Co-1.3.3
operate consultation exercise in February 2017.  All comments received have 
been recorded and representations have been taken into consideration.  
Following consultation there were no significant changes proposed to the 
methodology.  The Council will continue to engage on this report and if sites 
progress through the Local Plan process, on those where there could be 
cross-boundary issues. 

 Questions  1.4

 If you have any questions relating to the Strategic Housing Land Availability 1.4.1
Assessment and how the sites were assessed please contact the Planning 
Policy Team on:  
LDF@epsom-ewell.gov.uk   

Page 120

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 2

mailto:LDF@epsom-ewell.gov.uk


2 The Policy Context 

 National Planning Policy Framework 2.1

 The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) requires LPAs (Local 2.1.1
Planning Authorities) to establish realistic assumption about the suitability, 
availability and likely economic viability of land to meet the identified need for 
housing over the plan period.  The SHLAA is therefore a fundamental 
component of the Local Plan evidence base to support development land 
delivery within the Borough. 

 In accordance with paragraph 158 of the NPPF, LPAs should ensure that the 2.1.2
Local Plan is based on adequate, up-to-date and relevant evidence about the 
economic, social and environmental characteristics and prospects of the area. 
LPAs should ensure that their assessment of and strategies for housing, 
employment and other uses are integrated, where appropriate, and that they 
take full account of relevant market and economic signals. 

 The Government views SHLAAs as “a key component of the evidence base 2.1.3
to support the delivery of sufficient land for housing to meet the community’s 
need for more homes”. The NPPF (para.159) requires local authorities to 
“prepare a Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment to establish 
realistic assumptions about the availability, suitability and the likely economic 
viability of land to meet the identified need for housing over the plan period”. 

 LPAs need to ensure that their Local Plans meet the ‘full, objectively 2.1.4
assessed needs for market and affordable housing in the housing market 
area’, identifying and updating annually a supply of deliverable sites sufficient 
to provide 5 years’ worth of housing with an additional buffer of 5% to ensure 
choice and competition. Where there is a persistent record of under delivery 
(which is not defined in more detail) an additional 20% buffer is required. 
Beyond the first 5 years the NPPF requires local authorities to ‘identify 
specific, developable sites or broad locations for growth, for 6-10 years and, 
where possible, for years 11-15’. 

 Planning Practice Guidance 2.2

 The Government's Planning Practice Guidance (PPG), launched in March 2.2.1
2014, offers practical guidance to support the NPPF.  The section on Housing 
and Economic Land Availability Assessments sets out that the purpose of 
such an assessment is to identify a future supply of land which is suitable, 
available and achievable for housing and economic development uses over 
the plan period. The assessment of land availability includes the SHLAA 
requirements as set out in the NPPF.   

 The PPG indicates what inputs and processes should lead to a robust 2.2.2
assessment of land availability and that plan makers should have regard to 
the guidance in preparing their assessments. Where they depart from the 
guidance, plan makers will have to set out reasons for doing so. The 
assessment should be thorough but proportionate, building where possible on 
existing information sources outlined within the guidance. 

Page 121

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 2



 The Five Year Land Supply  2.3

 As outlined above, the NPPF requires the LPA to achieve a five year – 2.3.1
housing land supply as measured against a local plan that is compliant with 
the NPPF.  Given the concerns relating to conformity with the NPPF the 
Council has taken steps to understand the Objectively Assessed Housing 
Need (OAHN) of the Borough and the wider Housing Market Area.  This takes 
the form of the joint Strategic Housing Market Assessment (SHMA) published 
2016. 

 The Council’s Annual Monitoring Reports (AMR) has demonstrated a strong 2.3.2
and consistent delivery against the Core Strategy housing targets.  The 
Housing AMR 15/16 indicates that against the current housing target, there is 
11.8 years of housing land supply (based on the findings of the SHLAA 2009, 
current allocations and outstanding planning permissions). 

 The PPG (paragraph 30 reference ID: 3-030-20140306) advises that 2.3.3
‘considerable weight should be given to the housing requirement figures of 
adopted Local Plan, which have successfully passed through the examination 
process, unless significant new evidence comes to light’.   

 Furthermore, where evidence in Local Plans has become outdated and 2.3.4
policies in emerging plans are not yet capable of carrying sufficient weight, 
information provided in the latest full assessment of housing needs should be 
considered. 

 Therefore, as part of the SHLAA 2017 a 5 year housing land supply 2.3.5
calculation has been undertaken against the updated (but untested) evidence 
on housing need from the SHMA.  Notwithstanding this, the guidance is clear, 
that the weight given to the identified housing need figure should take account 
of the fact that it has not been tested or moderated against the relevant 
constraints. 

 The Housing Trajectory  2.4

 The development potential of all sites can be collected to produce an 2.4.1
indicative trajectory.  This should outline how much housing can be provided 
and at what point in the future.  An overall risk assessment will be undertaken 
as to whether sites will come forward as anticipated.  Going forward beyond 
this assessment, the database of sites will be used for future monitoring of 
land availability. 

 If insufficient sites within the built up area have been identified to meet the 2.4.2
tested Core Strategy 2007 housing targets, then the Council will need to 
revisit the assumptions within the SHLAA methodology.  This would include 
reconsideration of discounted sites to establish if the reason(s) for being 
excluded from the housing land supply could be overcome. 

 In accordance with the PPG, the Council has assessed the land availability 2.4.3
against the updated OAHN (albeit untested) as published in the SHMA 2016.   
An additional Trajectory has been produced to consider the supply of sites 
throughout the period of 2015-2032.    

 Following this secondary review if there are insufficient sites it may be 2.4.4
necessary for the Council to revisit the assumptions within the SHLAA 
methodology and in consultation with surrounding authorities and other 

Page 122

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 2



relevant stakeholders, to consider whether it will be appropriate to meet this 
shortfall through other means. 

 Alternative Sources of Housing Supply 2.5

 Should the SHLAA findings indicate that the existing target and / or the 2.5.1
objectively assessed need for development cannot be met within the existing 
urban area, in accordance with the PPG; the Council will undertake analysis 
to consider the options or opportunities to increase capacity within the 
existing built up area of the Borough.   

 This could include reconsidering current policy approaches towards back land 2.5.2
gardens or revisiting density assumptions and land use swaps to meet any 
identified residual housing need.  If necessary, the findings of this analysis will 
likely take the form of an Alternative Sources of Housing Land Supply Paper. 

 Constraints Study 2017 2.6

 National planning policy states that local plans should meet objectively 2.6.1
assessed needs, with sufficient flexibility to adapt to rapid change, unless; 
there is any adverse impact of doing so that would significantly and 
demonstrably outweigh the benefit, when assessed against the policies within 
the Framework or where specific policies in the Framework indicate 
development should be restricted. 

 The national Planning Practice Guidance (ID:004-20140306) makes it clear 2.6.2
that whilst the establishment of development needs should be unbiased, how 
an authority meets that need must reflection on the relevant constraints 
including environmental constraints.  

 To ensure that the Council has taken necessary account of this and can 2.6.3
demonstrate that an appraisal of the constraints, relevant to the Borough, has 
been considered when arriving at development options; it is producing a 
Constraints Study.   The Study defines the ‘primary’ environmental constraints 
within Epsom & Ewell that would prevent development from taking place and 
where it would not be possible to mitigate impact. 

 As part of the SHLAA, the outputs of the Constraints Study have informed the 2.6.4
assessment of a site’s suitability for housing.  The study will also inform the 
work currently being undertaken on reviewing the performance of the 
Borough’s Green Belt designation. 

 Green Belt Study 2017 2.7

 Alongside the SHMA, the Council has undertaken a review of the 2.7.1
performance the Green Belt.   The purpose of the Green Belt Study (GBS) is 
to provide evidence of how different areas perform against the Green Belt 
purposes as set out within the National Planning Policy Framework relevant 
to Epsom & Ewell.   

 The GBS is a technical evidence base document that provides an objective 2.7.2
assessment of the designated Metropolitan Green Belt located within the 
Borough boundary.  The assessment includes the identification of the Broad 
Areas of the Green Belt within the Borough and smaller Local Areas (referred 
to as Refined Parcels) based on function and boundary features.   

Page 123

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 2



 The study also assessed discrete parcels of land immediately adjoining the 2.7.3
defined Green Belt boundary for their suitability for inclusion within the Green 
Belt.  In order to achieve a completely objective assessment, the GBS took a 
‘policy off’ approach. 

 Further work is due to be commissioned which, informed by the Constraints 2.7.4
Study 2017, will provide a refined review of the Borough’s Green Belt.   

 This would include a comprehensive ‘policy on’ assessment of the Green Belt 2.7.5
to enable the identification of areas of land not affected by constraints that 
would prevent development taking place as well as locations where it’s would 
not be possible to mitigate impacts. In addition, it is expected this work will 
assess in further detail the robustness of the Refined Parcels boundaries and 
those non-green belt sites identified as well as the potential cumulative 
implications of any amendments to the existing Green Belt boundary.  

 This further assessment along with other key evidence base documents will 2.7.6
inform any forthcoming consideration of whether exceptional circumstances 
exist to amend the Green Belt boundary.  This could include removal and/ or 
additions to the same. 

Page 124

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 2



3 Epsom & Ewell’s Housing Land Supply 

 Committed Residual Developments 3.1

 Existing housing commitments in the Borough equates to 430 new dwellings, 3.1.1
this comprises 253 residential units currently under construction and a further 
177 units committed by virtue of planning permissions that are yet to be 
implemented. These sites are listed by electoral Ward within Appendix 2 &3. 

 Sites with an outstanding unimplemented planning permission were 3.1.2
reconsidered to determine whether the site is likely to be delivered. 

 Sources of SHLAA Sites   3.2

 In line with the SHLAA methodology, the Council undertook a desktop review 3.2.1
to search for sites and was proactive in identifying as wide a range as 
possible of sites for residential development.  These are outlined below and 
summarised in Table1 below. 

Review of Previous SHLAA Sites 

 The previous SHLAA 2009 surveyed and assessed a total 316 sites.  Over 70 3.2.2
of these sites have now come forward. Those sites with an estimated capacity 
below the SHLAA threshold of 5 or more net units were also removed (64 in 
total).  There were 205 sites that had not come forward since the 2009 
SHLAA was published.  Of these, 171 sites were not included in any previous 
housing land supply figures. 

 The SHLAA reassessed all of the remaining sites to ensure that individual site 3.2.3
assessments were up to date as policy and circumstances may have 
changed since the 2009 publication.  For example, changes to the 
requirements for residential parking provision (through the adoption of the 
2015 SPD) has led to a reduction in the estimated number of units at a 
number of sites and the introduction of Policy DM16 and its presumption 
against domestic garden land, which now renders a number of sites 
unsuitable. 

Allocations and Preferred Housing Sites  

 The Epsom and Ewell District Wide Local Plan 2000 allocated 6 housing 3.2.4
development sites across the Borough, of these, five sites have been 
developed or in the process of coming forward. Similarly, Plan E Area Action 
Plan (2011) allocates a number of sites for residential and mixed used 
development. 

 As part of preparation towards the Site Allocation DPD, in 2011 the Council 3.2.5
produced a Housing Site Allocations Consultation Paper.  This identified 
preferred housing sites with the potential to deliver ten or more new homes. 

 The remaining 20 undeveloped site’s of the allocations and preferred site 3.2.6
were assessed. 

Page 125

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 2



Planning Enquiries, Refusals & Withdrawals 

 The Council looked at pre-application enquiries for residential development 3.2.7
dating back to July 20083.  Providing that an application has not subsequently 
been submitted, the development potential of each site was assessed.   

 Those sites which have been refused planning permission by the Council or 3.2.8
dismissed at appeal since July 2008 were considered.  Again this is on the 
proviso, that a subsequent application for the development of a site had not 
been submitted and granted planning permission.  A key consideration was 
whether the reasons for refusal/dismissal could be overcome.  From this 
source 31 sites were assessed. 

Call for Sites Submissions 

 The Council carried out a Call for Sites exercise from 24 February to 24 3.2.9
March 2017.  As part of the consultation, the Council wrote to key 
stakeholders including known landowners planning agents and house 
builders with interests in the Borough. The Call for Sites was promoted 
through the Council’s website. 

 In total submissions promoting residential development at 34 individual sites 3.2.10
were received. It should be noted that 2 sites already benefitted from 
unimplemented planning permissions and 2 were preferred housing sites. 

Review of Council Assets 

 The Council has land holdings within the Borough, including sites occupied by 3.2.11
its facilities, such as car parks.  The Council has reviewed its land holdings, to 
consider how best they can be used for a variety of purposes in the future. In 
total 8 sites deemed surplus and/ or suitable for residential development have 
been put forward by the Council’s Property Services through the Call for Sites 
exercise. 

Review of Empty Property Register  

 Vacant dwellings are inevitable as people’s circumstances change; however, 3.2.12
there could be some housing capacity in the number of vacant dwellings that 
could be brought back into use.  It is reasonable to assume that the capacity 
from vacant dwelling should be based on the extent to which local vacancy 
rates exceed national averages.  

 The Government has committed to bring empty homes back into use.  Along 3.2.13
with other legislation and initiatives Paragraph 51 of the NPPF states ‘local 
planning authorities should identify and bring back empty housing and 
buildings in line with local housing and empty homes strategies, and, where 
appropriate, acquire properties compulsory purchases powers.’ 

 The Council’s Empty Property Register was reviewed and there are just over 3.2.14
300 empty homes in the Borough which are classed as ‘long term empty’ 
having been unoccupied for more than 6 months and no Council tax was 

                                            
3
 The Council has taken the date of July 2008 as its baseline, as it represents the close of the 

previous SHLAA search for sites. 

Page 126

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 2



generated.  A significant proportion of these properties are within probate or 
within the pipeline for development or are being refurbished.  As a result, the 
‘true’ number of long term empty properties will be lower.  However, it 
appears that the potential source of supply of market homes from empty stock 
is modest.  It should be noted that the Council has been contacting some 
empty homes owners has applied a subtle level of pressure to developers 
who had land banked their scheme and may well have had an influence on 
the timing of their progressing their plans.  Two SHLAA Opportunity sites (Site 
REF: 184 & 500) with the potential to deliver 11 & 12 net units respectively 
have been included as a result of such intervention. 

Pure Opportunity Sites 

 Using Officer knowledge of the Borough, 2 sites were identified as having 3.2.15
long term potential for residential development.  This was also based on 
experience of similar sites coming forward as well as the neighbouring land 
uses and patterns of development.  

Sources of SHLAA Sites No. of sites 

Previous SHLAA sites4 181 

Allocations and Preferred Housing Sites 20 

Planning Enquiries, Refusals & Withdrawals 31 

Call for Sites submissions 30 

Pure Opportunity Sites 2 

Total 264 

Table 1: Sources of sites put forward for assessment 

 Site Availability Confirmation (SAC) Responses 3.3

 To establish the availability of ‘long standing’ previous SHLAA sites and those 3.3.1
sites where there had been limited or no recent planning history or interest, 
the Council proactively contacted the registered landowners. 

 SAC forms were sent to the registered land owner of 19 sites. In total, 11 3.3.2
completed forms were received, all of which indicated some level of interest in 
bring forward the site.  When no response was received Officers took a view, 
considering if similar sites had become available. The SAC was a useful 
exercise as it was able to confirm interest and in some instances expected 
timescales for delivery and the submission of a planning application. 

SHLAA Opportunity Sites  

 In total, some 264 sites were identified from various data sources (as 3.3.3
discussed above).  Each site was assessed for its suitability, availability and 
achievability. 

                                            
4
 To avoid double counting this figure excluded previous SHLAA sites which either now allocated or a 

preferred housings site or sites submitted through the Call for Sites exercise. 

Page 127

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 2



 Following this first assessment 203 sites were discounted and a summary of 3.3.4
the discounted sites can be found in Section 3.4 below.  The remaining sites 
were subject to an ‘officer level review’, in which the potential yield and 
timeframe for development was discussed by Officers from across the 
planning team. Officers also reviewed the analysis of each site, namely, its 
appropriateness for housing development, the density to which it could be 
developed and the yields that could be delivered.  

 The above factors were considered to reach a judgment on each site’s overall 3.3.5
viability, deliverability and developability.  Taking these factors into 
consideration, Officers placed the sites within five year timeframes that 
comprise the SHLAA delivery periods.  The officer review was a highly valued 
exercise and it should be noted that following the officer level review a small 
number of sites were discounted and in some instances yield reduced or 
increased based on officer experience. 

 Following this review the SHLAA identified 61 opportunity sites with the 3.3.6
capacity to deliver 1,819 units.  The potential supply of identified sites 
considered to ‘deliverable’ (1-5 years) is 221 units.  As shown in Table 2 
below, the assessment identified 1,319 units which the Council considers 
‘developable’ within years 6-10 and 282 units within years 11- 15+ across the 
Borough.   

 The distribution of the sites across the Borough is outlined in Table 3 which 3.3.7
provides a summary of the number units expected to be delivered in each 5 
year timeframe by electoral Ward.  In addition to this summary, Appendix 4 
provides a detail breakdown of the SHLAA Opportunity sites by Ward. 

 Yrs No. of sites No. of units 
(net) 

Deliverable Sites 1-5 15 221 

Developable Sites 6-10 36 1,316 

11-15 10 282 

Total 61 1,819 

Table 2: Summary of Identified Deliverable / Developable Opportunity Sites (Source: SHLAA 
2017) 

Page 128

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 2



Ward Deliverable Sites 
(units) 

Developable Sites 
(units) 

Total 

1-5 yrs 6-10 yrs 11-15+ yrs 

Auriol Ward --- 20 --- 20 

College Ward 15 84 --- 99 

Court Ward 3 63 --- 66 

Cuddington Ward 5 51 8 64 

Ewell Ward 6 32 129 167 

Nonsuch Ward 85 35 15 135 

Ruxley Ward 6 255 10 271 

Stamford Ward 11 171 --- 182 

Stoneleigh Ward --- 40 --- 40 

Town Ward 90 550 120 760 

Woodcote Ward ---- 15 --- 15 

     

Total 221 1,316 282 1,819 

Table 3: Summary of Housing Land Supply 2017-2032 by Ward (Source: SHLAA 2017) 

 In conformity with existing local plan policies, the SHLAA had a general 3.3.8
presumption against housing development in the Green Belt, backland 
garden sites, allotments, open space as well as employment land.  Table 4 
provides a breakdown of potential units to be delivered on previously 
developed and greenfield sites. 

Land Classification No. of units 

Built up Area 1,644 

Built up area- Greenfield 339 

Build up area-Brownfield 1290 

Build up area- Backland 15 

Previously Developed Site within Green Belt 175 

Table 4: Land Classifications of Deliverable / Developable SHLAA Opportunity Sites (Source: 
SHLAA 2017) 

 Review of Previous SHLAA Sites 3.4

 As mentioned above, the previous SHLAA 2009 surveyed and assessed a 3.4.1
total 316 sites.  Over 70 of these sites have now come forward. Those sites 
with an estimated capacity below the SHLAA threshold of 5 or more net units 
were also removed (64 in total).  There were 206 sites that had not come 
forward since the 2009 SHLAA was published.  Of these, 171 sites were not 
included in any previous housing land supply figures. 

 Of the 205 previous SHLAA sites assessed, 34 were considered to be current 3.4.2
opportunity sites and included within the land supply figures. 100 sites were 

Page 129

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 2



considered unsuitable under the current Local Plan. Tables 5 and 6 provide a 
summary of the review of the previous SHLAA, including reasons for 
discounting the site and there previous SHLAA Categories.  In addition, Table 
7 provides the land classifications of the discounted previous SHLAA sites. 

 No. of sites 

SHLAA Opportunity Sites 2017 34 

Sites Discounted 170 

Site is not suitable under current local plan 100 

Site is suitable but not available 69 

Table 5: Summary of the review of Previous SHLAA sites (Source: SHLAA 2017) 

Previous 2009 SHLAA Category No. of sites discounted in 
2017 SHLAA 

Category 1 0 

Category 2 3 

Category 3 9 

Category 4 41 

Category 5 117 

Total 170 

Table 6: Discounted previous SHLAA 2009 site by category  

 

Page 130

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 2



Land Classification No. of sites 

Built up Area 81 

Built up area- Greenfield 23 

Build up area-Brownfield 21 

Build up area- Backland 36 

Built up area-Office/ employment land 1 

  

Green Belt 19 

Previously developed land 4 

Greenfield 14 

Backland 1 

Table 7: Land Classification of Discounted Previous SHLAA sites (Source: SHLAA 2017) 

 Summary of Discounted Sites 3.5

 In total 203 sites were discounted from the housing land supply.  It was 3.5.1
considered that 113 of these sites were unsuitable for residential 
development when assessed against the current policy. Just 20 sites were 
discounted solely on the grounds that they were not considered to be 
available and there were no sites discounted solely on the grounds of 
achievability. Table 5 provides a summary of the reasons for discounting sites 
and alongside this, Table 6 provides a breakdown of the discounted site by 
land classification and type. 

Reason for discount  No. of sites 

Discount included grounds of suitability  113 

Discounted on the grounds of availability only 20 

Discounted on the grounds of achievability only 0 

Discount included ground of achievability  126 

Yield would be below SHLAA threshold (windfall) 18 

Table 8: Summary of reasons for discounting of sites (Source: SHLAA 2017) 

Page 131

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 2



Land Classification No. of sites 

Built up Area 160 

Built up area- Greenfield 28 

Build up area-Brownfield 79 

Build up area- Backland 49 

Built up area-Office/ employment land 4 

  

Green Belt 25 

Previously developed land 5 

Greenfield 17 

Backland 1 

Mixed 2 

Table 9: Land Classifications of discounted sites (excluding windfall sites) (Source: SHLAA 
2017) 

Page 132

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 2



4 Meeting Epsom & Ewell’s Housing Target and Assessed 
Housing Need 

 Five Year Land Supply and Housing Trajectory 4.1

 As outlined in the methodology the role of the SHLAA is to provide initial 4.1.1
information on the range of sites which are available, but it is for the 
development plan itself to determine which of those sites are the most 
suitable to meet those needs.  The SHLAA’s findings, including a 5 year 
trajectory will be cross referenced with the outcomes of the SHMA to 
establish the Borough’s land supply. 

 The Borough’s housing land supply is derived from the following sources: 4.1.2

 Past housing figures from with the plan period; 

 Number of units currently under construction; 

 Unimplemented planning permissions; 

 SHLAA opportunity sites; and 

 Windfall sites. 

 The ability of the Council to identify sufficient housing land against the 4.1.3
housing target and the identified (albeit untested) housing needs figure, will 
determine the path of the review of the Core Strategy.    

 Land Supply Buffers and Non-implementation Discount Rates  4.2

 As previously stated, Paragraph 47 of the NPPF requires LPAs to 4.2.1
demonstrate a five year supply of deliverable housing land plus a 5% buffer to 
‘ensure choice and competition in the market for land’.  The NPPF also 
requires LPAs, where there has been a record of persistent under delivery of 
housing, to increase this buffer to 20% to ‘provide a realistic prospect of 
achieving the planned supply’ on top of ensuring choice and competition in 
the land market.   

 Epsom & Ewell has a strong and consistent record of delivering housing 4.2.2
against its adopted Core Strategy target. In light of this, the Council considers 
the 5% buffer is appropriate.  Furthermore, the SHMA 2016 and past housing 
delivery indicates that the local housing market area is attractive and 
generally resilient.   

 Not all planning permissions are implemented.  Although the Council 4.2.3
monitoring data is not conclusive with regards to lapsed permissions, Officers 
consider a 5% non-implementation discount is appropriate for sites with 
planning permission.  This would represent a reasonable and positive figure 
based on local experience and judgement. 

 In conformity with the PPG, the SHLAA considers the deliverability and 4.2.4
developability of sites within the short and medium term.  This has included 
making a judgement on the realistic prospect of a site coming forward.  This 
has led to a discounting of a number of long standing sites on the basis of 
availability. 

Page 133

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 2



 As the Council has taken a cautious but proactive approach to establishing 4.2.5
the availability of sites, it is considered reasonable that a 15% rate is applied 
to opportunity sites. 

 The Council is of the view that the proposed 5% supply buffer and the non-4.2.6
implementation discount rates in conjunction with a robust assessment of 
sites, yields and estimated timeframes that a realistic and sound housing land 
supply calculation and housing trajectory can be produced. 

 This approach provides sufficient flexibility to take account of the natural 4.2.7
(albeit modest) peaks and troughs of the housing market cycle, prevents an 
overreliance on the delivery of all opportunity sites as well as ensuring choice 
and competition in the land market. 

 Windfall Allowance Calculation 4.3

 Paragraph 48 of the NPPF states that local planning authorities may make an 4.3.1
allowance for windfall sites in the five-year supply if they have compelling 
evidence that such sites have consistently become available in the local area 
and will continue to provide a reliable source of supply.  Any allowance should 
be realistic having regard to the historic windfall delivery rates and expected 
future trends, and should not include residential gardens. 

 The Council is committed to monitoring its approach to windfall development 4.3.2
and does so, on an on-going basis.  To date the Council has not included a 
windfall allowance within its 5 year housing land figure or within its housing 
trajectories. However, it has monitored and reported the delivery of such 
sites. 

 Past trends indicate that throughout the previous 8 years the 0-4 (net) windfall 4.3.3
figure has mostly consisted of: 

 Small house conversions from one unit to two/ three. 

 The erection of one- four new houses within the curtilage of an existing 
property/ garden land (with or without demolition). 

 Conversion of upper floor above retail units to flats. 

 The average number of units resulting from windfall sites with 1-4 units (net 4.3.4
gain) is 31 per year for the last eight years.  However, the impact of Policy 
DM16 (Backland Development) is unclear but it is considered likely to have a 
reducing effect on the number of new houses built in back gardens. With this 
in mind it is suggested that the figure of 31 is reduced by 12% in line with the 
average percentage of small windfalls that are classified as garden land 
developments each year. This takes the average number of windfalls on sites 
of 1-4 units to 27 per annum.   

 The Council has adopted a precautionary approach to forecasting windfall 4.3.5
allowance to reflect the finite supply of smaller sites.  Therefore a reduction in 
the number of the small windfalls coming forward should also be included as 
the possible windfall sites will inevitably reduce. A reduction to 20 units per 
annum is suggested for the last five years (yrs 11-15) of the forthcoming plan 
period. 

 It is considered that a non-implementation discount rate for windfall sites is 4.3.6
not required as this has been reflected in the phased reduction in delivery. 

Page 134

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 2



 There was no reliance on this source of supply in the years 1-5 of the land 4.3.7
supply as effectively these are included within the total number of units 
committed through current planning permissions.  Therefore, the 2017 
SHLAA windfall allowance has only been applied to years 6-10 & 11 to 15 
respectively. 

 Meeting Epsom & Ewell’s Existing Housing Target 4.4

Core Strategy 2007-2022 

 As of the end of March 2017 the Council’s current housing target had reduced 4.4.1
to delivering a minimum of 101 homes by 2022, an average of 20.2 per 
annum over the remaining 5 years of the plan period. 

Five Year Housing Land Supply 

 Paragraph 47 of the NPPF requires LPAs to demonstrate a five year supply of 4.4.2
deliverable housing land plus a 5 % buffer. The 5 year land supply objective is 
therefore:  

 

Calculation: (20.2 units x 5 years= 101) +5% buffer = 106.05 units / 21.2 per annum 

 

Table 7 provides a breakdown of the Council’s 5 year housing land supply objective 
target and calculation.  Table 8 provides an estimate of delivery over the next 5 
years; this includes assumptions based on the delivery of larger housing sites which 
are expected to commence and be delivered over this period. 

Deliverable Housing Sites5 Units 

Under construction 253 

Unimplemented planning permissions 168 

SHLAA opportunity sites  188 

  

Total 609 

Annualised supply 121 

Years of supply 5.7yrs 

Table 10: Core Strategy 5 Year Housing Land Supply objective (Source: Emerging AMR 
2016/17 & SHLAA 2017) 

                                            
5
 Incorporating the non-implementation discount rate 

Page 135

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 2



Core Strategy 2007-2026: Housing Trajectory 

Source of supply 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 Total 

Delivered (2,611 homes) 

2007-2016/17      
2611 

Under construction 

(255 homes) 
159 84 10 

  
253 

Planning Permissions 33 64 80 
  

177 

Small SHLAA sites  

(5-10 units)  
5 

 
34 

 
39 

Medium SHLAA sites  

(11-19 units)     
26 26 

Large SHLAA sites (20 units +) 

Tesco Site,  

Depot Road/ Upper High Street  
30 

   
30 

Spread Eagle Shopping Centre, 
High Street   

15 10 
  

25 

Former Police Station,  

Church Street  
10 11 

  
21 

Phase 2, Sycamore Gardens, 
former NESCOT land  

30 30 20 
 

80 

Total 192 238 141 54 26 3262 

Table 11: Housing Trajectory against the Core Strategy Housing Target 

 Table 8 depicts the rationalised trajectory and shows past delivery rates since 4.4.3
2007.  The table provides a breakdown of the expected delivery in each 
remaining reporting year as well as the expected delivery rate of the 
Borough’s larger SHLAA opportunity sites.   In addition, the trajectory shows 
the annual residual housing requirements until the end of the Core Strategy 
plan period. 

 The SHLAA demonstrates that the Council has a 5 year housing supply plus 4.4.4
5% buffer. Furthermore, the Borough has the potential housing sites to 
exceed the housing requirement as set by the Core Strategy. 

 Meeting Epsom & Ewell’s Objectively Assessed Housing Need 4.5
Figure 

Housing Supply 2015-2035 against the OAHN  

 The SHMA 2016 has identified the need to provide 8,360 new homes of a 20 4.5.1
year period, 2015-2035 at 418 units per annum.  

 The next local plan period will run from 2015 (the evidence baseline) until 4.5.2
2032 to enable a 15 year land supply from the 2017 reporting year.   

 Therefore, the housing need figure of the plan period would be 418 units x 17 4.5.3
years =7,106 units.  

 Paragraph 47 of the NPPF requires LPAs to demonstrate a five year supply of 4.5.4
deliverable housing land plus a 5 % buffer. The 5 year land supply objective is 
therefore: 

Page 136

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 2



 

Calculation: (418units x 17yrs= ) +5% buffer =  7,461units / 439per annum 

 

OAHN: Five Year Housing Land Supply 

 Over 2015/16 and 2016/17 522 units have been completed, reducing the 4.5.5
identified need to 6,939 units therefore resulting the annual figure to 463 for 
the remaining 15 years of the 17 year plan period.  This would be a total 
requirement to delivery 2,375 over the five year period 2017-2022. Table 9 
provides a breakdown of the Council’s 5 year housing land supply 
calculations based on the OAHN figure, its demonstrates that 1.3 years of 
supply can currently be identified. 

Deliverable Housing Sites6 Units 

Under construction 253 

Unimplemented planning permissions 168 

SHLAA opportunity sites 1-5 yrs 188 

  

Total 609 

Years of supply 1.3 

Residual  -1,706 (-74%) 

Table 12: OAHN 5 Year Housing Land Supply objective (Source: Emerging AMR 2016/17 & 
SHLAA 2017) 

OAHN: Housing Trajectory 

 Table 10 provides an overall summary of the supply of housing land against 4.5.6
the OAHN figure for the next plan period 2015-2032.  It also provides an 
estimate of delivery yields and timeframe from the SHLAA opportunity sites 
by size (small, medium & large). Table 11 provides a trajectory of housing 
delivery against the OAHN figure. 

 As there is less certainty over the exact yearly completions beyond 5 years, 4.5.7
the trajectories provide an estimated total of the 6-10yrs and 11-15yrs time 
periods.  Where an annual figure is required the anticipated total delivery for 
that 5 year period should be divided by 5.   

 A more detailed Housing Trajectory can be found in Appendix 1 which 4.5.8
includes a breakdown of the larger SHLAA sites. 

                                            
6
 Incorporating the non-implementation discount rate 

Page 137

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 2



Deliverable/Developable Housing Sites7 Units 

Under construction 253 

Unimplemented planning permissions 168 

SHLAA Opportunity sites 1-5 yrs 188 

SHLAA Opportunity sites 6-10 yrs 1,119 

SHLAA Opportunity sites 11-15+ yrs 240 

Windfall sites 6-10 yrs  135 

Windfall sites 11-15+ yrs 100 

  

Total 2,203 

Years of supply 4.8 

Residual  -4,381 (-62%) 

Table 13: Summary of Housing Land Supply against OAHN figure (Source: Emerging AMR 
2016/17 & SHLAA 2017) 

                                            
7
 Incorporating the non-implementation discount rate 

Page 138

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 2



Source 2
0

1
5

/1
6
 

2
0

1
6

/1
7
 

2
0

1
7

/1
8
 

2
0

1
8

/1
9
 

2
0

1
9

/2
0
 

2
0

2
0

/2
1
 

2
0

2
1

/2
2
 

2
0

2
2

-2
7
 

 6
-1

0
 y

rs
 

2
0

2
7

-3
2

 

1
1

-1
5

 y
rs

 

 T
o

ta
l 

Dis8 

Delivered 199 323        
 

522 522 

Under 
construction 

  159 84 10     
 

253 253 

Planning 
Permissions 

  33 64 80     
 

177 168 

Small SHLAA 
Sites (1-10 
units) 

   5  34  86 18 
 

143 121 

Medium 
SHLAA Sites 
(11-19 units) 

       94 15 
 

135 115 

Large SHLAA 
Sites (20+) 

   85 51 20 26 1136 249 
 

1541 1310 

Windfall        135 100 
 

235 235 

Total 199 323 192 238 141 54 26 1451 382 
 

3006 2725 

Cumulative 
Total  

199 522 714 952 1093 1147 1173 2624 3006 
 

-- -- 

Cumulative 
Target 

418 836 1254 1672 2090 2518 2926 5016 -- 
 

  

Cumulative 
Target + 5% 
buffer 

439 878 1317 1756 2195 2634 3073 5268 -- 
 

  

Table 14: Summary of Housing Trajectory against OAHN figure (Source: Emerging AMR 
2016/17 & SHLAA 2017) 

Overall Housing Land Supply Position 

 The 5 year Housing Supply calculation and Housing Trajectory indicates that, 4.5.9
overall: 

 Epsom & Ewell does not have a 5 year forward supply of deliverable sites 
equal to the OAHN figure. 

 Against the OAHN figure of 7,106 units between 2015 and 2032, a 
forward supply of only 2,275 deliverable/ developable units have been 
identified.  Consequently, Epsom & Ewell can achieve less than 40% of 
the projected housing need to 2032. 

 There will be a residual requirement of 4,381 units net, across the 17 year 
plan period. 

 In summary, it is clear that the supply of sites within the built up area and in 4.5.10
compliance with current local plan policy will not meet the Epsom & Ewell 
OAHN.  There would be a significant shortfall of over 4,000 units. 

                                            
8
 Incorporating the non-implementation discount rate 

Page 139

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 2



 Tables 12 and 13 below provide a summary of the Epsom & Ewell housing 4.5.11
land supply position following completion of the SHLAA. 

Summary of Epsom & Ewell’s Housing Land Supply 

Approach 
C

o
m

p
le

te
d

 

S
it
e

s
 

A
p

ri
l 
2
0

0
7

 –
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

7
 

U
n

d
e

r 

C
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 

a
t 

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

7
 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 

P
e

rm
is

s
io

n
s
 

n
o

t 
y
e

t 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 

a
t 

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

7
 SHLAA Opportunity 

Sites 

T
o

ta
l 

E
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 

C
a

p
a

c
it
y
 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 

T
a

rg
e

t 

2
0

0
7

-2
0

2
2
 

S
u

rp
lu

s
 /

 

S
h

o
rt

fa
ll Apr 2017-Mar 2022 

1 – 5 Years 

 

1 2611 253 177 221 3262 2715 547 

(+20%) 

2* 2611 253 168 188 3220 2715 505 

(+19%) 

Table 15: Housing Land Supply 2007– 2022 (Core Strategy) (Source: SHLAA 2017 & Emerging 
AMR 2016/17) 

**Non-implementation discount rates applied - refer to Section 4.2 for assumptions 

A
p

p
ro

a
c
h
 

C
o
m

p
le

te
d

 S
it
e
s
 

A
p

ri
l 
2
0

1
5

 –
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0

1
7
 

U
n
d

e
r 

C
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 a

t 

A
p

ri
l 
2
0

1
7
 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e
rm

is
s
io

n
s
 

n
o

t 
y
e

t 
im

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 

a
t 

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

7
 

SHLAA Opportunity 
Sites 

S
m

a
ll 

S
it
e
 W

in
d

fa
ll*

 

A
llo

w
a
n
c
e
 

2
0

2
2

 –
2

0
3
2

 (
1

0
y
rs

) 

T
o

ta
l 
E

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 

C
a
p

a
c
it
y
 

O
b

je
c
ti
v
e
ly

 A
s
s
e

s
s
e

d
 

H
o
u

s
in

g
 N

e
e
d

 

(O
A

H
N

) 

 (
1

7
 y

rs
) 

S
u

rp
lu

s
 /

 S
h
o

rt
fa

ll 

Apr 
2017-
Mar 
2022 

Apr 
2022-
Mar 
2027 

Apr 
2027-
Mar 
2032 

1-5 
Yrs 

6-10 
Yrs 

11-
15Yrs 

1 522 253 177 221 1316 282 235 3006 7106 
-4100 

(-48%) 

2** 522 253 168 188 1119 240 235 2725 7106 
-4381 

(-62%) 

Table 16: Housing Land Supply 2015 – 2032 to meet Objectively Assessed Housing Need 
(Source: SHLAA 2017 & Emerging AMR 2016/17) 

*Rationalised windfall figure- refer to Section 4.3 for calculation and assumptions 

**Non-implementation Discount rates applied – refer to Section 4.2 for assumptions

Page 140

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 2



5 Conclusions and Next Steps 

 Conclusions 5.1

 The SHLAA has identified sites within Epsom & Ewell which comply 5.1.1
with current policy and considered suitable for housing and which are 
deliverable and developable.  These sites have the potential capacity 
of delivering approximately 2,725 new homes. 

 The Councils’ current Core Strategy plans for the delivery of 2,715 net 5.1.2
new homes between 2007 and 2022, with an average delivery of 181 
net homes per annum.  Strong delivery to date and the identification of 
sufficient land, through existing housing commitments and opportunity 
sites, indicates that the Council will exceed the existing target.  
Notwithstanding this, the Government is clear that a housing target 
based on a pre-NPPF plan and evidence base (such as the Epsom & 
Ewell Core Strategy) is out of date and could be open to challenge. 

 The Strategic Housing Market Assessment (SHMA) 2016 has identified 5.1.3
the need to deliver 418 new homes within Epsom and Ewell per annum 
from 2015 to 2035.  This is a significant increase in what had been 
previously planned for.  The updated evidence in relation to housing 
need has clearly indicated that the housing targets set within the Core 
Strategy are no longer up to date. 

 Through the undertaking of the SHLAA it is apparent that, under 5.1.4
current policy, the Council is not able to identify sufficient land to meet 
its housing need in accordance with the National Planning Policy 
Framework (NPPF) and more specifically, the Council will not be able 
to demonstrate a 5 year housing land supply + 5%.  In total, 62% of the 
housing needs figure would be unmet, equating to 4,381 units across 
the 17 year period (2015-2032). 

 Next Steps 5.2

 It is important to note that the SHLAA is a starting point for the Council 5.2.1
in its responsibility to prepare an up to date local plan to ensure that 
there is an adequate land supply to meet the needs of the Borough. 

 However, further work is required to enable the Council to assess the 5.2.2
options for and implications of meeting the OAHN for the Borough.  
This includes revisiting some of the Council’s assumptions relating to 
site suitability and capacity. In addition work will need to be undertaken 
to consider, in full, the approaches that could be applied to achieving 
the residual housing need figure in the existing built up area.  This will 
likely take the form of an Alternative Sources of Housing Land Supply 
Paper. 

 In meeting this shortfall, the Council and its residents may be required 5.2.3
to make some tough policy choices.  In conformity with existing local 
plan policies, the SHLAA had a general presumption against housing 
development in the Green Belt, backland garden sites, allotments, 
open space as well as employment land.  Furthermore, yields were 
guided by the existing policies in relation to density and building 

Page 141

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 2



heights.  There may be a need to revisit some of these areas due to 
the long term under supply of housing sites.   

 As outlined in section 3 of this report, a substantial proportion of the 5.2.4
‘Call for Sites’ submissions made by landowners and developers were 
large sites located in the Green Belt. This could mean the 
consideration of sites outside of the built up area for which the Green 
Belt Study as well as the consideration of exceptional circumstances 
will be fundamental to any assessment of such land. 

 With regard to increasing the 5 year housing land supply figure, in the 5.2.5
short term, the Council should undertake a detailed review of the sites 
within 6-10 year timeframe to consider if there are any opportunities 
which could enable the site to come forward earlier. This could include 
positive Council intervention such as preparing Development Briefs to 
provide greater certainty for the market or promoting the use of 
Planning Performance Agreements committing to clear time scales for 
decisions on planning applications.  However, considering the extent of 
the shortfall and the robust approach undertaken in the initial 
assessment, any resultant increase in the figures is likely to be limited.  
Furthermore, there is a risk that over confidence in the timescale for a 
site’s delivery could be open to challenge. 

Page 142

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 2



Appendix 1: Detailed Housing Trajectory against Objectively 
Assessed Housing Need Figure 

Source 2
0
1

5
/1

6
 

2
0
1

6
/1

7
 

2
0
1

7
/1

8
 

2
0
1

8
/1

9
 

2
0
1

9
/2

0
 

2
0
2

0
/2

1
 

2
0
2

1
/2

2
 

2
0
2
2
-2

7
 

 6
-1

0
 y

rs
 

2
0
2
7
-3

2
 

1
1
-1

5
 y

rs
 

 T
o
ta

l 

Dis9 

Delivered 199 323        
 

522 522 

Under construction   159 84 10     
 

253 253 

Planning 
Permissions 

  33 64 80     
 

177 168 

Small SHLAA Sites 
(1-10 units) 

   5  34  86 18 
 

143 121 

Medium SHLAA 
Sites (11-19 units) 

       94 15 
 

135 115 

Large SHLAA Sites (20+ units) 

Tesco Site, Depot 
Road/ Upper High 
Street 

   30      
 

30 

1547 

Spread Eagle 
Shopping Centre, 
High Street 

   15      
 

11 

Former Police 
Station, Church 
Street 

   10 11     
 

21 

Phase 2, Sycamore 
Gardens, former 
NESCOT land 

   30 30 20    
 

80 

Epsom Baptist 
Church, Church 
Street 

       41  
 

41 

TA Centre, 
Welbeck Close         62 

 
62 

Longmead Road/ 
Gibraltar Crescent        50  

 
50  

                                            
9
 Incorporating the non-implementation discount rate 

Page 143

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 2



Source 2
0
1

5
/1

6
 

2
0
1

6
/1

7
 

2
0
1

7
/1

8
 

2
0
1

8
/1

9
 

2
0
1

9
/2

0
 

2
0
2

0
/2

1
 

2
0
2

1
/2

2
 

2
0
2
2
-2

7
 

 6
-1

0
 y

rs
 

2
0
2
7
-3

2
 

1
1
-1

5
 y

rs
 

 T
o
ta

l 

Dis9 

Church Street 
Conservative Club, 
Epsom Club and 
United Reform 
Church 

       40  

 

40 

Dairy Crest Ltd 
       20  

 
20 

32 Waterloo Road/ 
BRM Coachworks         30 

 
30 

Land at Epsom and 
Ewell High School        130  

 
130 

29-37 East Street, 
Gas and Water 
Works Site 

       165  
 

165 

Hope Lodge Car 
Park         30 

 
30 

The Organ & 
Dragon, London 
Road 

       40  
 

40 

Fire Station, 
Church Street        25  

 
25 

EEBC Town Hall, 
The Parade         30 

 
30 

Swail House, 
Ashley Road        150  

 
150 

Depot Road Car 
Park          30 

 
30 

Priest’s Hill Sports 
Centre, Cheam 
Road 

       20  
 

20 

Grafton Stables 
       40  

 
40 

Linden House, 9 
College Road        25  

 
25 

 
Land South of 
Sailsbury Road        20  

 
20 

Page 144

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 2



Source 2
0
1

5
/1

6
 

2
0
1

6
/1

7
 

2
0
1

7
/1

8
 

2
0
1

8
/1

9
 

2
0
1

9
/2

0
 

2
0
2

0
/2

1
 

2
0
2

1
/2

2
 

2
0
2
2
-2

7
 

 6
-1

0
 y

rs
 

2
0
2
7
-3

2
 

1
1
-1

5
 y

rs
 

 T
o
ta

l 

Dis9 

Lower Mill  
       20  

 
20 

Home Base, 23 
Reigate Road         50 

 
50 

Ewell Esso 
Express, 26 
Reigate Road 

        17 
 

17 

Watersedge Estate 
Regeneration / Ash 
Court 

       110  
 

110 

TK Maxx Store 
       65  

 
65 

Health Clinic and 
Ambulance Station, 
Church Street 

       25  
 

25 

Remaining West 
Park Sites        150  

 
150 

Windfall        135 100 
 

235 

Total 199 323 192 238 141 54 26 
145
1 

382 
 

3006 2725 

Cumulative Total  199 522 714 952 
109
3 

114
7 

117
3 

262
4 

300
6 

 
-- -- 

Cumulative Target 418 836 
125
4 

167
2 

209
0 

251
8 

292
6 

501
6 

-- 
 

  

Cumulative Target 
+ 5% buffer 

439 878 
131
7 

175
6 

219
5 

263
4 

307
3 

526
8 

-- 
 

  

  

Page 145

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 2



Appendix 2: Housing Sites Under Construction as of 1 April 
2017 

Application 
Number Site Address 

No. of 
Units 

(Net) 
Permission 
Date 

Estimated 
Completio
n Year 

 

Auriol Ward 

14/00952 
5A Stoneleigh Park 
Road, Stoneleigh  

1 07/11/2014 2017/18 

College Ward     

14/01153 
South Hatch Racing 
Club, 46 Burgh Heath 
Road 

1 09/01/2015 2017/18 

14/01579 
3 Alexandra Road, 
Epsom 

5 01/04/2015 2017/18 

14/01855 
Priam Lodge Stables, 83 
Burgh Heath Road, 
Epsom 

4 09/06/2015 2017/18 

15/01323/FUL 
Berridale, 15 College 
Road 

10 06/12/2015 2019/20 

 

Court Ward 

14/01766 
72 - 74 Temple Road, 
Epsom 

6 24/04/2015 2018/19 

15/01395 
Garages 23 to 42 
Teddington Close 

6 18/02/2016 2018/19 

15/01497/FUL 
101 to 111 Hollymoor 
Lane 

24 17/03/2016 2018/19 

13/01718/FUL 
Meadowcroft, 56 
Longmead Road 

3 27/11/2014 2018/19 

16/00348/FUL 
School Bungalow, 
Longmead Road, Epsom 

5 15/06/2016 2018/19 

 

Cuddington Ward 

10/00465 
13 The Avenue, 
Worcester Park 

5 26/10/2010 2017/18 

13/00924 
19 Cleveland Gardens, 
Worcester Park 

3 11/12/2013 2017/18 

 

Ewell Ward 

12/00985 8 The Hawthorns, Ewell 2 18/03/2013 2017/18 

Page 146

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 2



Application 
Number Site Address 

No. of 
Units 

(Net) 
Permission 
Date 

Estimated 
Completio
n Year 

15/01133 (also 
15/01574/RE
M) 

4-6 Chuters Grove, 
Epsom 

2 23/12/2015 2017/18 

15/01548/FUL 6 to 8 Chuters Grove 2 24/03/2016 2017/18 

15/00362 
Land Rear of 13 to 26 
Elm Road & 121 to 159 
Kingston Road, Ewell 

3 30/07/2015 2017/18 

13/01334 6 Chuters Grove, Epsom 2 27/06/2014 2017/18 

15/00632 
Epsom Marble, 49 High 
Street, Ewell 

1 22/09/2015 2017/18 

16/00378/PDC
OU 

Bank House, 42 High 
Street, Ewell 

4 02/06/2016 2018/19 

 

Ewell Court Ward 

14/01036 2 Elm Way, Ewell 1 05/12/2014 2017/18 

15/00297 2 Riverview Road, Ewell 1 10/07/2015 2017/18 

15/01215/FUL 
News Shop 12 Ruxley 
Lane West Ewell 

1 01/12/2015 2017/18 

14/00646 69 Meadow Walk, Ewell 1 23/09/2014 2017/18 

Nonsuch Ward 

15/00098 
NESCOT Agricultural 
Land, Reigate Road, 
Ewell 

60 20/08/2015 2017/18 

 

Ruxley Ward 

11/00366 
117 Ruxley Lane, West 
Ewell 

2 17/08/2011 2017/18 

15/01544/FUL 60 Cox Lane 1 21/03/2016 2017/18 

16/00380/FLH 
97 Ruxley Lane West 
Ewell 

1 21/07/2016 2017/18 

 

Stamford Ward 

14/00032 Pine Lodge, Horton Lane 10 20/06/2014 2017/18 

15/00492 
Court Lodge, Court Lane, 
Epsom 

9 24/07/2015 2018/19 

16/01340/FUL 
Epsom Common Working 
Mens Club 121 - 122 
Stamford Green Epsom  

2 06/03/2017 2018/19 

Page 147

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 2



Application 
Number Site Address 

No. of 
Units 

(Net) 
Permission 
Date 

Estimated 
Completio
n Year 

 

Stoneleigh Ward 

14/00795 
Rear of 72 Stoneleigh 
Broadway 

6 11/11/2014 2017/18 

15/00076 
27 Ewell Park Way, 
Stoneleigh 

1 05/08/2015 2017/18 

15/00076 
Land adj to 27 Ewell Park 
Way, Stoneleigh 

1 05/08/2015 2017/18 

10/00366 
18 Stoneleigh Broadway, 
Stoneleigh 

2 06/08/2010 2017/18 

 

Town Ward 

16/00215/FUL 
& 
16/01624/CO
ND 

93 - 95 High Street, 
Epsom  

2 07/06/2016 2017/18 

15/01913/PDC
OU (also 
14/00540) 

Apex House, West 
Street, Epsom 

4 25/05/2016 2017/18 

14/00954/ 
PDCOU 

Flat 131 East Street, 
Epsom 

0 02/10/2014 2017/18 

16/00410/FUL 
The Epsom Framing 
Company, 41 Waterloo 
Road 

2 20/06/2016 2017/18 

11/01469  
Barclays Bank Ltd, 82-84 
High Street, Epsom 

1 14/11/2012 2018/19 

15/01561 
Trevi 33 Heathcote Road, 
Epsom 

3 30/01/2016 2018/19 

15/01532/FUL 
Ashley House, Ashley 
Road 

12 27/01/2016 2018/19 

13/00530 
&14/00205/CO
ND 

31 High Street Epsom 1 18/09/2013 2017/18 

 

West Ewell Ward 

10/00641 
Land adj 41 Plough 
Road, West Ewell 

1 18/01/2011 2017/18 

15/00604 
93 Chessington Road, 
Ewell 

4 28/08/2015 2017/18 

15/00176 14 Station Avenue, West 1 23/06/2015 2018/19 

Page 148

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 2



Application 
Number Site Address 

No. of 
Units 

(Net) 
Permission 
Date 

Estimated 
Completio
n Year 

Ewell 

 

Woodcote Ward 

12/00148 11 Warren Hill, Epsom 1 16/08/2012 2017/18 

10/00653 
Caithness Cottage, 60 
Worple Road, Epsom 

3 04/04/2012 2017/18 

15/01337/FUL 13 Pine Hill, Epsom 1 29/01/2016 2017/18 

15/01370/FUL Sunnybank, The Ridge 1 16/02/2016 2017/18 

15/00804/ 
16/00225 

86 Grosvenor Road 3 09/11/2015 2017/18 

16/00608/FUL 15 Pine Hill, Epsom 1 18/07/2016 2017/18 

12/01159/REN  9 & 11 Pine Hill  2 11/03/2013 2017/18 

15/01500 
Ardingly Court, Woodcote 
Road 

4 21/03/2016 2018/19 

15/00967 
Kit Stone Kitchens, 77-79 
South Street, Epsom 

4 28/09/2015 2018/19 

15/00992/FUL 
Ryebrook Studios, 
Woodcote Side 

14 26/01/2016 2017/18 

 

Page 149

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 2



Appendix 3: Housing Sites Not Yet Implemented as of 1 April 
2017 

Application 
Number Site Address 

No. of 
Units 

(Net) 
Permission 
Date 

Estimated 
Completio
n Year 

 

Auriol Ward 

15/01870/FUL  16 Kirby Close, Ewell 1 07/06/2016 2018/19 

 

College Ward 
    

16/00489/OUT 32 Downs Road, Epsom 1 12/09/2016 2018/19 

 

Court Ward 

14/00167 
Garages 1-9 Ormonde 
Avenue 

2 28/07/2014 2017/18 

15/01396 
Garages 1 to 37 Bahram 
Road 

5 24/02/2016 2018/19 

 

Cuddington Ward 

16/00520/FLH 
17 Cleveland Gardens, 
Worcester Park 

1 05/09/2016 2018/19 

15/00377 
Land Rear of 35 The 
Avenue, Worcester Park 

2 28/07/2015 2018/19 

16/00193/OUT 
Land west of Old Malden 
Lane, Worcester Park 

1 16/09/2016 2019/20 

 

Ewell Ward 

14/00296 
Ewell Post Office, 4-5 
Market Parade, High 
Street, Ewell 

4 26/08/2014 2017/18 

15/00548/ 
PDCOU 

Brookland House, 2B 
West Street, Ewell 

1 09/07/2015 2017/18 

15/01388 
Grange Mansions, 
Kingston Road 

4 10/02/2016 2018/19 

15/00845/FUL 
Salesian College Sports 
Ground 

60 07/06/2016 2019/20 

 

Ewell Court Ward 

14/00077 287 Kingston Road 1 06/08/2014 2017/18 

16/00311/FUL 1 Chestnut Avenue, 1 29/07/2016 2018/19 

Page 150

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 2



Application 
Number Site Address 

No. of 
Units 

(Net) 
Permission 
Date 

Estimated 
Completio
n Year 

Ewell 

15/00339 
17 Riverview Road, 
Ewell 

1 10/08/2015 2018/19 

15/00016 
110 Ruxley Lane, West 
Ewell 

1 12/06/2015 2019/20 

Nonsuch Ward 

16/00166/FUL 
37 & 37a Cheam Road, 
Ewell 

15 05/04/2017 2019/20 

 

Ruxley Ward 

13/01759 
Wey Stores, 34 Hogsmill 
Way 

2 23/09/2014 2017/18 

16/01401/FUL 
The Roveries 59 - 63 
Cox Lane West Ewell  

8 
 
27/03/2017 

2018/19 

 

Stamford Ward 

16/00096/FUL 
Epsom Social Club, 
Horton Lane, Epsom  

1 20/06/2016 2018/19 

14/01750/RES 
57 Woodlands Road, 
Epsom  

5 21/04/2015 2018/19 

16/00585/FUL 
45 Manor Green Road, 
Epsom 

1 16/09/2016 2018/19 

Stoneleigh Ward 

15/01899/FUL 
1 Clandon Close, 
Stoneleigh 

1 01/06/2016 2018/19 

14/01857/FUL 
London Road Lodge 
Nonsuch Park 

1 28/05/2015 2018/19 

15/00336 
Land Rear 44-48 
Stoneleigh Broadway, 
Stoneleigh 

6 23/11/2015 2018/19 

 

Town Ward 

14/00954 
Flat 131 East Street, 
Epsom 

1 17/11/2014 2017/18 

13/00886 
Deeburn, 15 Depot 
Road, Epsom 

1 03/12/2013 2017/18 

14/00176 
Epsom family 
Chiropractic, 121 East 
Street 

1 20/06/2014 2017/18 

Page 151

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 2



Application 
Number Site Address 

No. of 
Units 

(Net) 
Permission 
Date 

Estimated 
Completio
n Year 

14/00736 
122 Hook Road, Epsom, 
KT19 8TX 

2 04/11/2014 2017/18 

14/00724/ 
PDCOU 

19 Church Road, Epsom 2 31/10/2014 2017/18 

15/00308/ 
PDCOU 

Offices Above Cadogan 
House, 4 - 6 High Street, 
Epsom 

7 05/06/2015 2017/18 

14/01920/ 
PDCOU 

24-28 West Street, 
Epsom 

3 08/04/2015 2017/18 

16/01407/FUL 
69-71 High Street 
Epsom 

3 13/02/2017 2018/19 

15/00043 
Haddad House, 91 East 
Street, Epsom 

5 25/06/2015 2018/19 

15/00686 
15A Upper High Street, 
Epsom 

2 20/11/2015 2018/19 

16/00501/PDC
OU 

Rosebery Lodge, 61a 
South Street, Epsom 

9 18/08/2016 2018/19 

 

West Ewell Ward 

16/00712/FUL 
1 Gadesden Road West 
Ewell 

1 05/10/2016 2018/19 

15/01514/FUL 
11 Danetree Road, West 
Ewell 

3 14/04/2016 2018/19 

 

Woodcote Ward 

14/00242 70 Worple Road, Epsom 2 11/07/2014 2017/18 

14/01442 
54 Rosebery Road, 
Epsom 

4 04/03/2015 2017/18 

16/00055/FUL 
85 Rosebery Road, 
Epsom  

1 12/07/2016 2018/19 

16/01581/FUL 
The Gold Peak, 
Wilmerhatch Lane 

1 30/03/2017 2018/19 

15/00228 
Land At Lord Rosebery 
Lodge, 6 Elm Grove, 
Epsom 

2 10/09/2015 2019/20 

15/00214/OUT 
RO 12&14 Grosvenor 
Road Epsom  

1 12/10/2015 2019/20 

 

Page 152

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 2



Appendix 4: SHLAA Opportunity Sites by Ward 

Site Ref Site Name 

Deliverable 
Sites 
(units) 

Developable 
Sites (units) 

1-5 yrs 
6-10 
yrs 

11-15+ 
yrs 

 

Auriol Ward 

551 Land South of Salisbury Road  20  

Total --- 20 ---- 

 

College Ward 

21 Rail Land, Mill Road 15   

22 Builders Yard, Mill Road  17  

154 Dairy Crest Ltd  20  

213 
Land R/O Sunninghill, Downs 
Avenue 

 10  

500 25 Alexandra Road  12  

508 Linden House, 9 College Road  25  

Total 15 84 --- 

 

Court Ward 

136 
Longmead Road/ Gibraltar 
Crescent 

 50  

560 Land at Bishopsmead Close 3   

561 Land at Blenheim School  13  

Total 3 63 --- 

 

Cuddington Ward 

91 57 Salisbury Road, Worcester Park  11  

99 
Garages R/O Marland Court, 
Ardrossan Gardens 

  8 

331 Grafton Stables  40  

513 
Land to r/o 35 The Avenue, 
Worcester Park 

5   

Total 5 51 8 

 

Ewell Ward 

113 TA Centre, Welbeck Close   62 

Page 153

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 2



Site Ref Site Name 

Deliverable 
Sites 
(units) 

Developable 
Sites (units) 

1-5 yrs 
6-10 
yrs 

11-15+ 
yrs 

329 
King's Arms Public House, East 
Street 

 12  

555 Lower Mill  20  

556 Home Base, 23 Reigate Road   50 

557 
Ewell Esso Express, 26 Reigate 
Road 

  17 

562 Bourne Hall Garages 4   

563 Land rear of Fairview Road 2   

Total 6 32 129 

Nonsuch Ward 

43 
Public House next to railway 
bridge, Cheam Road 

  15 

56 86 Reigate Road 5   

194 
Etwell House and Freewat Coach 
Depot, Station Approach 

 10  

315 
Priest’s Hill Sports Centre, Cheam 
Road 

 20  

521 47 Cheam Road  5  

553 
Phase 2 Sycamore Gardens, 
former Nescot Land 

80   

Total 85 35 15 

 

Ruxley Ward 

15 
442 Chessington Road and coach 
park 

  10 

171 Epsom and Ewell High School  130  

225 
Garage block at Crane Court & 
Nos.36-40 Rowden Road 

6   

305 
Cox Lane Community Centre and 
Surgery, Cox Lane 

 10  

558 
Watersedge Estate Regeneration/ 
Ash Court 

 110  

564 Scotts Farm Road  5  

Total 6 255 10 

 

Stamford Ward 

Page 154

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 2



Site Ref Site Name 

Deliverable 
Sites 
(units) 

Developable 
Sites (units) 

1-5 yrs 
6-10 
yrs 

11-15+ 
yrs 

184 
Hollydene & Birchcroft & Court (off 
Court Lane) 

11   

269 Hollywood Lodge, Horton Lane  5  

548 
The Sycamore Centre, 14 West 
Hill 

 6  

565 The Wells, Spa Drive  10  

569 Remaining West Park Sites  150  

 Total 11 171 --- 

 

Stoneleigh Ward 

244 
Former The Organ and Dragon, 
London Road 

 40  

Total --- 40 --- 

 

Town Ward 

20 
Epsom Baptist Church, Church 
Street 

 41  

148 
Church Street Conservative Club, 
Epsom Club and United Reform 
Church 

 40  

151 
6 The Grove and garages at Grove 
Avenue 

 7  

159 Land at Rosebank 3   

163 
32 Waterloo Road/ BRM 
Coachworks 

  30 

186 
29-37 East Street, Gas and Water 
Works Site 

 165  

217 Hope Lodge Car Park,    30 

255 Fire Station, Church Street   25  

256 
Tesco Site, Depot Road/ Upper 
High Street 

30   

284 EEBC Town Hall, The Parade   30 

303 Swail House, Ashley Road  150  

308 Depot Road car park   30 

529 24-28 West Street  14  

535 Former Police Station, Church 21   

Page 155

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 2



Site Ref Site Name 

Deliverable 
Sites 
(units) 

Developable 
Sites (units) 

1-5 yrs 
6-10 
yrs 

11-15+ 
yrs 

Street 

537 
Spread Eagle Shopping Centre, 
High Street  

25   

541 81 East Street 6   

566 TK Maxx Store   65  

567 
Health Clinic and Ambulance 
Station, Church Street 

 25  

568 
Land R/O The Albion Public 
House, High Street 

 8  

570 Sunnybank House, 39a East Street  10  

571 111 East Street 5   

Total 89 550 120 

 

Woodcote Ward 

545 Chalk Lane Hotel, Chalk Lane  15  

Total --- 15 --- 

    

Overall Total 221 1316 282 

 

Page 156

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 2



Appendix 5: Definition of Key Terms 

Achievable 

 

A site is considered ‘achievable/viable’ where there is a reasonable 
prospect that the particular type of development will be developed on 
the site at a particular point in time.  This is essentially a judgement 
about the economic viability of a site and development option and, 
where appropriate, the capacity of the developer to complete and sell 
the development over a certain period.  

Available 

 

A site is considered ‘available’ when, based on the information 
presented there is confidence that there are no legal or ownership 
problems, such as unresolved multiple ownerships, ransom strips, 
tenancies or operational requirements of landowners that would 
prevent the site and development option from being delivered 

Backland 
Development  

Development on domestic back garden land.  In general Policy DM16 
sets a presumption against new development on domestic back 
garden land. 

Brownfield Land 

 

As also referred to as ‘Previously Developed Land’ (PDL)- see 
definition below 

Built up area Land within the built up / developed areas of the Borough. 

Call for Sites Exercise carried out by the Council inviting interested parties to 
submit sites for consideration in the Strategy Housing Land 
Availability Assessment and local plan making process. 

Deliverable Site 

 

Site is available now, offer a suitable location for development now, 
and be achievable with a realistic prospect that housing will be 
delivered on the site within five years and in particular that 
development of the site is viable. Sites with planning permission 
should be considered deliverable until permission expires, unless 
there is clear evidence that schemes will not be implemented within 
five years, for example they will not be viable, there is no longer a 
demand for the type of units or sites have long term phasing plans. 

(NPPF, Para. 47 and Footnote 11 & 12) 

Density A measure illustrating the potential number of dwellings that can be 
accommodated within a defined area. (Usually measured as the 
number of dwellings per hectare). 

 

Gross Density- Applying the total area of a site to the Density 
measurement, before discounting any land from ancillary purposes to 
the development (i.e. land for roads, access, open space provision) 

 

Net Density- Measurement of the site's area that will actually be 
developed (i.e. discounting land for roads, access, open space 
provision)  

Developable Site Site is in a suitable location for development and there should be a 
reasonable prospect that the site is available and could be viably 
developed at the point envisaged. 

(NPPF, Para. 47 and Footnote 11 & 12) 

Green Belt A designation for land around certain cities and large built up areas, 
which aims to keep this land permanently open or largely 
undeveloped.  The purpose of the Green Belt is to; 

Page 157

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 2



 

check the unrestricted sprawl of large built up areas; 

prevent neighbouring towns from merging into one another; 

safeguard the countryside from encroachment; 

to preserve the setting and special character of historic towns; and 

assist urban regeneration by encouraging the recycling of derelict and 
other urban land. 

Greenfield Land Land which has never previously been developed.  This could be both 
within and outside the built up area 

Housing Trajectory Report comparing past housing supply performance against future 
rates of predicted supply 

Previously 
Developed Land 
(PDL) 

Land which is or was occupied by a permanent structure, including 
the curtilage of the developed land (although it should not be 
assumed that the whole of the curtilage should be developed) and 
any associated fixed surface infrastructure. This excludes: land that is 
or has been occupied by agricultural or forestry buildings; land that 
has been developed for minerals extraction or waste disposal by 
landfill purposes where provision for restoration has been made 
through development control procedures; land in built-up areas such 
as private residential gardens, parks, recreation grounds and 
allotments; and land that was previously-developed but where the 
remains of the permanent structure or fixed surface structure have 
blended into the landscape in the process of time. 

PPG, Annex 2: Glossary 

SHLAA Opportunity 
Site 

Sites identified as being Deliverable and Developable but do not 
benefit from planning permission. 

Suitable Site is considered suitable for development if it offers a suitable 
location for development and would contribute to the creation of 
sustainable, mixed communities.  

 

For sites not having the benefit of planning permission, policy 
restrictions, physical problems or limitations, potential impacts and 
environmental conditions are considered. 

Windfall Site Sites of 4 or less housing units or sites that have not been specifically 
identified in the local plan process.  They comprise previously 
developed sites that have unexpectedly become available. 

 

Page 158

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 2



551

±
1:4,200Scale © Crown copyright and database right (2017) 

Ordnance Survey Licence 100023771Document Date: 20/06/2017

Category
1
2
3
Ward Boundary
Metropolitan Greenbelt

Auriol Ward

0

Page 159

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 3



21

213

22

154
500

508

±
1:8,100Scale © Crown copyright and database right (2017) 

Ordnance Survey Licence 100023771Document Date: 20/06/2017

Category
1
2
3
Ward Boundary
Metropolitan Greenbelt

College Ward

0

Page 160

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 3



136

560

561

±
1:6,597Scale © Crown copyright and database right (2017) 

Ordnance Survey Licence 100023771Document Date: 20/06/2017

Category
1
2
3
Ward Boundary
Metropolitan Greenbelt

Court Ward

Page 161

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 3



513

91
99

331

±
1:6,650Scale © Crown copyright and database right (2017) 

Ordnance Survey Licence 100023771Document Date: 20/06/2017

Category
1
2
3
Ward Boundary
Metropolitan Greenbelt

Cuddington Ward

Page 162

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 3



±
1:5,800Scale © Crown copyright and database right (2017) 

Ordnance Survey Licence 100023771Document Date: 20/06/2017

Category
1
2
3
Ward Boundary
Metropolitan Greenbelt

Ewell Court Ward

Page 163

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 3



113

329

555

556

557

562

563

±
1:6,841Scale © Crown copyright and database right (2017) 

Ordnance Survey Licence 100023771Document Date: 20/06/2017

Category
1
2
3
Ward Boundary
Metropolitan Greenbelt

Ewell Ward

Page 164

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 3



56

43

194
315

553

521

±
1:11,500Scale © Crown copyright and database right (2017) 

Ordnance Survey Licence 100023771Document Date: 29/06/2017

Category
1
2
3
Ward Boundary
Metropolitan Greenbelt

Nonsuch Ward

Page 165

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 3



564

17115

225

305

558

±
1:7,743Scale © Crown copyright and database right (2017) 

Ordnance Survey Licence 100023771Document Date: 20/06/2017

Category
1
2
3
Ward Boundary
Metropolitan Greenbelt

Ruxley Ward

Page 166

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 3



269

548

565

184
569

569

±
1:8,800Scale © Crown copyright and database right (2017) 

Ordnance Survey Licence 100023771Document Date: 20/06/2017

Category
1
2
3
Ward Boundary
Metropolitan Greenbelt

Stamford Ward

Page 167

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 3



244

±
1:4,500Scale © Crown copyright and database right (2017) 

Ordnance Survey Licence 100023771Document Date: 20/06/2017

Category
1
2
3
Ward Boundary
Metropolitan Greenbelt

Stoneleigh Ward

Page 168

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 3



20

136

159

255
529 566

568

541

570

571

148

151

163

186

217

256

284

303

308

535

537

567

±
1:5,200Scale © Crown copyright and database right (2017) 

Ordnance Survey Licence 100023771Document Date: 20/06/2017

Category
1
2
3
Ward Boundary
Metropolitan Greenbelt

Town Ward

Page 169

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 3



±
1:5,500Scale © Crown copyright and database right (2017) 

Ordnance Survey Licence 100023771Document Date: 20/06/2017

Category
1
2
3
Ward Boundary
Metropolitan Greenbelt

West Ewell Ward

Page 170

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 3



545

±
1:11,300Scale © Crown copyright and database right (2017) 

Ordnance Survey Licence 100023771Document Date: 20/06/2017

Category
1
2
3
Ward Boundary
Metropolitan Greenbelt

Woodcote Ward

Page 171

AGENDA ITEM 7
ANNEXE 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 172



LICENSING AND PLANNING POLICY COMMITTEE
12 JULY 2017

TRAVELLER ACCOMMODATION ASSESSMENT 2017

Report of the: Head of Place Development
Contact:  Karol Jakubczyk
Urgent Decision?(yes/no) No
If yes, reason urgent decision 
required:
Annexes/Appendices (attached): Annexe 1: Traveller Accommodation 

Assessment June 2017
Annexe 2: Traveller Site Availability 
Assessment June 2017

Other available papers (not 
attached):

Planning Policy for Traveller Sites (August 
2015)

REPORT SUMMARY
National planning policy requires that we plan for and meet the future 
accommodation needs of the local Traveller community as part of the Local Plan 
process. 
 
An all-party Working Group convened by the Planning Policy Committee in April 
2014 has contributed to the preparation and production of the technical evidence 
documents that we are required to produce in order to inform our Local Plan 
process.  The Epsom & Ewell Traveller Accommodation Assessment (TAA) 
identifies the future accommodation needs for the period between 2017 until 
2032, in accordance with the latest national planning policy guidance.  The 
accompanying Traveller Site Availability Assessment (TSAA) considers the 
potential sources of supply that could be brought forward to meet future 
accommodation needs.  These technical documents are now ready for 
publication. 

RECOMMENDATIONS

(1) That the Committee considers the findings of the 
TAA, agrees to its publication and agrees that there 
is no current requirement for the emerging Local 
Plan to include a target for Traveller pitch provision.

(2) That the Committee agrees that there is an 
outstanding accommodation need for non-travelling 
Travellers.  Subject to the Committee’s agreement, 
this need will be considered as a specialised 
component of the Borough’s wider housing need.

Notes

Page 173

AGENDA ITEM 8



LICENSING AND PLANNING POLICY COMMITTEE
12 JULY 2017

(3) That the Committee considers the outputs of the 
TSAA, agrees to its publication and agrees to it 
being used to inform the preparation of any future 
site allocation options.

(4) That the Committee acknowledge and thank the 
Gypsy & Traveller Working Group for their 
contribution towards the preparation and 
production of the evidence base documents.

1 Implications for the Council’s Key Priorities, Service Plans and 
Sustainable Community Strategy

1.1 The Council’s Local Plan provides the spatial planning mechanism for 
implementing the vision set out in the Sustainable Community Strategy, 
and the Council’s Key Priorities.  The Partial Review of the Core Strategy 
is an important part of the Local Plan as it will ensure that new 
development is compatible with the vision set out within both the Key 
Priorities and the Community Strategy.  

2 Background

2.1 Work on the Partial Review of the Core Strategy has been underway 
since 2015.  During this time we have made progress on preparing a 
number of evidence base documents that will help inform and shape our 
new Local Plan.  These have included the Strategic Housing market 
Assessment (SHMA) and the recent Green Belt Study.  

2.2 In addition to preparing evidence on housing demand and land supply, 
national planning policy requires us to plan for the future accommodation 
needs of our local Gypsy and Traveller communities.  This takes the form 
of a Traveller Accommodation Assessment (TAA), which in some respects 
is similar to a SHMA.  Within this document we have to identify the scale 
of accommodation need for a fifteen year period (from 2017 until 2032).  
Once we have done this exercise, national planning policy requires that 
we identify a five year supply of deliverable sites to meet need, a six-ten 
year supply of developable sites, and where possible sites for years 11 – 
15. 

2.3 During April 2014 the Planning Policy Committee discussed the 
preparation of the TAA and it was agreed that further consideration 
needed prior to any public consultation on options.  In order to meet this 
objective the Planning Policy Committee appointed a Working Group to 
discuss the issues of accommodation need and land supply.  During the 
intervening period the Working group has met on a number of occasions 
to inform the preparation of the two evidence base documents.  The 
Committee are asked to acknowledge their positive contribution to this 
process.

Page 174

AGENDA ITEM 8



LICENSING AND PLANNING POLICY COMMITTEE
12 JULY 2017

2.4 During August 2015, the government made a significant change to 
national planning policy by publishing a revised version of “Planning 
Policy for Traveller Sites” (August 2015).  This document is the principal 
policy statement on this issue.  The revision changed, for the purposes of 
planning for future accommodation need, the definition of “Gypsies, 
Travellers and Travelling Showpeople” – removing those who had ceased 
to travel permanently from the definition.  The revision also sought to 
reinforce the protection of sensitive areas; including the Green Belt.  

2.5 The revision of national planning policy required us to revisit and review 
work we had already undertaken on our TAA – specifically in terms of 
calculating the scale of future accommodation need.    That work is now 
complete.  A copy of the TAA is enclosed under Annex 1.  

3 The Traveller Accommodation Assessment

3.1 The Epsom & Ewell Traveller Accommodation Assessment (TAA) has 
been prepared to inform our emerging local planning policies in respect of 
meeting the needs of our Gypsy & Traveller communities.  It forms the 
basis on which we will identify the scale of any site allocations to meet 
accommodation needs up to 2032.  It takes full account of the changes to 
the National Planning Policy for Traveller Sites document published during 
August 2015 and brings all available data up to date.

3.2 The Assessment has been produced in accordance with National 
Planning Policy and through utilising a modified version of The Surrey 
Methodology. It includes a desktop review of existing local authority data 
together with the preparation of family generation trajectories for both of 
our existing Gypsy & Traveller sites.  

3.3 In order to address the changes in national planning policy the 
Assessment methodology was successfully expanded to provide a clearer 
overview of local need.  In particular, intelligence gained from the Borough 
Council’s Gypsy & Traveller Liaison Officer has helped to identify a more 
accurate projection of need. It has also sought to incorporate additional 
sources of data to provide an accurate projection of accommodation need 
as required by national planning policy.  We are confident that the 
approach we have taken is sound and robust, and will stand up to the 
scrutiny of examination by a government appointed Inspector.

3.4 From the evidence gathered it has been determined that, under the 
revised planning definition, there is no identified need for new additional 
traveller pitches.  On that basis the Assessment concludes that there is no 
current requirement for the Epsom & Ewell Local Plan to include a target 
for future new Gypsy and Traveller pitch provision.  The Assessment also 
concludes that there is no identifiable need for a dedicated transit site or 
for additional sites to meet the needs of the Travelling Showperson 
community.

Page 175

AGENDA ITEM 8



LICENSING AND PLANNING POLICY COMMITTEE
12 JULY 2017

3.5 Although the Assessment concludes that there is no need for new 
additional Traveller accommodation, the Borough Council, as local 
housing authority, continues to have a duty under the Housing Act 1985 
(as amended by the Housing and Planning Act 2016) to consider the 
needs of the non-travelling Traveller community.  It is considered both 
prudent and sound for the Borough Council to incorporate that need 
alongside other specialised forms of housing need – in much the same we 
that we already consider the accommodation needs of students, the 
elderly and the infirm.  Failure to do so could result in the Local Plan being 
challenged and found unsound at the examination stage.

4 Traveller Site Availability Assessment 

4.1 In parallel to preparing the TAA, the Borough Council has also produced a 
Traveller Site Availability Assessment.  This Study performs a similar 
function to the Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment.  Namely 
that it seeks to identify any available and deliverable sources of supply 
that could be brought forward as potential site allocation options, which 
could be tested through the forthcoming Issues & Options consultation. 

4.2 The Traveller Site Availability Assessment was also prepared in 
conjunction with the Working Group, who provided input on both the sites 
under consideration and the constraints affecting them.  The Site 
Availability Assessments highlights that potential sources of supply are 
heavily constrained and that there is significant competition for 
development sites from other uses, most notably for new market housing.  
On that basis it is highly likely that we will be unable to identify sufficient 
available and deliverable sites to meet all of the non-travelling Traveller 
accommodation need.  Nevertheless, as with other forms of housing 
demand the Borough Council must plan positively to meet as much of the 
need as possible.

4.3 In order to plan positively the Site Availability Assessment does identify 
the potential for modest expansion of the existing Greenlands site located 
in the north of the Borough.  Whilst this may only meet a proportion of the 
need identified for the non-travelling Traveller community it remains a 
positive step forward.  It is the only genuinely available and deliverable 
option that has come forward.   

5 Financial and Manpower Implications

5.1 There is an on-going requirement to deliver the emerging new Local Plan; 
which encompasses our policy for new Gypsy and Traveller 
accommodation. Staff resources are already allocated to ensure that this 
objective is achieved.

5.2 Chief Finance Officer’s comments: There are no implications for the 
purpose of this report.

6 Legal Implications (including implications for matters relating to equality)

Page 176

AGENDA ITEM 8



LICENSING AND PLANNING POLICY COMMITTEE
12 JULY 2017

6.1 Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 provides that a public authority must 
in the exercise of its functions have due regard to the need to—

(a).eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other 
conduct that is prohibited by or under this Act;

(b).advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a 
relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it;

(c).foster good relations between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it.

6.2 It further provides that having due regard to the need to advance equality 
of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it involves having due 
regard, in particular, to the need to—

(a).remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons who share a 
relevant protected characteristic that are connected to that 
characteristic;

(b).take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic that are different from the needs of persons 
who do not share it;

(c).encourage persons who share a relevant protected characteristic to 
participate in public life or in any other activity in which participation 
by such persons is disproportionately low.

6.3 Our Gypsy & Traveller communities fall within one of the strands with 
protected characteristics under the Equality Act 2010.  The work carried 
out to date takes account of equality issues.

6.4 The Council’s “Your Involvement in Planning” document addresses those 
equality issues related to consultation and engagement.  The full 
Equalities Impact Assessment will be submitted to the Secretary of State 
at that stage of the process to demonstrate how equalities issues have 
been addressed.

6.5 Monitoring Officer’s comments: it is important that the Council prepares 
planning policies with proper regard to national planning policies and is 
undertaken in a manner which complies with our statutory duties around 
equality and other relevant issues.  The assessment undertaken to date 
and Annexed to this report seeks to do precisely that.

7 Sustainability Policy and Community Safety Implications

7.1 The Local Plan will deliver the Council’s objectives for maintaining and 
enhancing the Borough as a sustainable place to live, work and visit. The 
Local Plan is subject to a sustainability appraisal process, which will build 
upon the appraisal work already carried out for the Core Strategy.

Page 177

AGENDA ITEM 8



LICENSING AND PLANNING POLICY COMMITTEE
12 JULY 2017

8 Partnerships

8.1 The Localism Act and national planning policy state that public bodies 
have a duty to cooperate on planning issues that cross administrative 
boundaries.  Meeting needs of our non-travelling Traveller communities 
may have strategic implications and require consideration under the duty.   
We will seek to meet this duty by working collaboratively with our partners 
in neighbouring boroughs and districts on issues of common interest.  
This is a continuous and evolving process that will help guide future policy 
development.  

9 Risk Assessment

9.1 National planning policy requires that we seek to identify and meet the 
needs of the Traveller community.  We have met that requirement through 
the production and preparation of our TAA which demonstrates that there 
is no need for new additional Traveller accommodation.

9.2 We have a similar duty, as local housing authority, under the Housing Act 
1985 (as amended) to consider the needs of the non-travelling Traveller 
community.  We are seeking to respond to that requirement by 
incorporating the accommodation needs of the non-travelling Traveller 
community as a component of our wider housing need.  Given the nature 
of the Borough and the significant constraints upon the availability of 
development there is risk that we will not be able to meet all of our 
projected housing need.  This may present an obstacle to our Local Plan 
progressing through the examination process.  We will seek to minimise 
that risk by ensuring that we have relevant and robust evidence to 
demonstrate that we have considered and exhausted all possible 
alternatives to this issue. 

10 Conclusion and Recommendations

10.1 That the Committee considers the findings of the TAA, agrees to its 
publication and agrees that there is no current requirement for the 
emerging Local Plan to include a target for Traveller pitch provision.

10.2 That the Committee agrees that there is an outstanding accommodation 
need for non-travelling Travellers.  Subject to the Committee’s agreement, 
this need will be considered as a specialised component of the Borough’s 
wider housing need.

10.3 That the Committee considers the outputs of the TSAA, agrees to its 
publication and agrees to it being used to inform the preparation of 
possible site allocation options.

10.4 That the Committee acknowledge and thank the Gypsy & Traveller 
Working Group for their contribution towards the preparation and 
production of the evidence base documents.

WARD(S) AFFECTED: (All Wards);

Page 178

AGENDA ITEM 8



 
  

 

Epsom & Ewell Borough Council 

June 2017 

Epsom & Ewell Local Plan: Traveller Site 
Accommodation Assessment 

Page 179

AGENDA ITEM 8
ANNEXE 1



Epsom & Ewell Local Plan  
Traveller Site Availability Assessment  
June 2017  
 

1 
 

Contents 

 
1. Introduction................................................................................................ 2 

2. Future Need .............................................................................................. 3 

      The Epsom & Ewell Traveller Accommodation Assessment ...................... 3 

   The Needs of the Non-Travelling Traveller Communities .......................... 4 

3. Current/ Existing Provision ........................................................................ 5 

4. Potential Sources of Supply ...................................................................... 6 

5. Potential Site Options ................................................................................ 8 

6. Conclusions and Recommendations ....................................................... 13 

 
  

Page 180

AGENDA ITEM 8
ANNEXE 1



Epsom & Ewell Local Plan  
Traveller Site Availability Assessment  
June 2017  
 

2 
 

1. Introduction 
 
1.1 Epsom & Ewell’s Gypsy and Traveller communities make a valued 

contribution towards the cultural mix of the Borough.  Like all 
residents of the Borough, they deserve a place to call home. It is the 
Borough Council’s responsibility to ensure that their specific 
accommodation needs are met.  

 
1.2 The Epsom & Ewell Traveller Site Availability Assessment (the 

Assessment) sits alongside the Borough-wide Traveller 
Accommodation Assessment (TAA) and will help inform the 
development of the Epsom & Ewell Local Plan.   

 
1.3 The Assessment provides an overview of the potential sources of 

traveller accommodation; the constraints to supply; and the site 
options that are genuinely available for consideration through the 
Local Plan process.  The outputs from the Assessment will be used, 
alongside the TAA, to inform the identification of possible site 
allocation options as part of the Issues and Options stage.  The 
Assessment will also serve as evidence throughout the subsequent 
examination of the Local Plan.   

 
Methodology 

1.4 Work on identifying potential site allocation options for new additional 
Traveller accommodation provision has been underway for some 
time.  Much of this work has been carried out in parallel with the 
Borough-wide Strategic Housing Market Assessment (SHMA) and 
Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment (SHLAA).  Whilst the 
detailed site requirements for new Traveller accommodation are 
different from those impacting upon new housing, they both share 
significant similarities.  Consequently, in basic terms the methodology 
applied to this Assessment runs in parallel to that used in the 
Borough-wide SHLAA. 

 
1.5 The first stage of the Assessment process is to establish the scale of 

need.  The Borough-wide TAA provides an overview of the projected 
need generated by the growth of the Borough’s existing Traveller 
communities.  In accordance with national policy it refines that 
projected need against the planning definition of ‘Gypsies and 
Travellers’ as set out in “Planning Policy for Traveller Sites”.  This 
provides the Assessment with a baseline position of future need. 

 
1.6 The second stage of the Assessment provides an overview of existing 

Traveller accommodation provision across the Borough.  This 
provides an overview of existing capacity. 

 
1.7 The Assessment then considers the issues that impact upon supply 

and availability. This element of the Assessment should be 
considered alongside more detailed analysis of Borough-wide 

Page 181

AGENDA ITEM 8
ANNEXE 1



Epsom & Ewell Local Plan  
Traveller Site Availability Assessment  
June 2017  
 

3 
 

constraints set out other evidence base documents, such as the 
Epsom & Ewell Green Belt Study; the Environmental Character Study; 
Green Infrastructure Study; and Constraints Study.   

 
1.8 Following on from the above the Assessment sets out the process 

that the Borough Council followed in identifying and giving 
consideration to possible candidate site allocation options.  This 
process concluded with the identification of site allocation options that 
were considered to be genuinely available, deliverable and relatively 
unconstrained potential sources of supply.  The Assessment offers 
any such sites up to the Local Plan Issues & Options stage for 
consideration through public consultation. 

 
 
2. Future Need 
 

The Epsom & Ewell Traveller Accommodation Assessment  
2.1 The TAA has been prepared to inform our emerging local planning 

policies in respect of meeting the needs of our Gypsy & Traveller 
communities.  It forms the basis on which we will identify the scale of 
new site allocations to meet any accommodation needs up to 2032. 
This Assessment is an update to the 2014 document.  It takes full 
account of the changes to the National Planning Policy for Traveller 
Sites document published during August 2015 and brings all available 
data up to date. 

 
2.2 The TAA has been produced in accordance with National Planning 

Policy and through utilising a modified version of The Surrey 
Methodology. It includes a desktop review of existing local authority 
data together with the preparation of family generation trajectories for 
both of our existing Gypsy & Traveller sites.  

 
2.3 Our latest TAA takes into consideration the changes in national policy 

relating to the planning definition of ‘Gypsies and Travellers’. The key 
change is that now those people who have ceased to travel 
permanently will not now fall under the planning definition of a 
Traveller for the purposes of assessing accommodation need in a 
TAA. 

 
2.4 The first stage of the TAA process identified a need for 27 new 

additional pitches and zero Travelling Showpeople plots over the 
period 2017-2032.  Of these 14 pitches will be needed to 
accommodate growth during the first five years, up to 2022. This 
equates to an annualised requirement of 1.8 pitches and zero plots. 
There is no identified need for transit accommodation over the period 
2017-2032. 

 
2.5 The second stage of the TAA process evaluated that initial level of 

need against the planning definition of ‘Gypsies and Travellers’.  Upon 

Page 182

AGENDA ITEM 8
ANNEXE 1



Epsom & Ewell Local Plan  
Traveller Site Availability Assessment  
June 2017  
 

4 
 

application of the new planning definition, the TAA determined that 
there is zero need for new additional pitches for ‘Gypsies and 
Travellers’- as defined by National Planning Policy.  Consequently, 
the TAA concludes that there is no requirement for new additional 
pitches to meet the accommodation needs of local Gypsy and 
Traveller communities. 

 
The Needs of the Non-Travelling Traveller Communities 

2.6 The implication of the change to the planning definition is that the 
housing needs of those members of our Traveller community who do 
not meet the new ‘planning’ definition of a Traveller will not form part 
of the ‘Gypsy and Traveller’ need identified in the TAA.  Nevertheless, 
the Borough Council has duty under the Housing and Planning Act 
(2016) to ‘consider the needs of people residing in or resorting to their 
district with respect to the provision of sites on which caravans can be 
stationed’.  Furthermore, the Equalities Act requires that Romany and 
Irish Travellers are provided with culturally sensitive and appropriate 
accommodation (IE mobile homes) even if they do not ‘travel’. 

 
2.7 On that basis and for the purposes of the Assessment, it is assumed 

that the future accommodation needs of local non-travelling Travellers 
will be incorporated, along with other specialised forms of 
accommodation need1, within the Borough’s wider housing need.  
Such an approach could identify the accommodation needs of the 
non-travelling Traveller community as a subset of the wider need 
arising from ‘households residing in caravans’.  Whilst national 
planning policy does not place a requirement upon local planning 
authorities to consider and meet such need, it is both prudent and 
sound for this matter to be fully considered as part of the Local Plan 
process.  Failure to do so could result in the Local Plan being 
challenged and found unsound at the examination stage.   

 
2.8 On that basis the TAA recommends that the projected scale of non-

travelling Traveller accommodation need be used to inform the 
preparation of the Plan.   These components total a 27 pitch need 
over the next fifteen years, with a 14 pitch need in the first 5 years.    

 
2.9 Evidence emerging from other Local Plan evidence base studies 

demonstrates that development land is in very high demand across 
the Borough.  The competition for housing development land will 
continue to be high. In particular the initial conclusions from the 
Borough-wide SHLAA indicate that there will be unmet need across 
all sectors of housing demand.  On that basis, the Assessment 
concludes that it is highly likely we will be unable to identify sufficient 
available and deliverable sites to meet all of the non-travelling 
Traveller accommodation need.  Nevertheless, as with other forms of 

                                            
1
 For example, the need for new student accommodation; sheltered accommodation for the 

elderly; and specialised close-care accommodation for the elderly and infirm. 

Page 183

AGENDA ITEM 8
ANNEXE 1



Epsom & Ewell Local Plan  
Traveller Site Availability Assessment  
June 2017  
 

5 
 

housing demand the Borough Council must plan positively to meet as 
much of the need as possible.  

 
 
3. Current/ Existing Provision  
  
3.1 There are currently two Gypsy and Traveller sites located within the 

Borough.  Both sites are located within the existing built-up area.  The 
first of these sites is the Greenlands site, Cox Lane, which is located 
in the north of the Borough adjacent to the Bonesgate River.  The 
second site is the Conifers, Kiln Lane, which is located to the north of 
Epsom Town Centre, adjoining the Nonsuch Trading Estate.  Both are 
public sites managed by the County Council.  
 

3.2 Between them the two sites have a total of 23 pitches.  All of the 
pitches are currently occupied.   

 
3.3 The Borough Council is also responsible for ensuring that there is an 

appropriate level of temporary accommodation provided to the 
Traveller community during the annual Epsom Derby Festival2. 

 
3.4 The Borough Council considers the Greenlands site at Cox Lane to 

be a successful community, where the members of the Traveller 
community are happy and have successfully integrated with the other 
local communities across Ruxley Ward.  However, the Greenlands 
site is operating at full capacity and there are now not enough pitches 
to meet the current needs of the families who have made this site 
their home. Consequently, it is acknowledged that there is an urgent 
requirement to provide additional space for these families. 

 
3.5 The Conifers site on Kiln Lane is in all respects the most sustainably 

located Traveller site in the whole of Surrey.  It is highly accessible to 
a wide range of facilities, services and amenities.  The occupancy and 
capacity of the Conifers site has fluctuated over the last ten years.  
Until recently the Conifers site had physical capacity (in terms of 
empty pitches) to accommodate additional families.  However, the site 
has since been reconfigured, with the unoccupied pitches being 
consumed by the occupied pitches.  Whilst there is now no spare 
capacity within the site to house new families, the existing occupied 
pitches do retain some ‘flex’ to meet the accommodation needs of 
existing resident families within the short term.  

 
3.6 Outside of the above two sites there has been no new 

accommodation, either public or private provided with the Borough 
since 1970.  This reinforces the Borough Council view that need, 

                                            
2
 The Derby Festival has well established historic links with our nation’s Traveller 

communities.   

Page 184

AGENDA ITEM 8
ANNEXE 1



Epsom & Ewell Local Plan  
Traveller Site Availability Assessment  
June 2017  
 

6 
 

within Epsom and Ewell, is being generated by the Borough’s existing 
communities rather than from in-migration. 

 
3.7 In terms of other accommodation, the Roveries site, which adjoins the 

Greenlands site in the north of the Borough, has served to provide a 
plot for Travelling Showpeople.  This is a privately owned site.  Over 
the last five years the use of this site has diminished.  We understand 
that the original owners/ occupiers are in the process of or have 
retired from the business.    

 
4. Potential Sources of Supply  
 
4.1 Epsom & Ewell is located in north Surrey and borders greater London. 

It has a population of about 72,000 people and covers an area of 
3,411 hectares.  It is the most densely populated Borough in Surrey. 

 
4.2 Approximately half of the Borough is comprised of existing built-up 

area.  The Borough’s built-up area is enclosed on its western, 
southern and eastern sides by Green Belt. 

 
4.3 The Borough’s built up area is comprised of a wide variety of very 

distinctive residential and commercial areas.  Many of these are 
covered by conservation area designations.  The Environmental 
Character Study identifies the key characteristics and visual 
appearances of those urban areas beyond the conservation areas. 

 
4.4 The Borough also contains a number of specific sites that have 

considerable biodiversity interest, most notably the Epsom Common 
Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI) and also local nature 
reserves at the Hogsmill and Horton Country Park. 

 
4.5 The availability of land for development is severly constrained.  For 

the purposes of the Assessment the following constraints have been 
highlighted:  

 

 About 42% of the Borough is covered by the Metropolitan Green 
Belt. National planning policy states that Gypsy and Traveller 
accommodation is not an appropriate use for Green Belt land, 
which makes it a strong policy constraint to the identification of 
sources of new accommodation.  The Assessment assumes that 
any potential site that is located within the Green Belt is not 
deliverable.  Consequently these sites have been discounted. 

 

 Most of the Borough’s Green Belt land has other constraints 
present that would (in the absence of the Green Belt 
designation) make deliverability problematic.  These include a 
range of national and local ecological designations – from 
SSSIs, Sites of Nature Conservation Interest, local nature 
reserves and biodiversity opportunity areas.  Equally, large 

Page 185

AGENDA ITEM 8
ANNEXE 1



Epsom & Ewell Local Plan  
Traveller Site Availability Assessment  
June 2017  
 

7 
 

areas of Green Belt are given over for formal and informal open 
space provision; much of which provides private market 
provision (typically in the form of golf or private members’ sports 
clubs).  Given the nature of these uses, coupled with 
landownership constraints, the opportunities offered by these 
sites are considered limited. 

 

 Land values are very high; particularly within the existing urban 
area, where the cost of housing is very high.  As a result sites 
located within the urban area are in high demand for 
redevelopment as open market housing and commercial uses.  
As a consequence most of the available land in the Borough 
may prove too expensive for the Traveller community to 
purchase and redevelop as accommodation. 

 

 Traveller pitches need to be relatively open and cannot be 
developed to the same densities that bricks and mortar houses 
can be built.  This means that Traveller pitches require a larger 
site area than the equivalent number of new houses3. 

 
4.6 The fact that all of the need for new accommodation is generated 

from two sites operated by local authorities is significant.  In simple 
terms the accommodation need in Epsom and Ewell is for more 
affordable provision.  There is no evidence that that the open-market 
will seek to meet that need.   Consequently securing public money to 
deliver new public Traveller sites is a major obstacle.  A single new 
pitch can cost up to £120,0004. Previously local authorities have been 
able to apply for grant funding from central government. However, this 
source of funding no longer exists.  In order to address this issue the 
government has indicated that they expect social housing providers to 
step-in and fill this funding shortfall. Unfortunately, most social 
housing providers have little experience, or appetite, in delivering 
Traveller accommodation.   

 
4.7 In conclusion, it would appear that the opportunities for new provision 

are extremely limited.  The Borough is sharply divided, in geographic 
terms, between the built-up area and the Green Belt, which 
completely encloses it.  Unlike other boroughs and districts (across 
the nation) that are comprised of a mix of rural and urban areas, there 
is no open countryside (so called white land), which readily lends itself 
to rural uses, such as new Traveller sites. 

 
 

                                            
3
 Government guidance on pitch size states that an average family pitch must be capable of 

accommodating an amenity building, a large trailer and touring caravan, parking space for two 
vehicles and a small garden area (DCLG, 2008). 
4
 This estimate includes the purchase costs of land, and the provision of water and electricity 

which may cost more/ or less depending upon the location of the site. 

Page 186

AGENDA ITEM 8
ANNEXE 1



Epsom & Ewell Local Plan  
Traveller Site Availability Assessment  
June 2017  
 

8 
 

4.8 On that basis it would appear that sites within or immediately adjacent 
to the existing built-up area may be the only source of supply for new 
Traveller accommodation.    

 
 
5. Potential Site Options 
 
5.1 The key output of this Assessment is the identification of potential 

sources of land supply that can be brought forward for new additional 
Traveller accommodation.  In this respect the Assessment seeks to 
identify sites in parallel to the SHLAA, which performs a similar 
exercise albeit in respect of identifying potential sources of bricks and 
mortar housing land supply.   

 
5.2 For clarification, it is stated from the outset that the Assessment, just 

like the SHLAA, does not allocate sites.  Rather it seeks to identify 
land that could provide potential sources of supply.  Those sites that 
are considered to provide viable, deliverable and available 
opportunities for new additional accommodation will require further 
testing through public consultation before being allocated. 

 
5.3 The identification of potential site options was undertaken with the 

following process:  
 

 Stage 1: Desk top search for sites.  This was carried out by the 
Borough Council’s Planning Policy Team, taking into 
consideration intelligence gained during the preparation of the 
Local Plan – inclusive of data gained during work on the 
Borough-wide SHLAA 2009.  This work was undertaken during 
the final quarter of 2013. 

 Stage 2: Internal workshop to discuss site options.  Officers from 
across the Council’s services (including Planning, Housing 
Services, Property Services and the Countryside Team) 
considered the sites identified under Stage 1.  This process 
began to discount sites that were considered inappropriate or 
undeliverable.  It also sought to identify other sites that could be 
considered.  This work was also undertaken during the final 
quarter of 2013. 

 Stage 3: The preparation of Site Options Consultation Paper. It 
was intended that this Paper would identify site options that 
could be tested through public consultation.    This Stage would 
have taken place during the first quarter of 2014. 

 Stage 4: All-Party Member Working Group formed to discuss 
Issues and Options around meeting Traveller accommodation 
needs.   The Working Group met during 2014, 2015 and 2016. 

 Stage 5: The Borough-wide SHLAA 2017.  This key Local Plan 
evidence base document has sought to identify potential sources 
of supply to meet future housing need.   It was prepared in 

Page 187

AGENDA ITEM 8
ANNEXE 1



Epsom & Ewell Local Plan  
Traveller Site Availability Assessment  
June 2017  
 

9 
 

accordance with national planning policy and took on board the 
direction of travel set out in the then recent Housing White Paper 
(Fixing our Broken Housing Market).  It focused upon identifying 
potential sources of supply that are available and which could be 
delivered (with some certainty) during the plan period.  This 
Stage of the process incorporated a call-for-sites exercise that 
provided an opportunity for landowners, developers and 
infrastructure providers to promote sites via the local plan 
process.  This Stage was undertaken during the first half of 
2017. 

 
5.4 During Stage 1 of the process a total of fifteen candidate locations for 

new pitches were identified across the Borough.  This Stage of the 
process took a “policy-off” approach to site finding; the intention being 
to ensure that all possible options were made available for 
consideration during the early stages.  This equates to the often 
quoted “leave no stone unturned” approach proffered by Planning 
Inspectors during local plan examinations. 

 
5.5 The locations identified during Stage 1 were in mainly located upon 

Green Belt sites either on the edge of or beyond the existing urban 
area.  Nevertheless, this process did identify four candidate locations 
within the existing built-up area.  All of the sites identified during this 
initial desk-stop stage were known to the Officers undertaking the 
Assessment, having come under consideration during the preparation 
of the original Borough-wide SHLAA (2009). 

 
5.6 During Stage 2 fifteen locations were considered and were the subject 

of an internal consultation, engaging with the assembled corporate 
intelligence from the Planning Department, Housing Services 
(including Gypsy & Traveller Liaison), Property Services and the 
Countryside Team.  The purpose of this exercise was to gain a fuller 
understanding of the identified locations and introduce a ‘sifting’ 
process that would discount those locations considered to be 
unavailable and undeliverable.   The outcome of this Stage of the 
process was to discount all but four of the sites from further 
consideration. 

 
5.7 The outputs from Stage 2 were used to inform the preparation and 

production of what had been intended to be a site option consultation 
paper.  This document would have further informed the plan 
preparation process.  It would have set out the anticipated Gypsy & 
Traveller Accommodation Need, as calculated by the Draft GTAA 
(2013)5, and sought comment on the four site allocation options that 
had emerged from the previous stages.   However, this process 

                                            
5
 This initial iteration of the subsequent TAA was prepared prior to the changes in national 

planning policy.  Consequently, the need for new additional Traveller accommodation was 
assessed against the previous definition.   

Page 188

AGENDA ITEM 8
ANNEXE 1



Epsom & Ewell Local Plan  
Traveller Site Availability Assessment  
June 2017  
 

10 
 

proved to be premature and ultimately abortive.  Adverse public 
opinion, prior to publication of the site options, resulted in the 
consultation process being postponed and an alternative approach 
towards site assessment being taken. 

 
5.8 In order to provide a secure environment for open discussion on this 

sensitive area of policy development, the Borough Council’s Licensing 
& Planning Policy Committee agreed to the formation of an All-Party 
Gypsy & Traveller Working Group.  Upon its formation, the Working 
Group convened to discuss a wide range of issues including the 
calculation of Traveller accommodation need; current provision; and 
possible site options.  The Working Group provided a useful forum for 
the further consideration of the site allocation options identified during 
the previous stages.  This included further visits to the potential site 
allocation options and the exploration of how the site options could be 
delivered. 

 
5.9 The further consideration of the potential site allocation options by the 

Working Group resulted in three of the possible site allocations being 
discounted from the process.  This is illustrated under Table 1.  

 
Table 1: Consideration of Possible Site Allocation Options (2015-16) 

 

Possible Site Size  Potential 
Yield 

Conclusions 

Site 1 
Extension to the 
Greenlands 
site, Cox Lane 
(into adjoin 
scrubland) 
 

0.2 ha About 3 – 4 
pitches 

This site option is located within the 
existing built-up area and offers a 
modest extension of existing 
provision.  The adjoining scrubland 
lies within a designated Nature 
Reserve, which may prove to be an 
obstacle to allocation.  Take 
forward as a site allocation 
option. 

Site 2 
The Roveries,  
Cox Lane 

0.35 
ha 

Up to 6 
pitches 

The site is located within the 
existing built-up area.  It is in 
private land ownership and at the 
time the intentions of the landowner 
were unknown.  The site has 
subsequently come forward and 
been given permission (at appeal) 
for redevelopment as new housing.  
Discount from the process on 
the basis that it is no longer 
available. 

Site 3 
Land at Hook 
Road Arena 

About 
1.5 ha 

Up to 30 
pitches  

The site lies entirely within the 
Green Belt.  It is currently utilised 
for public open space uses.  
Development of the site as new 

Page 189

AGENDA ITEM 8
ANNEXE 1



Epsom & Ewell Local Plan  
Traveller Site Availability Assessment  
June 2017  
 

11 
 

accommodation provision could 
result in significant conflict with the 
existing open space and 
neighbouring residential uses.  
Discount from the process on 
the basis that the site is not 
appropriate for new Traveller 
accommodation and is not 
readily available. 

Site 4 
Land south of 
the Manor, 
Christ Church 
Road 

About 
2.1 ha 

Over 30 
pitches 

The site lies entirely within the 
Green Belt.  It is sites within close 
proximity to Epsom Common SSSI 
and established residential uses.  
Development of the site as new 
accommodation provision could 
result in significant conflict with the 
adjoining protected habitats and 
neighbouring residential uses.  
Discount from the process on 
the basis that the site is not 
appropriate for new Traveller 
accommodation and is not 
readily available.   

 
5.10 Stage 5 of the process provided an opportunity for further alternative 

options for potential locations of new Traveller provision to come 
forward.  The associated call-for-sites exercise was open to 
landowners, developers, local communities and individuals as a forum 
to promote potential development sites – not just for new housing but 
also other uses and infrastructure.  It provided a genuine opportunity 
for possible Traveller accommodation options to come forward.  No 
new Traveller sites were promoted through this process. 

 
Extension to the Greenlands, Cox Lane 
5.11 An opportunity has been identified for a modest extension of the 

existing site beyond the bund to the south west. This extension would 
expand the site into the scrubland adjoining the site, which would 
provide space for an additional four pitches.  

 
5.12 Work has been undertaken to establish the biodiversity value of the 

adjoining scrubland.  Surrey Wildlife Trust undertook an assessment 
of the proposed extension, which revealed that there would be no 
significant harm to wildlife and habitat.    

 
  

Page 190

AGENDA ITEM 8
ANNEXE 1



Epsom & Ewell Local Plan  
Traveller Site Availability Assessment  
June 2017  
 

12 
 

5.13 The Working Group explored a number of other options to extend the 
site.  This included an option that would have expanded the site onto 
Metropolitan Open Land to the northwest; located beyond the 
Borough boundary in the Royal Borough of Kingston-upon-Thames.  
This option was discounted primarily because new additional 
accommodation would be an inappropriate use with Metropolitan 
Open Land.  The deliverability of such an option is also open to 
question - the Royal Borough of Kingston-upon-Thames has 
discounted opportunities for new accommodation located upon 
Metropolitan Open Land; and the cost of bridging the Bonesgate River 
would be prohibitive.   

 
5.14 On that basis, the Assessment identifies this site as the only available 

and deliverable option for new additional Traveller accommodation.  
 
 

  

Page 191

AGENDA ITEM 8
ANNEXE 1



Epsom & Ewell Local Plan  
Traveller Site Availability Assessment  
June 2017  
 

13 
 

6. Conclusions and Recommendations 
 
6.1 The Assessment has reached the following conclusions, from which a 

number of recommendations are noted for the purpose of informing 
the Local Plan making process. 

 

 The Assessment notes the outputs of the Epsom & Ewell 
Traveller Accommodation Assessment.  The Assessment 
highlights that the TAA has identified that there is no need for 
new additional pitches to meet the needs of local Gypsy and 
Traveller communities.   

 The Assessments notes that there continues to be an 
accommodation need for non-travelling Travellers.  This equates 
to 27 pitches over the next fifteen years.  The Borough Council 
continues to have a responsibility to take account of this 
accommodation need as a component of the Borough’s wider 
housing needs.   

 The Assessment has taken account of local housing land supply 
issues and accepts that meeting all of the Borough’s housing 
need is likely to be challenging.  Nevertheless, it is 
recommended that the Borough Council must plan positively to 
meet as much of the need as possible. 

 Need for accommodation is generated from within the two 
established public sites.  There is no evidence that that the 
open-market will seek to meet that need.    

 There are considerable constraints to identifying available and 
deliverable potential sites for consideration as new 
accommodation.  The opportunities for new provision are limited.  
For example, the Green Belt, open space uses and protected 
habitats serve as considerable constraints.   

 The process for identifying potential site allocation options 
resulted in the majority of suggested sites being discounted. 

 The Assessment concludes that the option of extending the 
Greenlands site is the only available and deliverable option. 

 The Assessments recommends that the Local Plan process 
includes a site allocation option that extends the Greenlands site 
as proposed.       

 

Page 192

AGENDA ITEM 8
ANNEXE 1



 
  

 

Epsom & Ewell Borough Council 

June 2017 

Traveller Accommodation Assessment 

Page 193

AGENDA ITEM 8
ANNEXE 2



Traveller Accommodation Assessment 
June 2017 

 
 

1 
 
 

 

Contents 

Executive Summary ......................................................................................... 4 

1. Introduction ............................................................................................ 5 

2. Policy Context ........................................................................................ 6 

3. Methodology ........................................................................................ 15 

4. Stage One: Gathering existing data ..................................................... 19 

5. Stage Two: Family Generation Trajectory from existing sites .............. 31 

6. Stage Three: Assessment of Accommodation Need ............................ 35 

7. Constraints ........................................................................................... 52 

8. Conclusions ......................................................................................... 54 

 
   

Page 194

AGENDA ITEM 8
ANNEXE 2



Traveller Accommodation Assessment 
June 2017 

 
 

2 
 
 

Glossary 
 

  Bricks and Mortar   Permanent mainstream housing. 
 
Caravan Mobile living vehicles also referred to as 

trailers or touring caravans. 
 
Concealed Households This refers to someone living within a 

household but wanting to move to their own 
accommodation to form a separate 
household (e.g. adult children, 18 years old 
and above, living at home). They are also 
sometimes referred to as suppressed 
households. 

 
Gypsy/Gypsies and Travellers Persons of nomadic habit of life whatever 

their race or origin, including such persons 
who on grounds only of their own or their 
family’s or dependants’ educational or health 
needs or old age have ceased to travel 
temporarily, but excluding members of an 
organised group of travelling showpeople or 
circus people travelling together as such. 

 
Household One person or a group of people (not 

necessarily related) living at the same 
address, in one or more mobile homes 
and/or caravans, and sharing at least one 
meal a day and housekeeping costs. 

 
Mobile Home Legally a caravan but not normally capable 

of being moved by towing. 
 
Pitch A piece of land which generally 

accommodates one mobile home and one 
touring Gypsy caravan, amenity and storage 
space, amenity building and parking. 

 
Plot A piece of land of unspecified size which 

accommodates Travelling Showpeople’s 
caravans, trailers, mobile homes and 
sometimes equipment. 

 
Settled Community Reference to non-travellers. 
 
Transit Site A permanent site intended for short-term 

temporary use by travellers on the move. 

Page 195

AGENDA ITEM 8
ANNEXE 2



Traveller Accommodation Assessment 
June 2017 

 
 

3 
 
 

  

Travelling Showpeople Members of a group organised for the 
purposes of holding fairs, circuses or shows 
(whether or not travelling together as such). 
This includes such persons who on the 
grounds of their own or their family’s or 
dependant’s more localised pattern of 
trading, educational or health needs or old 
age have ceased to travel temporarily, but 
excludes Gypsies and Travellers. 

 
Traveller Term often used to refer to the ethnic group 

of Irish Travellers with a heritage of 
travelling. 

 
Travellers A non-ethnic description for the purposes of 

planning to encompass all those of a 
travelling way of life whatever their race or 
origin. The term “travellers” means “gypsies 
and travellers” and “travelling showpeople” 
as defined above. 

 
Unauthorised development Land privately owned but without the benefit 

of planning permission. 
 
Unauthorised encampment Land occupied by Gypsies, Travellers and 

Travelling Showpeople and their homes but 
without the benefit of planning permission or 
the permission of the land owner. Can 
include land at the side of the road. 

Page 196

AGENDA ITEM 8
ANNEXE 2



Traveller Accommodation Assessment 
June 2017 

 
 

4 
 
 

Executive Summary 
 
The Epsom & Ewell Traveller Accommodation Assessment (TAA) has been 
prepared to inform our emerging local planning policies in respect of meeting 
the needs of our Gypsy & Traveller communities.  It forms the basis on which 
we will identify the scale of any new site allocations to meet accommodation 
needs up to 2032. This Assessment is an update to the 2014 document.  It 
takes full account of the changes to the National Planning Policy for Traveller 
Sites document published during August 2015 and brings all available data up 
to date.  
 
The baseline date for the Assessment is April 2017. 
 
The Assessment has been produced in accordance with National Planning 
Policy and through utilising a modified version of The Surrey Methodology. It 
includes a desktop review of existing local authority data together with the 
preparation of family generation trajectories for both of our existing Gypsy & 
Traveller sites. 
 
The Assessment considers the amendments to the planning definition of 
‘Gypsies and Travellers’. The key change is that those who have ceased to 
travel permanently will not now fall under the planning definition of a Traveller 
for the purposes of assessing accommodation need in a GTAA. 
 
The Assessment identified a need for 27 pitches and zero Travelling 
Showpeople plots over the period 2017-2032. Of these 14 pitches are needed 
in the first five years to 2022. This equates to an annualised requirement of 
1.8 pitches and zero plots. There is no identified need for transit 
accommodation over the period 2017-2032.  
 
However, upon application of the new planning definition, it was concluded 
that none of the need for new additional pitches is for ‘Gypsies and 
Travellers’- as defined by National Planning Policy.  As a consequence the 
Assessment identifies that there is no requirement for new additional pitches 
to meet the accommodation needs of the local Gypsy and Traveller 
communities. 
 
Nevertheless, the Council has a duty to consider the accommodation needs of 
‘caravan dwellers’ or ‘non-travelling Gypsies’ in the Borough. Consequently 
the pitch requirement identified should be considered within the Local Plan 
making process.  
 
The Assessment also provides an overview of the constraints to delivery; in 
terms of land supply and the likelihood that our need (for non-travelling 
Gypsies) will have to be met through the allocation of public sites.  

Page 197

AGENDA ITEM 8
ANNEXE 2



Traveller Accommodation Assessment 
June 2017 

 
 

5 
 
 

1. Introduction 
 
1.1 The Accommodation Assessment provides the initial evidence base 

needed to support our planning policy approach to meeting the needs 
of our local Gypsy, Traveller and Travelling Showpeople communities. 

 
1.2 We have produced the Assessment in accordance with the provisions 

of the Housing Act 2016 and the guidance contained within the 
government’s Planning policy for Traveller sites (August 2015). It is 
important to highlight that national policy and legislation requires us, as 
both local planning authority and the local housing authority, to set 
pitch targets which address the accommodation needs of our local 
Gypsy & Traveller communities. Critically, in respect of the local plan 
process, it also requires us to identify a rolling supply of sites in order to 
meet this need. 
 

1.3 The August 2015 revision of the government’s policy guidance (first 
published in March 2012) amended the definition of ‘Gypsies and 
Travellers’ and ‘Travelling Showpeople’ to exclude those that have 
‘permanently ceased to travel’. The new definition is set out in section 2 
(para 2.13).  

 
1.4 The Assessment sets out the evidence needed to derive locally set 

targets for pitch provision for Gypsies & Travellers and Travelling 
Showpeople. Subsequently we will need to identify and allocate 
sufficient sites through the Site Allocations Development Plan 
Document in order to meet the need identified by this TAA. 

 
1.5 In preparing our Assessment we have used a modified version of the 

Surrey Methodology to calculate our need for pitch provision. Our 
methodology takes advantage of our unique position in Surrey of 
having a Gypsy & Traveller Liaison Officer who interacts with our 
Gypsy & Traveller community on a regular basis.  This has allowed us 
to utilise local intelligence to plot family generation trajectories for our 
existing sites. We have combined this with a desktop review of our 
existing data to assess the needs of the Gypsy & Traveller and 
Travelling Showpeople communities over a 15 year period. We believe 
that our methodology produces more accurate results and is less 
intrusive than the traditional questionnaire-based approach. In light of 
the revised planning definition we have also distributed a short survey 
to residents of the two Sites within the Borough to establish how many 
households falls within the definition. 
 

1.6 The Assessment’s conclusions form the evidence base required to set 
Borough-wide pitch targets and to help identify potential site allocations 
to meet  any identified need.  

 

  

Page 198

AGENDA ITEM 8
ANNEXE 2



Traveller Accommodation Assessment 
June 2017 

 
 

6 
 
 

2. Policy Context 
 

Historical Approach 
 
2.1 Prior to 2010, the accommodation needs of the Gypsy & Traveller 

community were assessed on a regional basis. The number of pitches 
to be provided by each local authority was determined by the Regional 
Spatial Strategies (RSS). In the South East this was to be determined 
by a single issue review of the South East Plan, led by the South East 
England Partnership Board (SEEPB)1. This review was based on 
individual Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation Assessments (GTAAs) 
undertaken by local authorities. 
 

2.2 As part of this regional process we prepared a GTAA in partnership 
with the other East Surrey authorities, which was to become part of the 
South East Plan. This work identified need at the local level and then 
undertook a redistribution of need to take account of migration trends 
and, to a lesser extent, site availability and deliverability. The former is 
significant due to the traditionally nomadic culture of the Gypsy & 
Traveller community. The regional approach to identifying need and 
setting targets had some merit as it sought to address the issue at the 
strategic scale. Significantly, the regional approach also provided a 
mechanism for redistribution across the South East, something that is 
noticeably absent within the current process; and is not addressed 
under the Duty to Co-operate. The Assessment will consider the work 
undertaken for the South East Plan in more detail later in the 
document. 
 
National Planning Policy 

 
 Planning policy for Traveller sites 
 
2.3 In 2012 the government published the document Planning policy for 

Traveller sites (PPTS). This was replaced by a revised version in 2015. 
The 2015 revised document was the result of a Government 
consultation on proposed changes to planning policy. The purpose of 
the consultation was to amend the document to ensure equal treatment 
to both the traveller and settled communities. This was addressed by 
amending the definition of ‘Gypsy and Traveller’ and ‘Travelling 
Showpeople’ to remove those who have ceased to travel ‘permanently’ 
from the definition (see para 2.13 below). The changes also seek to 
increase the protection of sensitive areas such as the Green Belt.   

 
2.4 This document is the principal piece of planning policy guidance in 

relation to this issue.  It places the responsibility for the provision of 
new sites for the Gypsy & Traveller community entirely in the hands of 

                                            
 
1
 Formerly the South East England Regional Assembly (SEERA) 

Page 199

AGENDA ITEM 8
ANNEXE 2

http://www.tfl.gov.uk/assets/downloads/london-rail-and-tube-services-map.pdfhttps:/www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/6078/2113371.pdf
http://www.tfl.gov.uk/assets/downloads/london-rail-and-tube-services-map.pdfhttps:/www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/6078/2113371.pdf


Traveller Accommodation Assessment 
June 2017 

 
 

7 
 
 

local planning authorities. It seeks to ensure fair and consistent 
treatment for Travellers, in a way that supports their traditional and 
nomadic way of life while respecting the interests of the settled 
community. 
 

2.5 To achieve this, the guidance states: 
 

 that local planning authorities should make their own assessment of 
need for the purposes of planning 

 to ensure that local planning authorities, working collaboratively, 
develop fair and effective strategies to meet need through the 
identification of land for sites 

 to encourage local planning authorities to plan for sites over a 
reasonable timescale 

 that plan-making and decision-taking should protect Green Belt from 
inappropriate development 

 to promote more private Traveller site provision while recognising 
that there will always be those Travellers who cannot provide their 
own sites 

 that plan-making and decision-taking should aim to reduce the 
number of unauthorised developments and encampments and make 
enforcement more effective 

 for local planning authorities to ensure that their Local Plan includes 
fair, realistic and inclusive policies 

 to increase the number of Traveller sites in appropriate locations 
with planning permission, to address under provision and maintain 
an appropriate level of supply 

 to reduce tensions between settled and Traveller communities in 
plan-making and planning decisions 

 to enable provision of suitable accommodation from which Travellers 
can access education, health, welfare and employment infrastructure 

 for local planning authorities to have due regard to the protection of 
local amenity and local environment 

 
2.6 For the purpose of our Accommodation Assessment, two policies are 

relevant:  
 

Policy A: Using evidence to plan positively and manage development 
emphasises effective community engagement, collaborative working 
and the use of a robust evidence base to establish accommodation 
needs.  

 
Policy B: Planning for Traveller sites states that local planning 
authorities should set pitch targets which will address the 
accommodation needs of their Gypsy & Traveller communities, working 
collaboratively with neighbouring local planning authorities. 
 

Page 200

AGENDA ITEM 8
ANNEXE 2



Traveller Accommodation Assessment 
June 2017 

 
 

8 
 
 

2.7 Furthermore, Policy B also states that, in preparing their pitch targets, 
local planning authorities should: 

 

 identify and update annually, a supply of specific deliverable sites 
sufficient to provide five years’ worth of sites against their locally set 
targets 

 identify a supply of specific, developable sites or broad locations for 
growth, for years six to ten and, where possible, for years 11-15 

 consider production of joint development plans that set targets on a 
cross-authority basis, to provide more flexibility in identifying sites, 
particularly if a local planning authority has special or strict planning 
constraints across its area (local planning authorities have a duty to 
cooperate on planning issues that cross administrative boundaries) 

 relate the number of pitches or plots to the circumstances of the 
specific size and location of the site and the surrounding population’s 
size and density 

 protect local amenity and environment 
 

 National Planning Policy Framework 
 
2.8 The government states that Planning policy for Traveller sites should be 

read in conjunction with the National Planning Policy Framework 
(NPPF) so far as relevant. The NPPF sets out the overarching policy 
priorities for the planning system, against which local plans are being 
prepared and decisions made on planning applications. 
 

2.9 The NPPF directs local planning authorities to Planning policy for 
Traveller sites when assessing the accommodation needs of 
Travellers, and it will be an important consideration when identifying 
sites for Gypsy & Traveller accommodation once a needs assessment 
has been completed. This will be in parallel with local planning policies 
which guide site selection. 
 
The Housing and Planning Act 1985 
 

2.10 The requirement to assess the accommodation needs of the Gypsy & 
Traveller community is found in the Housing and Planning Act 1985 (as 
amended by the Housing and Planning Act 2016). The 1985 Act 
requires local housing authorities to include Travellers in their 
accommodation assessments and to take a strategic approach, 
including drawing up a strategy demonstrating how the accommodation 
needs of Travellers will be met.  We are the local housing authority for 
Epsom and Ewell and must therefore discharge this additional duty. 
 
Local Planning Policy 
 

2.11 Our Core Strategy was adopted in 2007 and includes a policy (Core 
Strategy Policy CS10) that sets out the intention to meet 

Page 201

AGENDA ITEM 8
ANNEXE 2



Traveller Accommodation Assessment 
June 2017 

 
 

9 
 
 

accommodation needs (once identified). The regional approach to 
calculating accommodation need influenced the preparation of Core 
Strategy Policy CS10. This policy is now out of date insomuch as it 
refers to the accommodation assessments being undertaken as part of 
the South East Plan review. Therefore, provision for additional sites will 
be made via the emerging Local Plan on the basis of the findings of this 
assessment. 
 

2.12 In accordance with national policy, we have included a criteria based 
policy to guide the decision-making process regarding new Gypsy & 
Traveller sites via our Development Management Policies DPD 
(September 2015). Policy DM23 states that proposals for new sites will: 

 
i. have good access to local services including shops, schools, 

GPs and other health services; 
ii. have good access to and from the public highway, bus routes 

and other transport modes; 
iii. demonstrate that they are compatible with any existing 

neighbouring residential uses; 
iv. not involve the erection of unsightly, significant permanent 

structures; 
v. not be located in areas of high flood risk; 
vi. not be located on contaminated land; and 
vii. result in no net loss of biodiversity. 

 
 
Planning Definitions  
 

 
2.13 The August 2015 Planning Policy for Traveller Sites’ (PPTS) guidance 

document states:  
 

For the purposes of this planning policy “gypsies and travellers” means: 
 
Persons of nomadic habit of life whatever their race or origin, including 
such persons who on grounds only of their own or their family’s or 
dependants’ educational or health needs or old age have ceased to 
travel temporarily, but excluding members of an organised group of 
travelling showpeople or circus people travelling together as such. 

 
In determining whether persons are “gypsies and travellers” for the 
purposes of this planning policy, consideration should be given to the 
following issues amongst other relevant matters: 
 
a) Whether they previously led a nomadic habit of life. 
b) The reasons for ceasing their nomadic habit of life. 
c) Whether there is an intention of living a nomadic habit of life in the 
future, and if so, how soon and in what circumstances. 

 

Page 202

AGENDA ITEM 8
ANNEXE 2



Traveller Accommodation Assessment 
June 2017 

 
 

10 
 
 

For the purposes of this planning policy, “travelling showpeople” 
means: 
 
Members of a group organised for the purposes of holding fairs, 
circuses or shows (whether or not travelling together as such). This 
includes such persons who on the grounds of their own or their family’s 
or dependants’ more localised pattern of trading, educational or health 
needs or old age have ceased to travel temporarily, but excludes 
Gypsies and Travellers as defined above. 

 
2.14 No definition or guidance is provided in the PPTS of what is meant by 

"...ceased to travel temporarily,..." or what constitutes "a nomadic habit 
of life...". In the absence of any guidance we have sought best practice 
from recent assessments  prepared elsewhere. Many of these have 
been prepared by Opinion Research Services who specialise in 
GTAAs. Recent locally prepared assessments (produced during late 
2016-2017) include Elmbridge BC, Lewisham and the Hampshire 
Consortium.    
 

2.15 A summary of case law in relation to the term ‘nomadic’ and what 
constitutes ‘travelling’ is outlined below.  
 

2.16 R v South Hams District Council (1994)- defined Gypsies as 
“persons who wander or travel for the purpose of making or seeking 
their livelihood (not persons who travel from place to place without any 
connection between their movements and their means of livelihood.)” 
This includes ‘born’ Gypsies and Travellers as well as ‘elective’ 
Travellers such as New Age Travellers. 
 

2.17 Maidstone BC v Secretary of State for the Environment and Dunn 
(2006), it was held that a Romany Gypsy who bred horses and 
travelled to horse fairs at Appleby, Stow-in-the-Wold and the New 
Forest, where he bought and sold horses, and who remained away 
from his permanent site for up to two months of the year, at least partly 
in connection with this traditional Gypsy activity, was entitled to be 
accorded Gypsy status. 
 

2.18 In Greenwich LBC v Powell (1989), Lord Bridge of Harwich stated 
that a person could be a statutory Gypsy if he led a nomadic way of life 
only seasonally. The definition was widened further by the decision in 
R v Shropshire CC ex p Bungay (1990). The case concerned a 
Gypsy family that had not travelled for some 15 years in order to care 
for its elderly and infirm parents. An aggrieved resident living in the 
area of the family’s recently approved Gypsy site sought judicial review 
of the local authority’s decision to accept that the family had retained 
their Gypsy status even though they had not travelled for some 
considerable time. Dismissing the claim, the judge held that a person 
could remain a Gypsy even if he or she did not travel, provided that 
their nomadism was held in abeyance and not abandoned. 

Page 203

AGENDA ITEM 8
ANNEXE 2



Traveller Accommodation Assessment 
June 2017 

 
 

11 
 
 

 
2.19 That point was revisited in the case of Hearne v National Assembly 

for Wales (1999), where a traditional Gypsy was held not to be a 
Gypsy for the purposes of planning law as he had stated that he 
intended to abandon his nomadic habit of life, lived in a permanent 
dwelling and was taking a course that led to permanent employment. 
 

2.20 In line with other recently published GTAAs the implications of these 
rulings in terms of applying the new definition is that it will it will only 
include those who travel (or have temporarily ceased to travel) for 
work purposes and in doing so stay away from their usual place 
of residence. It will not include those who commute to work daily from 
a permanent place of work.  
 

2.21 This is an area where case law is likely to continue to develop over 
time but for the purposes of this assessment in 2017 the Council has 
taken a pragmatic approach and looked to recently published 
assessments for best practice. Our approach and justification is set out 
below. 

 
2.22 As of May 2017 only a small number of appeal decisions have been 

issued by the Planning Inspectorate on how the new definition should 
be applied. These support the view that households need to be able to 
provide information that they travel for work purposes to meet the new 
definition, and stay away from their usual place of residence when 
doing so, or have ceased to travel temporarily due to education, ill 
health or old age but intend to travel (for work purposes) again in the 
future.  
 

2.23 In this Assessment, those households who have indicated in our the 
survey that they do not travel for work purposes and do not intend 
to travel again have been considered to not meet the revised 
planning definition. Those households (part or whole) that still travel 
for work or intend to travel in the future but have temporarily ceased 
to travel due to education, health needs or old age were considered to 
meet the definition. Those families will need to demonstrate that they 
have travelled in the past. Households where some family members 
travel for nomadic purposes on a regular basis, but where other family 
members stay at home to look after children in education, or other 
dependents with health problems have been defined as travelling under 
the new definition.  
 

2.24 It is challenging to predict at this point whether households that may 
form in the future as a result of demographic growth (currently children/ 
young teenagers) will choose to lead a nomadic habit of life and 
therefore meet the planning definition. Newly forming families/ 
households make up a proportion of the pitch requirements for the next 
15 years.  In this Assessment it has been assumed (unless other 
information is available) that the young family members will continue to 

Page 204

AGENDA ITEM 8
ANNEXE 2



Traveller Accommodation Assessment 
June 2017 

 
 

12 
 
 

lead similar nomadic lifestyles as their family currently enjoy.  This 
forms the basis for which category their need falls under. This is 
considered to be a positive and proportionate approach to assessing 
need. 
 

  

Page 205

AGENDA ITEM 8
ANNEXE 2



Traveller Accommodation Assessment 
June 2017 

 
 

13 
 
 

Non- Travelling Households 
 
2.25 The implication of the change to the planning definition is that the 

housing needs of any Gypsy, Traveller or Travelling Showperson 
households who do not meet the new ‘planning’ definition of a Traveller 
will not form part of the ‘Gypsy and Traveller’ need in this assessment. 
Nevertheless the Council still has a duty under the Housing Act 1985 to 
‘consider the needs of people residing in or resorting to their district 
with respect to the provision of sites on which caravans can be 
stationed’.  Furthermore, the Equality Act 2010 requires that Romany 
and Irish Travellers are provided with culturally sensitive and 
appropriate accommodation (IE mobile homes) even if they do not 
‘travel’.  

 
2.26 This ‘non travelling’ need must be assessed as part of the wider 

housing needs of the area.  This could potentially be carried out 
through the Strategic Housing Market Assessment (SHMA) process.  If 
that approach were taken any identified need could be classified as a 
subset of the wider need arising from ‘households residing in 
caravans’. Whilst it is not a requirement to include details of need from 
Non-Travelling Gypsies and Travellers in the TAA, Local Authorities will 
still need to consider how they should have their accommodation 
needs addressed under the provisions of the National Planning Policy 
Framework.  An assessment of this need has therefore been made to 
support the Council with its Local Plan making.  
 
Unknown Households 
 

2.27 As well as calculating needs for households that meet the new 
definition, the needs of the households where a survey was not 
completed or their nomadic habits have not been identified through the 
knowledge of the Gypsy Liaison Officer need to be considered. These 
are generally referred to as “unknown” or “hidden” households.   

 
2.28 Some Local Authorities apply an average percentage to account for 

this number.   This seeks to reflect the percentage of those who are 
known to be or not be gypsies under the new definition. This is 
considered to be a reasonable approach, which has been applied by 
this Assessment - alongside any more detailed information we have 
from the family formation and over-crowding data.  

  

Page 206

AGENDA ITEM 8
ANNEXE 2



Traveller Accommodation Assessment 
June 2017 

 
 

14 
 
 

 
2.29 The additional needs and pitch requirements will be set out in three 

forms; 
 
 1. Gypsies and Travellers meeting the new planning definition including 

those who may have ceased to travel temporarily under the new 
definition 

 2. Households who may meet the planning definition but have not been 
verified  
3. ‘Non Travelling’ Gypsies and Travellers (households residing in 
caravans but do not travel or have ceased to travel permanently) 
 
 

 
  

Page 207

AGENDA ITEM 8
ANNEXE 2



Traveller Accommodation Assessment 
June 2017 

 
 

15 
 
 

3. Methodology 
 
3.1 In preparing our TAA, we have taken account of national legislation and 

guidance.  Planning policy for Traveller sites emphasises the need for 
collaborative working through the “Duty to Cooperate” as set out in the 
Localism Act and within the National Planning Policy Framework. 
Significantly, this requires that local planning authorities demonstrate 
collaboration with one another during the preparation of their 
accommodation assessment work. 

 
3.2 In order to meet this requirement, the Surrey authorities prepared a 

joint methodology for conducting Gypsy & Traveller needs 
assessments. This was prepared collaboratively with all of the Surrey 
boroughs and districts. During the preparation of the Surrey 
methodology, the Surrey authorities took into account: 
 

 The DCLG’s Planning policy for Traveller sites; 

 DCLG guidance on Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation 
Assessments (from 2007); 

 Criticism of previous accommodation assessments; and 

 Knowledge and experience of assumptions featuring in other 
accommodation assessments. 

 
3.3 In accordance with national guidance, the Surrey Methodology 

identifies the accommodation needs of the Gypsy & Traveller 
community using a three stage process:  
 

 a desktop review of existing data; 

 interviews with the Gypsy & Traveller community; and  

 a review based on this data. 
 
3.4 In accordance with Planning policy for Traveller sites and the Surrey 

Methodology, the aims of this Traveller Accommodation Assessment 
are to: 
 

a) create a robust, transparent and consistent evidence base to 
identify the need for Gypsy and Traveller pitches and Travelling 
Showpeople plots in the borough; 

b) identify current levels of accommodation provision in the Gypsy, 
Traveller and Travelling Showpeople communities; 

c) identify current levels of need, including overcrowding, 
concealed households, households living in bricks and mortar 
housing but wishing to live on sites, identifying households living 
on sites but wishing to live in bricks and mortar housing; 

d) show household preferences in terms of the location, tenure and 
type of accommodation sought; 

Page 208

AGENDA ITEM 8
ANNEXE 2



Traveller Accommodation Assessment 
June 2017 

 
 

16 
 
 

e) identify the size and type of accommodation provision needed, 
including the demand for authorised sites (both static and 
transit) and for permanent affordable housing provision; 

f) identify future levels of accommodation need over a fifteen year 
period; 

g) inform the development of future housing and planning policy at 
a borough level; and 

h) inform the Council’s understanding of the need for permanent 
and transit pitches and plots. 

 
3.5 The Surrey methodology identifies a series of figures that are required 

in order to identify a target. The need is calculated by identifying the 
total demand and subtracting the projected supply. 

 
Current Supply: 
A. Current supply of occupied local authority residential site 

pitches/plots in local authority area 
B. Current supply of authorised and occupied privately owned site 

pitches/plots in local authority area 
C. Unauthorised pitches/plots tolerated for more than 10 years 
 
Projected Supply: 
D. Number of unused/vacant local authority pitches/plots 
E. Number of unused/vacant authorised privately owned pitches/plots 
F. Number of existing pitches/plots expected to become vacant in the 

near future (LA and privately owned) 
G. Number of households in site pitch/plot accommodation expressing 

a desire to live in bricks and mortar housing (in next five years) 
H. New local authority pitches/plots planned during years 1-5 
I. Existing applications for private pitches/plots (including 

unauthorised sites) likely to gain planning permission during years 
1-5 

 
Current Demand: 
J. Households seeking permanent site accommodation in the area 
K. Households on unauthorised encampments expressing a need to 

reside in the Borough/District 
L. Households currently on unauthorised developments for which 

planning permission is unlikely to be granted 
M. Currently overcrowded or doubled up households 
N. Temporary planning permissions due to expire before 2018 
 
Future Demand: 
O. Future need: New family formations expected to arise from existing 

borough households 2013-2018 
 

 
3.6 We used a modified form of the Surrey Methodology to prepare our 

Accommodation Assessment. We believe that the traditional 

Page 209

AGENDA ITEM 8
ANNEXE 2



Traveller Accommodation Assessment 
June 2017 

 
 

17 
 
 

questionnaire-based approach to calculating need has several 
disadvantages. Firstly, the Gypsy & Traveller community have 
expressed dissatisfaction with this approach in the past including 
specific concerns that it has yielded little on-the-ground provision. 
Secondly, there is the issue of consultation fatigue, with the Gypsy & 
Traveller community feeling that they are constantly subjected to 
consultation, which could result in an inadequate response rate or 
inaccurate information being obtained. This does not help to establish 
an accurate picture of the needs of the community.  

 
3.7 Fortunately, the Borough is in a unique position in Surrey in that we 

have a dedicated Gypsy & Traveller Liaison Officer who knows our 
community very well and is in regular contact with them. This very 
important resource allows us to engage directly with our existing Gypsy 
& Traveller communities without the need for specialised consultation. 
Consequently, we are able to utilise this Officer’s expertise, knowledge 
and contacts to map a site specific Gypsy & Traveller family generation 
trajectory.  Similarly Surrey County Council provided as much 
information as possible about the residents at the site that they manage 
in the Borough. We can use this to identify the scale of our need for 
new pitches over the course of the plan period and provide a timeframe 
for when this need is likely to materialise.  
 

3.8 In light of the amended definition, a short survey has been distributed 
to our current residents at the Borough’s Sites.  This serves as an 
addition to our methodology. The addition of the survey was necessary 
in order to determine whether the households at each of the Council’s 
current sites fall under the new definition or not. 
 

3.9 Furthermore, an analysis of the households on the Surrey CC waiting 
list has also been carried out in an  attempt to determine whether they 
would fall under the new definition or not. This additional analysis also 
sought to establish whether these households are already residing in 
the Borough (in bricks and mortar accommodation) or whether they 
have been double counted - as residing on currently over-crowded 
pitches.  
 

3.10 In preparing the Assessment we have combined the family generation 
trajectories with a desktop review of other data in line with the Surrey 
Methodology to assess our need and calculate a pitch target. We are 
confident that this methodological approach produces a more accurate 
assessment of need than the conventional questionnaire-based 
approach. It is also less intrusive and represents a proportionate 
evidence base to the Borough’s specific local needs.  

  

Page 210

AGENDA ITEM 8
ANNEXE 2



Traveller Accommodation Assessment 
June 2017 

 
 

18 
 
 

 
3.11 In light of the change in planning definition, a fourth stage has been 

added to determine which category the need falls under;  
 

1. Gypsies and Travellers meeting the new planning definition including 
those who may have ceased to travel temporarily under the new 
definition 

 2. Households who may meet the planning definition but this has not 
been verified  
3. Non Travelling Gypsies and Travellers (households residing in 
caravans but that do not travel or have ceased to travel permanently) 
 

3.12 In preparing our Assessment we followed a four-stage process: 
 
Stage One: Desktop review of existing data 
Stage Two: Family Generation Trajectory from existing sites 
Stage Three: Assessment of need 
Stage Four:   Determination of Need Category  
 

  

Page 211

AGENDA ITEM 8
ANNEXE 2



Traveller Accommodation Assessment 
June 2017 

 
 

19 
 
 

4. Stage One: Gathering existing data 
 
4.1 The first stage of the Assessment process comprised a review of the 

available literature and secondary sources obtained from government 
(central and local) and regional and community bodies. This included 
the collection and review of: 
 

 Data from previous Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation 
Assessment (GTAA) 

 Biannual Gypsy and Traveller caravan counts and annual Travelling 
Showpeople counts for the Borough 

 Census data 

 Planning history data on public and private authorised traveller sites 
including information on the number of caravans permitted on each 
site, whether the planning permission was granted on a permanent 
or temporary basis, and whether it restricted occupancy to named 
individuals 

 Information on planning applications for traveller caravan sites 
which have been refused planning permission by the local planning 
authority over the previous 5 years and planning appeal records. 

 Current planning applications and planning appeals within the 
borough awaiting determination 

 Unauthorised traveller sites, encampments and developments 
including information on the number of caravans and family groups 
on each site, length of occupation, and the up to date position 
regarding planning applications, appeals and outcomes and/or 
enforcement action 

 Surrey County Council traveller site waiting list information- this 
includes the current addresses, ethnicity and details of need. 

 Housing needs register 

 Information on households in bricks and mortar accommodation 

 Data from other local authorities 
 

Previous Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation Assessment 
(GTAA) 

 
4.2 We previously undertook a Gypsy & Traveller Accommodation 

Assessment in 2007 as part of the South East Plan process. The 
GTAA was prepared jointly with the other East Surrey authorities (Mole 
Valley, Reigate & Banstead and Tandridge). Anglia Ruskin University 
was commissioned to undertake the study. The baseline figure in 2007 
for the Borough was 30 authorised Gypsy & Traveller pitches and four 
Travelling Showpeople plots. The study identified two public (local 
authority) sites, no permanent private Gypsy & Traveller sites, no 
transit sites, and one private Travelling Showpeople site.  

 
4.3 The East Surrey GTAA (2007) identified a need for an additional 57 

Gypsy & Traveller pitches and nine additional Travelling Showpeople 

Page 212

AGENDA ITEM 8
ANNEXE 2



Traveller Accommodation Assessment 
June 2017 

 
 

20 
 
 

plots over the period 2006-2016 across the whole of the East Surrey 
area. The conclusion from the GTAA informed the East Surrey 
authorities’ advice to the South East England Regional Assembly 
(SEERA) as part of the South East Plan partial review process.   This 
gave two different options for site distribution that could have resulted 
in a requirement to deliver either 13 or 14 additional pitches in Epsom 
& Ewell during the period 2006-2016.  This work was used to inform the 
abortive South East Plan Partial Review, which was to have identified 
specific needs targets across the Region.  Although the Partial Review 
progressed to an examination in public, the revocation of the regional 
planning tier brought the process to a halt and introduced the 
requirement for individual Assessments. 
 

4.4 In 2013 work started on a review of the GTAA in line with the (then) 
current guidance and the NPPF. This was to inform the preparation of 
our Local Plan. The draft document was complete in 2014 but was 
never published.  This is now out of date so will be replaced in its 
entirety by this document.   

 
 Biannual Gypsy and Traveller caravan counts and annual 

Travelling Showpeople counts for the Borough 
 
4.5 The biannual caravan count has been undertaken since 1979, and 

provides a useful starting point in assessing the current scale and 
distribution of caravan numbers across the Borough. It is also useful in 
examining recent trends. However, there are issues in terms of the 
robustness of the count, as it is only a “snapshot” in time, and only 
counts caravans rather than households. It also excludes Gypsies and 
Travellers in bricks and mortar accommodation. The count was also 
renamed the Traveller caravan count in July 2013, meaning that it 
incorporates both ethnic Gypsies and Travellers as well as other non-
traditional Travellers. 
 

4.6 The data in Table 1 indicates that the number of caravans in the 
Borough has remained relatively constant over the previous 10 years, 
although there has been a slight rise over the last two years. The 
caravans have all been located on the existing public sites in the 
Borough and not on other unauthorised sites. Although historically we 
have not had any caravans found to be on unauthorised sites when the 
count has taken place, this trend cannot be guaranteed to continue if 
evidence suggests need is rising. 

 
4.7 The annual Travelling Showpeople caravan count has only been 

undertaken since 2011 and therefore does not provide as robust a 
source of data as the biannual Gypsy and Traveller caravan count. 

 
  
  

Page 213

AGENDA ITEM 8
ANNEXE 2



Traveller Accommodation Assessment 
June 2017 

 
 

21 
 
 

Table 1: Epsom & Ewell Biannual Gypsy & Traveller Caravan Count 
2003-2016 

 

Date 

Authorised Sites Unauthorised Sites 

Total 

Caravans 
on 

Socially 
Rented 
Sites 

Caravans 
on Private 

Sites 

Caravans on 
unauthorised 
developments 

Caravans on 
unauthorised 
encampments 

Jan 03 39 0 0 0 39 

Jul 03 41 0 0 0 41 

Jan 04 26 0 0 0 26 

Jul 04 29 0 0 0 29 

Jan 05 26 0 0 0 26 

Jul 05* - - - - - 

Jan 06 - - - - - 

Jul 06* - - - - - 

Jan 07 27 0 0 0 27 

Jul 07 28 0 0 0 28 

Jan 08 27 0 0 0 27 

Jul 08 31 0 0 0 31 

Jan 09 27 0 0 0 27 

Jul 09 25 0 0 0 25 

Jan 10 25 0 0 0 25 

Jul 10 25 0 0 0 25 

Jan 11 25 0 0 0 25 

Jul 11 27 0 0 0 27 

Jan 12 22 0 0 0 22 

Jul 12 34 0 0 0 34 

Jan 13 35 0 0 0 35 

Jul 13 36 0 0 0 36 

Jan 14 27 0 0 0 27 

Jul 14 42 0 0 0 42 

Jan 15 37 0 0 0 37 

Jul 15 28 0 0 0 28 

Jan 16 25 0 0 0 25 

 
*Data for the July ’05, January ’06 and July ’06 counts is unavailable 

 
Table 2: Epsom & Ewell Travelling Showpeople Caravan Count 2011-
2013 

  

Date 
Caravans on 

Authorised Sites 
Caravans on 

Unauthorised Sites 

Jan 11 0 0 

Jan 12 0 0 

Jan 13 0 0 

Jan 14 0 0 

Jan 15 0 0 

Jan 16 0 0 

 

Page 214

AGENDA ITEM 8
ANNEXE 2



Traveller Accommodation Assessment 
June 2017 

 
 

22 
 
 

  
  

Page 215

AGENDA ITEM 8
ANNEXE 2



Traveller Accommodation Assessment 
June 2017 

 
 

23 
 
 

Census Data 
 
4.8 The 2011 census was the first time that Gypsies and Irish Travellers 

were recorded as a separate ethnic group. The census recorded 132 
people of Gypsy or Irish Traveller ethnicity out of a total Borough 
population of 75,102. This equates to just 0.2% of the Borough’s 
population. It is noted that Travelling Showpeople are not identified as 
a separate ethnic group by the census. 

 
Planning History 

 
4.9 At the time of the TAA, there are two local authority sites and no other 

temporary or permanent authorised private sites in the Borough. There 
is one authorised private Travelling Showpeople site in the Borough. 
Additionally, we make provision for a temporary traveller site on Epsom 
Racecourse for two weeks every year to coincide with the Epsom 
Derby Festival. This information is set out under Table 3.  There have 
been no additional public or private sites provided since 1978.  It is 
highlighted that no new sites have been promoted through Local Plan 
call for sites/ site allocations process. 

 
Table 3: Planning History of sites in Epsom & Ewell 

  

Site 
Planning 

Reference 
Number of 
Caravans 

Permanent/ 
Temporary Decision 

Derby EH 
Inspections, 
Grand Stand 
Road, Epsom 98/00051/FUL 230 

Permanent 
– use of 

land each 
year for a 
two week 

period 
during the 
Derby race 

meeting Granted 

Land adjoining 
Langley Vale 
Road, Epsom 92/00154/ZFL 230 

Temporary 
– use of 

land each 
year 

between 
1992 and 

1997 
inclusive for 
a two week 

period 
during the 
Derby race 

meeting Granted 

 
  

Page 216

AGENDA ITEM 8
ANNEXE 2



Traveller Accommodation Assessment 
June 2017 

 
 

24 
 
 

Table 4: Planning applications refused permission and appeal data 
  

Site 
Planning 

Reference 
Number of 
Caravans 

Permanent/ 
Temporary Decision 

288 
Chessington 
Road, West 
Ewell 07/00480/FUL 3 

Temporary 
(1 year) Refuse 

Tattenham 
Corner Stables, 
Tattenham 
Corner Road, 
Epsom 04/01195/FUL 2 Temporary 

Refuse 
(Appeal 

dismissed 
17/11/2005) 

  
 
4.10 Table 4 illustrates the scale of historic planning applications and it is 

highlighted that there are currently no planning applications or appeals 
for Gypsy and Traveller sites awaiting determination. 

 
Unauthorised Sites 

 
4.11 The Assessment examined data relating to both unauthorised 

developments and unauthorised encampments. 
 

4.12 Unauthorised developments are defined as pitches/plots on land 
owned by the residents but without planning permission (excluding 
those that have been tolerated for more than 10 years) and not 
expected to receive planning permission. Since these sites are, by 
definition, unauthorised, these households are in need of authorised 
legal accommodation, whether through the granting of planning 
permission, the provision of other accommodation options or the 
provision of accommodation elsewhere. 

 
4.13 There are currently no unauthorised developments in the Borough and 

no unauthorised developments that have been tolerated for more than 
10 years. 

 
4.14 Unauthorised encampments are defined as pitches/plots on land not 

owned by the residents. We have no current enforcement cases 
relating to unauthorised encampments within the borough. 

 
4.15 The presence and incidence of unauthorised encampments is often a 

significant issue that impacts upon local authorities, landowners, 
Gypsies and Travellers and the settled population. Unauthorised 
encampments have often become synonymous with the Gypsy and 
Traveller community due to their location on public and private land. 

 
4.16 Due to the nature of unauthorised encampments (among other things - 

their unpredictability and seasonal fluctuations), it can be difficult to 

Page 217

AGENDA ITEM 8
ANNEXE 2



Traveller Accommodation Assessment 
June 2017 

 
 

25 
 
 

extrapolate a comprehensive picture of need without considering a 
range of interconnected issues. It is highlighted that the caravan count 
data above (Table 1) shows that the level of unauthorised encampment 
has been at a consistently low level in recent years. 
 

4.17 Our records indicate 17 instances of unauthorised encampments over 
the past 2 years- these are summarised below. It is suspected that 
many of these are by the same family/ group but no information is 
available to confirm this.  

 
 Table 5: Unauthorised Encampments 2015 and 2016 

 

Site Number of 
Caravans 

Length of 
Occupation  

Planning Position  

2015 (calendar year) 

Norris Close, 
Epsom 

2 21/9/15 length 
unknown  

Private 
landowner 
removed 

Nimbus Road, 
Epsom 

one car, three 
caravans, two 
lorries and a 
horse box 

26th November 
215 – 6th 
December 2015 
 

EEBC removed  

Harvester Road, 
Epsom 

5 26/11/15 length 
unknown  

Private 
landowner 
removed  

Houghton Lane, 
Epsom  

5 21/12/15 length 
unknown  

SCC removal by 
agreement  

Wheelers Lane Unknown  Less than 2 
weeks  

EEBC removed 

Stoneleigh 
Parade Car Park 

one caravan, one 
car. 

On site between 
May/June 2015 
and 28th October 
2015 

EEBC removed 

Court Lane Car 
Park 

two caravans, 
one lorry and one 
horse box 

11th-15th 
December 2015 

EEBC removed 

Hook Road Arena two caravans, 
one lorry and one 
horse box 

21 December- 4 
January  

EEBC removed 

 
 
 
  

Page 218

AGENDA ITEM 8
ANNEXE 2



Traveller Accommodation Assessment 
June 2017 

 
 

26 
 
 

Site Number of 
Caravans 

Length of 
Occupation  

Planning Position  

2016 (calendar year) 

Blenheim Road one caravan, one  
car 

25 Jan – 4 
February 2016 

EEBC removed 

Haven Way three caravans, 
one car, one lorry 
and one horse 
box - 6th – 12th 
April 2016 

6th – 12th April 
2016 

EEBC removed 

Blenheim Road three caravans, 
one car, one lorry 
and one horse 
box 

12th -21st April 
2016 

EEBC removed 

Felstead Road two caravans, 
one vehicle 

21st April – 3rd 
June 2016 

EEBC removed 

Nonsuch Park one transit, one 
car, one caravan 
and one 
campervan 

10th-15th August 
2016 

EEBC removed 

Nonsuch Park one transit, one 
car, one caravan, 
one campervan 

22nd – 27/28th 
August 2016 

EEBC removed 

Northcroft Road 5 6/1/16 SCC removal by 
agreement  

Cherry Tree Lane  5 11/3/16 Unsure of 
length 

Bailiff Removal 

Christ Church 
Road  

6 11/3/16 Unsure of 
length 

SCC Removal 
(S78 notices) 

 
 
 
 Housing Needs Register 
 
4.15 Our Housing Needs Register does not record ethnicity and it is 

therefore difficult to provide a definitive number of people on the 
register who are Travellers. From other records, it is estimated that 
there are two families on the housing register2 who live on sites or have 
a connection to a site. 

 
Surrey County Council traveller site waiting list 

 
4.16 Surrey County Council manages the site at Conifer Park, Kiln Lane. 

The site traditionally provided accommodation on 14 pitches. Over the 
years the internal layout of the pitches have changed for various 

                                            
 
2
 See Paragraph 4.19 for further information. 

Page 219

AGENDA ITEM 8
ANNEXE 2



Traveller Accommodation Assessment 
June 2017 

 
 

27 
 
 

reasons and Surrey CC now see this site as a 7/8 pitch site. All sites 
are occupied with some doubling up.   
 

4.17 The County Council maintains a waiting list for all its sites across 
Surrey. There are currently 98 applicants on the waiting list. It is noted 
that of those applicants on the waiting list, eleven have specifically 
requested a pitch at the Kiln Lane site, whilst another four have stated 
that they would consider the site along with any site in Surrey. 

 
4.18 The allocation of vacant pitches is based on Surrey County Council’s 

allocation criteria, which includes an assessment of need, links to the 
area and personal and other relevant circumstances. 

 
 Information on households in bricks and mortar accommodation 
 
4.19 It is difficult to provide accurate data on the number of Travellers 

housed in bricks and mortar accommodation and the precise number of 
families housed in this type of accommodation is unknown. On the 
basis of local intelligence our Gypsy & Traveller Liaison Officer 
estimates that there are potentially 25 Gypsy and Traveller families 
currently living in bricks and mortar accommodation in the Borough. Of 
these, it is felt that two families may wish to return to traditional 
accommodation as they are in unsuitable bricks and mortar provision. 

 
  
  

Page 220

AGENDA ITEM 8
ANNEXE 2



Traveller Accommodation Assessment 
June 2017 

 
 

28 
 
 

Data from other Local Authorities 
 
4.20 Surrey County Council owns 17 sites in Surrey, and manages nine of 

these.  The location, scale and management arrangements of these 
sites are set out under Table 6 below. 

 
 Table 6: Local Authority Sites in Surrey 
 

Site Borough Management No. of Pitches 

Conifer Park, Kiln 
Lane, Epsom 

Epsom & 
Ewell 

SCC 7 

Greenlands, Cox 
Lane, Ewell 

Epsom & 
Ewell 

EEBC3 16 

The Oaks, 
Woodstock, Claygate 

Elmbridge SCC 15 

Ash Bridge, Ash Guildford GBC 13 

Cobbetts Close, 
Normandy 

Guildford GBC 17 

Salvation Place, 
Young St, 
Leatherhead 

Mole Valley SCC 10 

Conifer Park, 
Ranmore Rd, Dorking 

Mole Valley SCC 3 

Travellers Rest, 
Swanworth Rd, 
Mickleham 

Mole Valley SCC 3 

Brambledown, 
Coldharbour Lane, 
Dorking 

Mole Valley SCC 3 

Elm Farm, Lyne 
Crossing, Lyne 

Runnymede RDC 15 

The Paddocks, Lyne 
Road, Lyne 

Runnymede RDC 15 

Littleton Lane, 
Shepperton 

Spelthorne SCC 10 

Swift Lane, Bagshot Surrey Heath SHDC 15 

Kalima, Chobham Surrey Heath SHDC 15 

Ivy Hatch, Green 
Lane, Outwood 

Tandridge TDC 14 

Pendell, Bletchingley Tandridge SCC 4 

The Willows, 
Tongham Road, 
Runfold 

Waverley SCC 10 

The Hatchingtan, 
Worplesdon 

Woking SCC 16 

 

                                            
 
3
 The management of the Greenlands site will be transferred from Epsom & Ewell Borough 

Council to Surrey County Council from 1 July 2017 onwards. 

Page 221

AGENDA ITEM 8
ANNEXE 2



Traveller Accommodation Assessment 
June 2017 

 
 

29 
 
 

4.21 Table 7 below shows the baseline position in respect of the other 
Surrey authorities from the GTAAs conducted in 2006/07 and the 
South East Plan Examination. This is a useful indication of the historic 
level of provision across Surrey in terms of both private and public 
sites. 

 
 Table 7: Number of Traveller Pitches/Plots from 2006 Baseline   
  

Borough/District 
Gypsy & Traveller 

Pitches 
Travelling 

Showpeople Plots 

Elmbridge 30 2 

Epsom & Ewell 30 4 

Guildford 42 0 

Mole Valley 20 1 

Reigate & Banstead 12 12 

Runnymede 61 46 

Spelthorne 22 10 

Surrey Heath 30 0 

Tandridge 33 37 

Waverley 56 6 

Woking 24 0 

 

4.22 The majority of the boroughs and districts in Surrey have recently 
prepared their own Traveller Accommodation Assessments. Table 8 
below shows the findings of these assessments in terms of identified 
need. N/A is recorded where there is no up-to-date Traveller 
Accommodation Assessment in place. As shown in Table 8, many of 
the other Surrey authorities have identified significant levels of future 
need in their assessments, particularly Guildford, Tandridge and 
Reigate & Banstead. When cross-referenced with Table 7 above, it is 
evident that further pitch provision has been delivered in many of the 
Surrey authorities in the period between 2006 and 2013. 

 
 Table 8: Other Traveller Accommodation Assessments in Surrey 

  

Borough/District 

Existing Provision Future Need 

Gypsies & 
Travellers 

Travelling 
Showpeople 

Gypsies & 
Travellers 

Travelling 
Showpeople 

Elmbridge 41 2 36 0 

Guildford 50 12 73 8 

Mole Valley 26 3 44 7 

Reigate & 
Banstead 

10 10 52 13 

Tandridge 44 48 63 26 

Waverley 59 9 39 8 

Woking 32 0 19 0 

Runnymede N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Spelthorne N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Surrey Heath N/A N/A N/A N/A 

 

Page 222

AGENDA ITEM 8
ANNEXE 2



Traveller Accommodation Assessment 
June 2017 

 
 

30 
 
 

  

Page 223

AGENDA ITEM 8
ANNEXE 2



Traveller Accommodation Assessment 
June 2017 

 
 

31 
 
 

5. Stage Two: Family Generation Trajectory from existing 
sites 

 
5.1 As stated previously, we are fortunate to be in the unique position in 

Surrey of having a dedicated Gypsy & Traveller Liaison Officer. This 
very important resource allows us to engage in regular contact with the 
Borough’s existing Gypsy & Traveller communities in order to inform an 
assessment of current and future need. 

 
5.2 Our Gypsy & Traveller Liaison Officer has produced a family generation 

trajectory of the existing families at the Greenlands, Cox Lane site. This 
key piece of evidence helps us to identify the scale of our need for new 
pitches over the course of the plan period and provides a timeframe for 
when this need is likely to materialise. A parallel exercise has been 
carried out for the Conifer Park, Kiln Lane site in consultation with 
Surrey County Council’s site manager. 

 
5.3 By using this approach in combination with our desktop review, we 

believe that we have produced a more accurate and proportionate 
overview of need. Critically, it takes account of the specific local 
circumstances of our Gypsy and Traveller community. This approach is 
also less intrusive and helps to overcome the issue of consultation 
fatigue as discussed above. 

 
  
  

Page 224

AGENDA ITEM 8
ANNEXE 2



Traveller Accommodation Assessment 
June 2017 

 
 

32 
 
 

Greenlands, Cox Lane 
 
5.4 The Greenlands, Cox Lane site comprises 16 pitches. A family 

generation trajectory based on the current occupants of the site is 
detailed in Table 9 below. 

 
 Table 9: Family Generation Trajectory for Greenlands, Cox Lane site 
 

Pitch 
Current 

Occupants 

Future Pitch 
Requirements 

Years 1-5 

Future Pitch 
Requirements 

Years 6-10 

Future Pitch 
Requirements 
Years 11-15 

1 3 – 2 tenants, 1 
child 

1 0 0 

2 2 – both tenants 0 0 0 

3 3 – 2 tenants, 1 
child 

0 0 0 

4 4 – 2 tenants, 2 
children 

0 1 0 

5 2 – 2 tenants 0 0 0 

6 3 – 2 tenants 1 
son 

1 0 0 

7 4- 2 tenants,2 
children  

1 0 1 

8 2 – both tenants 0 0 0 

9 4 – 2 tenants, 1 
child, 1 child-in-
law, 

1 0 0 

10 4 – 2 tenants, 2 
children 

0 0 2 

11 2 – tenant ,1 
child 

0 0 0 

12 5 – 2 tenants,3 
children 

0 2 1 

13 4 – 2 tenants, 1 
child 1 child- in- 
law 

1 0 0 

14 5 – 2 tenants, 3 
children 

2 1 0 

15 2 – both tenants 0 0 0 

16 6 – 2 tenants, 4 
children 

0 3 0 

  7 7 4 

 
 

 
5.5 As illustrated by Table 9, the Greenlands, Cox Lane site is fully 

occupied and there are instances of doubling up on certain pitches. 
The projected family formation rate at the site is based on the age of 

Page 225

AGENDA ITEM 8
ANNEXE 2



Traveller Accommodation Assessment 
June 2017 

 
 

33 
 
 

the occupants and their children. Occupants4 are considered to have a 
potential pitch need once they reach 18 years old. This projection, 
combined with the doubled up families, illustrates that there is an 
immediate need for up to 7 pitches within the next 5 years, and an 
additional need for 7 pitches in years 6-10 and a further 4 pitches in 
years 11-15 respectively, giving a total need of 18 new pitches to 
accommodate the current population and expected growth of the 
families at this site over a 15 year period. 

 
 Conifer Park, Kiln Lane 
 
5.6 The situation at the Conifer Park, Kiln Lane site is more complex. The 

site originally comprised 14 pitches. Circumstances led to the site being 
reconfigured by the County Council and it now only comprises 7 
pitches. The site has not got smaller but the pitches have got larger. 

 
Table 10: Family Generation Trajectory for Conifer Park, Kiln Lane site 

 
 

Pitch 
Current 

Occupants 

Future Pitch 
Requirements 

Years 1-5 

Future Pitch 
Requirements 

Years 6-10 

Future Pitch 
Requirements 
Years 11-15 

1 1 tenant (1) 0 0 0 

2 1 tenant (1) 0 0 0 

3 1 tenant, 3 adult 
sons (4). 1 on 
waiting list 

2 0 0 

4 1 tenant plus 
non-family 
member (1) 1 on 
waiting list  

0 0 0 

7  1 tenant plus 3 
children (4) (3 on 
waiting list) 

0 0 0 

9  1 tenant (a 
couple) plus 3 
children (4)  

0 1 1 

14 1 tenant (1) 0 0 0 

Total   2 (plus 5 on 
waiting list) 

1 1 

 
 

 
5.7 As illustrated in Table 10, as the site is now configured, there is no 

available plot provision at the Conifer Park, Kiln Lane site in terms of 
vacant pitches. Some of the families currently living at the site occupy 
large pitches (previously we would have called these double pitches) 

                                            
 
4
 There is no evidence to suggest that this is a gender specific issue – so the TAA assumes 

applies to male and female occupants. 

Page 226

AGENDA ITEM 8
ANNEXE 2



Traveller Accommodation Assessment 
June 2017 

 
 

34 
 
 

which can potentially accommodate growth within the family. The 
fourteen pitches previously on the site were considered to be small by 
current standards.  On that basis a site comprised of 9 pitches might be 
considered a  more realistic proposition. Therefore the capacity on the 
site, within the reconfigured larger pitches is considered to be 2 
additional pitches.  The need figure arising from family formations at 
this site is 9 pitches. 7 in years 1-5, 1 in years 6-10 and 1 in years 11-
15. 

 
5.8 Management issues at the site mean that it is unlikely that any of the 

spare capacity currently available at the Conifer Park, Kiln Lane site 
could be used to accommodate either the currently doubled-up families 
at the Greenlands, Cox Lane site or new family formations from that 
site. The communities at the two sites are distinct and unlikely to 
welcome any attempt to bring other unknown families onto their sites. 

 
5.9 The Borough occupies a unique position in Surrey, in that all of its 

Gypsy & Traveller communities are accommodated on its public sites, 
with no private site provision. This situation is unlikely to change due to 
land supply constraints. The high land values in the Borough, it’s 
densely populated urban area and its open land areas designated as 
either Green Belt or Strategic Open Space all contribute to a lack of 
supply of appropriate private sites. This position is supported by historic 
trend evidence and by the absence of any private sites being promoted 
through the current Site Allocations process and recent Call-for Sites 
exercise. On that basis it can be reasonably assumed that the demand 
for new pitches will primarily be generated by the populations on its 
existing public sites.  Consequently it can be concluded that our need is 
for public pitch provision. 

 
5.10 A site located at The Roveries, Cox Lane has been used by Travelling 

Showpeople.  Our intelligence suggests that the Travelling Showpeople 
who reside on this site have now retired from the business – although 
machinery and equipment continue to be stored on-site.. On that basis 
it is assumed that there is no need to formulate a family generation 
trajectory for this site. There are not thought to be any other Travelling 
Showpeople residing in the Borough. 

  

Page 227

AGENDA ITEM 8
ANNEXE 2



Traveller Accommodation Assessment 
June 2017 

 
 

35 
 
 

6. Stage Three: Assessment of Accommodation Need 
 
6.1 This chapter presents the calculation of accommodation needs 

assessment for travellers over a fifteen year period. For the initial five 
year period 2017-2022, the assessment is based on the data from our 
desktop review and our family generation trajectories from our two 
public sites. 

 
6.2 In line with the Surrey Methodology, the model for calculating the need 

for the first five years is based on a step-by-step process as follows.  
These steps are set out in totality under Table 11. 
 
Existing Supply 
 
A. Current supply of occupied Local Authority site pitches/plots 
 

6.3 There are two local authority sites in the borough, Greenlands, Cox 
Lane and Conifer Park, Kiln Lane. These have a total combined 
capacity of 23 pitches. Currently, all of these pitches are occupied (see 
table 10 and associated text). 
 

Row A 

Pitches (Gypsies & Travellers) Plots (Travelling Showpeople) 

23 0 

 
B. Current supply of authorised and occupied privately owned 

pitches/plots 
 
6.4 There are currently no authorised and occupied privately owned 

pitches in the Borough but there are four Travelling Showpeople plots 
at The Roveries site. 

 

Row B 

Pitches (Gypsies & Travellers) Plots (Travelling Showpeople) 

0 4 

 
C. Unauthorised pitches/plots tolerated for more than 10 years 

 
6.5 This figure is based on the assumption that if no action has been taken 

against an unauthorised development or encampment for more than 10 
years, the site would become lawful and therefore should count against 
permanent site provision. There are no current unauthorised pitches or 
plots in the Borough. 

 

Row C 

Pitches (Gypsies & Travellers) Plots (Travelling Showpeople) 

0 0 

 

Page 228

AGENDA ITEM 8
ANNEXE 2



Traveller Accommodation Assessment 
June 2017 

 
 

36 
 
 

   

Page 229

AGENDA ITEM 8
ANNEXE 2



Traveller Accommodation Assessment 
June 2017 

 
 

37 
 
 

Projected Supply 
 

D. Number of unused/vacant local authority pitches/plots 
 
6.6 There are currently no vacant pitches at either site. 
 

Row D 

Pitches (Gypsies & Travellers) Plots (Travelling Showpeople) 

0 0 

 
E. Number of unused/vacant authorised privately owned 

pitches/plots 
 
6.7 There are currently no unused or vacant private Gypsy & Traveller 

pitches.  
 

Row E 

Pitches (Gypsies & Travellers) Plots (Travelling Showpeople) 

0 0 

 
F. Number of existing pitches/plots expected to become vacant 

in the near future 
 
6.8 From our desktop review and our family generation trajectories, it is 

anticipated that no local authority pitches will become vacant within the 
next five years. A net gain of pitches would likely only occur if another 
public site became available in an adjoining local authority and the 
families currently doubled up on the Greenlands, Cox Lane site moved 
out of the area. Otherwise pitches would only become available if 
existing residents moved into bricks and mortar accommodation, 
although either of these scenarios are impossible to predict with any 
certainty. 

 
6.9 Levels of migration into and out of an area are impossible to predict 

with any degree of confidence. Potentially, Gypsies & Travellers could 
move into the Borough from any area of the country, although migration 
amongst the community is often driven by specific causes such as 
familial relationships or economic factors.  
 

6.10 Research into other authorities’ TAAs indicates that there is no 
satisfactory way of measuring and assessing need from in-migration.   
This is because even long-term trend data is not considered a robust 
source of information due to the low level and erratic nature of 
migration amongst the Gypsy & Traveller community. We have 
assumed that in-migration will primarily come from Travellers with a 
familial connection to our existing community. Based on past trends 
this will be limited, part due to the lack of availability of sites. 
 

Page 230

AGENDA ITEM 8
ANNEXE 2



Traveller Accommodation Assessment 
June 2017 

 
 

38 
 
 

6.11 The assessment process for new tenancy applications for the 
Borough’s two local authority sites uses a number of criteria including 
need, links to the area and other personal and relevant circumstances. 
On the basis of our evidence we believe that the turnover of pitches at 
these sites is likely to be extremely low over a five year period and 
consequently a zero is recorded under row F. 
  

Row F 

Pitches (Gypsies & Travellers) Plots (Travelling Showpeople) 

0 0 

 
G. Number of households in site plot/pitch accommodation 

expressing a desire to live in bricks and mortar housing (in 
next five years) 

 
6.12 Information from our Housing Needs Register and evidence from the 

Gypsy & Traveller Liaison Officer indicates that there is currently only 
one household living in on-site pitch accommodation expressing a 
desire to live in bricks and mortar accommodation in the next five 
years. 

 

Row G 

Pitches (Gypsies & Travellers) Plots (Travelling Showpeople) 

1 0 

 
H. New local authority pitches/plots planned during years 1-5 

 
6.13 There are no new local authority pitches or plots planned. 
 

Row H 

Pitches (Gypsies & Travellers) Plots (Travelling Showpeople) 

0 0 

 
I. Existing applications for private pitches/plots (including 

unauthorised sites) likely to gain planning permission during 
years 1-5 

 
6.14 There are no current planning applications for private pitch provision in 

the Borough and no current unauthorised sites. The desktop review 
indicates that there is little likelihood of any applications for private pitch 
provision being received in the next five years. 

 

Row I 

Pitches (Gypsies & Travellers) Plots (Travelling Showpeople) 

0 0 

 
  

Page 231

AGENDA ITEM 8
ANNEXE 2



Traveller Accommodation Assessment 
June 2017 

 
 

39 
 
 

Existing Need 
 
J. Households seeking permanent site accommodation in the 

area 
 
6.15 This section draws upon data from households on waiting lists, namely 

the Borough Council’s Housing Needs Register and the County 
Council’s Traveller Site Waiting List.  It takes account of households 
living in unsuitable bricks and mortar accommodation expressing a 
desire to live in on-site accommodation. 
 

6.16 Our evidence demonstrates that there are two families on the Council’s 
Housing Needs Register who live on sites or have a connection to a 
site. Of the 45 people on the Surrey County Council Traveller Site 
Waiting List, ten have specifically requested a pitch on the Conifer 
Park, Kiln Lane site. One of these is resident on Kiln Lane on a pitch 
that is not over-crowded so is not considered to have a need. Another 
has requested to remain on the waiting list but to not be considered for 
a pitch indefinitely so has not been included. To the best of our 
knowledge, five people on the Waiting List already live on the Kiln Lane 
Site on potentially overcrowded pitches or where new family formations 
will make the pitch overcrowded within the next 15 years. These have 
not been double counted and are included here.   
 

6.17 No intelligence is available to indicate if there are any households in 
the Borough who have a desire to move to on-site accommodation. It is 
assumed that if there was anyone they would have registered on the 
waiting List. 
 

Row J 

Pitches (Gypsies & Travellers) Plots (Travelling Showpeople) 

8 0 

 
K. Households on unauthorised encampments expressing a need 

to reside in the borough 
 

6.18 Unauthorised encampments are defined as pitches/plots not owned by 
the residents. At the time of writing, no unauthorised encampments 
have been identified in the Borough. There have been two instances of 
unauthorised encampments over the last five years, although these 
only lasted a very short period of time before they were moved on. The 
caravan count data and local authority records provided for the desktop 
review indicate that the level of unauthorised encampments has been 
very low in recent years and therefore a zero is recorded at Row K. 

 

Row K 

Pitches (Gypsies & Travellers) Plots (Travelling Showpeople) 

0 0 

Page 232

AGENDA ITEM 8
ANNEXE 2



Traveller Accommodation Assessment 
June 2017 

 
 

40 
 
 

 
L. Households on unauthorised developments for which 

planning permission is not expected 
 
6.19 Unauthorised developments are defined as pitches/plots owned by the 

residents but without the benefit of planning permission (excluding sites 
that have been tolerated for more than 10 years). Since these sites are, 
by definition, unauthorised and not expected to gain authorisation 
through planning permission, these households are assumed to be in 
need of authorised pitch provision. For the purpose of the Assessment 
their need could be met either through the granting of planning 
permission (for the unauthorised site), provision elsewhere, or through 
other options such as bricks & mortar accommodation. 
 

6.20 There are currently no unauthorised developments in the borough and 
a zero is therefore recorded at Row L. 
 

Row L 

Pitches (Gypsies & Travellers) Plots (Travelling Showpeople) 

0 0 

 
M. Need arising from overcrowded pitches/plots and concealed 

households 
 

6.21 Overcrowding of a pitch/plot by one large household with insufficient 
space for a further caravan is an important indicator of need. The 
Surrey Methodology states that overcrowding can be defined by the 
“bedroom standard” criterion – one bedroom to each couple or lone 
parent, one to each pair of children under 10 years, one to each pair of 
children of the same sex over 10 years, one bedroom for individual 
children over 10 years of different sex and for adults5.  
 

6.22 Our family generation trajectories demonstrate that there are currently 
three households on overcrowded or doubled up pitches on the 
Greenlands, Cox Lane site. Of these, one of the doubled up 
households is not able to live independently and has therefore been 
discounted from our need figure.  
 

6.23 Our family generation trajectories demonstrate that there is currently 
one household doubled up on the Kiln Lane site. This household is on 
the waiting list and included within the 8 in Row J.  

 
6.24 Concealed households are defined as adults aged 18 years or over still 

living with parents who would be likely to want to form a separate 
household. Within the Traveller community there is a strong tradition of 
children seeking independent accommodation close to their family, 

                                            
 
5
 This is taken from 2010 DCLG guidelines on estimating housing need. 

Page 233

AGENDA ITEM 8
ANNEXE 2



Traveller Accommodation Assessment 
June 2017 

 
 

41 
 
 

preferably on the same site. However, it is often difficult for children to 
secure accommodation close to their family, which results either in 
them moving away or in overcrowding on existing pitches/plots. 
 

6.25 Our family generation trajectories identify three concealed households 
on the Greenlands, Cox Lane site. Two families on the Conifer Park, 
Kiln Lane site are identified as concealed (this excludes 4 who are also 
on waiting list).  
 

6.26 The current situation at the Kiln Lane site, with some families 
occupying the equivalent of double pitches, means that there is 
considered to be some  space on this site to accommodate the families 
currently living there- the ‘doubled up’ families and concealed 
households. The Kiln Lane site is approximately 4600m2- including site 
access road and shared facilities. This equates to an average pitch size 
of 650m2 with 7 pitches. It is considered that the site is capable of 
accommodating at least 9 pitches based on the size of pitches at Cox 
Lane (470m2 average). It is therefore assumed that the two concealed 
households on the Kiln Lane site do not produce a need for additional 
pitches and the capacity within the site boundaries can accommodate 
these two concealed households.  Therefore, the final figure for Row M 
is givenas  5. This is comprised of:  

 

 2x doubled up pitches at Cox Lane 

 3x concealed households at Cox Lane 

 2x concealed households at Kiln Lane 

 -2 for the capacity at Kiln Lane  
 

Row M 

Pitches (Gypsies & Travellers) Plots (Travelling Showpeople) 

5 0 

 
N. Temporary planning permissions due to expire before 2018 

 
6.27 Temporary planning permissions, once they expire, will represent a 

new need. Temporary permissions are often granted on sites where 
there is a policy objection in principle, but due to the need to provide 
more pitches/plots a temporary permission is granted. This approach is 
often applied to enable the local authority to provide pitches/plots in 
more suitable locations prior to the expiry of the permission. 
 

6.28 There are no temporary planning permissions for traveller 
accommodation currently extant in the Borough. 

 

Row N 

Pitches (Gypsies & Travellers) Plots (Travelling Showpeople) 

0 0 

 

Page 234

AGENDA ITEM 8
ANNEXE 2



Traveller Accommodation Assessment 
June 2017 

 
 

42 
 
 

  

Page 235

AGENDA ITEM 8
ANNEXE 2



Traveller Accommodation Assessment 
June 2017 

 
 

43 
 
 

O. New family formations expected to arise from existing 
borough households 2013-2018 

 
6.29 Our family generation trajectories helped us to identify households 

where new pitch provision would be required within the next five years 
and beyond, based on the age profile of the families living there.  
These trajectories identified a need figure of 13 pitches due to family 
growth at the Greenlands, Cox Lane site in the next 15 years to 2032. 
There is a need for two pitches in the first five years. The families living 
at the Conifer Park, Kiln Lane site currently have a need figure of two 
pitches due to family growth in the next fifteen years (but no need in the 
next five years).  
 

6.30 These figures are in addition to the new family formations as a result of 
concealed households or overcrowded pitches and are based on 
children reaching the age of 18 within that five year period. 
 

Row O 

Pitches (Gypsies & Travellers) Plots (Travelling Showpeople) 

2 0 

 
6.31 A summary of the various figures identified in Rows A to O is set out 

under Table 11 below. A needs figure for the next 15 years is in table 
12. This is then divided into the relevant type of pitch requirement in 
Stage Four.  

  

Page 236

AGENDA ITEM 8
ANNEXE 2



Traveller Accommodation Assessment 
June 2017 

 
 

44 
 
 

Table 11: Summary of Current Supply and Demand 

 

Pitches 
(Gypsies & 
Travellers- 
without 
applying the 
new 
definition) 

Plots 
(Travelling 
Showpeople) 

Current Residential Supply: 

A. Current supply of occupied Local Authority site 
pitches/plots 23 0 

B. Current supply of authorised and occupied 
privately owned pitches/plots 0 4 

C. Unauthorised pitches/plots tolerated for more 
than 10 years 0 0 

Total Households 23 4 

Projected Supply: 

D. Number of unused/vacant local authority 
pitches/plots 0 0 

E. Number of unused/vacant authorised privately 
owned pitches/plots 0 0 

F. Number of existing pitches/plots expected to 
become vacant in the near future 0 0 

G. Number of households in site plot/pitch 
accommodation expressing a desire to live in 
bricks and mortar housing (in next five years) 1 0 

H. New local authority pitches/plots planned during 
years 1-5 0 0 

I. Existing applications for private pitches/plots 
(including unauthorised sites) likely to gain 
planning permission during years 1-5 0 0 

Total Pitch Capacity 1 0 

Current backlog of need: 

J. Households seeking permanent site 
accommodation in the area 8 0 

K. Households on unauthorised encampments 
expressing a need to reside in the borough 0 0 

L. Households on unauthorised developments for 
which planning permission is not expected 0 0 

M. Need arising from overcrowded pitches/plots 
and concealed households 5 0 

N. Temporary planning permissions due to expire 
before 2018 0 0 

Current Shortfall 13 0 

Future Need: 

O. New family formations expected to arise from 
existing borough households 2013-2018 2 0 

Total Current Residential Demand for 
Pitches/Plots

6
 15 0 

Demand for Extra Pitches/Plots 2013-2018
7
 14 0 

 

                                            
 
6
 Total current residential demand for pitches/plots = Current shortfall + newly arising 

need/family formation 
7
 Demand for extra pitches = Total current residential demand – Total current supply 

Page 237

AGENDA ITEM 8
ANNEXE 2



Traveller Accommodation Assessment 
June 2017 

 
 

45 
 
 

 
 

 
Accommodation Need 2017-2032 
 

6.32 Government policy contained in Planning Policy for Traveller Sites 
states that local authorities should identify a supply of specific 
developable sites or broad locations for development for years six to 
ten and, where possible, for years 11-15. It is acknowledged that the 
need figure for these years is difficult to forecast accurately. 
 

6.33 The Surrey Methodology calculates the need for this 10 year period by 
taking a baseline figure from the initial 5 year calculation and 
extrapolating this by using a family formation rate of 3% for Gypsy & 
Traveller families and 1.5% for Travelling Showpeople households. 
These percentage figures are applied as compound growth per annum 
and were agreed by Traveller representatives for Surrey during the 
preparation of previous Gypsy & Traveller Accommodation 
Assessments (GTAAs). 
 

6.34 Due to the Borough’s unique position in Surrey of having no private 
Gypsy & Traveller sites and having a Gypsy & Traveller Liaison Officer, 
we are able to derive a more accurate figure of need over years 5-15 
by using our Family Generation Trajectories developed in Section Two 
of this assessment. From these trajectories, it is anticipated that there 
will be a need for a further eight pitches in years 6-10 and another five 
pitches in years 11-15. 
 

6.35 As our calculation in Table 11 shows, there is no current demand or 
need for Travelling Showpeople accommodation in the borough. We 
anticipate that this is unlikely to change and consequentially there is 
not thought to be any additional need for Travelling Showpeople 
accommodation in years 5-15. None of the unauthorised encampments 
in the last two years have been by Travelling Show people.  
 

6.36 There are other constraints affecting the accurate prediction of longer 
term need for new pitches/plots. The current shortage of sites and 
pitches/plots for Travellers nationally means that it is difficult to predict 
trends in living arrangements until the current lack of pitch based 
accommodation has been addressed at a national level. We have no 
evidence that the rise in illegal encampments over the last few years is 
linked to the overcrowding on our current public sites. It is more likely 
that these are actually due to the regional/ national problem of a lack of 
transit sites. Equally it is impossible to predict how Travellers will 
decide to live in the next decade. There may be an increase in smaller 
households, moves into bricks and mortar housing may be more 
common or household formation may happen at a later age. 
 
Summary of Identified Need 2017-2032 

Page 238

AGENDA ITEM 8
ANNEXE 2



Traveller Accommodation Assessment 
June 2017 

 
 

46 
 
 

 
6.36 Taking into account the calculations above for the period between 2017 

and 2032 and the information from our Family Generation Trajectories, 
we can identify a total need for 27 ‘pitches’ over the 15 year period 
between 2017 and 2032. This equates to an annualised requirement of 
1.9 pitches per year. There is no identified need for additional 
Travelling Showpeople plots over the same period.  
 
Table 12: Summary of identified need 2017-2032 
 

  Pitches (without 
applying the new 
definition) 

Travelling 
Showpeople Plots 

Current Authorised 
Residential Provision 
(pitches/plots) 

23 4 

Residential Need 2017-
2022 

14 0 

Residential Need 2022-
2027 

8 0 

Residential Need 2027-
2032 

5 0 

Annualised Requirement 
(2017-2032) 

1.8 0 

Total pitch requirement  27 0 

 
 
6.37 In light of the change in planning definition, a fourth stage has been 

added to determine which category the pitch need falls under;  
 

1. Gypsies and Travellers meeting the new planning definition including 
those who may have ceased to travel temporarily under the new 
definition 

 2. Households who may meet the planning definition but this has not 
been verified  
3. Non Travelling Gypsies and Travellers (households residing in 
caravans but that do not travel or have ceased to travel permanently) 

 
6.38 It has been challenging to determine the status of the households 

requiring caravan pitches now and in the future in Epsom & Ewell. In 
order to inform this process a brief survey was prepared and each pitch 
on Cox Lane was visited by our Gypsy Liaison Officer over a number of 
weeks. Unfortunately only six of the 16 pitches responded to the 
survey. This is a 37.5% response rate from the site. Each of the 
surveys completed did indicate that the Households either have never 
travelled or have permanently ceased to travel. No surveys were 
completed at the Kiln lane Site. The Information provided by applicants 
on the Pitch Waiting List provided by Surrey County Council was also 
helpful in determining the nomadic habits of some applicants. It was 
noted that one applicant stated they only travel within the Borough for 

Page 239

AGENDA ITEM 8
ANNEXE 2



Traveller Accommodation Assessment 
June 2017 

 
 

47 
 
 

non-work purposes and another stated he would never leave the Kiln 
Lane site.  

 
  

Page 240

AGENDA ITEM 8
ANNEXE 2



Traveller Accommodation Assessment 
June 2017 

 
 

48 
 
 

6.39 From the evidence gathered it has been determined that under the new 
planning definition we cannot identify any ‘Gypsy or Travellers’ 
requiring a pitch in the Borough at this time. We have determined that 
18 of the households do not travel and 12 of the households are 
unknown (in totality). This is reduced to 18 and 9 (net) where the site 
capacity is included.  This information is summarised below: 
 

 
 
Table 13: Pitch need summarised  

 Year   

Gross Figures  1-5 6-10 11-15 

1. Gypsies and Travellers meeting the new planning 
definition including those who may have ceased to travel 
temporarily under the new definition 
 

0 0 0 

2. Households who may meet the planning definition but this 
has not been verified  

 

7 (4 
net) 

2 3 

3. Non Travelling Gypsies and Travellers (households 
residing in caravans but that do not travel or have ceased to 
travel permanently) 
 

10 6 2 

 
 
6.40 Although the need calculation under the planning definition has been 

determined as zero, the Borough still has a responsibility to consider 
their housing needs somewhere within the Plan Making Process. The 
Equality Act 2010 defines Romany Gypsies and Irish Travellers as 
ethnic groups, meaning they are legally protected against race 
discrimination. An ethnic group is one with a shared history and cultural 
traditions. These traditions should not be ignored. The needs of those 
residing in caravans will differ from the rest of the population because 
of their preference for caravan dwelling. Therefore a pitch for a caravan 
is their housing requirement.  

 
6.41 In addition provisions set out in the Housing Act 1985 include a duty for 

Local Authorities to consider the needs of people residing in or 
resorting to their district with respect to the provision of sites on which 
caravans can be stationed. The implication is therefore that the 
housing needs of any Gypsy Traveller or Travelling Showperson 
households who do not meet the planning definition will need to be 
assessed as part of the wider housing needs of the Borough through 
the Strategic Housing Market Assessment (SHMA) and Strategic 
Housing Land Availability Assessment (SHLAA) feeding into the Site 
Allocations process. They will form a subset of the wider need arising 
from ‘households residing in caravans’.    

 

Page 241

AGENDA ITEM 8
ANNEXE 2



Traveller Accommodation Assessment 
June 2017 

 
 

49 
 
 

 
 

Page 242

AGENDA ITEM 8
ANNEXE 2



Traveller Accommodation Assessment 
June 2017 

 
 

50 
 
 

Transit Sites 
 
6.42 Guidance contained within Planning policy for traveller sites states that 

local planning authorities should assess the likely transit 
accommodation needs of their areas and set pitch and plot targets that 
address the transit site accommodation needs of travellers. 

 
6.43 A transit site is intended for short term use by Gypsies & Travellers en 

route to another destination and requiring a stopping place. It is usually 
a permanent site, but with a maximum period of stay imposed so that 
its residents are not permanent. 
 

6.44 Although nomadism and travelling are currently restricted to a certain 
extent8, this remains an important feature of Gypsy & Traveller identity 
and way of life. Gypsies & Travellers often visit fairs and other family 
members.  Equally some may not have a permanent base and remain 
mobile, especially during the summer months.  
 

6.45 Permanent transit sites can potentially allow local authorities to 
respond more robustly to illegal encampments. They also reduces the 
impact of the nomadic lifestyle on local residents and businesses; 
reduces long-term costs to local authorities arising from unauthorised 
encampments; enables the wider use of legal powers, for example 
under the Anti-social Behaviour Act, and provides a legal, safe and 
practical place for Gypsies & Travellers to stop. 
 

6.46 One of the main attractors for Travellers from outside the Borough is 
the Epsom Derby Festival held in early June.  We provide 
accommodation for up to 230 caravans for a temporary period to cater 
for this event. There are no permanent transit sites in the Borough, and 
our data indicates that there is no need for a transit site. As outlined in 
Section One of the Assessment, there have only been two 
unauthorised encampments in the last five years, and both of these 
were resolved within a short period of time. The Borough is also small 
geographically and is not situated on a major transport route and so is 
unlikely to provide accessible transit accommodation for Gypsies and 
Travellers en-route to another destination. 

 
6.47 The Partial Review of Gypsy & Traveller Site Accommodation in the 

South East incorporated an assessment of the need for further transit 
provision. The South East of England Partnership Board (SEEPB) 
commissioned Pat Niner of the Centre for Urban and Regional Studies 
at the University of Birmingham to undertake this assessment. This 

                                            
 
8
 Freedom of movement of the Traveller community is restricted by limitations on the number 

of authorised available sites in the country, and the measures often taken against 
unauthorised sites mean that it is not always possible for Travellers to maintain a traditional 
nomadic lifestyle. 

Page 243

AGENDA ITEM 8
ANNEXE 2



Traveller Accommodation Assessment 
June 2017 

 
 

51 
 
 

identified a total of 109 transit pitches being provided across the South 
East region, with Surrey providing 57 of these. 
 

6.48 Transit provision in Surrey currently consists of two sites, one in 
Waverley and the other in Spelthorne. The New Acres site in Waverley 
did provide 35 transit pitches; however, the site received planning 
permission in 2012 to accommodate 35 permanent pitches and 15 
transit pitches. The site known as Ponderossa in Spelthorne 
accommodates 15 transit pitches. 
 

6.49 The Pat Niner study recommended that there should be one additional 
transit site provided in Surrey with provision for four pitches.  No 
recommendation was made as to the geographic location of the 
additional site. Work on the Partial Review was discontinued following 
the revocation of the South East Plan and consequently no target for 
transit provision was ever set. 

 
6.50 The Assessment has not identified any evidence of need for additional 

transit provision within the Borough. On that basis it is assumed that 
additional provision would only be required if the level of travelling and 
subsequent unauthorised encampments were to increase markedly. 
There are scenarios in which this could occur, for example if Travellers 
were evicted from a large-scale illegal site elsewhere in the country and 
decided to seek accommodation in the Borough and wider area. This 
eventuality is unlikely to occur but fluctuations in the level of travelling 
remain inherently unpredictable. This underlines the importance of 
keeping an up-to-date evidence base through regular monitoring of 
incidences of unauthorised encampments and reviewing and 
reassessing provision where appropriate. 
 

6.51 The Surrey Methodology states that continuing joint working between 
the Surrey boroughs and districts, together with other neighbouring 
local authorities, will continue to address the issue of transit sites where 
necessary. These discussions are likely to be ongoing due to the 
different stages of completion of TAAs across the County and 
elsewhere. 
 

6.52 Due to the Borough’s location and size it is not considered necessary 
to plan for further transit site accommodation beyond that provided for 
the Epsom Derby Festival. If further transit accommodation in Surrey is 
considered it should be provided in more accessible and appropriate 
locations closer to major transport routes. 

  

Page 244

AGENDA ITEM 8
ANNEXE 2



Traveller Accommodation Assessment 
June 2017 

 
 

52 
 
 

7. Constraints 
 
7.1 Due to the nature of need for new ‘Caravan Dweller’ accommodation it 

is estimated that at least one new public site will be required. There are 
several constraints to the delivery of new public sites in the borough. 
 
Land Supply Constraints 
 

7.2 The Borough’s geographic size and the density of its existing urban 
area mean that, as with other land uses, the availability of land for new 
Gypsy & Traveller pitches is highly constrained. 
 

7.3 Approximately 42% of the Borough is covered by Metropolitan Green 
Belt. National planning policy states that Gypsy and Traveller 
accommodation is not an appropriate use for Green Belt land, which 
further restricts the supply of potential new sites. Consequently, if we 
were to consider site allocation options located within the Green Belt, 
their delivery would be predicated on their release.  Before this could 
happen we would need to wait for the outputs from a Strategic Green 
Belt Review.   
 

7.4 In our existing urban areas land values are very high.  The greatest 
demand is for open market housing and commercial uses. As a 
consequence it may prove uneconomical for either the Council, or the 
Gypsy & Traveller community to purchase and redevelop land as 
accommodation. Our evidence shows that historically there have not 
been any private Gypsy & Traveller sites in the Borough and this is 
likely to continue. Consequently, it is reasonable to assume that the 
most deliverable sites will be those in public ownership – such as those 
owned by the Borough and County Councils. 
 

7.5 It is also important to note that Gypsy & Traveller pitches need to be 
relatively open and cannot be developed to the same densities that 
bricks and mortar houses can be. This means that Gypsy & Traveller 
pitches require a larger site area than the equivalent number of new 
houses9. 
 

  

                                            
 
9
 Government guidance on pitch size states that an average family pitch must be capable of 

accommodating an amenity building, a large trailer and touring caravan, parking space for two 
vehicles and a small garden area (DCLG, 2008). 

Page 245

AGENDA ITEM 8
ANNEXE 2



Traveller Accommodation Assessment 
June 2017 

 
 

53 
 
 

Financial Constraints 
 

7.6 Identifying sufficient sources of funding to deliver new public Gypsy & 
Traveller sites in the Borough is considered to be a major obstacle. Our 
evidence suggests that a single new pitch can cost at least £120,00010. 
Previously local authorities have been able to apply for grant funding 
from central government. However, the level of funding from this 
source has gone; at a time when land values and construction costs 
continue to rise. 
 

7.7 In order to address this issue the government has indicated that they 
expect social housing providers to step-in and fill this funding shortfall. 
Unfortunately, most social housing providers have little experience in 
delivering Gypsy & Traveller accommodation and may not be in a 
position to meet the Borough’s need in a timely fashion. 
 
Planning Policy Constraints 
 

7.8 Planning policy for Traveller sites advises local planning authorities that 
in addition to identifying a supply of future Gypsy & Traveller sites, they 
should also prepare development management policies that set out 
criteria to determine planning applications for new as yet unidentified 
sites. 
 

7.9 We have adopted Development Management Policy DM23 Gypsy & 
Traveller Sites. This policy sets criteria to be considered in the 
provision of new sites, including access to local services, transport 
infrastructure, flood risk, the erection of structures and compatibility 
with existing neighbouring residential uses. The policy also outlines that 
the Site Allocations Policies Document will identify and allocate suitable 
sites. Any new sites that are identified by the Council will therefore 
have to satisfy the criteria contained within Development Management 
Policy DM23. 

  

                                            
 
10

 This estimate includes the purchase costs of land, and the provision of water and electricity 
which may cost more or less depending upon the location of the site. 

Page 246

AGENDA ITEM 8
ANNEXE 2



Traveller Accommodation Assessment 
June 2017 

 
 

54 
 
 

8. Conclusions 
 
8.1 The Borough Council has conducted a thorough review of its Traveller 

Accommodation Assessment, which takes into full account the changes 
introduced by “Planning Policy for Travellers” (August 2015).  The 
outputs from the Assessment will provide a sound evidence basis to 
inform the preparation of any necessary new policies to be included in 
the Partial Review of the Epsom & Ewell Core Strategy. 

 
8.2 The Assessment has successfully expanded the Borough Council’s 

methodology for assessing local need.  In particular, intelligence gained 
from the Borough Council’s Gypsy & Traveller Liaison Officer has 
helped to identify a more accurate projection of need. It has also 
sought to incorporate additional sources of data to provide an accurate 
projection of accommodation need as required by national planning 
policy. 
 

8.3 From the evidence gathered it has been determined that, under the 
revised planning definition, there is no identified need for new 
additional traveller pitches.  On that basis the Assessment concludes 
that there is no current requirement for the Epsom & Ewell Local Plan 
to include a target for future pitch provision. 
 

8.4 Although the need for new additional Traveller accommodation is nil, 
we still have a responsibility to account for the resulting need 
elsewhere in the Local Plan process.  It is suggested that the most 
appropriate way of addressing this need is as a form of specialised 
housing provision – similar to how student and elderly person close-
care accommodation is already addressed by the Local Plan. 
 

8.5 Our evidence identifies that there is a need for 27 new caravan pitches, 
to meet the accommodation needs of members of the Traveller 
community who no longer lead a nomadic lifestyle (or this is unknown), 
over the fifteen year period.  This equates to an annualised 
requirement of 1.9 new caravan pitches per year.  However, as with 
other forms of specialised housing accommodation it is possible that 
this need could go unmet.   
 

8.6 There is no evidence of demand for additional new accommodation for 
Travelling Showpeople during the fifteen year period.  There is also no 
evidence of need for a permanent new transit site within the Borough.  
Due to its small size and location within the strategic highway network, 
the Borough is not considered an appropriate location for such 
provision.     

 
8.7 The Assessment notes that the revisions to national planning policy 

may usher in wider changes to Traveller accommodation planning.  For 
example there may be an increase in smaller households, moves into 

Page 247

AGENDA ITEM 8
ANNEXE 2



Traveller Accommodation Assessment 
June 2017 

 
 

55 
 
 

bricks and mortar housing may be more common or household 
formation may happen at a later age.  The Assessment recommends 
that the Borough Council continues to monitor the five year supply of 
sites through the Annual Monitoring Report and manage provision 
accordingly. 
 

8.8 On that basis this study should be regarded as a reasonable and 
robust assessment of need upon which to base planning decisions 
going forward. We have undertaken a thorough assessment of the 
need arising from all sites (local authority, permanent, temporary and 
unauthorised) present at the time of the study. It is recommended that 
an assessment of accommodation need is repeated every 5 years. 

Page 248

AGENDA ITEM 8
ANNEXE 2



LICENSING AND PLANNING POLICY COMMITTEE
12 JULY 2017

CONSTRAINTS STUDY

Report of the: Head of Place Development
Contact:  Rachael Thorold
Urgent Decision?(yes/no) No
If yes, reason urgent decision 
required:
Annexes/Appendices (attached): Epsom & Ewell Constraints Study  (June 2017)
Other available papers (not 
attached):

National Planning Policy Framework

REPORT SUMMARY
National planning policy states that local plans should meet objectively 
assessed needs, with sufficient flexibility to adapt to rapid change, unless; there 
is any adverse impact of doing so that would significantly and demonstrably 
outweigh the benefit, when assessed against the policies within the Framework 
[NPPF] or where specific policies in the Framework indicate development should 
be restricted.

The national Planning Practice Guidance makes it clear that whilst the 
establishment of development needs should be unbiased, relevant constraints, 
including environmental constraints need to be addressed when bringing 
evidence bases together and formulating policies.

To ensure that the Council has taken necessary account of this and can 
demonstrate that an appraisal of the constraints, relevant to the Borough, has 
been undertaken when arriving at development options and has produced a 
Constraints Study.

RECOMMENDATION (S)

(1) The Committee considers the Constraints Study and 
agrees to its publication;

(2) Agrees with the definition of the Primary 
Constraints that would prevent development from 
taking place and where it would not be possible to 
mitigate impacts.

(3) Notes that the study recommends that a further 
assessment is undertaken to consider how the 
constraints affect the land parcels identified within 

Notes

Page 249

AGENDA ITEM 9



LICENSING AND PLANNING POLICY COMMITTEE
12 JULY 2017

the Epsom & Ewell Green Belt Study 2017.

(4) Agrees that the Study’s inputs, be used to inform 
the partial review of the Core Strategy.

1 Implications for the Council’s Key Priorities, Service Plans and 
Sustainable Community Strategy

1.1 The delivery and implementation of the Epsom & Ewell Local Plan 
contributes towards all of the Council’s key priorities.  The partial review of 
the Core Strategy is a critical part of the Local Plan preparation as it will 
set out how sustainable growth will be delivered during the new plan 
period.

2 Background

2.1 Paragraph 14 of the National Planning Policy Framework states that local 
plans should meet objectively assessed needs, with sufficient flexibility to 
adapt to rapid change, unless; there is any adverse impact of doing so 
that would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefit, when 
assessed against the policies within the Framework or where specific 
policies in the Framework indicate development should be restricted.

2.2 Footnote 9 to Paragraph 14 provides the example, of those policies 
relating to sites protected under the Birds and Habitable Directives and / 
or designated as Sites of Special Scientific Interest; land designated as 
Green Belt, Local Green Space, and Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty, 
Heritage Coast or within National Park (or the Broads Authority); 
designated heritage assets; and locations at risk of flooding or coastal 
erosion.  

2.3 The national Planning Practice Guidance (ID: 2a 004-20140306) makes it 
clear that whilst the establishment of development needs should be 
unbiased, however relevant constraints, including environmental 
constraints need to be addressed when bringing evidence bases together 
to identify specific policies.

2.4 To ensure that the Council has taken necessary account of this, and can 
demonstrate that an appraisal of the constraints, relevant to the Borough, 
has been undertaken when arriving at development options; it has 
produced the Constraints Study. This exercise is now complete.  A copy 
of the Study is enclosed under Annex 1.

Page 250

AGENDA ITEM 9



LICENSING AND PLANNING POLICY COMMITTEE
12 JULY 2017

3 Epsom & Ewell Constraints Study

3.1 The purpose of the Constraints Study is to support the work undertaken 
by the Council in responding to the significant challenge of meeting the 
Objectively Assessed Housing Need (OAHN) figure identified for the 
Borough by the Strategic Housing Market Assessment (SHMA).  One of 
the key issues that the Council needs to consider and discuss with its 
communities and other relevant stakeholders is, ‘how much growth and 
new development can sustainably be accommodated within the Borough 
whilst, balancing a number of economic; social; and environmental 
factors’? 

3.2 The Constraints study is one of a number of thematic evidence base 
documents that, collectively, will seek to inform an answer to this question 
and assist the Council in moving forwards in updating the Core Strategy.  
Specifically, the study will assist in identifying the supply of land available 
for new homes and inform the work currently being undertaken on 
reviewing the performance of the Borough’s Green Belt.

3.3 The study focuses on constraints relating to land designations. Matters 
relating to the economic viability and infrastructure capacity which could 
constrain development delivery are not considered within this study.  
These will be assessed separately at a later date and the outcomes of 
which will fed into the iterative process of producing the evidence base 
and policy formulation.

3.4 Officers consider Primary Constraints to be strategic in nature and to be 
those that would prevent development from taking place and where it 
would not be possible to mitigate impact from development. The study 
defines the Primary Constraints within Epsom & Ewell to be as follows:

 Undeveloped functional flood plain

 Sites of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI)

 Local Nature Reserves (LNR)

 Sites of Nature Conservation Importance (SNCI)

 Ancient Woodlands

 Registered Parks and Gardens

3.5 Other designations, such as listed buildings, conservation areas, trees 
protected by Tree Preservation Orders and ancient monuments are not 
considered to be strategic constraints. These ‘secondary’ constraints 
would not preclude development but which may need to be addressed if a 
site is to be deemed suitable for development.  They could also restrict 
the scale and type development. Such secondary constraints are more 
appropriately considered when undertaking individual site assessments.

Page 251

AGENDA ITEM 9



LICENSING AND PLANNING POLICY COMMITTEE
12 JULY 2017

3.6 National and local Green Belt policy regards the construction of new 
buildings as inappropriate in the Green Belt.  It should be noted that 
publication of the NPPF has widened the exceptions to when 
development would not be considered inappropriate. Therefore, whilst 
policy opposes inappropriate development in the Green Belt, it is 
considered that the Green Belt designation itself does not fall within the 
definition of a Primary Constraints whereby any development is wholly 
prevented by national legislation and policy.

3.7 Following the definition of the Primary Constraints a mapping exercise 
was undertaken to identify the extent of land affected within the Borough 
by the same.  Figures 2- 7 of the appended study map the constraints 
individually with Figure 8 outlining all the Primary Constraints. This map 
identifies the full extent of land within the Borough where development 
must be precluded as its impact cannot be mitigated.  In accordance with 
national policy and legislation, this land is not considered suitable for 
development. 

3.8 The outputs of the Constraints Study have informed the assessment of 
sites for housing within the Strategic Housing Land Availably Assessment 
(SHLAA). When considering if a site is ‘deliverable’ or ‘developable’, 
informed by the Constraints Study, a ‘policy on/ constrained’ approach is 
applied.  For example those sites affected by Primary Constraints which 
deem it unsuitable for development have been discounted from the 
housing land supply.

3.9 In addition, the outputs will inform a detailed ‘policy on’ assessment of the 
Borough’s Green Belt land to build upon the Epsom & Ewell Green Belt 
Study 2017 (GBS).  To achieve a completely objective assessment, the 
GBS took a ‘policy off’ approach and solely assessed the extent to which 
land designated as Green Belt performed against the relevant purposes 
set out in national planning policy. The study proposes a methodology for 
undertaking an ‘policy on’ assessment of the Borough’s Green Belt land. 
This would involve a detailed desk based assessment of each Refined 
Parcel of Green Belt land as defined within the GBS, to quantify how 
much of the Borough’s Green Belt land is affected by the Primary 
Constraints.  This is outlined in further detail within Sections 4.1 & 5.1 of 
the appended study.

3.10 The outputs of the Constraints Study will contribute towards the 
identification of a rationalised housing target for the Borough.  It will also 
secure the formulation of ‘options’ to address the challenges of meeting 
the predicted growth for the next plan period up to 2032.

4 Financial and Manpower Implications

4.1 There is an on-going requirement to ensure effective cross boundary 
engagement on strategic planning issues.  The resources needed to 
ensure that this happens are in place.

4.2 Chief Finance Officer’s comments: None for the purpose of this report.

Page 252

AGENDA ITEM 9



LICENSING AND PLANNING POLICY COMMITTEE
12 JULY 2017

5 Legal Implications (including implications for matters relating to equality)

5.1 Monitoring Officer’s comments: It is important that the partial review of 
the Core Strategy is undertaken in compliance with legal requirements 
and that national planning policy is properly considered.  This report and 
the attached study is an important part of that process.

6 Sustainability Policy and Community Safety Implications

6.1 The partial review of the Core Strategy will contribute towards delivering 
the Council objectives for maintaining and enhancing the Borough as a 
sustainable place to live, work and visit by providing guidance to new 
development proposals.

6.2 Any future policy options relating to land allocation and the designation of 
land for protection, as part of the Core Strategy review process, will be 
subject to a full Sustainability Appraisal report.  This will be subject to 
public consultation at an appropriate time in the process.

7 Partnerships

7.1 The Duty to Co-operate requires that Local Planning Authorities engage 
with partners and neighbouring authorities on strategic issues, including 
cross boundary land designations which seek to conserve and enhance 
the natural and historic environment.  We have provided an opportunity for 
our neighbours to engage through a specific Duty to Co-operate 
Consultation relating to the study’s approach, outputs and 
recommendations and helpful responses were received.

8 Risk Assessment

8.1 Failure to identify constraints to development could lead the Council open 
to challenge when considering the Borough’s land supply and potential 
locations for development. This could lead to the associated threat of 
growth being directed onto sites not considered appropriate by the 
Council and where the impact of such growth could not be mitigated.

8.2 By proactively planning for future growth identifying where it should and 
should not go, we will place ourselves in a stronger position to resist 
unsustainable levels of growth in the wrong locations.

9 Conclusion and Recommendations

9.1 The Members of the Committee are asked to consider the Epsom & Ewell 
Constraints Study; agree with the definition of the Primary Constraints; 
note the study’s recommendation that a further assessment is undertaken 
to consider how the constraints affect the land parcels identified within the 
Epsom & Ewell Green Belt Study.

9.2 The Committee are also asked to acknowledge that the outputs from the 
Study will be used to inform the partial update of the Core Strategy.

Page 253

AGENDA ITEM 9



LICENSING AND PLANNING POLICY COMMITTEE
12 JULY 2017

WARD(S) AFFECTED: (All Wards);
 

Page 254

AGENDA ITEM 9



 
  

 

Epsom & Ewell Borough Council 

June 2017 

Epsom & Ewell Local Plan – Constraints Study  

Page 255

AGENDA ITEM 9
ANNEXE 1



Contents 
 
1. Introduction................................................................................................ 1 

1.1 Background ......................................................................................... 1 

1.2 Purpose ............................................................................................... 1 

1.3   Context………………………………………………………………….......3 
1.4 Approach ............................................................................................. 3 

1.5 Duty to Co-operate .............................................................................. 4 

Questions ..................................................................................................... 4 

2. Constraints Effecting Growth ..................................................................... 5 

2.1 Definition of Primary Constraints ......................................................... 5 

2.2 Green Belt ........................................................................................... 7 

3. Mapping of Primary Constraints .............................................................. 10 

4. Relationship with other Key Evidence Base Documents ......................... 19 

4.1 The Green Belt Study ........................................................................ 19 

4.2 The Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment ....................... 20 

5. Assessing Green Belt Land ........................................................................ 22 

5.1 Proposed Methodology ..................................................................... 22 

6. Next Steps ............................................................................................... 25 

  

Page 256

AGENDA ITEM 9
ANNEXE 1



1. Introduction  

1.1 Background 
 
1.1.1 To ensure that Epsom and Ewell Borough Council continues to plan 

positively for growth in accordance with national policy, the Council are 
in the process of reviewing its Local Plan evidence base.  This will 
result in a partial update to the Core Strategy (2007).   The initial step 
of the review was gain an understanding of the current housing need 
within the Borough. 

 
1.1.2 To this end, the Council commissioned a joint Strategic Housing 

Market Assessment (SHMA)1 which set out an OAHN figure over a 15 
year time horizon (2015-2035).  This assessment was formulated using 
a methodology advocated by Government which focused on demand 
based need using the latest evidence of population and household 
projections. 

 
1.1.3 The SHMA 2016 has identified that by 2037 there will be an estimated 

increase in Epsom and Ewell’s population to 93,000.  This resulted in a 
need figure of 8,352 new homes creating approximately 10,000 new 
households from 2015 to 2035 at an annualised rate of 418 new 
homes.  In accordance with Government policy, it is these figures 
which will be used to inform the direction of housing policy for the 
Borough.   

 
1.1.4 For context, the Core Strategy 2007 sets out the Borough’s current 

housing target to be 2,715 net homes (181 net dwellings annual 
average) for the period 2007-2022. 

1.2 Purpose  
 
1.2.1 The purpose of the Constraints Study is to support the work 

undertaken by the Council in responding to the significant challenge of 
meeting the OAHN figure identified for the Borough.  One of the key 
issues that the Council needs to consider and discuss with its 
communities and other relevant stakeholders is, ‘how much growth and 
new development can sustainably accommodated within the Borough 
whilst, balancing a number of economic; social; and environmental 
factors’?  

 
1.2.2 This study is one of a number of thematic evidence base documents 

that collectively, will seek to answer this question and assist the 
Council in moving forwards with the preparation of its Local Plan.  
Specifically, the study will inform identifying the supply of land available 

                                            
1
 The joint Strategic Housing Market Assessment (SHMA) was commissioned with The Royal 

Borough of Kingston upon Thames, the Borough of Elmbridge and the District of Mole Valley. 

1
Page 257

AGENDA ITEM 9
ANNEXE 1



for new homes and inform the work currently being undertaken on 
reviewing the performance of the Borough’s Green Belt designation  

 
1.2.3 This exercise will identify those areas across the Borough, including 

areas of the Green Belt that are not affected by Primary Constraints 
and therefore may, have the potential to support future growth.   This 
will however be subject to the outcomes of other evidence base 
documents such as the Green Belt Study alongside the consideration 
of exceptional circumstances and further, detailed assessments of 
other constraints and planning policies. 

 
1.2.4 The study will inform the future direction of the Epsom and Ewell Local 

Plan, contributing towards the identification of a rationalised housing 
target for the Borough.  It will also secure the formulation of ‘options’ to 
address the challenges of meeting the predicted growth for the next 
plan period up to 2032. 

 
1.3 Context 
 
1.3.1 The Government through the publication of the National Planning 

Policy Framework (NFFP) and other recent changes to national 
planning policy, including the Housing White Paper (HWP)1, has made 
it clear that a presumption in favour of sustainable development should 
be at the heart of plan-making and decision –taking.  For plan-making 
Paragraph 14 of the NPPF states ‘this means that: 

 

• Requires that local planning authorities should positively seek 
opportunities to meet the development needs of their area; 

 

• Local Plans should meet objectively assessed needs, with sufficient 
flexibility to adapt to rapid change, unless: 

 
- any adverse impact of doing so would significantly and 

demonstrably outweigh the benefit, when assess against the 
policies in [this] Framework taken as a whole; or 

 
- Specific policies in [this] Framework indicate development 

should be restricted’ 
 
1.3.2 Footnote 9 to Paragraph 14 provides the example, of those policies 

relating to sites protected under the Birds and Habitable Directives and 
/ or designated as Sites of Special Scientific Interest; land designated 
as Green Belt, Local Green Space, and Area of Outstanding Natural 
Beauty, Heritage Coast or within National Park (or the Broads 
Authority); designated heritage assets; and locations at risk of flooding 
or coastal erosion. 

 

                                            
2
 https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/housing-white-paper  

2
Page 258

AGENDA ITEM 9
ANNEXE 1



1.3.3 Furthermore, Paragraph 118 of the NPPF states that the following 
wildlife sites should be given the same protected as European Sites: 

 
- Potential Special Protection Areas 
- Possible Special Area of Conservation 
- Listed or proposed Ramsar sites 
- Sites identified, or required, as compensatory measures for adverse 

effects on European site, potential Special Protection Area, possible 
Special Area of Conservation, and listed or proposed Ramsar sites. 

 
1.3.4 The Government has set out within the HWP (Box 2, page 79) that it 

intends to add ‘aged and veteran trees’ as Primary Constraints to 
development.   

 
1.3.5 The National Planning Practice Guidance ID: 2a 004-20140306) makes 

it clear that whilst the establishment of development needs should be 
unbiased, however relevant constraints, including environmental 
constraints need to be addressed when bringing evidence bases 
together to identify specific policies.   

 
1.3.6 As such, to ensure that the Council has taken necessary account of 

this and can demonstrate that an appraisal of the constraints, relevant 
to the Borough, has been considered when arriving at development 
options; it is producing the Constraints Study. 

1.4 Approach  
 
1.4.1 It is anticipated that using the information gathered through this study 

that it will be possible to identify land that has no potential for 
development and those that may have potential subject to further 
assessment and consideration of other evidence documents.    It is 
proposed that this work will be undertaken in two parts.  Therefore, the 
key objectives of the first part of the study are; 

 
 Identify and define the Primary Constraints that would prevent 

development from taking place and where it would not be possible 
to mitigate impacts across the Borough. 

 To undertake a mapping exercise of the Primary Constraints 
affecting land within the Borough. 

 To propose a methodology for undertaking a comprehensive 
assessment of Green Belt land within the Borough to determine 
how it is affected by each primary constraint. 

 
1.4.2 It is anticipated that the second part which comprises the 

comprehensive assessment of Green Belt land will be undertaken as 
part of a more detailed and refined assessment of the Green Belt.  This 
is outlined in further detail within Sections 4.1 & 5.1 of this report. 

 
1.4.3 At this stage, the focus is on ‘constraints’ relating to land designations. 

Matters relating to the economic viability and infrastructure capacity 

3
Page 259

AGENDA ITEM 9
ANNEXE 1



which could constrain development delivery are not considered within 
this study.  These will be assessed separately and the outcomes of 
which will fed into the iterative process of producing the evidence base, 
developing options and policy formulation. 

1.5 Duty to Co-operate 
 
1.5.1 Section 33A of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, as 

required by section 110 of the Localism Act 2011, introduced a duty to 
co-operate in relation to the planning of sustainable development.  The 
duty requires the Borough Council to cooperate with other local 
planning authorities and other public bodies in preparing and 
developing each other’s Local Plan so far as it relates to a strategic 
matter. 

 
1.5.2 The duty is an important element in the strategic planning functions 

and one that builds on the Council’s existing approach of engagement 
and partnership working. Work undertaken as part of the Council’s duty 
to co-operate on strategic issues as part of the review of the Local Plan 
evidence base will be recorded. 

 
1.5.3 The nature of this work means it has strategic cross boundary 

significance and requires active and on-going engagement between 
authorities and with other relevant Prescribed Bodies.  All neighbouring 
authorities have been contacted under the Duty to Co-operate to seek 
their views on how the Borough Council will take account of constraints 
that will determine the approach taken in preparing the update to our 
Local Plan, including the assessment of the suitability of land for 
development. 

Questions  
 

If you have any questions relating to the Constraints Study please 
contact the Planning Policy Team on:  
 
LDF@epsom-ewell.gov.uk    

 
 

4
Page 260

AGENDA ITEM 9
ANNEXE 1



2. Constraints Affecting Growth  
 

2.1 Definition of Primary Constraints 
 
2.1.1 For the purpose of this study, the Council considers Primary 

Constraints to be strategic in nature and to be those that would prevent 
development from taking place and where it would not be possible to 
mitigate impact. 

 
2.1.2 It is important to note that for the purposes of the study, only those 

Primary Constraints that are generally considered to be ‘strategic’ will 
be included.  For example, listed buildings, conservation areas, trees 
protected by Tree Preservation Orders and ancient monuments are not 
considered to be strategic constraints.  The Council considers such 
designations be Secondary Constraints that would not preclude 
development but which may need to be addressed if a site is to be 
deemed suitable.  They could also restrict the scale and type 
development.  Such Secondary Constraints are more appropriately 
considered when undertaking individual site assessments. 

 
2.1.3  In Epsom and Ewell the Primary Constraints are therefore considered 

to be as follows; 
 
Constraint Reason Relevant local 

policies  
Areas affected 

Flood Zone 3b  Undeveloped areas within 
the 1 in 20 year outline 
where water has to flow or 
be stored in times of flood 
are defined as Functional 
Floodplain.   
 
In accordance with Policy 
DM19, NPPF & PPG, due to 
the frequency and extent of 
flooding in these areas and 
the need to maintain the 
natural function of the flood 
plain, additional 
development unless water 
compatible or essential 
infrastructure will not be 
permitted or allocated in 
these areas. 
 
NB. Those developed areas 
within the 1 in 20 year 

Development 
Management 
Policy DM19; 
Strategic Flood 
Risk 
Assessment 

As set out in the 
SFRA and latest 
EA Flood Risk 
Mapping 

5
Page 261

AGENDA ITEM 9
ANNEXE 1



outline that are prevented 
from flooding due to the 
presence of existing 
infrastructure or solid 
buildings are not defined as 
Functional Floodplain. Some 
redevelopment may be 
appropriate in these areas 
subject to strict criteria. For 
this reason, these 
developed areas are not 
considered to be a Primary 
Constraint. 

Within a Site of 
Special 
Scientific 
Interest (SSSI) 

Nationally designated sites 
that are legally protected for 
their wildlife and geology 
value under the Wildlife and 
Countryside Act 1981. It is 
considered that any 
development on a SSSI 
would have a significant 
adverse effect on the site or 
its features. 

Core Strategy 
Policy CS3 & 
Development 
Management 
Policy DM4 

-Epsom Common 
-Stones Road 
Pond 

Local Nature 
Reserves 
(LNR) 

LNRs are locally designated 
areas of land under Section 
21 of the National Parks and 
Access to the Countryside 
Act 1949. LNRs are 
designated for the 
contribution they make to 
local wildlife preservation.  

Core Strategy 
Policy CS3 & 
Development 
Management 
Policy DM4 

-Horton Country 
Park 
-Hogsmill 
-Epsom Common 
(all 174.5 ha) 
-Howell Hill 

Sites of Nature 
Conservation 
Importance 
(SNCI) 

SNCIs are designated in 
response to their 
environmental value 
including biodiversity and 
other nature conservation.  
Currently there are 13 SNCI 
within the Borough. 
 

Core Strategy 
Policy CS3 & 
Development 
Management 
Policy DM4 

Epsom Common 
South 
-Epsom Downs 
-Epsom Cemetery 
-Hogsmill Local 
Nature Reserve 
-Howell Hill Nature 
Reserve 
-Livingstone Park 
-Horton County 
Park 
-Nonsuch Park 
and Warren Farm 
-Northey Fields 
-Priest Hill Nature 
Reserve 
-Downs Road 
Reservoir 
-Langley Bottom 

6
Page 262

AGENDA ITEM 9
ANNEXE 1



Farm 
-Epsom Downs 
Golf Course 

Ancient 
Woodlands 

These are areas of 
woodland that have been 
wooded continuously since 
1600 AD identified by 
Natural England.  It includes 
ancient semi natural 
woodland and plantations 
on ancient woodland sites.  
These woodlands are 
irreplaceable. 

Core Strategy 
Policy CS3 & 
Development 
Management 
Policy DM8 & 
DM5 

-Butcher’s Grove 
-Great Wood 
-Long Grove 
Wood 
-Four Acre Wood 
-Pond Wood 
-Stone’s Copse 
-The Warren 
Woodland 
-Langley Bottom 
Farm (x4) 
-Nonsuch Park 
The Grove 
-The Durdans 
Woodland 
-Woodcote Park 
(x2) 
 

Registered 
Historic Parks 
and Gardens 

These parks or gardens are 
fragile and finite resources 
that can easily be damaged 
beyond repair or lost 
forever.  
 

Core Strategy 
Policy CS4; 
Development 
Management 
Policy DM8 

-Nonsuch Park 

Registered 
Common Land 

Common land are 
covenanted for their 
protection and therefore 
would not be a viable 
consideration in options 
development. 

Core Strategy 
Policy CS4; 
Development 
Management 
Policy DM4, 
DM6 

-Epsom Common 

Table 1: Definition of Primary Constraints 

1.2 Green Belt  
 
2.2.1 A large proportion (42%) of the Borough is designated as Green Belt 

land forming part of the much wider Metropolitan Green Belt.  Figure 1 
outlines the extent of Metropolitan Green Belt within Epsom & Ewell 
which forms a horseshoe shape wrapping around the central urban 
areas in the centre and north of the Borough. 

 
2.2.2 National and local Green Belt policy regards the construction of new 

buildings as inappropriate in the Green Belt.  It should be noted that 
publication of the NPPF has widened the exceptions to when 
development would not be considered inappropriate. 

 
2.2.3 Therefore, whilst a ‘policy on approach’ opposes inappropriate 

development in the Green Belt, it is considered that the Green Belt 

7
Page 263

AGENDA ITEM 9
ANNEXE 1



designation itself does not fall within the definition of a ‘primary 
constraints’ whereby any development is wholly prevented by national 
legislation and policy.  

 

8
Page 264

AGENDA ITEM 9
ANNEXE 1



±
1:30,000

© Crown copyright and database right 2017
Ordnance Survey Licence 100023771 Document Date: 23/05/2017

KEY

Green Belt

Borough Boundary

Figure 1:
Green Belt

Land

Epsom &
Ewell

Constraints
Study

0 500 1,000 1,500250
Meters

9
Page 265

AGENDA ITEM 9
ANNEXE 1



3. Mapping of Primary Constraints 
  

10
Page 266

AGENDA ITEM 9
ANNEXE 1



±
1:30,000

© Crown copyright and database right 2017
Ordnance Survey Licence 100023771 Document Date: 25/05/2017

KEY

Flood Zone
1 in 20yr outline

Borough Boundary

Figure 2:
Flood Zone -

1 in 20yr outline

Epsom &
Ewell

Constraints
Study

0 500 1,000 1,500250
Meters

11
Page 267

AGENDA ITEM 9
ANNEXE 1



±
1:30,000

© Crown copyright and database right 2017
Ordnance Survey Licence 100023771 Document Date: 25/05/2017

KEY

SSSI

Borough Boundary

Figure 3:
Sites of Special

Scientific
Interest

Epsom &
Ewell

Constraints
Study

0 500 1,000 1,500250
Meters

12
Page 268

AGENDA ITEM 9
ANNEXE 1



±
1:30,000

© Crown copyright and database right 2017
Ordnance Survey Licence 100023771 Document Date: 25/05/2017

KEY

Local Nature Reserve

Borough Boundary

Figure 4:
Local Nature

Reserves

Epsom &
Ewell

Constraints
Study

0 500 1,000 1,500250
Meters

13
Page 269

AGENDA ITEM 9
ANNEXE 1



±
1:30,000

© Crown copyright and database right 2017
Ordnance Survey Licence 100023771 Document Date: 25/05/2017

KEY

SNCI

Borough Boundary

Figure 5:
Sites of Nature
Conservation

Interest

Epsom &
Ewell

Constraints
Study

0 500 1,000 1,500250
Meters

14
Page 270

AGENDA ITEM 9
ANNEXE 1



±
1:30,000

© Crown copyright and database right 2017
Ordnance Survey Licence 100023771 Document Date: 25/05/2017

KEY

Ancient Woodlands

Borough Boundary

Figure 6:
Ancient

Woodlands

Epsom &
Ewell

Constraints
Study

0 500 1,000 1,500250
Meters

15
Page 271

AGENDA ITEM 9
ANNEXE 1



±
1:30,000

© Crown copyright and database right 2017
Ordnance Survey Licence 100023771 Document Date: 25/05/2017

KEY

Registered Parks
and Gardens

Borough Boundary

Figure 7:
Registered
Parks and
Gardens

Epsom &
Ewell

Constraints
Study

0 500 1,000 1,500250
Meters

16
Page 272

AGENDA ITEM 9
ANNEXE 1



±
1:30,000

© Crown copyright and database right 2017
Ordnance Survey Licence 100023771 Document Date: 25/05/2017

KEY

Common Land

Borough Boundary

Figure 8:
Registered

Common Land

Epsom &
Ewell

Constraints
Study

0 500 1,000 1,500250
Meters

17
Page 273

AGENDA ITEM 9
ANNEXE 1



±
1:30,000

© Crown copyright and database right 2017
Ordnance Survey Licence 100023771 Document Date: 25/05/2017

KEY

All Primary Constraints

Borough Boundary

Figure 9:
All Primary
Constraints

Epsom &
Ewell

Constraints
Study

0 500 1,000 1,500250
Meters

18
Page 274

AGENDA ITEM 9
ANNEXE 1



 
 

4. Relationship with other Key Evidence Base Documents 
 

4.1 The Green Belt Study  
 
4.1.1 In signing the interim Surrey Local Strategic Statement (LSS) 2015 the 

Council made a commitment to undertake an assessment of its Green 
Belt.  The purpose of the Green Belt Study (GBS) is to provide 
evidence of how different areas perform against the Green Belt 
purposes as set out within the National Planning Policy Framework 
relevant to Epsom and Ewell.   

 
4.1.2 The assessment includes the identification of the Broad Areas of the 

Green Belt within the Borough and smaller Local Areas (referred to as 
Refined Parcels) based on function and boundary features.   

 
4.1.3 The GBS is a technical evidence base document that provides an 

objective assessment of the designated Metropolitan Green Belt 
located within the Borough boundary.  The study also assessed 
discrete parcels of land immediately adjoining the defined Green Belt 
boundary for their suitability for potential inclusion within the Green 
Belt. 

 
4.1.4 In order to achieve a completely objective assessment, the GBS took a 

‘policy off’ approach and solely assessed the extent to which land 
designated as Green Belt performed against the 4 relevant purposes 
set out in national planning policy.  

 
4.1.5 Therefore consideration has not been given to any other constraints, 

designations, policies, strategies or the development potential of the 
Broad Areas or Refined Parcels.  Any future consideration of the 
development potential of such land would need to be supported by a 
comprehensive ‘policy on’ assessment of the Refined Parcels.  This 
would enable the identification of  areas of land not affected by 
constraints that would prevent development taking place as well as 
locations where it’s would not be possible to mitigate impacts.  

 
4.1.6 It is anticipated that an assessment constraints will form part of a more 

refined review of the Borough’s Green Belt.  Further work is intended to 
build upon the findings of the initial GBS (published in April 2017).  It 
will assess in further detail the Refined Parcels and those non-green 
belt sites identified as well as the potential cumulative implications of 
any amendments to the existing Green Belt boundary.  

 
4.1.7 This further assessment along with other key evidence base 

documents will inform any forthcoming consideration of whether 
exceptional circumstances exist to amend the Green Belt boundary.  
This could include the removal and/ or additions to the boundary. 

19
Page 275

AGENDA ITEM 9
ANNEXE 1



 
4.1.6 The methodology to undertake an initial ‘policy on’ assessment of the 

Green Belt is proposed in Section 5. 

4.2 The Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment  
 
4.2.1 The Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment (SHLAA) is a key 

evidence document in developing the Local Plan.  The SHLAA does 
not allocate land for development but considers the potential future 
supply of land likely to be available for residential (bricks and mortar) 
development over the next plan period up to 2032. 

 
4.2.2 Although this assessment makes a judgement about the developability 

of particular sites for development, it is based on a number of 
assumptions.  It does not in any way prejudge any planning 
applications that may be received on individual sites.  It should be 
noted that the inclusion or otherwise of a site within the SHLAA does 
not in itself determine whether a site should be developed. 

 
4.2.3 The SHLAA uses an agreed, objective and consistent methodology 

based on the suitability, availability and the achievability of individual 
sites before coming to an overall conclusion.  The following factors are 
considered to assess a site’s suitability for development now or in the 
future: 

 
 Physical limitations or problems such as access, infrastructure, 

ground conditions, flood risk, hazardous risks, pollution or 
contamination; 

 Policy constraints including land designations that would deem sites 
unsuitable or housing development or which may affect the scale 
and type of housing development; and 

 Potential impacts including the effect upon the environment 
including landscape features, nature biodiversity and heritage 
conservation. 

 
4.2.4 The assessment of each site initially takes a ‘policy off / unconstrained’ 

approach to identifying development potential.  However, when 
considering if the site is ‘deliverable’ or ‘developable’, informed by the 
Constraints Study, a ‘policy on/ constrained’ approach is applied.   

 
4.2.5 Those sites within the built up area and affected by ‘primary 

constraints’ (as outlined in Table 1) which deem it unsuitable for 
housing development under the current Spatial Strategy and national 
policy will be effectively discounted from the housing land supply.  
However, they will be recorded for auditing purposes and reconsidered 
if necessary in the future.  This may be the case depending upon the 
initial outcomes of the SHLAA. 

 
4.2.6 If the SHLAA fails to identify a sufficient supply of housing land to meet 

the OAHN figure, the Council could consider whether it is possible to  

20
Page 276

AGENDA ITEM 9
ANNEXE 1



meet the Borough’s housing need by increasing the number of suitable 
sites for development. This could be done by reconsidering the 
assumptions, in relation to constraints and could potentially include the 
disregarding of certain policy constraints that led to sites previously 
being considered as unsuitable. 

 
4.2.7 However, the Council would need to fully consider the implications of 

such scenarios through the Sustainability Appraisal.  This process will 
accompany the partial update of the Core Strategy and any 
forthcoming proposals to allocate sites. 

 
 
 

21
Page 277

AGENDA ITEM 9
ANNEXE 1



 
 

5. Assessing Green Belt Land 

5.1 Proposed Methodology 
 
5.1.1 The Epsom and Ewell Green Belt Study 2017 (GBS) is a technical 

evidence base document that provides an objective assessment of the 
designated Metropolitan Green Belt located within the Borough 
boundary. In order to achieve a completely objective assessment, the 
GBS took a ‘policy off’ approach and solely assessed the extent to 
which land designated as Green Belt performed against the relevant 
purposes set out in national planning policy.   

 
5.1.2 To provide an initial  ‘policy on’ assessment of the Borough’s Green 

Belt land a detailed desk based assessment will be undertaken to 
quantify how much of the Borough’s Green Belt land is affected by 
each Primary Constraint (as identified in Table1).   

 
5.1.3 The GBS defines 53 discreet land parcels referred to as ‘Refined 

Parcels’ that together comprise the Green Belt using physical features 
that are readily recognisable and likely to be permanent. This included 
roads, railways lines, watercourse, established field boundaries, rights 
of way and area of woodlands. These parcels are shown within Figure 
10 which has been extracted from the GBS. For consistency and ease 
of analysis, the same defined parcels will form the basis of this 
assessment.  

 

22
Page 278

AGENDA ITEM 9
ANNEXE 1



Epsom and Ewell Green Belt Study | February 2017

22

1

2

3

4

5

67

8

9

10

11

12

13

14
15

16

17
18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25
26

27
28

29

30

31

32

33 34

35
36

37
38

39

40
41

42

43

44
45

46

47

48

49 50

51

52

53

Client

Project

Title

Sheet Size Original Scale

Drawing Number

Date    07/02/17

Designed / Drawn
SD

Checked
HM

Authorised
NDK

Date    07/02/17

Rev

Date    07/02/17

Consulting Engineers
The Hub

Bristol, South Glos.,
England, BS32 4RZ

500 Park Ave, Tel: +44(0)1454 662000
Fax: +44(0)1454 663333

www.atkinsglobal.com

Atkins Limited ©

TM

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material
with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the

controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office. © Crown Copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and

may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

CLIENT NAME: EPSOM & EWELL BOROUGH COUNCIL
  

LICENCE NUMBER: 100023771 [2017]

Epsom and Ewell
Administrative Boundary

Parcel Areas

Green Belt

Potential Green Belt

Path: P:\GBEMC\WGE\Projects\Cities\20161349 Epsom and Ewell Green Belt review\7 WIP\GIS\002_WIP\5150705_EPS_GRN_PAR_04.mxd

0 1 20.5
Kilometres

EPSOM & EWELL GREEN BELT STUDY

PROPOSED PARCEL AREAS

5150705_EPS_GRN_PAR

A3 1:40,000

04

Appendix A - Assessment Areas

23

P
age 279

A
G

E
N

D
A

 IT
E

M
 9

A
N

N
E

X
E

 1



 
5.1.4 The GBS acknowledges that Green Belt land within the Refined 

Parcels do not necessary respect authority boundaries.  The GBS 
considers the role of the designation in its wider context and has taken 
account of the character of land beyond the administrative boundary.  
For the purpose of this assessment, the analysis of Primary 
Constraints should be limited to only those areas within Epsom & 
Ewell. 

 
5.1.5 Using GIS mapping tools, for each Refined Parcel the following 

information will be recorded and analysed: 
  
 
Parcel number- as identified in the GBS 
Parcel area- area of parcel in hectares within and outside of the Borough 
Boundary 
Aerial location map- map showing the location of the parcel 
Summary of GBS information- summary of the information relating to the 
parcels performance 
Primary Constraints – an assessment of how the parcel is affected by each 
of the Primary Constraints including: 

• Area (ha) and percentage of parcel affected by constraint referring only 
to the area of the parcel within the Borough boundary. 

• Location of constraints within the parcel. 

• Details of the specific constraint it relates to e.g. name of SSSI. 
Summary of Primary Constraints Study – details of the total area of the 
parcel affected by Primary Constraints and the remaining unaffected area. 
 
   
5.1.6 It is anticipated that the desk based assessment will form part of the 

Green Belt Study Part 2 which will provide a more refined assessment 
of the Green Belt and build on the findings of the initial GBS.  This 
specific exercise will result in the identification of GBS parcels that are 
either: 

 

• Completely Affected by Primary Constraints 

• Not Affected by Primary Constraints 

• Partially Affected by Primary Constraints 
 
5.1.7 Parcels identified as being partially affected will be subject to further 

analysis.  This will seek to determine the extent of which the parcel is 
affected and whether there would be any merit in assessing the 
unaffected area in further detail.   

 
5.1.8 To clarify, Primary Constraints affecting areas of land within the built up 

area will be considered as part of the site assessment process within 
the Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment (refer to Section 
4.2 for further detail). 

24
Page 280

AGENDA ITEM 9
ANNEXE 1



6. Next Steps 
 
6.1.1 The desk based assessment will form part of further work to be 

undertaken on assessing the Green Belt. It is anticipated that this 
particular exercise will provide detailed analysis of the extent to which 
the Borough’s Green Belt land is constrained /protected by policy 
outside of the Green Belt designation.  It will also identify land within 
the designation that is not affected by Primary Constraints. 

 
6.1.2 It is anticipated that using the information gathered through this 

exercise, that it may be possible to identify area of land where, 
notwithstanding the Green Belt designation, the impact of development 
would not be harmful to the protected features that comprise the 
Primary Constraints, or where such impacts could be mitigated.    

 
6.1.3 The outcomes of the constraints assessment will need to be 

considered alongside those emerging from the SHLAA, the GBS 
findings to date and the outcome of future assessments.  Together 
these key evidence base documents will inform the consideration of 
whether there are exceptional circumstances to seek to amend the 
Green Belt boundary. 

25
Page 281

AGENDA ITEM 9
ANNEXE 1



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 282


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	4 Appointment of Licensing Panel Chairmen
	5 Corporate Plan: Year-end Performance Report 2016 to 2014 and Provisional Targets for 2017 to 2018
	Licensing Committee's Year-end Performance Report 2016/17 Annexe 1
	Licensing Committee's Provisional Targets for 2017/18 Annexe 2

	6 Epsom & Ewell Local Plan Programme 2017
	Epsom & Ewell Local Plan Programme 2017 Annexe 1

	7 Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment
	Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment Annexe 1 SHLAA Methodology June 2017
	Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment Annexe 2: SHLAA Findings Report June 2017
	Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment Annexe 3: Addendum 1- Maps of SHLAA Opportunity Sites by Ward
	5_Auriol_01
	5_College_02
	5_Court_03
	5_Cuddington_04
	5_Ewell_Court_05
	5_Ewell_06
	5_Nonsuch_07
	5_Ruxley_08
	5_Stamford_09
	5_Stoneleigh_10
	5_Town_11
	5_West_Ewell_12
	5_Woodcote_13


	8 Traveller Accommodation Assessment 2017
	Traveller Accommodation Assessment 2017 Annexe 2
	Traveller Accommodation Assessment 2017 Annexe 1

	9 Constraints Study
	Constraints Study Annexe 1: Constraints Study




